#### **TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM**

WRE Publication #348

## REPORT OF 1995 WET SEASON HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS

1. 11

1

South Florida Water Management District 3301 Gun Club Road West Palm Beach, Florida 33406

# WRE-348

## **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The objective of this 1995 Wet Season Report is to compile and analyze available data on hydrometerology, water quality and the environment, as well as to provide quantitative descriptions of the impacts caused by the above average wet season rainfall of 1995 associated with severe storms and hurricanes. The report is intended to inform the general public and decision-makers on the status of water resources, provide a systematic record of rainfall events and associated District operations, and analyze the consequences of the District's management in terms of impacts on South Florida ecosystems and protection from floods.

The 1995 Atlantic Hurricane Season was very active, and the District was either directly or indirectly affected by four tropical storms and hurricanes between June and October. The noteworthy storm events occurred during June 18-26 and October 14-19, 1995. The South Florida area was also affected by two hurricanes: Hurricane Erin on August 2-5 and Opal on October 5-7, 1995. Hurricane Allison (June 3-7) had little overall impact on South Florida and is not included as a significant event in this report of the 1995 season. Tropical storm Jerry hit the area on August 23-26, 1995. These systems, combined with periodic upper level disturbances and stalled fronts, produced a record amount of rainfall for the season. The 1994 wet season was also wetter than a normal year and it is rare to have two such wet periods in succession. Rainfall amounts from the above average daily rainfall, coupled with the amounts from these storm events during the wet season, accounted for approximately 80 percent of the total 1995 rainfall for South Florida. During the typical wet season from May to October, South Florida receives approximately 70 percent of annual rainfall. The 1995 wet season delivered approximately 49.5 inches or 126 percent of the long-term average wet season rainfall to the region.

The 1995 disturbances produced some locally heavy rains. In June, parts of Charlotte County received as much as 15 inches of rain in a two-day period. Furthermore, certain areas of the Upper East Coast (Martin-St. Lucie) and the Lower East Coast (Palm Beach, Broward and Dade counties) experienced heavy rainfall in October, with the daily rainfall depths over 10 inches at several locations. This volume of rain occurring in a single day is a rare event with no more than 1 chance in 100 of that event occurring in any year, commonly referred to as a 100-year return period.

Rainfall from the storms during the 1995 wet season had major impacts on the surface water storage system. An historical high stage of 18.6 feet (NGVD) was recorded on October 26 in Lake Okeechobee. Additionally, as a result of high water stages in the Water Conservation Areas (WCAs) during the wet season, water that would normally be conveyed from Lake Okeechobee southward to the WCAs, including regulatory and water supply releases, was partially diverted to the St. Lucie

i

Canal and Caloosahatchee River so that higher than average wet season discharges were released through these two outlets. Everglades National Park received a relatively large amount of water from Water Conservation Area 3 through releases from the S-12 structures. WCA-2 and WCA-3 had stages almost as high as has ever been seen in these areas.

S-197, the southernmost structure of the District, had to be partially opened during the beginning of the wet season due to the impact of a June storm in the south Dade area. During this event, as much as 2,500 cubic feet per second was discharged through this structure. Structure S-197 was opened again in August and October to release the runoff generated by heavy rains.

The June 18-26, 1995 storm caused some street and yard flooding in Dade, Broward, Lee, Okeechobee and St. Lucie Counties, but no house flooding was reported. The first August storm also caused some yard and street flooding in Collier, Okeechobee, Palm Beach and St. Lucie Counties.

The second storm event of August 1995 (August 23-26), however, necessitated some evacuation and there was widespread house flooding in Lee County. Additionally, extensive flooding of streets yards and agricultural fields were reported in Collier, Lee, Hendry, Martin, Okeechobee, Palm Beach and St. Lucie Counties.

The first storm of October (October 7, 1995) necessitated evacuation in Lee County (the Southwest Coast) where there was widespread flooding of homes. There was also extensive flooding of streets, yards and agricultural fields in Collier, Lee and Okeechobee Counties, and commercial sites were flooded in Highlands County. The second storm of October caused flooding of streets, yards and agricultural fields, and hundreds of floors in homes were flooded. Collier, Glades, Highlands, Martin, Okeechobee, Palm Beach and St. Lucie Counties were all impacted by this storm.

High discharge (at about 3 times the long-term average) from the Caloosahatchee River, combined with high runoff from the basin, decreased the salinity in San Carlos to below 20 ppt (parts per thousand) for extended periods. Abundance of shoal grass (*Halodule*) was depressed during the months of August, September and October relative to previous years. Inflows to the St. Lucie Estuary from August through November period violated recommended salinity levels to the point that the entire estuary was fresh water for those four months. These inputs were sufficient to continue adverse salinity fluctuations, loss of sea grasses, accumulation of sediments and degraded water quality for the St. Lucie and Indian River Estuary systems.

The unusually high rainfall during 1995 resulted in record levels of freshwater inflows to Florida Bay for the 1995 season. Salinity continued a general pattern of

decline and reached record low levels in several areas of the Bay. Algal blooms and areas of high turbidity persist in the central Bay, but are not thought to be directly caused by high volumes of freshwater discharge into the system. In the northeastern portion of the Bay, little change was seen in turtle grass abundance, but shoal grass tended to decline in abundance. Releases of freshwater from S-197 appear to have had little impact on the sea grasses in Manatee Bay or Barnes Sound.

Most increases in nutrient loads from the Kissimmee River can be attributed to high flow volumes, and loads fell within the range of values seen in earlier years. The frequency of algal blooms for Lake Okeechobee was not unusually high for 1995, although nutrient loading from the watershed was driven up by large runoff volumes. Loading values for phosphorus exceeded the mandated target to a degree reminiscent of previous years, an increase not unexpected in such a wet year. Water moving southward from the Lake also carried higher nutrient loads than have been seen in recent years.

For the most recent period 1994-5, the Everglades Agricultural Area (EAA) achieved a 31% phosphorus load reduction for water moving primarily southward. Material loads moving into WCA-1 showed no consistent pattern of response to the 1995 wet season, and phosphorus loading from the EAA to WCA-2 was somewhat lower than historical levels. High nitrogen loads moving from Area 2 into WCA-3 were recorded early in 1996, but were not accompanied by similar increases in phosphorus loading. As in previous years, remarkable reductions in nutrient concentrations were recorded for water moving between the inflow and outflow of WCA-3. In 1995, water flow into Everglades National Park was the highest documented for the period of record. However, thanks to a continuing decline in concentrations, nutrient loading to the Park during 1995 remained close to that seen in 1994.

An expert panel examined the information available on high water impacts in the Everglades National Park and found it to be incomplete. From the data available, the panel concluded that forested habitats in Everglades National Park do not appear to have been seriously affected by prolonged inundation and the impacts on key species appear to have been mixed. For example, some fish populations benefitted from high water, while the alligators and the Cape Sable Sparrow were among those species being negatively affected. For Water Conservation Areas 2 and 3, the Florida Game and Freshwater Fish Commission found serious impacts to tree island habitat. They concluded that most tree and shrub species should recover quickly. The deer population and other mammalian wildlife were severely impacted and will probably take 5 to 10 years to recover. Studies of the impact of the 1994-95 high water levels in the southern Everglades are continuing as this report is written.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	I
CHAPTER 1	1
CHAPTER 2	3
CHAPTER 3	9
RAINFALL ANALYSIS	ģ
ANALYSIS FOR THE 1995 WET SEASON	1
DISTRICT-WIDE RAINFALL	6
KISSIMMEE AND LAKE OKEECHOBEE BASINS	8
EVERGLADES AGRICULTURAL AREA (EAA EAST AND WEST) 2	9
WATER CONSERVATION AREAS	6
UPPER EAST COAST (MARTIN-ST. LUCIE SUBBASIN) 4	0
LOWER EAST COAST (PALM BEACH, BROWARD, AND DADE	
SUBBASINS) 4	:3
BROWARD COUNTY SUBBASIN))4	:6
DADE COUNTY SUBBASIN )5	1
CALOOSAHATCHEE SUBBASIN 5	5
COLLIER COUNTY 5	9
SOUTHWEST COAST SUBBASIN	2
BASIN PRECIPITATION MAPS	5
CHAPTER 4	3
SYSTEM OPERATION (WATER LEVELS AND DISCHARGES)	3
UPPER KISSIMMEE RIVER BASIN	3
LOWER KISSIMMEE AND LAKE OKEECHOBEE BASINS	7
UPPER EAST COAST BASIN (MARTIN/ST. LUCIE)	2
EVERGLADES AGRICULTURAL AREA (EAA)	3
WATER CONSERVATION AREAS (WCAS)	5
HIGH WATER CONTROL IN WATER CONSERVATION AREA	
3A 9	8
LOWER EAST COAST BASIN (LEC)	5
EVERGLADES NATIONAL PARK	7
DISTRICT WIDE WATER CONTROL STRUCTURE OPERATIONS	ß

CHAPTER 5	5
DIST	RICT WIDE FLOODING COMPLAINTS 111
	CONDITIONS DURING STORM EVENTS 111
	EMERGENCY AUTHORIZATIONS ISSUED 114
	EMERGENCY ORDERS ISSUED
	FOLLOW-UP BY REGULATION STAFF
CHAPTER 6	131
IMPA	CTS TO ESTUARIES AND BAYS 131
	CALOOSAHATCHEE RIVER ESTUARINE SYSTEM
	ST. LUCIE ESTUARY WATERSHED
	INDIAN RIVER LAGOON
CONI	DITIONS IN FLORIDA BAY DURING THE 1995 WET SEASON 152
CHAPTER 7	
WATE	ER QUALITY CONDITIONS
	ANALYSIS OF WATER QUALITY
	KISSIMMEE RIVER
	LAKE OKEECHOBEE WATER QUALITY
	LAKE OKEECHOBEE PHOSPHORUS INPUTS AND TRENDS 178
	WCAs
Appendix A	
Appendix B	
Appendix C	
Appendix D	
Appendix E	
Appendix F	
Appendix G	
Appendix H	
Appendix I	
Appendix J .	
Appendix K	
	WCA Structures During Storms in June - October

## LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE 2-1.	1995 Wet Season Rainfall (June 1- October 31)
FIGURE 2-2.	District-wide Surplus Rainfall (May 1995- October 1995) 7
FIGURE 3-1	Rainfall Measuring Stations Within Subhasins of the District 10
FIGURE 3-2	Daily and Monthly Rainfall Reporting Areas
FIGURE 3-3.	Total Rainfall in Inches January-December 1995 67
FIGURE 3-4.	Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average January-December 199568
FIGURE 3-5.	Total Wet Season Rainfall in Inches, May-October, 1995
FIGURE 3-6.	Wet Season Rainfall in Inches Above Average, May - October, 1995 70
FIGURE 3-7.	Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, May 1995.
FIGURE 3-8.	Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, June 1995,
FIGURE 3-9.	Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, July 1995
FIGURE 3-10.	Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, August 1995
FIGURE 3-11.	Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, September 1995 75
FIGURE 3-12.	Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, October 1995
<b>FIGURE 3-13</b> .	Average Basin Rainfall (Inches) Totals for Storm Event of October 14-
	19,1995
FIGURE 3-14.	Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 1-day Maximum for Storm Event of
	October 14-19, 1995
FIGURE 3-15.	Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 2-Day Maximum for Storm Event of
	October 14-19, 1995
FIGURE 3-16.	Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 3-Day Maximum for StormEvent of
	October 14-19, 1995 80
FIGURE 3-17.	Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 5-Day Maximum for Storm Event of
	October 14-19, 1995 81
FIGURE 4-1.	Water Levels and Regulation Schedules for Major Lakes in the Upper
	Kissimmee River Basin
FIGURE 4-2.	Water Levels and Regulation Schedules for Major Lakes in the Upper
	Kissimmee River Basin 85
FIGURE 4-3.	Water Levels and Regulation Schedule for Lake Kissimmee 86
FIGURE 4-4.	Actual Daily Lake Okeechobee Stage and Regulatory Zone Stages 89
FIGURE 4-5.	Mean Daily Water Levels and Regulation Schedules for WCA-1 (top),
	WCA-2 (middle), and WCA-3 (bottom), May-December 1995 97
FIGURE 4-6.	WCA 31 Outflow and Distribution during 1995 100
FIGURE 4-7.	WCA 3A Surface Water Outflow Distribution
FIGUKE 4-8.	WCA 3A Relative Inflow Distribution 102

FIGURE 4-9.	WCA 3A Surface Water Inflow for District Structures (Acre Feet / Year) 103
FIGURE 5-1. FIGURE 5-2. FIGURE 5-3. FIGURE 5-4. FIGURE 5-5. FIGURE 5-6. FIGURE 5-7. FIGURE 5-8. FIGURE 5-9. FIGURE 5-10.	Broward County Flooded Areas121Collier County Flooded Areas122Dade County Flooded Areas123Glades County Flooded Areas125124Highlands County Flooded Areas125Lee County Flooded Areas126Martin County Flooded Areas127Okeechobee County Flooded Areas128Palm Beach County Flooded Areas129St. Lucie County Flooded Areas130
FIGURE 6-1.	Caloosahatchee River System
FIGURE 6-2.	Location of Salinity Sensors and Sea Grass Sampling Stations in the Caloosahatchee Estuary
FIGURE 6-3.	Monthly rainfall During the Wet Season in the
FIGURE 6-4.	S-79 and S-77, average daily wet season discharge (cfs). Basin Discharge calculated as the difference between S-79
	and S-77. Error bars are 95 % C.I
FIGURE 6-5.	Daily Discharge (cfs) at Structure S-79 and from the Caloosahatchee Watershed (Basin) During the Wot Season
FIGURE 6-6.	Salinity in the Caloosahatchee Estuary During the 1995 Wet Season.
	Data are from Continuous Conductivity Recorders
FIGURE 0-7.	Seagrass (top) Halodula and Thallacia blade density Sen
	Carlos Bay
FIGURE 6-8.	St. Lucie Estuary Watershed
FIGURE 6-9.	Salinity Gradients and Preferred Salinity Envelope for the St. Lucie
	Estuary
FIGURE 6-10.	Historical Flows to the St. Lucie Estuary
FIGURE 6-11.	Salinity distribution in the Indian River Lagoon (October 9,1995) 149
FIGURE 0-12.	(November 9, 1995)
FIGURE 6-13.	Florida Bay
FIGURE 6-14.	Rainfall in the Southern Everglades (S-18C)
FIGURE 6-15.	Water flow in Taylor Slough and Southern C-111
FIGURE 6-16.	Water Flow from Southern C-111.
FIGURE 6-17.	Salinity in Manatee Bay

FIGURE 6-18.	Salinity in Florida Bay 1	58
FIGURE 6-19.	Water Quality in Eastern (Duck Key) and Central (Whipray Basin)	-
FIGURE 6-20.	Sea Grass Abundance in Manatee Bay near C-111	59 61
FIGURE 7-1.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S65 16	65
FIGURE 7-2.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S65	65
FIGURE 7-3.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen	66
FIGURE 7-4.	Historical monthly total phosphorus load and flow at S65C 16	50 66
FIGURE 7-5.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at	0
	S68	57
FIGURE 7-6.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at	
	S65E	57
FIGURE 7-7.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen	
	Concentrations at S68	58
FIGURE 7-8.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S65E 16	58
FIGURE 7-9.	Flistorical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended	~
FIGERF 7+10	Historical Monthly Total Phoenhorus Load and Flow at	<u> </u>
	S84	70
<b>FIGURE 7-11.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids	U
	at S84	70
<b>FIGURE 7-12.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen	
	Concentrations at S84	71
<b>FIGURE 7-13.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S154 17	72
<b>FIGURE 7-14</b> .	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids	
FICUDE 7 16	at S154. $\dots$ 17	′2
FIGURE /-15.	Lake Okeechobee chlorophyll <u>a</u> count (ppb) for October	75
FIGURE 7-16	Lake Okeechobee chlorophyll a count (pph) for November 1995	С 26
FIGURE 7-17.	Lake Okeechobee chlorophyll a count (ppb) for December 1995 17	77
FIGURE 7-18.	Phosphorus Concentrations for S-154 and C-38 Basins -	<i>'</i>
	Month Moving Flow - weighted values	<i>'</i> 9
FIGURE 7-19.	Phosphorus Concentrations for S-191 and Fisheating	
	Creek Basins - 12 Month Moving Flow - weighted values 17	'9
FIGURE 7-20.	Actual and target Total Phosphorus Load for Lake	
	Okeechobee	1
FIGUKE 7-21.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at	
		3

and the second

FIGURE 7-22.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended
FIGURE 7-23.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
FIGURE 7-24.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S191.
FIGURE 7-25.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids at S191
FIGURE 7-26.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
FIGURE 7-27.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S127.
FIGURE 7-28.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids at S127
FIGURE 7-29.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S127.
<b>FIGURE 7-30.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S72
<b>FIGURE</b> 7-31.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids at \$72
FIGURE 7-32.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S72.
FIGURE 7-33.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S135
FIGURE 7-34.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids at \$135
FIGURE 7-35.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S135.
FIGURE 7-36.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S71
FIGURE 7-37.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids at S71
FIGURE 7-38.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S71
FIGURE 7-39.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S129
FIGURE 7-40.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids at S129.
FIGURE 7-41.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
FIGURE 7-42.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S131

FIGURE 7-43.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids at \$131 197
FIGURE 7-44	Historical Monthly Total Phoenhorus and Total Nitrogen
1100KL /-44.	Concentrations at \$131.
FIGURE 7-45.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow for
	Fisheating Creek at SR 78.
FIGURE 7-46.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended
	solids for Fisheating Creek at SR 78.
FIGURE 7-47.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations for Fisheating Creek at SR78 200
FIGURE 7-48.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S80. 202
<b>FIGURE 7-49</b> .	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended solids
	at S80
FIGURE 7-50.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations at S80.
FIGURE 7-51.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
	S308
FIGURE 7-52.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended
	solids at \$308
FIGURE 7-53.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
10	concentration at S308
FIGURE 7-54.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
	S79
FIGURE 7-55.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended
	solids at S79
FIGURE 7-56.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations at S79 207
FIGURE 7-57.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
	L8.441
FIGURE 7-58.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended
	solids at L8.441
FIGURE 7-59.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations at L8.441
FIGURE 7-60.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
	S352
FIGURE 7-61.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total suspended
	solids at S352
FIGURE 7-62.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations at S352 212
FIGURE 7-63.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
	S4

• •

. . .

FIGURE 7-64.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended
	Solids at S4
FIGURE 7-65.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations at S4
FIGURE 7-66.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
	5236
FIGURE 7-67.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended
	Solids at \$236
FIGURE 7-68.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
EICUDE 7 (0	Concentrations at \$236
FIGURE /-09.	Fistorical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
FICURE 7 70	Historical Monthly Tatal Nil
FIGURE /-/U.	Solide at S2
FIGURE 7-71	Historical Monthly Total Phoenhams and T. (1) N/
1100RL /-/1.	Concentrations at S2
FIGURE 7-72	Historical Monthly Total Phoenhamin Load and Elaw et
1100112772.	Culvert 12A
FIGURE 7-73.	Historical Monthly Total Phoenhorus Load and Elowet
	Culvert 12
FIGURE 7-74.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at
	Culvert 4A
FIGURE 7-75.	Total Phosphorus% Load Reduction for the FAA Basin 222
<b>FIGURE 7-76.</b>	12-Month Average Total Posphorus% Load Reduction for the
	EAA Basin
<b>FIGURE 7-77.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow
	at S5A
<b>FIGURE 7-78.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids
	at S5A
FIGURE 7-79.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations at S5A
FIGURE 7-80.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow
FICUIDE # 01	at SSAE
FIGURE /-81.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids
FICURE 7.82	Historical Monthly Tetal Diseastrando LTL - LN
FIGURE 7-02.	Concentrations at S5AE
FIGURE 7-83	Historical Monthly Total Phoenhorus Load and Water Pl
	at S6.
<b>FIGURE 7-84</b> .	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solida
	at S6
FIGURE 7-85.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen
	Concentrations at S6

<b>FIGURE 7-86.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
	at S10A	230
<b>FIGURE 7-87.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
	at S10C	230
<b>FIGURE 7-88</b> .	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
	at S10D	231
<b>FIGURE 7-89.</b>	Geometric Means of Total Phosphorus Concentrations for	
	WCA 1	231
FIGURE 7-90.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S7 2	232
FIGURE 7-91.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids	
	at \$7	!32
FIGURE 7-92.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations	
	at S7 2	:33
FIGURE 7-93.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
WOUDD F & A	at \$38	:35
FIGURE 7-94.	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids	
FIGUDD 7 07	at \$38.	:35
FIGURE 7-95.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at	
FICUDE 7 04	538	:36
FIGURE /-90.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
FICUDE 7 07	at STIA.	:37
FIGURE /-9/.	At S11B	• <b>••</b>
FICURE 7-08	Historical monthly total phoephorus load and flavy at \$110	:37 170
FIGURE 7-98.	Historical Monthly Total Phaenharus Load and Water Flow	.38
FIGURE 7-77,	at \$150	20
FIGURE 7.100	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solida	,39
1100KB /-100.	at \$150	30
FIGURE 7-101.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at	.59
	S150.	40
<b>FIGURE 7-102.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S8	41
<b>FIGURE 7-103.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids	
	at S8	41
<b>FIGURE 7-104.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen	
	Concentrations at S8 2	.42
FIGURE 7-105.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
	at \$333	43
FIGURE 7-106.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
	at S9	43
FIGURE 7-107.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	
	at S12A	45
FIGURE 7-108.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen	
	Concentrations at S12A	45

FIGURE 7-109.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	246
<b>FIGURE 7-110.</b>	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations	246
FIGURE 7-111.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at \$12C	247
FIGURE 7-112.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen	247
FIGURE 7-113.	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow	248
<b>FIGURE 7-114</b> .	Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations	. 248
<b>FIGURE 7-115</b>	Historical monthly total phosphorus load and flow at S332.	249
FIGURE 7-116.	at S18C.	. 249

## LIST OF TABLES

TABLE 2-1.	Rainfall Distribution: May-October 1995 3
TABLE 2-2.	Historical Perspective of 1995 Wet Season Rainfall.
TABLE 3-1.	SFWMD Normal Rainfall vs. Actual Rainfall
TABLE 3-2.	Minimum and Maximum Rainfall Magnitudes for Selected Return
	Periods and Time Durations 15
TABLE 3-3.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Upper Kissimmee
TADIE24	Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995) $\dots$ 19
TABLE 3-4.	Daily Kainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Keturn
	Subbasin (August 2 5 1005)
TARIE 3-5	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary Storm Durations and Roturn Pariod
INDEE 5-5.	(Years) for the Storm Events in the Upper Kissimmee, Subhasin, (October
	14-19, 1995).
TABLE 3-6.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period
	(Years) for the Storm Events in the Lower Kissimmee Subbasin (June 18-
	26, 1995)
TABLE 3-7.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period
	(Years) for the Storm Events in the Lower Kissimmee Subbasin (August 2-
	5, 1995)
TABLE 3-8.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Lower Kissimmee Area
	(October 14-19, 1995)
TABLE 3-9.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Lake Okeechobee
TADIE 2 10	Deiler Beinfall (In the c) Communication Denvice and Dele
TABLE 5-10	Pariod (Voars) for the Storm Events in Lake Okeeshehee Subheeir
	(August 23-26, 1995) 27
TABLE 3-11	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary Storm Durations and Return
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Lake Okeechobee
	Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995)
TABLE 3-12	. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in EAA (East) Subbasin (June
	18-26, 1995)
TABLE 3-13	. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in EAA (East) Subbasin
	(August 23-26, 1995) 31

TABLE 3-14	. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the EAA (East) Subbasin	
	(October 14-19, 1995)	32
TABLE 3-15	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the EAA (West) Subbasin	
	(June 18-26, 1995).	34
TABLE 3-16	. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	JT
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the EAA (West) Subbasin	
	(August 23-26, 1995).	34
TABLE 3-17.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the EAA (West) Area	
	(October 14-19, 1995).	35
TABLE 3-18.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (June 18-26, 1995).	37
TABLE 3-19.	Daily Rainfall Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for	
	the Storm Events in the	
	Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (August 23-26, 1995)	38
TABLE 3-20.	Daily Rainfall Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for	
	the Storm Events in the	
	Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (October 14-19, 1995).	39
1 ABLE 3-21.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
TABLESSO	Martin-St. Lucie Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995).	41
1 ABLE 3-22.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period for the	
TADIES	Storm Events in the Martin-St. Lucie Subbasin (August 2-5, 1995).	41
TADLE 3-23.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Martin C. L: C. L: (1	
TARLE 2 04	Deily Poinfell (Jackson) Current Circle Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995)	42
IADLE 5-24.	Baried for the Storm Events in the	
	Martin St. Lucia Subbasia (October 14.10, 1005)	
TARIE 2.25	Daily Painfall (Inches) Summary Cl. D. it. I.D.	42
IADLE 5-25.	Barried (Verse) for the Claure E	
	Palm Boach County Systematic (June 10.00, 1005)	
TARIE 2-94	Daily Painfall (Inches) Summary Ct. Daily Painfall (Inches) Summary Ct.	44
IADLL 3-20,	Period (Vears) for the Storm Events	
	in the Palm Peach County Cublication (America County Count	
	in the rain beach County Subbasin (August 2-5, 1995).	44

.

<b>TABLE 3-27</b> .	. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Palm Beach County Subbasin (August 23 - 26, 1995)	45
<b>TABLE 3-28.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Palm Beach County Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995)	45
<b>TABLE 3-29</b> .	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Broward County Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995).	47
<b>TABLE 3-30.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events	
	in the Broward County Subbasin (August 2-5, 1995).	48
<b>TABLE 3-31.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events	
	in the Broward County Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995).	49
<b>TABLE 3-32.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events	
	in the Broward County Area (October 14-19, 1995).	50
<b>TABLE 3-33.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events	
	in the Dade County Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995)	52
<b>TABLE 3-34.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events	
	in the Dade County Area (August 2-5, 1995)	53
<b>TABLE 3-35.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Dade County Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995).	54
<b>TABLE 3-36</b> .	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Caloosahatchee Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995)	56
<b>TABLE 3-37.</b>	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events	
	in the Caloosahatchee Area (August 23-26, 1995)	57
TABLE 3-38.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Caloosahatchee Area (October 14-19, 1995)	58
<b>IABLE 3-39.</b>	Daily Kainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Tears) for the Storm Events in the	
	Collier County Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995).	60
IABLE 3-40.	Daily Kainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return	
	Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the	
	Collier County Area (August 23-26, 1995)	60

a second a second

.

## **CHAPTER 1**

## INTRODUCTION

The South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD), created by the Florida Water Resources Act of 1972 (Chapter 373, FS), has been charged with determining how to resolve the complex water resource questions facing the region. The Mission of the District is to manage the natural resources of the 16 county area within its jurisdiction for the purpose of environmental enhancement, flood protection and water supply for multiple user groups. In order to carry out its Mission, one of the primary functions of the District's water resources management is to operate the system of levees, canals and water control structures in an optimal manner to accomplish peak efficiency during normal conditions, flood control during above normal conditions, and water supply during below normal or drought conditions. The agency's success will depend on its ability to summarize data on water resources and system operation, and use this information to manage water and related resources in an adaptive manner.

The SFWMD has analyzed water resources data and developed technical reports on various storms, as well as wet and dry season conditions, since the 1960s. These reports inform the general public and decision-makers on the status on water resources, provide a systematic record of rainfall events and associated District operations, and analyze the consequences of the District's management in terms of impacts on South Florida ecosystems and area protection from floods.

The objective of this 1995 Wet Season Report is to compile and analyze available provisional data on hydrometerology, water quality and the environment, as well as provide quantitative descriptions of different areas that were impacted by the above average 1995 wet season rainfall associated with the severe storm and Hurricane events.

The 1995 Wet Season report begins in Chapter 2 by summarizing the meteorological conditions found during the 1995 season. This chapter also provides a brief description of meteorologic phenomenon which triggered the tropical depressions, storms and hurricanes in the District area. Chapter 3 describes the characteristics of rainfall received during the wet season of 1995, as well as an analysis of the return frequencies or relative severity of rainfall amounts recorded during this year. This section of the report also provides information on the distribution of rainfall within thirteen areas (sub-basins) of the District, such as the Water Conservation Areas (WCAs), Everglades Agricultural Area and Lake Okeechobee. This chapter closes with a summary of subbasin rainfall by month, year, season and major event.

A summary of the District's operation of the Central and South Florida Flood Control Project is described in Chapter 4. This important chapter provides information on the stages and flows for major components of the entire water management system, as well as the particular stages and flows during tropical storms and hurricanes. Operational responses to the season's rainfall events is also included in Chapter 4, as is an explanation of the unusually high water levels recorded in Water Conservation Area 3A during 1995.

Floods are common in South Florida due to the area's flat topography and low elevations. During the wet months of 1995, some areas of the District were flooded due to higher than average rainfall received in the area. Chapter 5 chronicles complaints concerning flooding received during the storm events from individual home owners, district permit holders, etc., for the 1995 wet season.

The impacts of wet season stages and flows on the Caloosahatchee, St. Lucie and Florida Bay Estuaries are recorded in Chapter 6, while Chapter 7 describes the water quality conditions for the entire District area during 1995. The data presented in Chapter 7 on many key structures in the District cover the entire period of record since 1978. This approach to data analysis allows the reader to see how conditions in 1995 fit into the long-term pattern for each particular location.

## **CHAPTER 2**

## **METEOROLOGICAL DESCRIPTION OF 1995**

The June through October period was generally wet, varying from above average in the driest basins to excessively wet in others. Overall, 46.52 inches (135% of average) of rain fell. Rainfall ranged from 38.87 inches (110% of average) over the Eastern Everglades Agricultural Area, to 61.73 inches (163% of average) for the Southwest Coast (Figure 2-1). Rainfall was above average for all months except one.

During the dry months (from November through April) high pressure typically dominates the weather pattern except for occasional disturbances, such as cold fronts, which bring rainfall episodes. During the wet months (from June through September) warm tropical air is resident over the region, allowing a regular daily cycle of thunderstorms to develop. Superimposed over this daily cycle are enhanced rain days, generated by disturbances such as upper-level lows and tropical cyclones. May and October are transitional months between the two seasons. For this discussion, the 1995 wet season is defined as June through October; May is excluded due to the lack of wet season characteristics and resulting rainfall, while October is included. In an average wet season, three-quarters of the annual rainfall will occur during the 5-month period.

Table 2-1 below lists measured rainfall and the climatological mean, and states the percentage of normal for the period for each of the three 1994-95 rainfall periods. The three periods are defined as the end of the dry season (May), the first portion of the wet season (June and July), and the second portion of the wet season (August through October). Each period is discussed below.

Rainfall	May	Jun-Jul	Aug-Oct
Measured	2.97"	18.27"	28.25"
Climatological Mean	4.86"	15.28"	<u>19</u> .11"
Percent of Normal	61%	119%	148%

TABLE 2-1. Rainfall Distribution: May-October 1995.

The 94-95 dry season began wet but finished with about a two-inch rainfall deficit by the end of May. The District's wet season began in early June with Tropical Storm/Hurricane Allison which dropped two and one-half inches of rainfall over four days. Allison and three other heavy rainfall periods, each lasting from three to five days, added to the daily cycle of thunderstorms through July and were responsible for the 3-inch above-average rains over the first two months of the season. The most



FIGURE 2-1. 1995 Wet Season Rainfall (June 1- October 31)

বা

significant event occurred from June 20-23, as the weather pattern over the Gulf of Mexico combined with rich tropical moisture, resulting in heavy to excessive rains over the most southerly part of South Florida. This 96-hour period accounts for all of the above-average rain over the District, especially in Dade County, for the 2-month period.

Heavy rains from Hurricanes Erin and Opal, along with excessive rains from Tropical Storm Jerry and an end-of-season frontal boundary, fell District-wide, dropping over twelve inches of average rainfall from August through October 1995. These events not only accounted for the above-average rainfall during this period, but were responsible for one-fifth of the entire annual rainfall.

August began with Hurricane Erin. Rains focused near its eye as Erin moved inland in the vicinity of Vero Beach and progressed through Central Florida. Rains averaged more than two inches over the Upper East Coast and extended to the entire Kissimmee Valley by the morning of August 2. Rains refocused over the Lower East Coast and averaged about four inches in a 72-hour period, ending by August 5, as feeder bands expanded to the east of exiting Erin. Below average rains then fell from August 5-22, followed by the onset of Tropical Storm Jerry.

Tropical Storm Jerry (August 22-25) produced one of the heaviest 72-hour rain events in the District's history. Excessive rains began on August 23 when the tropical depression was upgraded to Tropical Storm Jerry. Over ten inches of rain fell in some local areas by the morning of August 24, with the heaviest focus extending from southern Collier County through Broward County, eastern Palm Beach County, and the upper east coast area. Rains averaged four to six inches over these areas. Excessive rains continued to pound the District on August 24 as Jerry drifted slowly northwestwara. An additional ten inches of rain fell over Charlotte, Lee, and Collier Counties by the morning of August 25, and another one and one-half to two inches fell along the Southwest Coast and the Caloosahatchee Basin. The District's 72-hour storm total averaged five and onehalf inches, with the Southwest Coast averaging nine inches through the period. From the end of August through early September, above average rains continued over the western and southern sections of the District. They were followed by a three-week period of below-average rains prior to the arrival of Hurricane Opal in early October.

While Hurricane Opal hit the panhandle of Florida, associated moisture and banding activity east of the storm brought heavy to excessive rains to the west. An average of over five inches of rain fell over the Caloosahatchee Basin and the Southwest Coast on October 2-5. Rains decreased but continued to be above average from October 6-13.

The wet season ended with a front in the middle of October. This front combined with an upper-level low and a tropical wave to generate moderate to heavy rains averaging around one and one-half inches District-wide on October 14. The area of rainfall decreased, but rain continued to be from moderate to locally heavy as the front pushed into southern sections of the District on October 15. As the front stalled in its east/west movement across Palm Beach County on October 16, a wave of heavy rain moved northward from Broward County through coastal Palm Beach County. Rains became very

heavy overnight as an impulse moved eastward along the frontal boundary, producing seven inches over northeast Palm Beach County by dawn on October 17. Excessive rains developed during the morning as strong, low-level convergence and massive, upper-level divergence allowed heavy showers and thunderstorms to continually redevelop over the same area. Rainfall reached from twelve to twenty inches over extreme Northeastern Palm Beach County and Southeastern Martin County by late evening. Light to moderate rains remained focused over this same area over October 18-19, and a swift moving cold front ushered in the dry season on October 20.

Figure 2-2 depicts a running total of above-average rainfall from May 1 through October 31. Most peaks on this graph correspond to rainfall events which have been discussed in this summary. The 1995 Atlantic Hurricane Season was well above its climatological mean, and the District was either directly or indirectly affected by four tropical storms or hurricanes between June and October. These systems, combined with periodic upper-level disturbances and stalled fronts, produced one of the wettest wet seasons on record. These rains were most pronounced in the Upper East Coast, the Lower East Coast, and the Lower West Coast. From an historical perspective, the season was the wettest since the C&SF Flood Project took shape in 1962; it was also the wettest since records began in the Upper East Coast and the Lower West Coast. This information is summarized in Table 2-2 (below).





BASIN	SEASON RAINFALL	HEAVIEST SINCE <sup>1</sup>	RANK SINCE 1962 <sup>2</sup>	RANK SINCE 1949 <sup>3</sup>
Upper Kissimmee	40"	1960	1st	5th
Lower Kissimmee	38.5"	1960	1st	5th
Lake Okeechobee	37.5"	1953	1st	4th
Water Conservation Areas	44"	<1963⁴	1st	N/A
Upper East Coast	50"	<1915	1st	1st
Lower East Coast	54"	1947	1st	1st
Lower West Coast <sup>5</sup>	54"	<1927	1st	1st

## TABLE 2-2. Historical Perspective of 1995 Wet Season Rainfall.

#### NOTES:

- 1. Using data from SFWMD Technical Publication 86-6, *Frequency Analysis of SFWMD Rainfall.*
- 2. "Phase two, the remaining works of the original Comprehensive Plan, was authorized by the Flood Control Act of September 3, 1954. Improvements in Hendry County and Nicodemus Slough...were added to the project in the Flood Control Acts of July 3,1958, and July 14, 1960 respectively. Improvements in Boggy Creek, Shingle Creek, Cutler Drain Area, South Dade County, and the West Palm Beach Canal were added in The Flood Control Act of October 1962. Improvements in Southwest Dade County were added in the Flood Control Act of October 27, 1965; the same act modified the 1958 authorization for the Hendry County Improvements.." (Huser, Into the Fifth Decade, p25)
- 3. The year (1949) that the Florida Legislature enacted Chapter 378 Florida Statutes to cooperate with the United States Government on authorized projects. Also the year that another law, Chapter 25270, was enacted to create the Central and Southern Florida Flood Control District (C&SFFCD). "It established the FCD's boundaries and abolished the Okeechobee Flood Control District (OFCD)." (Huser, Into the Fifth Decade, p12)
- 4. Seasonal records for the WCAs extend back only to 1963.
- 5. Not a part of the C&SF Project, except for C-43.

## **CHAPTER 3**

## **RAINFALL ANALYSIS**

#### INTRODUCTION

## **Characteristics of the South Florida Climate**

The boundaries of the South Florida Water Management District (the District) encompass a large portion of the southern peninsula of Florida located between latitudes 25° and 28° North. Due to the low latitude, South Florida is considered a subtropical region. As is characteristic of subtropical regions, the District usually receives rainfall throughout the entire year. The average annual rainfall for South Florida is approximately 52 inches (*Tech Pub 86-6, Frequency Analysis of the South Florida Water Management District*, Sculley). Rainfall is produced when convectional thunderstorms and frontal systems develop over the area. However, the amount of rainfall occurring varies considerably and is dependent upon the season.

The District experiences a bimodal rainfall pattern which means it can be separated into two statistical modes. This distinct bimodal pattern leads to what is typically referred to in south Florida as two-rainfall seasons: wet (summer) and dry (winter). From a statistical viewpoint, the wet season usually begins in May and lasts through the end of October. The months of May and October are considered transitional months between the seasons and, in some years, exhibit relatively little rainfall. The dry season typically begins in November and ends in April of the following year.

During the usual wet season, South Florida receives almost 75 % of the total annual rainfall. Rainfall during this period is attributed to daily convective thunderstorms and other weather systems such as tropical storms, depressions, and even hurricanes. Daily thunderstorms in South Florida usually lead to highly localized rainfall events in contrast to the more widespread, intense rainfall associated with the more severe summer weather systems such as tropical storms and hurricanes. Frontal systems are the main reason for rainfall during the dry season months in South Florida, and produce relatively light amounts of rainfall.

#### **Rainfall Measuring Stations within District Subbasins**

Currently, there are 138 rainfall measuring stations in the District's precipitation gauging network used for water resource management purposes (Figure 3-1). This network enables District engineers to sufficiently manage water levels in the primary



FIGURE 3-1. Rainfall Measuring Stations within Subbasins of the District

canal system, lakes, and water catchment areas to accept surges in discharge as a result of runoff from storm events. Rainfall data from this network are collected by the Operations and Maintenance Department (OMD), grouped by subbasins. and reported to the general public on a daily basis.

19 - A - A

2.11

The Operations and Maintenance Department (OMD) divides the District area into 13 subbasins (Figure 3-2). These are: (1) the Upper Kissimmee, (2) the Lower Kissimmee, (3) Lake Okeechobee, (4) EAA East, (5) EAA West, (6) the Conservation Areas, (7) Martin-St. Lucie, (8) Palm Beach County, (9) Broward County, (10) Dade County, (11) the Caloosahatchee, (12) Collier County, and (13) the Southwest Coast. The Martin-St. Lucie subbasin is also referred to sometimes as the Upper East Coast (UEC), and Palm Beach, Broward, and Dade counties are collectively referred to as the Lower East Coast (LEC).

## **ANALYSIS FOR THE 1995 WET SEASON**

#### Rainfall

Part of the 1995 wet-season analysis consisted of determining the overall amount and distribution of rainfall in the District area for the entire 1995 wet season (May-October), as well as for the shorter duration storm events occurring in the individual wet season months. To accomplish this analysis, daily rainfall data were retrieved from the OMD data base for the period May 1, 1995 to December 31, 1995. A fairly detailed record of the daily precipitation amounts for each rainfall measuring station within the 13 subbasins was compiled, and from these amounts the monthly values were summed for the wet season period (May through October) to get the wet season total. Rainfall amounts for the months of November and December were also totaled.

In doing the rainfall analysis, the total 1995 wet season rainfall amount was also compared against the average of the long-term wet season totals for the 13 subbasins described above. If any subbasin total exceeded the long-term average, the monthly rainfall amount was subjected to a frequency analysis to determine the expected return period.

A return period is also referred to as a recurrence interval, and represents the chance or probability of an event occurring during any specified time interval. For example, if a rainfall measuring station records a maximum three-day rainfall magnitude of 11.10 inches, and has an expectancy of at least a 10-year return period, this means that there is a 1-in-10 chance that the rainfall station will get at least 11.10 inches of rain during any three consecutive days in any given year.



FIGURE 3-2. Daily and Monthly Rainfall Reporting Areas

If a rainfall amount for a specific subbasin during a wet season month exceeds the historical average for that subbasin, then this amount is said to have a return period of more than one year. Another way of expressing this is that an equal amount of rainfall is not expected to occur in that subbasin during that wet season month every year. The average basin rainfall has a return period of close to two years (a 1-in-2 chance of recurring in any given year); it follows that larger amounts of rainfall occurring over shorter periods of time have longer return periods (occur less frequently). To determine the return period, the total amount of rainfall received within different areas (subbasins) of the District was first calculated.

and the second second

Data from some of the rainfall stations among the subbasins was duplicated, but this was necessary to determine the "average" amount of rain falling during a particular time interval within each subbasin. An arithmetic average method was used in the analysis to derive average rainfall amounts for a majority of the results presented. The actual subbasin monthly rainfall and the long-term subbasin averages (Table 3-1) were calculated using the thiessen weighting method.

#### **Rainfall Distribution and Frequency Analysis**

Rainfall intensities, durations, and amounts vary considerably throughout the District area. In general, higher amounts of rainfall are received in the southern coastal areas of the District, and lighter amounts are evident in the Upper Kissimmee area. The frequency of occurrence of distributed rainfall amounts can be determined through frequency analysis procedures. The procedures involve examining rainfall distributions for an individual station or the average rainfall distribution derived from multiple stations in a subbasin area, and statistically determining the associated return period for a particular amount of rainfall occurring during a specified time interval.

Return periods for monthly rainfall totals for some subbasins during the wet season months (May-October) were determined using the same Rainfall Frequency Analysis Procedure (RFAP) currently in use in the Hydrologic Projection Model. The RFAP is accomplished by fitting various theoretical frequency distributions to the historic series (1952-1991) of monthly rainfall events. Additionally, the Kolmogorov-Smirnov test and a visual check of the plotted frequency distributions are used to select the best fitting distribution to the monthly data. The return period for the selected 1995 monthly rainfall was determined from the fitted distribution. Only those months of 1995 for which rainfall exceeded the long term rainfall average were analyzed, and only basins for which the current Operations and Maintenance Department (OMD) geographical definition agrees with the RFAP geographical basin definition were the subject of frequency analyses. SFWMD Normal Rainfall vs. Actual Rainfall (Source of Normal Rainfall: ref Tech Pub 86-6, Frequency Analysis of SFWMD Rainfall, December 1986). TABLE 3-1.

District	1.94	2.84	2.26	2.03	2.73	24	2.59	3.12	4.86	2.97	8.1	10.1	7.18	8.22	6.97	11.7	7.49	6.43	4.65	10.2	1.94	0.84	1.73	0.78	52.4	61.5
SW Coast	2.08	4.09	2.34	1.65	2.73	0.79	1.82	5.8	4.48	2.21	9.38	13.68	8.54	11.69	8.6	13.8	8.2	9.33	3.2	13.23	1.76	0.68	1.58	ΓT	54.71	78.05
Collier	1.67	3.81	1.96	1.52	2.18	1.33	2.41	3.24	4.95	5.51	9.1	12.67	8.66	10.06	7.59	12.47	8.64	8.04	4.15	11.16	1.65	0.53	1.5	0.7	54.46	71.04
Calousa	1.8	3.4	2.45	1.83	3.18	2.06	2.27	4.99	4.5	1/1	9.17	11.7	8.38	11.4	8.07	11.9	8.23	7.89	3.98	10.6	1.54	0.76	1.66	0.92	55.2	69.1
LEC	2.41	2.99	2.19	1.59	2.7	2.44	3.43	3.2	5.87	2.61	8.1	13.76	6.41	7.23	6.83	13	8.52	7.55	7.84	12.2	2.94	1.38	2.02	1.14	59.26	60.69
Dacke	2.41	2.62	2.19	1.18	2.7	2.22	3.43	3.73	5.87	3.79	8.1	17.4	6.41	6.6	6.83	11.26	8.52	8.57	7.84	11.03	. 2.94	1.42	2.02	0.92	59.26	70.74
Broward	2.41	3.63	2.19	2.47	2.7	2.68	3.43	3.09	5.87	1.91	8.1	14.65	6.41	8.36	6.83	14.21	8.52	7.48	7.84	10.01	2.94	1.74	2.02	1.01	59.26	71.24
Palm Beach	2.41	3.1	2.19	1.61	2.2	2.58	3.43	2.57	5.87	1.49	8.1	8.45	6.41	7.22	6.83	14.57	8.52	6.26	7.84	15.06	2.94	1.1	2.02	1.52	59.26	65.53
Martin/St. Lucie	2.24	2.28	2.39	223	2.9	3.08	3.03	3.81	4.46	2.11	6.31	6.46	6.22	्र 5.89	5.73	16.63	7.5	5.91	6.37	15.49	2.48	0.54	1.87	0.82	51.5	65.25
WCAs	1.73	2.8	2.26	1.87	2.32	1.9	1.83	1.99	5.02	2.97	8.45	10.42	6.23	7.18	f. 38	11.59	ó.13	5.62	3.81	9.05	2	0.81	1.6	6.0	47.76	57.1
West EAA	1.73	3.38	1.91	2.6	2.79	1.84	2.66	2.29	5.05	2.88	8.64	8.62	7.35	2.79	7.26	9.57	7.74	5.74	4.24	10.94	1.85	0.38	1.72	0.69	52.94	56.72
East ÉAA	1.73	2.57	1.91	2.05	2.79	<u> 2.22</u>	2.66	1.81	5.05	2.59	8.64	7.55	7.35	8.22	7.26	9.59	7.74	4.62	4.24	8.89	1.85	0.6	1.72	0.69	52.94	<b>51.4</b>
Lake Okee	1.86	2.58	2.25	2.34	2.82	3.86	2.15	2.53	4.82	2.97	7.26	7.43	6.59	7.01	6.22	8.1	6.25	5.71	3.96	9.24	1.43	0.44	1.66	0.47	47.27	52.68
Lower kiss	1.99	2.25	2.43	3.16	2.67	3.18	2.68	3.85	4.28	2.22	7.48	8.01	7.7	6.6	6.98	10.72	6.91	4.85	3.65	8.32	1.64	0.85	1.55	0.53	49.96	54.54
Upper Kiss	2.07	1.79	2.72	1.99	3.21	2.5	2.71	2.29	4.29	3.11	7.37	8.33	6.29	i	6.9	11.35	6.38	5.83	3.2	5.7	1.8	1.67	2.04	0.67	48.98	54.05
	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual	mean	actual
	ĬAN	• • • • • •	н н н н		MAR.	ALC: INC.	APR		MAY -	1.1.71.1	Z			2	ALIC		SEP -		OCT						Year to -	date

A rainfall frequency analysis study prepared by MacVicar (Technical Publication 81-3, *Frequency Analysis of Rainfall Maximums for Central and South Florida*) was used to determine the return period of the daily point rainfall measured in each subbasin during any of the major storm events that impacted the District area during the 1995 wet season months. The frequency analysis was conducted by bench marking the magnitudes of the daily rainfall values (point rainfall) recorded at individual stations occurring during the 1995 storm events for selected durations, such as the 1-day, 2-day, 3-day, and 5-day maximums, against the isocontour patterns depicted in the isohyetal maps in the MacVicar study. These durations represent the maximum amount of rainfall which fell during a 24, 48, 72, or 120 hour period. This enabled a determination of the return period associated with a particular rainfall magnitude occurring during a specified time interval or duration.

A method was developed to aid in evaluating a specified rainfall duration or time interval and the associated magnitude of the rainfall event against selected return periods based on the Isohyetal maps. Depicted in Table 3-2 are ranges of rainfall values which could have possible return periods of three years or more for various time durations.

Duration	Return Period	Minimum	Maximum	Duration	Return Period	Minimum	Maximum
	3 YR	≥ 3.7 in	≥ 3.7 in ≤ 6.8 in.		3 YR	≥ 5.2 in.	≤ 8.8 in.
	5 YR	≥ 4.5 in.	≤ 8.5 in.		5 YR	≥ 6.3 in.	≤ 10.5 in.
1-DAY	10 YR	≥ 4.8 in.	≤ 11 in.	3-DAY	10 YR	≥ 7.3 in.	≤ 13.1iin.
MAA	25 YR	≥ 5.8 in.	≤ 14 in.	MAX	25 YR	≥ 8.6 in.	≤ 16.5 in.
	50 YR	≥ 6.5 in.	≤ 17 in.		50 YR	≥ 9.5 in.	≤ 18.5 in.
	100 YR	≥ 6.8 in.	≤ 19 in.		100 YR	≥ 11 in.	≤ 21 in.
	3 YR	≥ 4.8 in	≤ 8.4 in.		3 YR	≥ 6.2 in.	≤ 9.6 in.
	5 YR	≥ 5.6 in.	≤ 10.2 in.		5 YR	≥ 6.8 in.	≤ 11.8 in.
2-DAY	10 YR	≥ 6.6 in.	≤ 12.3 in.	5-DAY	10 YR	≥ 8.4 in.	≤ 14.5 in.
MAA	25 YR	≥ 7.6 in.	≤ 15.3 in.	МАХ	25 YR	≥10 in.	≤ 17.5 in.
	50 YR	≥ 8.5 in.	≤ 18 in.		50 YR	2 11 in.	≤ 19.8 in.
	100 YR	≥ 9.5 in.	≤ 20.5 in.		100 YR	≥ 12 in.	≤ 21 in.

**TABLE 3-2:**Minimum and Maximum Rainfall Magnitudes for Selected Return<br/>Periods and Time Durations.

\* Criteria was developed from MacVicar (Tech. Pub. 81-3. Frequency Analysis of Rainfall Maximums for Central and South Florida)

If the magnitudes of the 1-day, 2-day, 3-day, or 5-day storm totals for each rainfall measuring station were between the minimum and maximum amount shown in Table 3-2 above, then the isohyetal maps were evaluated to check if the rainfall amount from that recording station had a recurrence interval greater than the amount reported in MacVicar's study (Technical Publication 81-3). Only return periods greater than 3 years are identified, because the return frequency of average daily rainfall, as stated earlier, is approximately 2.2 years.

Due to the spatial (spacewise) variability of rainfall across South Florida, the ranges merely indicate that a specified rainfall amount may have a recurrence interval of at least 3, 5, 10, 25, 50, or 100 years. Whether a rainfall amount has a return period associated with exceeding the normal amount of rainfall is completely dependent on the location of the measuring station, and how the isocountour patterns depict rainfall concentrations around the rainfall station.

For instance, if a rainfall station measured four inches of rain in the Upper Kissimmee subbasin over a 24-hour period, which represented the maximum 1-day amount during a storm event, then it might have a return period greater than 3 years. However, rainfall patterns in the Upper Kissimmee River valley show smaller rainfall magnitudes than the Lower East Coast. Therefore, the same amount measured as a 1day maximum at a rainfall station in Broward County would probably not have exceeded the normal amount of rainfall, and would not have any return period of 3 or more years.

#### DISTRICT-WIDE RAINFALL

For the 1995 wet season, the highest amounts of rainfall falling on South Florida were the result of several synoptic weather systems which impacted the District. These occurred during the months of June through October, as a result of a severe storm during June 18-26, Hurricane Erin (August 2-5), Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), Hurricane Opal (October 5-7), and a severe storm event during October 14-19.

A large percentage of the wet season rainfall was derived from these five major storm events in contrast to daily thunderstorm activity. Overall, the 1995 wet season rainfall amount accounted for approximately 80 % of the total annual rainfall. Additionally, the rainfall produced from these storm events exceeded the normal amount of rainfall for many locations throughout the District. In many instances, the amounts of rainfall measured had recurrence intervals of between 3 and 25 years. Two storm events in particular (June 18-26 and October 14-19) produced such large amounts of rainfall over the course of 1 to 5 days, that the expectancy or recurrence of the amount of rainfall corresponded to a chance of 1 in 100 (a 100-year return period). Additionally, Hurricane Allison (June 3-7) contributed an average of four inches of rain to various parts of South Florida, and produced an average of 2.5 inches Districtwide. However, the data for Hurricane Allison show relatively smaller rainfall amounts and no extreme point rainfall in contrast to the other five major rain events mentioned. The impactfrom this event was not as significant as other events because it occurred during the beginning of the wet season when groundwater storage capacity was high due to relatively dry soil conditions; therefore it was not analyzed in detail.

As stated earlier, actual monthly subbasin precipitation averages are compared to the long-term monthly subbasin averages (Table 3-1). The actual rainfall values reported in Table 3-1 are derived using the thiessen averaging method used by the Operations and Maintenance Department (OMD); in this method, the long-term averages are derived using the thiessen method developed by Sculley (Tech Pub 86-6). For instance, Table 3-1 depicts that, during the month of June, the actual average basin rainfall was higher than the long term monthly averages for most of the subbasins within the District area. For example, the Lower East Coast (LEC), comprised of the Palm Beach County, Broward County, and Dade County subbasins, showed actual monthly rainfall amounts of 8.45, 14.65, and 17.40 inches, respectively, in comparison to the long term LEC average of 8.10 inches. This resulted in the subbasin receiving an average of 170 % of the normal monthly rainfall. In the southwest Coast (comprised of the coastal areas of Lee, Collier, and a small portion of Charlotte County) the actual monthly basin average was 13.68 inches in contrast to a long term monthly average of 9.38 inches, representing 146% of normal.

During the month of August, all the subbasins experienced higher actual rainfall than the long-term monthly averages. The Martin-St. Lucie subbasin (UEC) received 16.63 inches of average rainfall in comparison to 5.73 inches for the long term average, which represented 290% of normal. The Southwest Coast again experienced higher than normal rainfall of 13.80 inches compared to the long term average of 8.60 inches. This represented 160% of normal.

Again during October all subbasins in the District received higher than normal rainfall. In October, some of the greatest amounts of rainfall occurred in the Caloosahatchee subbasin, which received an average rainfall amount of 10.61 inches compared to the long term average of 3.98 inches. This represented 266% of normal. Additionally, the Martin-St. Lucie subbasin received a substantial amount of rainfall. The average basin-wide rainfall amount was 15.5 inches versus 6.8 inches for the long-term average (228% of normal). A monthly summary for each rainfall measuring station within the 13 subbasins is provided in Tables A-1 through A-13 in Appendix A. These tables summarize the monthly rainfall values for each of the 13 subbasins within the District for the months of May through December 1995. In addition, these tables show the total wet season rainfall (May-October) as well as the total for the months of

May through December. The tables also show the 1995 monthly basin average rainfall derived by averaging the rainfall values from the stations within the subbasins. Average monthly values for 1995, as a percentage of the long term average, were also derived. In order to provide a reasonable approximation of the "average" amount of subbasin rainfall, an arithmetic mean method was used. A compiled record of the daily precipitation amounts, the monthly totals, and the maximum monthly 1-day, 2-day, 3-day, and 5-day duration intervals for each station is presented (for each subbasin in Appendix B) for the months of May through December 1995.

#### **KISSIMMEE AND LAKE OKEECHOBEE BASINS**

This rainfall reporting area includes the Upper and Lower Kissimmee, and Lake Okeechobee subbasins. Included in this area are portions of Orange, Osceola, Polk, Highlands, Okeechobee, and Glades Counties lying within the District area. Presented for each subbasin are the results of the detailed analysis of the major storm events showing the distribution of point rainfall at measuring stations, and the associated return periods for any extreme events.

#### Upper Kissimmee Subbasin

Measured rainfall in the subbasin during Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26) and Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor in comparison to other affected basins, and these events are not included in the analysis in this subbasin section.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-3), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 2.97 to 6.94 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 5.25 inches. Most of the measured rainfall was recorded during the last four days of this event. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.93 inches (S65) at the outlet of Lake Kissimmee to a maximum of 3.50 inches (ST. CLOUD). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.78 to 4.00 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.78 to 4.48 inches. There were no extreme rainfall amounts associated with the point rainfall, or the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations.

Rainfall totals from Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) ranged from 2.58 to 4.83 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 3.59 inches (Table 3-4). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.50 (KISSIMMEE SP) to a maximum of 4.06 inches (ST. CLOUD). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.15 to 4.83 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.15 to 4.83 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at the S-65A station for both the 1-day maximum (4.05 inches) and the 2-day maximum (4.83 inches), with the measured rainfall amounts for these durations having recurrence intervals of at least three years.
Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Upper Kissimmee Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). TABLE 3-3.

			ļ							STORM	STORM DURAT	LION (RETU	RN PERIOD)
STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY MAX	3-DAY MAX
COLEY	00.	1.58	0.	.13	.40	.35	.56	.56	3.36	6.94	3.36	3.92	4.48
KISSIMMEE FS	0	. 62	80.	00.	.19	.30	.50	1.50	2.09	5.20	2.09	65 ° C	4.09
KISSIMMEE SP	00.	. 15	00.	.10	.60	2.00	.82	.25	2.25	6.17	2.25	2.82	3.42
LAKE ALFRED	-1.00	-1.00	00.	-1.00	.42	.07	-1.00	-1.00	2.63	1	ı	I	. 1
MC COY	00.	8.	00.	00.	-1.00	.19	.00	. 82	1.96	2.97M	1.96M	2.78M	2.78M
S-61	00.	80.	00.	-04	.33	.45	.50	.60	2.80	4.80	2.80	3.40	3.90
S-65	.08	00.	00.	.06	.63	1.75	. 88	1.15	1.93	6.48	1.93	3.08	3.96
S-65A	0	.15	00.	00.	.10	.10	.94	.35	2.93	4.57	2.93	3.28	4.22
ST CLOUD	°0.	00.	00.	.00	60.	.31	.35	.50	3.50	4.75	3.50	4.00	4.35
Note: 1) No Return Perior	ds greate	r than 3	years.	2) Storm	Duratio	n and S	torm To	tals may	include m	issing data ji	dentified by "M"	tag.	

ieu vy 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00". TABLE 3-4. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Upper Kissimmee Subbasin (August 2 - 5, 1995).

vier 1) Beturn Doviode about					C Starson	E C F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F		
ST CLOUD	96	- 47	03	.03	4.59	4.06	4.53	4.56
S-65A 4.	- 05	. 78	8.	8.	4.83	4.05(>3)	4.83(>3)	4.83
s-65 1.	. 85	.86	00.	.42	3.13	1.85	2.71	2.71
S-61 1.	. 69	1.32	5	60.	3.11	1.69	3.01	3.02
MC COY 1	-64	1.04	00.	.24	2.92	1.64	2.68	2.68
LAKE ALFRED -1.	-00	1.12	. 69.	-1.00	ı	I	ı	ı
KISSIMMEE SP 1	.50	1.00	.08	8.	2.58	1.50	2.50	2.58
KISSIMMEE FS 2.	.10	2.15	.02	. 04	4.31	2.15	4.25	4.27
COLEY 1.	. 25	.90	00.	1.15	3.30	1.25	2.15	2.15
					(II)	MAX	МАХ	MAX
STATIONS 8,	/02	8/03	8/04	8/05	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY
					STORM	STORM DURATI	ON (RETURN	PERIOD)

Note: 1) Heturn Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

The Upper Kissimmee subbasin experienced very little rain as a result of the October 14-19 storm event (Table 3-5). Rainfall totals from measuring stations ranged from 1.24 to 2.47 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 1.83 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.7 inches (KISSIMMEE FS) to a maximum of 1.25 (KISSIMMEE SP). There were no extreme rainfall amounts associated with the point rainfall, or the 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day durations.

# Lower Kissimmee Subbasin

Measured rainfall in this subbasin during Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26) and Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor compared to other affected basins, and these events are not included in the analysis in this subbasin section.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-6), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 2.65 to 8.73 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 5.29 inches. Most of the measured rainfall was recorded during the last four days of this event. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.67 (CV-5) to a maximum of 3.90 inches (S-71). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.05 to 5.14 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.37 to 5.85 inches. There were several stations with measured rainfall amounts for the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations having return periods of at least 3 years.

The daily point rainfall resulting from Hurricane Frin (August 2-5) recorded at the 23 measuring stations ranged from 0.84 to 9.01 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 2.70 inches (Table 3-7). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.45 (S-129) to a max of 4.50 inches (S-65B). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.85 to 5.60 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 0.74 to 5.65 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at S-65A, S-65B, and S-84. The measured 1-day duration rainfall at S-65B had a recurrence interval of at least 3 years, and the 2-day duration was at least 5 years.

The Lower Kissimmee subbasin received heavy amounts of rain as a result of the October 14-19 storm event. Rainfall totals from measuring stations ranged from 1.59 to 11.73 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 4.93 inches (Table 3-8). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.84 (COLEY) to a max of 6.38 inches (S-75). The 2-day maximum ranged from 1.13 inches to 8.45 inches (S-75). The 3-day maximum ranged from 1.14 (COLEY) to 8.47 inches (S-75), and 1.59 to 11.72 inches (S-75) for the 5-day maximum. There were many extreme rainfall

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Upper Kissimmee Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995). TABLE 3-5.

							na)mo				
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	5-DAY
							1			5	VUN
COLEY	.00	. 45	00.	.01	. 84	.29	1.59	0.84	1.13	1.14	1.59
KISSIMMEE FS	.03	.50	.0	00.	.01	.70	1.24	0.70	0.71	0.71	1.21
KISSIMMEE SP	.12	1.25	10	.00	.70	-30	2.47	1.25	1.37	1.47	2.35
LAKE ALFRED	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	00.	.17	.17	0.34M	4	I	1	, , ,
MC COY	.03	.53	.00	00.	00.	.72	1.28	0.72	0.72	0.72	1.25
S-61	.04	.80	00.	00.	.07	.33	1.24	0.80	0.84	0.84	1.20
S-65	00.	.81	00.	.02	. 65	06.	2.38	0.90	1.55	1.57	2.38
S-65A	.05	.77	00.	.18	.80	.38	2.18	0.80	1.18	1.36	2.13
ST CLOUD	00.	.90	.03	00.	.30	1.03	2.26	1.03	1.33	1.33	2.26
Victor 4/ Nie Dation Dation											

Note: 1) No Heturn Periods greater than 3 years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particutar day are identified by "-1.00".

 TABLE 3-6.
 Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Lower Kissimmee Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995).

STATIONS 6	/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	STORM TOTAL	STORM DURA 1-DAY	TION (RETUR 2 - DAY	UN PERIOD) 3-DAY	
										(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX	
ARCHBOLD	00	.08	. 22	.08	.90	. 60	2.46	.10	1.08	5 57	7 46	2 0.6	30 6	
AVON PARK -1.	00	.72	00.	.22	.23	.32	. 78	,49	3.15	5.91M	8.15M	2 5 6 A M	MCA A	
COLEY	00-	1.58	00.	. 13	.40	.35	.56	.56	3.36	6.94	3.36	2.92	4 4 R	
CV-5	60.	06.	.48	.13	.51	.19	.67	38.	.11	2.86	0.67	1.05		
OKEECHOREE FS	00	l.61	.01	.15	.75	.16	.49	1.10	2.50	6,77	2.50	3,60	4,09	
s-127	-01	. 29	00.	.10	.32	60.	.40	1.60	3.27	6.08	3.27	4.87(>3)	5.27(>3)	
8-129	00,	8	00.	.17	43	.20	.40	1.22	.72	3.32	1,22	1.94	DE C	
	.44	.21	.15	.17	.35	.11	.32	90	. 83	3.48	0.90	1 73	2.05	
S-133	00.	1.42	00.	.11	66.	.20	.47	2.50	2.64	8.33	2.64	5.14(>3)	5 61(>31	
S-65	.08	00.	00、	.06	.63	1.75	88	1.15	1.93	6.48	1,93	3.08	96 6	
S-65A	00,	.15	00.	. 00	.10	.10	94	.35	2.93	4.57	2.93	3.28	CC 4	
S-65B	00.	ი ი	00.	. 02	.10	. 05	.76	.02	1.35	2.65	1.35	1.37	2 T C	
S-65C	.03	ее.	00,	. 43	.02	.10	. 95	.10	1.30	3.26	1.30	1.40	5.05	
S-65D	00.	1.20	00.	.10	.10	.21	1.70	.45	1 15	4.91	1.70	2 15		
S-65E	.24	.82	60.	.16	. 25	.38	89	1.09	2 82	6,68	2.82	- - -		
S-68	00,	. 50	00.	.15	.25	00.	1.05	-10	1.15	3.20	1.15	1.25	08.4	
S-70	.01	. 13	60.	. 03	.23	.07	1.04	. 55	L.06	3.21	1.06	1.61	2 C	
	-01	.39	. 02	. 30	1.00	.37	1.43	.31	3.90	8.73	3.90(>)	3) 4.21	5.64(>3)	
S-72	11	.49	.07	.10	.20	.03	.47	. 50	2.48	4.45	2.48	2.98	1 45	
S-75	00.	2.51	.04	. 05	-47	- 32	1.38	.76	1.23	6.66	2.51		3 37	
S-82	00.	. 52	00.	. 02	.26	.21	1.16	. 90	1.75	4,82	1.75	59.2	18.6	
S-83	00.	1.26	00.	. 07	.35	00.	00.	1.15	1.35	4.18	1.35	2 2 2	- C- C	
S-84	.36	1.43	.05	.15	.26	.30	1.96	1.46	2.43	8.40	2.43	5.89	5.85(>3)	
Note: 1) Return Periods	show	n in oar	enthesis	are in .	Joars 2	2 Storm	Duratio		toton Toto	lo more not	do minetar da			]
<ol> <li>Missing Values on a p</li> </ol>	articul	lar day a	re identi	ified by	-1.00.		במשור	285		וויווי וומא	ue missing dat	a loenuneo py	M" tag.	

					STORM	STORM DURAT.	CON (RETURN	I PERIOD)
STATIONS	8/02	8/03	8/04	8/05	тотаг (іп)	1-DAY MAX	2 - DAY Max	3-DAY May
ARCHBOL.D	5							
	12.	0,,	,	20-	1.30	16.0	1.27	1.30
AVON PARK	-1.00	42	0,	.70	1.12M	0.70M	I	r
COLEY	1.25	.90	00.	1.15	3.30	1.25	2.15	2.15
CV-5	14	.60	00.	.10	0.84	0.60	0.74	0.74
OKEECHOBEE FS	1.75	.91	.13	.21	3.00	1.75	2.66	2.79
S-127	1.00	.92	00.	.20	2.12	1.00	1.92	1.92
S-129	.32	.45	6.	.20	1.00	0.45	0.77	0.80
S-131	. 45	.40	00.	.05	0.90	0.45	0.85	0.85
S-133	1.43	. 60	.19	.22	2.44	1.43	2.03	2.22
S-65	1.85	.86	00.	.42	3.13	1.85	2.71	2.71
S-65A	4.05	.78	<u>.</u>	<u>.</u>	4.83	4.05(>3)	4.83(>3)	4, 83
S-65B	4.50	1.10	.05	3.36	10.9	4.50(>3)	5.60(>5)	5.65
S-65C	2.93	.97	.02	.26	4.18	2.93	3.90	3.92
S-65D	2.10	.34	.10	.02	2.56	2.10	2.44	2.54
S-65E	1.22	.75	.06	.20	2.23	1.22	1.97	2.03
S-68	1.40	.15	.05	.15	1.75	1.40	1.55	1.60
S-70	.51	.42	.08	.01	1.02	0.51	56.0	1.01
S-71	1.39	. 63	.36	.02	2.40	1.39	2.02	2.38
S-72	. 77	.47	.10	.39	1.73	0.77	1.24	1.34
S=75	1.66	.76	.07	.06	2.55	1.66	2.42	2.49
S-82	.48	.49	.02	.07	1.06	0.49	0.97	6.99
S-83	2.37	.92	.01	56.	3.65	2.37	3.23	3.30
S-84	3.02	2.31	.05	.55	5.93	3.02	5.33(>3)	5.38

Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

•

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Lower Kissimmee Area (October 14-19, 1995). TABLE 3-8.

							STORM.	STORM DU	RATION ()	RETURN PERI	(DD)	
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	5-DAY	
							(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX	MAX	
ARCHBOLD	60.	86.	00.	.38	2.68	10.	4.14	2.68	3.06	1_07	51 4	
AVON PARK	.17	64.	00,	.06	.26	1.61	2.53	1.61	1.87	1.93	36.5	
COLEY	00.	.45	8.	.01	.84	.29	1.59	0.84	1.13	1.14	1.0	
CV-5	- 0	2.81	00.	00.	.76	.01	3.58	2.81	2.81	2.81	3.58	
OKEECHOBEE FS	-14	1.00	00.	.45	3.02	.03	4.64	3.02	3.47	3.50	4.61	
s-127	.03	1.11	00.	.81	2.88	.22	5.05	2.88	3.69	3.91	5,02	
s-129	.08	1.95	00.	1.25	2.10	00.	5.38	2.10	3.35	3.35	5.38	
S-131	00.	1.65	00.	.60	3.25	00.	5.50	3.25	3.85	3.85	5.50	
S-133	. 25	. 75	.18	.20	4.21	00.	5.59	4.21(>3)	4.41	4.59	50.5	
S-65	8.	.81	00.	. 02	.65	.90	2.38	05.0	1.55	1.57	2.38	
S-65A	. 05	.77	00.	.18	.80	.38	2.18	0.80	1.18	1.36	2.13	<u> </u>
S-65B	.03	.56	00.	1.15	.40	.35	2.49	1.15	1.55	1.90	2.46	
S-65C	. 02	.78	00.	1.15	1.16	10.	3.12	1.16	2.31	2.32	3.11	
S-65D	.20	1.40	.00	.50	2.20	.15	4.45	2.20	2.70	2.85	4.30	
S-65E	.10	1.28	.02	.66	2.93	2.23	7.22	2.93	5.16(>3)	5.82(>3)	7.12(>5)	
S-68	. 03	.57	00.	.90	1.15	.10	2.75	1,15	2.05	2.15	2.72	
S-70	8.	.95	00.	.35	3.93	<u>.</u>	5.23	3.93(>3)	4.28	4.28	5,23	
S-71	00.	2.12	.04	.39	3.24	.40	6.19	3.24	3.64	4.03	6,19	
S-72	.06	1.33	.00	1.20	4.65	00.	7.24	4.65(>5)	5.85(>5)	5.85(>3)	7.24(>5)	
S-75	.69	2.56	.02	2.07	6.38	10	11.73	6.38(>25	8.45(>25)	8.47(>10)	11-72(>50)	
S-82	00.	. 63	00.	.37	2.22	E0.	3.20	2.22	2.59	2.62	3.25	
S-83	- 04	1.49	00	. 89	5.44	.08	7.94	5.44(>10	) 6.33(>5)	6.41(>3)	7.90(>5)	
S-84	.34	2.21	00.	. 62	3.16	2.96	9.29	3.16	6.12(>5)	6.74(>5)	8.95(>10)	-
Note: 1) Return Perio	ds shown	in parent	hesis are	in years.	2) Storm	Duration a	and Storm T	otals may inclu	de missing da	ita identified b	/ "M" tag.	7

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00"

amounts associated with the 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day duration intervals and return periods ranged from 3 to 50 years. Approximately ten miles northwest of Lake Okeechobee (S-75), the rainfall data indicate that the maximum 1- and 2-day rainfall amounts recorded (6.38 and 8.45 inches) were associated with recurrence intervals of at least 25 years, and the maximum 5-day rainfall amount (11.72 inches) had a recurrence interval of at least 50 years.

No. of the second se

### Lake Okeechobee Subbasin

Measured rainfall in this subbasin during Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) and Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor in comparison to other affected basins, and these events are not included in the analysis in this subbasin section.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-9), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 0.56 to 8.73 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 4.32 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.36 (S-153) to a maximum of 3.90 inches (S-71). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.4 to 5.40 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 0.45 to 5.68 inches. There were several stations with measured rainfall amounts for the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations that have return periods of at least 3 years.

During Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), rainfall totals from the 30 measuring stations ranged from 0.51 to 6.40 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 3.61 inches (Table 3-10). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.20 (S-191) to a maximum of 4.55 inches (CANAL POINT). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.40 to 5.95 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 0.51 to 6.35 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at three rainfall measuring stations with the rainfall amounts having a recurrence interval of at least 3 years. The 5-day maximum ranged from 1.73 to 7.47 inches (S-308) on the eastern side of Lake Okeechobee.

The daily point rainfall resulting from the October 14-19 storm event ranged from 1.73 to 8.01 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 5.41 inches (Table 3-11). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.04 (S-79) to a maximum of 4.65 inches (S-72). There were several extreme rainfall amounts associated with the point rainfall, and the 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day durations with return periods ranging from 3 to 5 years.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Lake Okeechobee Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). TABLE 3-9.

STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6123	1013	3679		STORM	STORM DURAT	ION (RETUR	M PERIOD)
						1410	17/0	C7/0	6/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY
										(ni)	MAX	MAX	MAX
ARCHBOLD	00 -	.08	. 22	.08	90	Ċ,	34.5	•	•	Į			
AVON PARK	-1.00	.72	00.			, ,			80.1	5.52	2.46	3.06	3.96
CANAL POINT	-1.00	1.19	00	; ; ; ;	) <b>(</b>	2 4	2	-49	3.15	5.91M	3.15M	3.64M	NCA 4
CLEWISTON	00.	1 2 2		4 1		17		-1.00	.28	2.97M	1.19M	1 201	
CLEWISTON PS			5	<b>9</b> 7	2.37	. 15	·1.00	.52	.03	4.86M	MLC C		MIC.2
		- 66	.08	58	1.92	.08	. 50	.10	0.0			ME L . Z	2.88M
	- 09	.30	48	.13	.51	.19	57	0		1 I 1 I 1 I 1 I	1.92	2.50	2.58
FT FIERCE FS	10.	.10	00.	.13	0.08				1:	2.86	0.67	1.05	1.37
L005	00.	.10	00	; ;		0 L 0 C	3:		1.50	2.75	1.50	2.25	2 35
1006	00	3		1.	n . # (	2.	.17	88.	49.	2.29	0.88	1 27	
LZ40	) - -		3	<b>n</b> 1	<b>7</b> .	1	.19	.36	.04	2.38	0000		
OKERCHORA SC	17.		40.	ę.	.35	.15	. 05	1.24	00,	1.6	 	ייי	1.34
	.00	1.61	.01	.15	.75	.16	49	110	, c	11		1.29	1.44
177-6	.01	. 29	00.	.10	32	o C			5 I 6 I 9 I	11-0	2.50	3.60	4.09
S-129	00.	.18	00				) 	о. • т	3.27	6.08	3.27	4.87(>3)	5.27(23)
S-131	44				<b>;</b> ;	7.0	.40	1.22	.72	3.32	1.22	1 94	
S-133	18		n (		2		Щ. М.	.90	.83	3.48	0.9.0		- L
S-135			3	5	66,	- 20	47	2.50	2.64	8.33	5.5		2.05
S-153			.02	.16	.20	.11	. 02	1.04	1.78			(17<)77-0	5.61(>3)
	. 00	.36	<b>.</b> 04	.05	- 04	EO.	. 02	5	)	n ( n 6	7.70 T	2.82	2.84
161-0	00.	1.96	00.	.11	.15	5		10	4 4	\$0.0	0.36	0.40	0.45
8-2	00'	2.13	.02	11		36	• •	20 H	3.42	7.92	3.42	5.40(>3)	5.68(23)
S-3	.00	1.85					3	. 05	0,	4.49	2.13	2.15	1011000
S-308	00	35 6		) I   	?;	0.5	. 60	.00	-00	4.23	1.85	88	
S-352	5		2	91	9	. 21	.10	58.	.60	4.14	2.36	200	
S-4	100		3.5	81.	1.	.17	.37	.27	.14	2.17			10.2
		07.T	- 0.2	. 23	.51	.05	47	1.25	00.	40		<b>5</b>	T.06
	00.	1.20	8.	10	.10	51	L.70	4			1.70	1.98	2.21
2 - 1 - 1	.01	.13	60.	.03	.23		Ċ				1.70	2.15	3.30
5-71	1.01	.39	. 02	0 M					4. CP	3.21	1.06	1.61	2.65
S-72	11.	. 49	20				<b>.</b>	5	9.90	8.73	3.90(>3)	4.21	5 64(23)
S-77	00		5 5				.47	20	2.48	4.45	2.48		
S-78		, u 1 1 1 1			L.55	.50	.28	00.	.02	3.61	. L	0 L C	0 4 0 0 4 0
S-79	f ( 4 ( •	0/-7		.17	19	.31	. 79	. 35	.08	4.96	20.0		2.33
		80	.27	42	.04	.06 2	. 84	.05	.01	3.77		10.2	3.07
ote: 1) Heturn Periods	shown in pe	arenthesi	s are in .	are	V Ctores						40.7	06.2	2.95
Missing Values on a pa	irticular day	are iden	tified by	- 100		Duiauo			als may ir	aclude missir	ig data identified	by "M" tag.	
	•		(* >>==	22.									

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in Lake Okeechobee Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-10.** 

					STORM	STORM DURATI	CON (RETURN	PERIOD)
STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY
					(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX
ARCHBOLD	00.	.21	3.85	1.10	5.16	3.85(>3)	4.95	5.16
AVON PARK	00.	.33	.23	1.24	1.80	1.24	1.47	1.80
CANAL POINT	.24	4.55	1.40	-1.00	6.19M	4.55M(>3)	5.95M(>3)	6.19M(>3)
CLEWISTON	00.	3.00	1.19	-1.00	4.19M	3.00M	4.19M	4.19M
CLEWISTON PS	00.	2.76	1.52	.15	4.43	2.76	4.28	4.43
CV-5	60.	1.46	.60	.70	2.85	1.46	2.06	2.76
FT PIERCE FS	.05	4.22	1.64	.49	6.40	4.22(>3)	5.86(>3)	6.35(>3)
1005	00.	1.50	1.25	-1.00	2.75M	1.50M	2.75M	2.75M
1006	00.	2.24	<b>7</b> 6-	.06	3.24	2.24	3.18	3.24
LZ40	00.	3.02	1.14	.13	4.29	3.02	4.16	4.29
OKEECHOBEE FS	.00	1.01	. 65	. 60	2.26	1.01	1.66	2.26
S-127	.04	.92	.84	.86	2.66	0.92	1.76	2.62
S-129	<u>.</u>	1.05	.54	1.02	2.61	1.05	1.59	2.61
S-131	10	1.36	.25	.78	2.49	1.36	1,61	2.39
S-133	.02	.97	1.08	.86	2.93	1.08	2.05	2.91
S-135	.12	3.21	1.50	.14	4.97	3.21	4.71	4.85
s-153		4.18	1.05	.03	5.27	4.18(>3)	5.23	5.26
161-S	0.	.20	.20		0.51	0.20	0.40	0.51
S - 2	00.	2.30	1.90	.60	4.80	2.30	4.20	4.80
S-3	00.	1.50	1.50	.20	3.20	1.50	3.00	3.20
S-308	0.	3.52	1.27	60.	4.88	3.52	4.79	4.88
S-352	.24	3.54	1.05	.34	5.17	3.54	4.59	4.93
S - 4	9	1.67	1.08	-20	2.95	1.67	2.75	2.95
S-65D	.01	1.10	.45	1.00	2.56	1.10	1.55	2.55
S-70	.60	.44	.48	1.02	2.54	1.02	1.50	1.94
S-71	-01	1.29	.66	1.07	3.03	1.29	1.95	3.02
S-72	00.	.49	.61	.71	1.81	0.71	1.32	1.81
S-77	.08	1.50	1.25	. 83	3.66	1.50	2.75	3.58
S-78	- 47	1.03	.87	1.12	3.49	1.12	1.99	3.02
S-79	.01	.66	2.08	2.33	5.08	2.33	4.41	5.07

Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Lake Okeechobee Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995). TABLE 3-11.

							STORM	STORM DU.	RATION	(RETURN PE)	RIOD)
SNOTIFIC	9T/0T	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	5-DAY
							(in)	МАХ	MAX	MAX	MAX
ARCHBOLD	6U.	đ	Ċ,	07	0 Y C	Ę		i i			
AUON PARK								2.08	3.06	3.07	4.13
		ባ ( ቁ ) '	<b>n</b> n -	٥ <u>،</u>	. 26	1.61	2.53	1.61	1.87	1.93	2.36
TNIL TOTAL	00.1-	-1.00	1.36	1.05	2.80	00.	5.21M	2.80M	3.85M	ı	,
CLEWISTON	.10	2.00	1.00	2.17	1.57	.03	6.87	2.17	3.74	5.17	6.84(>3)
CLEWISTON FS	.03	2.00	.35	2.90	1.75	.01	7.04	2.90	4.65	5.25	7-03(>3)
CV-5	00-	2.81	00-	°.	.76	.01	3.58	2.81	2.81	2.81	
FT PIERCE FS	.60	1.50	.14	.34	4.49	. 02	7.09	4.49(>3)	4.83	4.97	7.07(>3)
L005	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	ı		1	1	
L006	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	1	,	1	ł	1
LZ40	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	ı	ı	1	ł	! 1
OREECHOBEE FS	.14	1.00	00.	.45	3.02	.03	4.64	3.02	3.47	3.50	4 61
S-127	60.	1.11	00.	.81	2.88	.22	5.05	2.88	3.69	10.6	
S-129	.08	1.95	00.	1.25	2.10	00.	5.38	2.10	ц т т	9 9 9	4 C 7 C
S-131	00.	1.65	00.	.60	3.25	00,	5.50	3.25	3.85	3.85	
S-133	.25	. 75	.18	.20	4.21	00.	5.59	4.21(>3)	4.41	4.59	о с с
S-135	.04	.80	.16	.77	2.90	.27	4.94	2.90	3.67	3.94	19.4
	001	.95	. 05	1.10	4.01	.20	6.31	4.01(>3)	5.11	5.31	6.31
161-8	.05	.38	.02	.05	3.67		4.28	3.67	3.78	9, 83 9	4.23
2 1 2	.20	1.40	.60	.97	1.05	°.	4.22	1.40	2.02	2.97	4.22
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	.05	2.25	.70	2.22	1.39	0.	6.61	2.25	3.61	5.17	6.61
0 0 0 0 0 0 0	4 v	. 67	1.26	1.42	3.47	. 65	8.01	3.47	4.89	6.15(>3)	7.47(>3)
	90. 10	1.37	1.01	.92	2.48	.01	5.85	2.48	3.40	4.41	5.84
			.20	2.00	1.29	.03	5.07	2.00	3.29	3.70	5.04
	07.	1.40	5	20	2.20	.15	4.45	2.20	2.70	2.85	4.30
)   	00 -	η ,	. 00	÷95.	о. 93	.00	5.23	3.93(>3)	4.28	4.28	5.23
	00.	2.12	.04	.39	3.24	.40	6T.1	3.24	3.64	4.03	6.19
	90. 1	1.33	00-	1.20	4.65	00 -	7.24	4.65(>5)	5.85(>5	) 5.85(>3)	7.24(>5)
	121	2.97	0.	1.05	1.08	.02	5.63	2.97	3.48	4.02	5.61
21/0	-06	1.15	00,	.18	34	00.	1.73	1.15	1.21	1.33	1,73
87-19	.91	1.04	00.	.05	.31	.01	2.32	1.04	1.95	1.95	2.31
Vote: 1) Return Periods sl	hown in pa.	renthesis	are in vea	rs, 2) St	orm Dura:	tion and S	torm Totale m	av include mis	cino data ja	Antifical building	

IVI TAG. ŝ 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# **EVERGLADES AGRICULTURAL AREA (EAA EAST AND WEST)**

# EAA East Subbasin

Measured rainfall in the EAA East subbasin during Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) and Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor in comparison to other affected basins, and these events are not included in the analysis in this subbasin section.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-12), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 0.56 to 5.89 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 3.27 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.36 (S-153) to a maximum of 2.65 inches (G-136). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.4 to 3.22 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 0.45 to 4.50 inches. There were no extreme rainfall amounts associated with the individual stations, or the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations.

During Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), rainfall totals from the 23 measuring stations ranged from 2.38 (S-5AY) to 8.39 inches (S-7), and the 4-day basin-wide average was 4.89 inches (Table 3-13). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.46 (S-6Z) to a maximum of 5.80 inches (S-7). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.35 to 7.50 inches, the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.37 to 8.32 inches, and 2.82 to 11.76 inches (10 year return period) for the 5-day maximum. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at seven rainfall measuring stations with the rainfall amounts having a recurrence interval of at least 3 or 5 years for the 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day maximums.

The daily point rainfall resulting from the October 14-19 storm event ranged from 2.83 to 11.77 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 6.09 inches (Table 3-14). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.89 (S-8Z) to a maximum of 5.06 inches (S-5A). There were several extreme rainfall amounts associated with the individual stations, or the 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day durations with associated return periods ranging from 3 to 10 years.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in EAA (East) Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-12.** 

İ

											-		
STATTONC STATTONC	0173	0579		• • •						STORM	STORM DURAT	ION (RETURN	FERIOD)
22011111	0T / 0	ם / דת	0770	<b>1</b> 7/9	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY
										(ui)	MAX	MAX	MAX
BELLE GLADE	. 05	.88	00.	. 65	-27	.45	11.	.30	45	5 T C	88 0	6	e L
C-18W	00.	.16	00,	.23	6 1	5		C 0 C	100				
CANAL POINT	-1.00	1.19	00.	1.12	11	10	00.1-		1 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3		701 F	#h.n	
CLEWISTON	00 -	1.37	90	26	, r , r	-			9 r 4 c		1.17E	M42.1	Z.31M
CLEWISTON FS		2		, o					<u>.</u>	4 . 80M	M/5.2	Z.73M	2.88M
			5	, ,	1.72	80.	2		. 02	76°E	1.92	2.50	2.58
		1.48	•	.57	2.65	65.	.15	.58	.03	5.89	2.65	3.22	3.61
	E0 .	.79	.03	.60	.48	.11	.01	- 29	00.	2.34	0.79	1.08	1.42
G-201	.06	35	.18	38	38.	.38	.01	11.	.03	1.88	0.38	0.76	1.14
L006	00.	66.	00.	.35	.34	=	.19	.36	.04	2.38	66.0	66.0	44
S-153	00.	.36	.04	. 05	.04	.03	.02	5.	10.	0.56	0.36	0.40	145
21-23	0	2.13	.02	1.12	.14	. 63	.40	.05	00.	4.49	2.13	2.15	3 27
ы- 2	00.	1.85	.03	.70	.70	.30	.60	.05	.00	4.23	1.85	200	
S-352	.01	- 78	00.	.28	.15	.17	.37	.27	.14	2.17	0.78	010	
S-4	00.	1.96	.02	. 23	.51	. 05	.47	1.25	00	4.49	201	00 1	
S-5A	.19	.23	.01	.37	.37	. 62	.20	08	40	91.4			
S-5AX	.01	1.41	00.	38	.50	- 20	.04	16	48	9 F F			9 C 9 C 9 C
S-5AY	.07	.18	00.	.39	.23	. 07	.12	- 6.	45	2.48	10.0		N
S-6	00.	.56	.52	.18	.66	. 77	00	6	18		10.0	4 C 7 -	# ( 
S-6Z	00.	.47	00.	.47	. 29	67.	03	50,	60.	68. E	67 Q		1.12
S-7	.30	. 67	.12	.15	.86	78	27						C 1 4
S-7Z	.40	1.61	01	47	2	ŗ	5	12					1.2.1
S-8	00,	1.00			, c				77	0 0 1 1 1 1	1.61	10.2	2.09
t - 8 z.	30		5	3 :	2	44		2		2/-7	7.00	1.05	1.55
	•		17.		. 29	.56		5	.01	2.37	0.79	0.90	1.46
Vote 1) No Return Perio	de oroster	S nett.	C arear	C C Loren	Durotio	0.000							

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

•

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in EAA (East) Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-13.** 

					STORM	STORM DURAT.	NOI (RETEND	DEPTON)	
STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	
					(in)	МАХ	MAX	MAX	
BELLE GLADE	.13	3.56	1,41	.03	5.13	3,56	4.97	сг г	
C-18W	.15	4.21	.72	.90	96.0	4.21	56.4		
CANAL POINT	.24	4.55	1.40	-1.00	6.19M	4.55M(>3)	5.95M(>3)	6.19M(>3)	
CLEWISTON	00.	3.00	1.19	-1.00	4.19M	3.00M	4 19M	4.19M	
CLEWISTON FS	00.	2.76	1.52	.15	4.43	2.76	4.28	6 <b>4</b> .43	-
G-136	00.	2.40	2.03	.43	4.86	2.40	4.43	4.86	
G-155	00.	4.05	3.01	EL.	7.19	4.05(>3)	7.06(>5)	7.19(>5)	
G-201	.07	2.39	1.56	1.56	5.58	2.39	3.95	5.51	
L006	00.	2.24	94.	.06	3.24	2.24	3.18	3.24	
S-153	.01	4.18	1.05	.03	5.27	4.18(>3)	5.23	5.26	
S-2	<u>.</u>	2.30	1.90	.60	4.80	2.30	4.20	4.80	
S-3	0.	1.50	1.50	.20	3.20	1.50	3.00	3.20	
S-352	.24	3.54	1.05	.34	5.17	3.54	4.59	6.93	
S-4	00	1.67	1.08	.20	2.95	1.67	2.75	2.95	
S-5A	.00	1.83	.73	. 63	3.19	1.83	2.56	3.19	
S-5AX	.03	1.70	.90	.20	2.83	1.70	2.60	2.80	-
S-5AY	.02	1.74	.61	.01	2.38	1.74	2.35	2.37	•
S-6	55.	4.36	. 62	1.44	6.97	4.36	4.98	6.42(>3)	
S-62	.86	1.46	1.11	.04	3.47	1.46	2.57	3.43	
S-7	.07	5.80	1.70	. 82	8.39	5.80(>5)	7.50(>5)	8.32(>5)	-
S-72	.60	2.16	1.55	.53	4.84	2.16	3.71	4.31	
Q1-Q	8.	3.05	2.25	.70	6.00	3.05	5.30(>3)	6.00(>3)	
S-8Z	0	3.29	2.67	. 18	6.14	3.29	5.96(>3)	6.14(>3)	
Vote: 1) Return Periods chair		anth actio			0				าไ

Note: 1) Keturn Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

-

 TABLE 3-14. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the EAA (East) Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995).

							STORM	STORM DUP	ATION (	RETURN PERI(	(ac
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	5-DAY
							(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX	MAX
BELLE GLADE	.17	1.12	.80	.85	1.65	.12	4.71	1 65	0 E.O	00	¢,
C-18W	.14	1.85	.87	3.92	4.98	10.	77.11		00.4		
CANAL POINT	-1.00	-1.00	1.36	1.05	2.80	00.	5.21M	2.80M	2.227.27.27.27.27.27.27.27.27.27.27.27.2	(NT<)//.c	(0T<)9/.TT
CLEWISTON	.10	2.00	1.00	2.17	1.57	. 60	6.87	2.17	477 F		
CLEWISTON FS	.03	2.00	.35	2.90	1.75	.01	7.04	2.90	4.65	5.25	0.04(23) 7 03(23)
G-136	.58	1.28	1.46	3.49	. 66	.00	7.47	3.49	16.4	6.23(23)	(6/)67.4
G-155	00.	.87	2.74	.97	1.43	. 55	6.56	2.74	3.71	5.14	6 56
G-201	.20	1.18	1.28	. 48	1.01	1.01	5.16	1.28	2.46	2.94	4 95
L006	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	ł	ı	1		
s-153	0.	. 95	.05	1.10	4.01	.20	6.31	4.01(>3)	5.11	5.31	
S-2	.20	1.40	.60	.97	1.05	00.	4.22	1.40	2.02	2.97	4.22
ы. К З	.05	2.25	.70	2.22	1.39	00.	6.61	2.25	3.61	5.17	5 51
S-352	.06	1.37	1.01	- 92	2.48	.01	5.85	2.48	07.6	4.41	
S-4	. 05	1.50	.20	2.00	1.29	.03	5.07	2.00	3.29	102 4	
S-5A	66.	1.08	1.78	5.06	2.45	.26	11.02	5.06(>3)	7.51(>3)	9.20(25)	
S-5AX	.08	1.09	.82	1.17	1.65	.36	5.17	1.65	2.82	19.64 19.64	5 06 10TT01
S-5AY	.07	.95	34	1.68	1.94	.11	5.09	1.94	3.62	3,96	5.02
S-6	٥£.	53	2.29	1.70	.91	. 55	6.28	2.29	3,99	4.90	200
S-67	.16	.86	.50	.89	1.17	.01	3,59	1.17	2.06	2.56	
	.47	1.48	1.56	. 63	1.67	.46	6.27	1.67	3.04	3.86	5.81
2/-5	10.	1.24	1.33	.53	-94	.07	4.12	1.33	2.57	3.10	4
00 - V2	. 25	.75	1.40	1.60	1.68	1.10	6.78	1.68	3.28	4.68	
S-82	-01	.60	. 89	.72	.58	. 03	2.83	0.89	1.61	2.21	2.82
lote: 1) Return Periods st	nown in na	rontheeie	ore in the	0 00	0						

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# EAA West Subbasin

Measured rainfall in the subbasin during Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) and Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor in comparison to other affected basins, and these events are not included in the analysis in this subbasin section.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-15), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 2.34 to 5.89 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 3.93 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.79 (G-155) to a maximum of 2.65 inches (G-136). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.9 to 2.73 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.42 to 3.61 inches. There were no extreme rainfall amounts associated with the individual stations, or the 1-, 2 -, and 3-day durations.

Rainfall amounts received during Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26) recorded at 9 measuring stations ranged from 2.95 to 7.19 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 5.17 inches (Table 3-16). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.50 (S-77) to a maximum of 4.05 inches (G-155). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.75 to 7.06 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.95 to 7.19 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at three rainfall measuring stations with the rainfall amounts having a recurrence interval of at least 3 or 5 years.

The daily point rainfall resulting from the October 14-19 storm event ranged from 2.46 to 7.41 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 5.40 inches (Table 3-17). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.89 (S-8Z) to a maximum of 3.49 inches (G-136). The 3-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.21 to 6.23 inches, and 2.82 to 7.47 inches for the 5-day maximum. There were several extreme rainfall amounts associated with the 3- and 5-day durations with return periods of at least 3 years.

							r			STORM	STORM DURAT	ION (RETURN	PERIOD)
SUDITATS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY MAX	3-DAY MAX
CLEWISTON	00.	1.37	.06	36.	2.37	1	00 - 1 -	5	5	A DEW			
CLEWISTON FS	00.	.66	.08	58	1.92	80.	.50	11.	. 02	3.94	1 40	50, 50 50	1, 00M
G-136	00'	1.48	.04	.57	2.65	.39	15		.03	- 68 · 5	2.65		0 1 4 7
G-155	.03	.79	.03	. 60	.48	11.	10.	. 29	0.	2.94	64.0	4 0 F	1.47
IMMOKALEE	-1.00	1.16	.97	.14	. 60	00,	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	2.87M	1.16M	2.13M	0 07M
IMMORALEE LF	.04	.95	1.10	.25	. 65	.44	1.33	.20	00'	4.96	1.33	2.05	2.42
N - 4	00.	1.96	.02	.23	.51	. 05	.47	1.25	00.	4.49	1.96	1.98	2.21
S-77	00.	. 83	.21	. 22	1.55	.50	. 28	00.	.02	3.61	1.55	2.05	2,33
S-82	.06	- 79	5	.61	.29	.56	. 03	.01	.01	2.37	0.79	0.90	1.46
Jote: 1) No Return Peri	nde orgator	c then a	0 01001	1 Ctorn	0.100								

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

TABLE 3-16. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the EAA (West) Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995).

					STORM	STORM DURAT	ION (RETUR	N PERIOD)
STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2 - DAY Max	3-DAY MAX
CLEWISTON	00.	3,00	1	1 00	4 1 0M	200	101	307
CLEWISTON FS	0.0	2.76	1.52	5	4.43	2.76	10 TO 10	57.4 5
G-136	00.	2.40	2.03	43	4.86	2.40	43	4 86
G-155	00.	4.05	3.01	.13	7.19	4.05(>3)	7.06(>5)	7.19(>5)
IMMOKALEE	1.15	3.40	1.52	-1.00	6.07M	3.40M	4.92M	6.07M(>3)
IMMOKALEE LF	.45	3.85	2.50	.25	7.05	3.85(>3)	6.35(>5)	6.80(>5)
S-4	00.	1.67	1.08	.20	2.95	1.67	2.75	2.95
S-77	.08	1.50	1.25	. 83	3.66	1.50	2.75	3.58
S-82	00.	3.29	2.67	.18	6.14	3.29	5.96(>3)	6.14(>3)

ntified by "M" tag. y ₽ טומוס ווומא וווכוח 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by \*-1.00\*

**TABLE 3-17.** Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the<br/>EAA (West) Area (October 14-19, 1995).

ł

							NTOTA:	STORM L	DRATION	(RETURN PER	(doi
SNOTIFIC	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	5-DAY
							(111)	Vena	YWE	MAA	MAX
CLEWISTON	.10	2.00	1.00	2.17	1.57	. 03	6.87	2.17	3.74	5.17	( 84(23)
CLEWISTON FS	00	2.00	.35	2.90	1.75	-01	7.04	2.90	4.65	5.25	7 03(>3)
G-136	.58	1.28	1.46	3.49	.66	00.	7.47	3.49	19.4	6.22(>3)	7.47(>3)
G-155	00.	.87	2.74	.97	1.43	.55	6.56	2.74	3.71	5.14	6.56
IMMOKALEE	-1.00	-1.00	. 65	.07	1.64	.10	2.46M	1.64M	1.74M	1	
IMMOKALEE LF	. 55	2.50	.80	<b>60</b> .	.71	00.	4.65	2.50	3.30	3.85	4.65
S−4	. 05	1.50	.20	2.00	1.29	.03	5.07	2.00	3.29	3.70	5.04
S-77	.51	2.97	00.	1.05	1.08	- 02	5.63	2.97	3.48	4.02	5.61
S-8Z	.01	.60	. 89	.72	.58	.03	2.83	0.89	1.61	2.21	2.82

Ż 5 ~ 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00"

. . . .

 $\{\eta_i\}$ 

•

# WATER CONSERVATION AREAS

Measured rainfall in the subbasin during Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) and Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor in comparison to other affected basins, and these events are not included in the analysis of this subbasin.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-18), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 1.84 inches inches (DELRAY BEACH W) to 14.81 inches (HIALEAH W), with the subbasin receiving an average of 5.87 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.38 inches (G-201) to 5.41 inches (TAMIAMI CANAL). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.76 to 11.49 inches (HIALEAH W), and the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.14 to 13.76 inches (HIALEAH W). There were six stations with measured rainfall amounts for the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations that had return periods ranging from 3 to 100 years. The rainfall amounts for the 2- and 3-day maximums recorded at the west Hialeah and Tamiami Canal stations had return periods of 50 and 100 years.

During Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), rainfall totals from the 26 measuring stations ranged from 3.11 to 9.37 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 6.17 inches (Table 3-19). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.65 (CHEKIKA EVER) to 8.08 inches (S-39). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.56 to 9.18 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 3.11 to 9.32 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at almost all the rainfall stations with the rainfall amounts having recurrence intervals of 3, 5, or 10 years.

The October 14-19 storm event produced rainfall totals ranging from 2.21 to 11.02 inches, and a 6-day basin-wide average of 4.95 inches (Table 3-20). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.63 (CORAL SPRINGS) to 5.06 inches (S-A). The 2-day maximum ranged from 1.25 to 7.51 inches (S-A), the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.53 to 9.29 inches (S-A), and the 5-day maximum ranged from 2.21 to 10.76 inches . There were several extreme rainfall amounts associated with the point rainfall, and there were 2-, 3-, and 5-day durations for the S-A station with associated return periods ranging from 3 to 10 years.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-18.** 

STATIONS         6/18         6/19         6/20         6/21         6/25         6/24         6/25         6/24         6/25         6/24         6/25         6/24         6/25         6/24         2.25         2.00         3.15         1.12         1.00         2.10         3.00           ANDYNOWN SW         -1.00											STORM	STORM DITA	ATIMA ( NOT	
(in)         MAX         MAX         MAX         MAX           AMINYTOWN SW	STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY
ANDYTOWN SW        02        27         .08        59         1.12         1.12         1.170         2.19           DEMANZTOWN SW        00         -1.00 <t< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>(üi)</th><th>MAX</th><th>MAX</th><th>MAX</th></t<>											(üi)	MAX	MAX	MAX
DOMAVENTURE         -1.00	ANDYTOWN SW	.02	.27	. 08	8 10 10	1.12	49	34	25	00	5 1 1	۰ ۲	0E F	d T C
CIERKINA         .24         .06         .01         3.70         3.52         2.11         .14         .00         .00         9.78         3.70         7.22 (>5)         9.33           CONPLEXEN         .12         .00         -1.01         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.00         -1.44         -1.14         0.17         -1.00         -1.44	BONAVENTURE	-1,00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00			2	AT - 7
COORRETIONN         -1.00         07         -1.00         -1.01         -25         -25         -26         -26         -26         -26         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         -21         -26         <	CHEKIKA EVER	.24	.06	5.	3.70	3.52	2.11	.14	0.		9.78	3.70	7.22(25)	
CORAL STR IIM         01         52         55         62         1.26         69         36         79         2.69         3.05         3.74           CORAL STRINGS         00         11         00         46         14         04         52.8         6.02           CORAL STRINGS         00         11         00         46         51         44         11         00         7.97         5.28         6.02           CORL STRINGS         00         11         00         12         00         1.88         14         1.14         0.91         1.43         1.14           C-155         03         10         4.37         7.12         2.27         6.3         1.14         0.9         1.44         1.04         1.45         1.44         1.09         1.45         1.14	COOPERTOWN	-1.00	.07	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	.37	. 02	-1.00	1	1		
CORAL SPRINGS         .03         .11         .00         .86         .95         .74         2.41         2.87         0.0         7.97         5.28         6.02           DELRAY BEACH W         .00         .11         .01         .47         .51         .41         .15         .14         .03         1.88         0.38         0.75         1.14           0-201         .00         .11         .01         .47         .51         .41         .15         0.95         1.14         0.75         1.14           0-12         .05         .03         .10         4.37         7.12         2.27         .63         .24         .00         14.81         7.12(>10)         144         .712(>10)         144         .712(>10)         144         .714         .714         .714         .712         2.27         .24         .00         14.81         7.12(>10)         .144         .712(>10)         11.44         .712(>10)         11.45         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214         .214	CORAL SPR 11W	10	.52	. 55	. 62	1.26	. 69	96.	2.69	60.	6.79	2.69	3 05	
DELRAY BEACH W         00         :11         :01         :41         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :16         :14         :15         :14         :15         :16         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :16         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :14         :15         :14         :14         :14         :14         :14         :14         :14         :14         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :15         :14         :16         <	CORAL SPRINGS	.03	.11	8.	.86	.95	.74	2.41	2.87	00.	7.97	2.87	20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	6.02
G-155         .03         .79         .03         .60         .48         .11         .01         .29         .00         2.34         0.79         1.08         1.42           G-201         WILLEBORD         .03         .03         1.88         0.38         0.76         1.14           HTLLEBORD         CNL         .03         .16         .45         .24         .01         1.11         .03         1.88         0.76         1.14           HTLLEBORD         CNL         .02         .18         .03         .165         .46         .93         .27         .23         .01         1.14         .03         1.42           S-124         .01         .16         .15         .84         1.02         .63         .44         .00         .14         .03         1.45         .214           S-130         .01         .16         .15         .38         .163         .14         .00         .151         .23         .23         .24         .24         .23           S-34         .02         .11         .103         .155         .33         .26         .26         .26         .26         .26         .26         .26         .26	DELRAY BEACH W	00-	.11	-01	.47	.51	.41	.15	.14	.04	1.84	0.51	98.0	96.1
G-201         0.3         1.0         1.8         0.3         0.76         1.14           HIALEMN         0.6         .35         .18         .38         .38         .01         .11         .03         0.76         1.14           HIALEMN W         .05         .03         .10         4.37         7.12         2.27         .63         .24         .00         14.81         7.12(>10)         11.45         >2.14           F-124         .01         .16         15         .84         1.29         .37         .24         .00         1.41         7.12         2.14         .25         .124         .00         .01         .25         .16         .24         .00         .25         .124         .00         .25         .124         .00         .01         .25         .27         .23         .20         .20         .21         .24         .20         .24         .20         .21         .25         .21         .25         .25         .25         .25         .25         .25         .26         .26         .26         .26         .26         .21         .21         .21         .21         .21         .21         .21         .21         .21	G-155	.03	-79	.03	.60	.48	.11	.01	. 29	00.	2.34	0.79	1.08	1.42
HIMLERNE         .05         .03         .10         4.37         7.12         2.27         .63         .24         .00         14.81         7.12         .145         50         13.76         57           F-124         .01         .16         .15         .84         1.24         .01         3.51         0.99         1.45         2.14         50         3.51         6         3.10         3.51         6         3.10         3.51         6         3.10         3.51         6         3.10         3.51         5.23         2.30         2.36         3.10         3.51         5.30         2.30         2.64         3.51         5.3         2.30         2.36         3.61         5.3         48         1.00         1.01         1.55         3.51         1.05         3.61         6.3         3.61         6.3         3.61         6.3         3.51         0.0         2.62         3.61         6.3         3.51         0.3         3.66         3.51         0.3         3.66         3.10         3.56         2.62         3.51         0.53         3.56         3.56         3.56         3.56         3.56         3.56         3.56         3.56         3.56         3.56	G-201	- 06	.35	.18	.38	.38	.38	.01	н.	.03	1.88	0.38	0.76	1.14
HILLEBORD CNL         02         31         69         37         24         42         01         3.51         0.99         1.45         2.14           S-124         01         .16         .15         .84         1.24         1.02         59         .14         00         4.25         1.24         2.26         3.10           S-124         .01         .16         .15         .84         1.02         .69         .14         00         4.25         1.24         2.26         3.10           S-130         .01         .26         3.61         .63         .48         .00         .00         7.63         3.61         6.21(>3)         6.84(>3)           S-33         .74         .09         .27         .48         .00         .00         1.155         3.51         6.84(>3)           S-34         .09         .27         146         1.29         .31         1.05         1.16         1.09         1.25         .17         .00         .01         1.26         3.51         4.04         5.13         4.73           S-34         .09         .23         .16         1.09         1.25         2.77         4.04         1.91         1.	HIALEAH W	. 05	. 03	110	4.37	7.12	2.27	- 63	.24	00,	14.81	7.12(>10)	11.49(>50)	13.76(>100)
S-124       .01       .16       .15       .84       1.24       .00       4.25       1.24       2.26       3.10         S-140       .02       .87       .03       1.55       .75       .35       .00       .00       .02       3.61       6.34(>3)         S-30       .01       .26       .361       .63       .48       .00       .00       7.63       3.61       6.34(>3)         S-338       .74       .00       .01       1.55       .35       .31       0.01       .265       3.61         S-34       .09       .01       .26       .361       .63       .48       .00       .01       1.55       1.03       1.55         S-34       .09       .01       .26       .79       .01       .15       .16       .93       .10       .155       1.03       1.55         S-34       .02       .13       .166       .77       .00       .00       1.64       2.63       1.03       1.72         S-39       .01       .37       .37       .65       .77       .00       .98       1.66       2.67       4.04       5.13       5.13       5.51       5.13       5.51       5.5	HILLSBORD CNL	.02	16.	. 69	.46	66.	.37	.24	. 42	.01	3.51	6.99	1.45	2.14
S-140       .02       .87       .03       1.55       .75       .35       .00       .00       .02       3.59       1.55       2.30       2.65         S-30       .01       .29       .01       2.60       3.61       .63       .48       .00       .00       7.63       3.61       6.21(>3)       6.84(>3)         S-33       .74       .09       .06       4.99       3.81       1.59       .31       00       1.63       3.61       6.21(>3)       6.84(>3)         S-33       .74       .09       .06       4.99       .31       1.00       .00       11.59       4.99(>3)       8.80(>5)       10.39(>10)         S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .79       .00       00       11.59       4.99(>3)       8.80(>5)       10.39(>10)         S-34       .09       .05       1.16       1.09       1.25       2.79       .00       8.4       5.13         S-33       .01       .37       .16       1.09       1.25       2.79       4.04       5.13       5.13         S-53       .01       .12       .17       .10       .12       .00       .00       1.4	S-124	5.	.16	. 15	.84	1.24	1.02	. 69	.14	00.	4.25	1.24	2.26	3.10
S-30       .01       .26       3.61       .63       .48       .00       .00       7.63       3.61       6.21(>3)       6.84(>3)         S-338       .74       .09       .06       4.99       3.81       1.59       .31       .00       10       7.63       3.61       6.21(>3)       6.84(>3)         S-338       .74       .09       .06       4.99       3.81       1.59       .31       100       .00       11.59       4.99(>3)       8.80(>5)       10.39(>10)         S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .96       .79       .00       11.59       4.99(>3)       8.80(>5)       10.39(>10)         S-38       .00       .15       1.16       1.09       1.25       2.79       0.00       8.04       5.13         S-39       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       0.0       8.0       4.04       5.13         S-54       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       0.0       1.64       1.62       1.25         S-55       .12       .12       .12       .12       .		.02	- 87	.03	1.55	.75	ы. С	00.	00.	.02	3.59	1.55	2.30	2.65
S-33B       .74       .09       .06       4.99       3.81       1.59       .31       .00       .00       11.59       4.99(>3)       8.80(>5)       10.39(>10)         S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .96       .79       .00       4.94       1.66       2.62       3.55         S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .96       .79       .00       8.08       5.13       3.55         S-38       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       .4.15       4.73       5.13         S-53       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       .00       8.06       1.62       1.67         S-54       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       0.08       1.62       1.62         S-54       .00       .12       .17       .55       .80       .40       3.19       0.80       1.62       1.62         S-65       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .00       .91       1.64       <	S-30	10.	. 29	.01	2.60	3.61	.63	.48	00.	00.	7.63	3.61	6.21(>3)	6.84(>3)
S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .96       .79       .00       4.84       1.66       2.62       3.55         S-38       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       4.15       4.73         S-39       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       0.0       8.08       2.77       4.15       4.73         S-53       .19       .23       .01       .37       .37       .37       .62       .20       80       .40       3.19       0.80       1.20       1.62       1.72         S-54       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       0.0       8.06       1.20       1.62       1.71       1.70       <		.74	<b>60</b> .	.06	4.99	3.81	1.59	.31	00	°.	11.59	4.99(>3)	8.80(>5)	10.39(>10)
S-38       .02       .35       .37       1.05       1.16       1.09       1.25       2.79       .00       8.08       2.79       4.04       5.13         S-39       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       .00       6.46       2.67       4.15       4.73         S-53       .19       .23       .01       .37       .37       .62       .20       .80       .40       3.19       0.80       1.20       1.62       4.73         S-54       .19       .23       .01       .37       .37       .62       .20       .80       .40       3.19       0.80       1.20       1.62       1.72         S-6       .00       .55       .18       .66       .77       .00       .95       1.20       1.61       1.72         S-7       .30       .67       .12       .12       .03       .27       .12       .03       1.64       1.91         S-7       .30       .01       .00       .10       .31       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .10       .15       .12 </th <td>S-34</td> <td>60.</td> <td>- 27</td> <td>14</td> <td>£6'</td> <td>1.66</td> <td>.96</td> <td>.79</td> <td>3.</td> <td>00.</td> <td>4.84</td> <td>1.66</td> <td>2.62</td> <td>3.55</td>	S-34	60.	- 27	14	£6'	1.66	.96	.79	3.	00.	4.84	1.66	2.62	3.55
S-39       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       .00       6.46       2.67       4.15       4.73         S-5A       .19       .23       .01       .37       .37       .62       .20       .80       .40       3.19       0.80       1.20       1.62         S-6       .50       .51       .37       .62       .20       .80       .40       3.19       0.80       1.20       1.62         S-6       .50       .12       .15       .86       .77       .00       .95       .03       3.67       0.95       1.43       1.72         S-7       .30       .67       .12       .12       .18       .66       .77       .00       .95       .03       3.67       0.95       1.72         S-7       .30       .67       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .12       .191         S-8       .00       1.00       .05       .50       .50       .22       .00       .27       1.00       .105       1.55         SWEETWARER       .05       .02       .00       .27       .10       .02       .00<	51	.02	. 35	.37	1.05	1.16	1.09	1.25	2.79	8.	8.08	2.79	4.04	5.13
S-5A       .19       .23       .01       .37       .62       .20       .80       .40       3.19       0.80       1.20       1.62         S-6       .50       .52       .18       .66       .77       .00       .95       .03       3.67       0.95       1.43       1.72         S-7       .00       .56       .52       .18       .66       .77       .00       .95       .03       3.67       0.95       1.43       1.72         S-7       .30       .67       .12       .12       .12       .00       3.27       0.86       1.64       1.91         S-8       .00       1.00       .05       .50       .50       .22       .00       .30       .21       2.78       1.00       1.05       1.55         SWEETWARER       .00       .08       .05       .53       1.83       1.57       1.00       .02       .00       4.40         SWEETWARER       .05       .03       .04       .50       .03       .01       4.54       2.63       3.56       4.27         SWEETWARER       .05       .01       .03       .01       .03       .00       4.54       2.63       3.56<	1 1 1 1 1	8.	.12	.17	.55	.89	.58	1.48	2.67	<u>.</u>	6.46	2.67	4.15	4.73
S-6       .52       .18       .66       .77       .00       .95       .03       3.67       0.95       1.43       1.72         S-7       .30       .67       .12       .15       .86       .78       .27       .12       .00       3.27       0.86       1.64       1.91         S-8       .30       .67       .12       .12       .00       3.27       0.86       1.64       1.91         S-8       .00       1.00       .05       .50       .50       .22       .00       .30       .21       2.78       1.00       1.05       1.55         SWEETWATER       .00       .08       .05       .53       1.83       1.57       1.00       .02       .00       4.40         SWEETWATER       .05       .02       .00       2.63       .93       .71       .17       .03       .00       4.54       2.63       4.27         SWEETWATER       .05       .04       .00       2.63       .93       .71       .17       .03       .00       4.54       2.63       4.27         SWEETWATER       .03       .04       .05       .03       .02       .01       12.46       5.41(>10)	KC-S	<b>.</b> 19	. 23	5	.37	.37	.62	.20	. 80	.40	3.19	0.80	1.20	1.62
S-7       .30       .67       .12       .15       .86       .78       .27       .12       .00       1.64       1.91         S-8       .00       1.00       .05       .50       .50       .22       .00       .30       .21       2.78       1.00       1.05       1.55         S-9       .00       1.00       .05       .50       .50       .22       .00       .30       .21       2.78       1.00       1.05       1.55         SWEETWATER       .00       .08       .05       .53       1.83       1.57       1.00       .02       .00       5.08       1.83       3.40       4.40         SWEETWATER       .05       .02       .00       4.54       2.63       3.56       4.27         TAMTANI       .03       .04       .00       5.41       3.3       2.59       1.03       .01       4.54       2.63       4.27         WEST MITRAMAR       .00       .00       .00       .48       1.06       .01       12.46       5.41(>10)       11.33(>50)	101	8.	-56	.52	.18	. 66	.77	00.	.95	.03	3.67	0.95	1.43	1.72
S-8     .00     1.00     .05     .50     .50     .22     .00     .30     .21     2.78     1.00     1.05     1.55       S-9     .00     .08     .05     .53     1.83     1.57     1.00     .02     .00     5.08     1.83     3.40     4.40       SWEETWATER     .05     .02     .00     .03     .01     4.54     2.63     3.56     4.27       TAMIANI CANAL     .03     .00     4.54     2.63     3.56     4.27       WEST MITANAR     .03     .01     4.54     2.63     3.56     4.27       WEST MITANAR     .00     .04     .00     5.41     3.3     2.59     1.03     .01     4.54     2.63     3.74	2 - 1 2	.30	. 67	.12	.15	.86	.78	.27	.12	00.	3.27	0.86	1.64	1.91
S-9 2.00 .08 .05 .53 1.83 1.57 1.00 .02 .00 5.08 1.83 3.40 4.40 SWEETWATER .05 .02 .00 2.63 .93 .71 .17 .03 .00 4.54 2.63 3.56 4.27 TAMTANI CANAL .03 .04 .00 5.41 3.33 2.59 1.03 .02 .01 12.46 5.41(>5) 8.74(>10) 11.33(>50) WEST WIRAWAR .00 .00 .00 .98 3.76 1.48 1.06 .00 .00 7.28 3.76 5.24(>3) 6.30(>5)	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	0.	1.00	. 05	.50	.50	. 22	- 00	.30	.21	2.78	1.00	1.05	1.55
SWEETWATER .05 .02 .00 2.63 .93 .71 .17 .03 .00 4.54 2.63 3.56 4.27 TAMTANT CANAL .03 .04 .00 5.41 3.33 2.59 1.03 .02 .01 12.46 5.41(>5) 8.74(>10) 11.33(>50) WEST WIRAWAR .00 .00 .00 .98 3.76 1.48 1.06 .00 .00 7.28 3.76 5.24(>3) 6.30(>5)	6h - 1	0.	.08	. 05	ŝ	1.83	1.57	1.00	. 02	00.	5.08	1.83	3.40	4.40
TAMIANI CANAL 03 04 00 5.41 3.33 2.59 1.03 02 01 12.46 5.41(>5) 8.74(>10) 11.33(>50) WEST WIRAMAR 00 00 00 98 3.76 1.48 1.06 00 00 7.28 3.76 5.24(>3) 6.30(>5)	SWEETWATER	.05	. 02	8.	2.63	.93	.71	.17	.03	0.	4.54	2.63	3.56	4.27
WEST MIRAMAR . 00 . 00 . 00 . 00 . 98 3.76 1.48 1.06 . 00 . 00 7.28 3.76 5.24(>3) 6.30(>5)	TAMIAMI CANAL	.03	.04	<u>.</u>	5.41	3.33	2.59	1.03	. 02	.01	12.46	5.41(>5)	8.74(>10)	11.33(>50)
	WEST MIRAMAR	00.	8.	8.	.98	3.76	1.48	1.06	.00	.00	7.28	3.76	5.24(>3)	6.30(>5)

-

Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years.
 Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag.
 Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

STATIONS       8/23       8/24       8/25       8/26       TOTAL       LDAX       21         ANDYTOWN 5W       5W       1.00       1.01       1.03X       3.76(>3)       9         BOWAYENTURE       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00         BOWAYENTURE       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00         CORAL SPR 11W       -10       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00         CORAL SPR 11W       -10       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00         CORAL SPR 11W       -10       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00         CORAL SPR 11W       -148       -100       2.69       1.4       3.31M       2.69M       -1.65         CORAL SPRTNGS       -100       2.01       1.13       7.125       5.67(>3)       -1.65         CORAL SPRTNGS       -100       2.69       1.43       2.331M       2.69M       -1.75         GORAL SPRCH W       -110       2.14       1.3       7.13       4.05(>3)       -1.65         G-11       2.11       -1.10       2.13       <									
STATIONS       8/23       8/24       8/25       8/26       TOTAL       1-DAY       2         ANDYTOWN 5W						STORM	STORM DURAT	TON (RETUR	N PERIOD)
ANDYTOWN 5W       SWAVENTURE	STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY MAX	3-DAY Max
BOKRAVENTURE       -1.00		6	r r	-					
BOMAVENTURE       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.65       1.46       .00       3.11       1.65       -	MC NMOTIONY	20.	01.5	н. 54	.88	0. vQ	3.76(>3)	5.30(>3)	6.18(>3)
CHEKIKA EVER       .00       1.65       1.46       .00       3.11       1.65         COOPERTOWN       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       -1.00       1.46       .00       3.11       1.65         CONAL SPR 11W       -1.00       -1.00       2.69       1.4       3.31M       2.69M         CORAL SPRINGS       .52       5.67       1.00       .06       7.25       5.67       3.91         CORAL SPRINGS       .52       5.67       1.00       .06       7.25       5.67       3.91         CORAL SPRINGS       .52       5.67       1.00       .06       7.25       5.67       3.91         CORAL SPRINGS       .10       3.91       .26       .06       4.33       3.91       2.69M         GORD       .00       2.91       .26       .05       4.33       3.91       2.39         G-201       W       .71       2.89       2.44       .13       6.17       2.89       2.39         G-201       W       .71       2.89       2.95       2.66       5.95       5.67       5.95         G-201       W       .71       2.89       2.14       .17       2.89       2.95       5.96	BONAVENTURE	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	•	1	ı	•
COOPERTOWN       -1.00       -1.01	CHEKIKA EVER	00.	1.65	1.46	00.	3.11	1.65	3.11	3.11
CORAL SPR 11W       .48       -1.00       2.69       .14       3.31M       2.69M         DELRAY BEACH W       .10       .91       .26       .05       4.33       3.91         DELRAY BEACH W       .10       3.91       .26       .06       4.33       3.91         DELRAY BEACH W       .10       3.91       .26       .06       4.33       3.91         G-155       0.00       4.05       3.01       .13       7.19       4.05(>3)         G-201       .07       2.39       1.56       1.36       5.58       2.39         G-201       .07       2.39       1.56       1.39       .00       8.36       6.76(>5)         G-201       .71       2.89       2.44       .13       6.17       2.89       2.39         G-201       .71       2.89       2.44       .13       6.17       2.89       2.39         S-140       .21       .21       2.78       2.95       .24       1.3       4.64         S-140       .00       1.41       .20       7.18       4.64       5.97       2.95         S-140       .02       2.91       1.74       .02       8.44       6.64(>5)	COOPERTOWN	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	.20	ı	ı	.,	1
CORAL SPRINGS         :52         5.67         1.00         .06         7.25         5.67         (>3)           DELRAY BEACH W         .10         3.91         .26         .06         4.33         3.91         3.91           G-155         0.01         4.05         3.01         .13         7.19         4.05         3.91           G-201         .07         2.39         1.56         1.36         5.58         2.39           G-201         .07         2.39         1.56         1.39         0.06         4.33         3.91           G-201         .07         2.39         1.56         1.39         0.06         4.33         3.91         4.05         3.91           G-201         .71         2.89         2.44         .13         6.17         2.89         2.39         3.91         4.64	CORAL SPR 11W	.48	-1.00	2.69	.14	3.31M	2.69M	ı	
DELRAY BEACH W       .10       3.91       .26       .06       4.33       3.91         G-155       .00       4.05       3.01       .13       7.19       4.05(×3)       3.91         G-201       .07       2.39       1.56       1.56       5.58       2.39       4.05(×3)       3.91         HIALEAH W       .07       2.39       1.56       1.35       5.58       2.39       4.05(×3)       3.91         HIALEBORD CNL       .21       6.76       1.39       .00       8.36       6.76(>5)       7.19       4.65       7.19       4.65       7.65       7.18       4.65       7.18       4.64       7.18       4.64       7.6       5.97       2.89       3.91       1.91       7.18       4.64       5.95       5.95       5.95       5.95       5.97       2.95       5.97       2.95       5.97       2.95       5.97       2.95       5.97       2.95       5.97       2.95       5.97       2.95       5.95 <th>CORAL SPRINGS</th> <td>.52</td> <td>5.67</td> <td>1.00</td> <td>.06</td> <td>7.25</td> <td>5.67(&gt;3)</td> <td>6.67(&gt;3)</td> <td>(2&lt;)61.7</td>	CORAL SPRINGS	.52	5.67	1.00	.06	7.25	5.67(>3)	6.67(>3)	(2<)61.7
G-155       .00       4.05       3.01       .13       7.19       4.05(>3)         HIALEAH W       .71       2.39       1.56       1.56       5.58       2.39         HIALEAN W       .71       2.39       1.56       1.36       5.58       2.39         HILLSBORD CNL       .21       6.76       1.39       .00       8.36       6.76(>5)       8         S-124       .21       2.16       1.41       .20       7.18       4.64       6.76(>5)       8         S-124       .17       2.39       1.74       .20       7.18       4.64       6.76(>5)       8         S-140       .00       2.391       1.74       .20       7.18       4.64       6.76(>5)       8         S-33       .00       1.93       4.64       1.74       .20       7.18       4.64       6.4(>5)         S-34       .22       3.91       1.18       1.94       6.64(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5) <th>DELRAY BEACH W</th> <td>.10</td> <td>3.91</td> <td>.26</td> <td>.06</td> <td>4.33</td> <td>3.91</td> <td>4.17</td> <td>4.27</td>	DELRAY BEACH W	.10	3.91	.26	.06	4.33	3.91	4.17	4.27
G-201       .07       2.39       1.56       1.56       5.58       2.39         HILLEBORD CNL       .71       2.89       2.44       .13       6.17       2.89         S-124       .71       2.89       2.44       .13       6.17       2.89         S-124       .71       2.89       2.44       .13       6.17       2.89         S-124       .93       4.64       1.41       .20       7.18       4.64         S-140       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95         S-33       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95         S-33       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95         S-33       .00       2.191       1.74       .02       5.89       3.91         S-34       .23       .01       1.74       .02       5.89       3.91         S-34       .23       .264       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-33       .14       8.08       1.17       .02       5.96(>5)       5.96(>5)         S-33       .14       8.08       1.18       .00       3.19	G-155	00.	4.05	3.01	.13	7.19	4.05(>3)	7.06(>5)	7.19(>5)
HIALEAH W       .71       2.89       2.44       .13       6.17       2.89         HILLSBORD CNL       .21       6.76       1.39       .00       8.36       6.76(>5)       6         S-124       .93       4.64       1.41       .20       7.18       4.64       5.97       2.95         S-140       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95       3.91         S-33       .00       2.718       1.02       5.89       3.91       3.91         S-33       .00       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94       5.96         S-33       .23       1.174       .02       5.89       3.91       1.91       5.96         S-33       .06       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94       5.96 <t< th=""><th>G-201</th><td>.07</td><td>2.39</td><td>1.56</td><td>1.56</td><td>5.58</td><td>2.39</td><td>3.95</td><td>5.51</td></t<>	G-201	.07	2.39	1.56	1.56	5.58	2.39	3.95	5.51
HTLLSBORD CNL       .21       6.76       1.39       .00       8.36       6.76(>5)         S-124       .93       4.64       1.41       .20       7.18       4.64         S-140       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95         S-140       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95         S-30       .06       1.94       1.74       .02       5.89       3.91         S-33       .06       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-33       .24       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       3.91         S-34       .22       6.64       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-33       .23       1.128       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       3.91         S-33       .25       4.36       .62       1.44       6.97       4.36         S-5A       .00       1.28       .25       9.39       1.83       5.96(>3)         S-5A       .00       1.28       .25       4.36       .66(>3)       5.96(>5)         S-5A       .00       1.28       .53       5.93       5.96(>5)	HIALEAH W	.71	2.89	2.44	.13	6.17	2.89	5.33	6.04(>3)
S-124       .93       4.64       1.41       .20       7.18       4.64         S-140       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95         S-30       .23       .01       1.74       .02       5.89       3.91         S-338       .06       1.94       1.74       .02       5.89       3.91         S-338       .06       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-34       .22       6.44       1.57       .01       8.44       6.64(>5)         S-38       .90       5.96       1.28       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       1.94         S-33       .114       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       1.94         S-5A       .114       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       1.83         S-56       .124       .07       5.80       1.70       .83       5.80(>5)       1.83         S-6       .24       .07       5.80       1.70       .83       5.96(>5)       1.93         S-7       .25       .770       6.05       3.05       1.73       5.13       5.23	HILLSBORD CNL	.21	6.76	1.39	00.	8.36	6.76(>5)	8.15(>5)	8.36(>5)
S-140       .00       2.78       2.95       .24       5.97       2.95         S-30       .22       3.91       1.74       .02       5.89       3.91         S-338       .06       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-34       .22       6.64       1.57       .01       8.44       6.64(>5)         S-34       .22       6.64       1.57       .01       8.44       6.64(>5)         S-38       .90       5.96       1.28       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)         S-39       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)         S-55       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)         S-55       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)         S-5       .07       5.80       1.70       .839       5.80(>5)       9.5         S-6       .25       4.36       .61       1.70       .839       5.80(>5)         S-7       .07       5.80       1.70       .839       5.80(>5)       9.5         S-9       .07       .26       1.70       .839 <td< th=""><th>S-124</th><td>£6.</td><td>4.64</td><td>1.41</td><td>.20</td><td>7.18</td><td>4.64</td><td>6.05(&gt;3)</td><td>6.98(&gt;3)</td></td<>	S-124	£6.	4.64	1.41	.20	7.18	4.64	6.05(>3)	6.98(>3)
S-30       .22       3.91       1.74       .02       5.89       3.91         S-34       .06       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-34       .22       6.64       1.57       .01       8.44       6.64(>5)         S-38       .26       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-34       .22       6.64       1.57       .01       8.44       6.64(>5)         S-39       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)         S-39       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)         S-5A       .00       1.83       .73       .63       3.19       1.83         S-5       .07       5.80       1.70       .839       5.80(>5)       5.80(>5)         S-7       .07       5.80       1.70       .839       5.80(>5)       5.80(>5)         S-9       .07       5.80       1.70       6.00       3.05       5.9         S-9       .25       .770       6.05       3.21       1.7       5.13         S-9       .29       .21       1.74       1.7       5.13 </th <th>S-140</th> <td>00.</td> <td>2.78</td> <td>2.95</td> <td>.24</td> <td>5.97</td> <td>2.95</td> <td>5.73(&gt;3)</td> <td>5.97(&gt;3)</td>	S-140	00.	2.78	2.95	.24	5.97	2.95	5.73(>3)	5.97(>3)
S-338       .06       1.94       1.18       .00       3.18       1.94         S-34       .22       6.64       1.57       .01       8.44       6.64(>5)         S-38       .20       5.96       1.28       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       7         S-38       .90       5.96       1.28       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       7         S-39       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       7         S-5A       .00       1.83       .73       .63       3.19       1.83       7         S-5A       .00       1.83       .73       .63       3.19       1.83       5         S-6       .55       4.36       .62       1.44       6.97       4.36         S-7       .07       5.80       1.70       .82       8.39       5.80(>5)         S-8       .00       3.05       2.25       .70       6.00       3.05       1.7         S-9       .29       .21       1.77       .30       5.13       3.21       2.3         S-19       .29       .21       1.74       .17       5.13       3.21       2.3     <	5-30	.22	3.91	1.74	.02	5.89	3.91	5.65(>3)	5.87
S-34       .22       6.64       1.57       .01       8.44       6.64(>5)         S-38       .90       5.96       1.28       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       7         S-38       .90       5.96       1.28       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       7         S-5A       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       7         S-5A       .00       1.83       .73       .63       3.19       1.83       7         S-6       .55       4.36       .62       1.44       6.97       4.36       4.36         S-7       .07       5.80       1.70       .82       8.39       5.80(>5)       7         S-7       .07       5.80       1.70       .30       6.85       4.61       1.70         S-8       .29       .25       .70       6.00       3.05       3.05       7         S-13       .27       .01       3.21       1.74       1.7       3.21       4.36         S-14       .01       3.21       1.74       1.7       3.21       4.36         S-12       .01       3.21       1.74       3.21       3.21	g-338	.06	1.94	1.18	00.	3.18	1.94	3.12	3.18
\$\$-38       .90       5.96       1.28       .25       8.39       5.96(>3)       7         \$\$-53       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       9         \$\$-53       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       9         \$\$-53       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       9         \$\$-53       .19       1.83       .73       .63       3.19       1.83       1         \$\$-6       .55       4.36       .62       1.44       6.97       4.36       4.36         \$\$-7       .07       5.80       1.70       .82       8.39       5.80(>5)       1         \$\$-8       .07       5.80       1.70       .839       5.80(>5)       1       5         \$\$-8       .00       3.05       2.25       .70       6.00       3.05       1       1       5       1       1       5       1       5       1       5       1       5       1       5       5       1       5       5       1       5       5       1       5       5       5       5       5       <	g-34	. 22	6.64	1.57	10.	8.44	6.64(>5)	8.21(>10)	8.43(>10)
S-39       .14       8.08       1.10       .05       9.37       8.08(>5)       9.3         S-5A       .00       1.83       .73       .63       3.19       1.83       2         S-6       .55       4.36       .62       1.44       6.97       4.36       4.36         S-7       .55       4.36       .62       1.44       6.97       4.36       4.36         S-7       .07       5.80       1.70       .82       8.39       5.80(>5)       5.80         S-8       .00       3.05       2.25       .70       6.00       3.05       5.80         S-8       .24       4.61       1.70       .30       6.85       4.61(>3)       4.54         S-19       .21       1.74       .17       5.13       3.21       4.24       5.45       3.21         TAMITER       .01       3.21       1.74       1.7       5.13       3.21       4.24	S-38	.90	5.96	1.28	.25	8.39	5.96(>3)	7.24(>3)	8.14(>3)
S-5A     .00     1.83     .73     .63     3.19     1.83     2       S-6     .55     4.36     .62     1.44     6.97     4.36       S-7     .55     4.36     .62     1.44     6.97     4.36       S-7     .07     5.80     1.70     .82     8.39     5.80(>5)       S-8     .00     3.05     2.25     .70     6.00     3.05       S-9     .24     4.61     1.70     .30     6.85     4.61(>3)       S-10     .21     1.74     .17     5.13     3.21       TAMIANT CANAT     .01     3.21     1.74     1.7     5.13	13-39 13-39	.14	8.08	1.10	.05	9.37	8,08(>5)	9.18(>5)	9.32(>5)
S-6	8-5 <b>3</b>	00.	1.83	.73	.63	3.19	1.83	2.56	3.19
S-7 .07 5.80 1.70 .82 8.39 5.80(>5) 7 S-8 .00 3.05 2.25 .70 6.00 3.05 . -9 .24 4.61 1.70 .30 6.85 4.61(>3) ( SAEZTWATER .01 3.21 1.74 .17 5.13 3.21 ( TAMIANT CANAL 0.1 3.21 1.74 .17 5.13 3.21 (	S-6	.55	4.36	.62	1.44	6.97	4.36	4.98	6.42(>3)
S-8	S-7	.07	5.80	1.70	.82	8.39	5.80(>5)	7.50(>5)	8.32(>5)
-9 -30 6.85 4.61 1.70 .30 6.85 4.61(>3) 6 SAEETWATER .01 3.21 1.74 .17 5.13 3.21 4 TAMTAMT CANAL 00 3.03 2.08 34 5.45 3.03	S1−S	.00	3.05	2.25	.70	6.00	3.05	5.30(>3)	6.00(>3)
SAEETWATER .01 3.21 1.74 .17 5.13 3.21 4 TAMTAMT CANAL 00 3 03 2 08 34 5 45 3 03 0	6	.24	4.61	1.70	.30	6.85	4.61(>3)	6.31(>5)	6.61(>5)
TAMIAMI CANAI. 00 3 03 2 08 34 5 45 3 03 7	S AEETWATER	.01	3.21	1.74	.17	5.13	3.21	4.95	5.12
	TAMIAMI CANAL	.00	3.03	2.08	34	5.45	3.03	5.11	5.45

Daily Rainfall Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for the Storm Events in the water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (August 23-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-19.** 

WEST MIRAMAR .36 3.52 2.11 .00 5.99 3.52 5.63 (>3) 5.99 (>3) Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rainfall Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for the Storm Events in the Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (October 14-19, 1995). **TABLE 3-20.** 

							STORM	STORM DI	JRATION	(RETURN PE	RIOD)
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY Max	2 - DAY Max	3-DAY Max	5 - DAY MAX
UNDYTOWN 5W	.32	1.13	96.	.29	1.45	2.64	6.81	2.64	4.09	4.38	6.49
SONAVENTURE	.63	1.14	.45	.54	1.90	.46	5.12	1.90	2.44	2.90	4.66
THEKIKA EVER	.41	1.04	.47	.44	.14	-1.00	2.50M	<b>1.04</b> M	<b>1.51M</b>	1.95M	ŀ
COOPERTOWN	-1.00	-1.00	.60	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	. 60M	I	ı	I	ı
CORAL SPR 11W	.36	.92	1.35	.15	.61	1.19	4.58	1.35	2.27	2.63	4.22
CORAL SPRINGS	00.	. 62	.63	.27	.63	.06	2.21	0.63	1.25	1.53	2.21
DELRAY BEACH W	.73	.43	-1.00	-1.00	1.42	00,	2.58M	1.42M	ı	ı	I
3-155	°.	.87	2.74	.97	1.43	.55	6.56	2.74	3.71	5.14	6.56
3-201	.20	1.18	1.28	.48	1.01	1.01	5.16	1.28	2.46	2.94	4.96
HIALEAH W	.88	2.90	1.24	1.31	<b>4</b> E.	.03	6.70	2.90	4.14	5.45	6.67
HILLSBORD CNL	,16	.66	1.38	.12	1.48	.50	4.30	1.48	2.04	2.98	4.14
5-124	.66	.51	.15	.29	1.63	.07	3.31	1.63	1.92	2.07	3.24
3-140	.12	.68	1.22	1.48	.74	.58	4.82	1.48	2.70	3.44	4.70
s-30	.52	1.47	1.26	.43	. 65	.16	4.49	1.47	2.73	3.25	4.33
5-338	.08	.26	.68	.89	.71	. 82	3.44	0.89	1.60	2.42	3.36
5-34	32	1.25	.76	.47	.40	1.45	4.65	1.45	2.01	2.48	4.33
3-38	00.	1.52	.34	1.09	2.85	.71	6.51	2.85	3.94	4.65	6.51
3-39	.23	.63	1.02	.19	.57	.05	2.69	1.02	1.65	1.88	2.64
5-5A	.39	1.08	1.78	5.06	2.45	.26	11.02	5.06(>3)	1 7.51(>3	9.29(>5	() 10.76(>10)
3-6	.30	.53	2,29	1.70	16.	. 55	6.28	2.29	3.99	4.90	5.98
3-7	.47	1.48	1.56	.63	1.67	.46	6.27	1.67	3.04	3.86	5.81
00 I IO	-25	.75	1.40	1.60	1.68	1.10	6.78	1.68	3.28	4.68	6.53
6-2	.62	1.90	.68	.35	.68	.05	4.28	1.90	2.58	3.20	4.23
SWEETWATER	.47	2.05	.67	.30	.18	11,	3.78	2.05	2.72	3.19	3.67
PAMIAMI CANAL	.40	.86	2.21	.50	.04	. 02	4.03	2.21	3.07	3.57	4.01
VEST MIRAMAR	.07	-1-00	-1.00	-1-00	-1.00	-1 00	0 07W	ł	ı		

Identified by "M" tag. missing uata JIII (197 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by \*-1.00\*.

# UPPER EAST COAST (MARTIN-ST. LUCIE SUBBASIN)

Measured rainfall amounts from Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) were relatively small in comparison with other events in the Upper East Coast area and, therefore, an analysis is not presented.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-21), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 0.56 to 7.92 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 4.16 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.36 (S-153) to 3.72 inches (S-80). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.4 to 5.40 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 0.45 to 5.68 inches. One rainfall station (S-191) measured rainfall amounts for the 2- and 3-day durations that had return periodsof at least 3 years.

The resulting daily point rainfalls and various durations for Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) are shown in Table 3-22. The 4-day storm total ranged from 1.27 inches (S-191) to 6.45 inches (S-49). The 3-day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.18 to 6.25 inches (S-49), and a recurrence interval of three years is associated with the maximum 3-day rainfall at S-49.

During Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), rainfall totals from the 14 measuring stations ranged from 0.51 to 11.42 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 5.57 inches (Table 3-23). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.20 (S-191) to 10.25 inches (S-80). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.40 to 10.78 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 0.51 to 11.18 inches. There were several extreme events associated with the individual stations for the 1-, 2-, and 3-day maximums at the S-191 station that had return periods of 25 and 100 years. There were five other stations which had 5 and 10 year return periods for the various durations.

The daily point rainfall resulting from the October 14-19 storm ranged from 4.20 to 19.23 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 8.90 inches (Table 3-24). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 2.51 inches (VERO BEACH) to 13.90 inches (S-46). The 2-day maximum ranged from 3.14 inches (VERO BEACH) to 17.01 inches (S-46), the 3-day maximum ranged from 3.37 to 17.73 inches (S-46), and the 5-day maximum duration ranged from 4.14 to 19.23 inches (S-46). There were several extreme rainfall amounts associated with particular stations, and return periods ranged from 3 to over 100 years for the associated 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day rainfall durations.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Martin-St. Lucie Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-21.** 

										STORM	STORM DURA	TION (RETUR	N PERIOD)
STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY
										(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX
C-18W	°00	.16	0	.23	.59	.18	-56	2.92	1.02	5.66	2.92	3.94	4.50
FT PIERCE PS	.01	.10	00.	.13	.08	.08	.10	.75	1.50	2.75	1.50	2.25	2.35
OKEECHOBEE FS	00.	1.61	<b>1</b> 0.	.15	.75	.16	.49	1.10	2.50	6.77	2.50	3.60	4.09
S-135	.48	.52	.02	.16	.20	<b>H</b> .	. 02	1.04	1.78	4.33	1.78	2.82	2.84
S-153	00.	.36	.04	.05	.04	- 03	. 02	.01	.01	0.56	0.36	0.40	0.45
S-191	00.	1.96	8.	.11	.15	. 02	.28	1.98	3.42	7.92	3.42	5.40(>3)	5,68(>3)
S-308	8.	2.36	<u>.</u>	.15	.14	.21	.10	.58	.60	4.14	2.36	2.36	2.51
S-46	.21	.15	<u>.</u>	.11	.38	.27	.34	.81	1.08	3.35	1.08	1.89	2.23
S-49	-01	.09	.01	.24	.16	.22	: 05	.97	1.28	3.03	1.28	2.25	2.30
S-80	°.	55.	00	. 25	.32	.75	.06	3.72	1.45	7.10	3.72	5.17	5.23
S-97	.05	.31	.02	.05	.42	.03	.05	1.00	. 85	2.78	1.00	1.85	1.90
S-99	.01	.08	00.	.13	.34	.14	.13	.95	.52	2.30	0.95	1.47	1.60
VERO BEACH	.18	.10	0	.06	.06	.52	.23	1.53	.67	3.35	1.53	2.20	2.43
VERO BEACH W	-1.00	.10	00.	.08	.10	.43	-1.00	-1.00	.57	<b>1.28M</b>	0.57M	0.53M	0.61M
Note: 1) Return Periods s	a ni nwoha	arenthes	sis are in	vears 2	1 Storm	Duratio	o and S	torm To	i vem ale	John Marine	ing data identit	fied his "NA" too	

dentitied by "M" tag. ה המומ מו מו וומא

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rair fall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for the Storm Events in the Martin-St. Lucie Subbasin (August 2-5, 1995). **TABLE 3-22.** 

					STORM	STORM DURA	TION (RETURN	PERIOD)
STATIONS	8/02	8/03	8/04	8/05	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY
					(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX
C-18W	82	1.20	CP 1	05	4 44	1 00	сг г	10 C
FT PIERCE FS	2.14	.18	. 97	.22	3.51	2,14	2 - 13 F	57 E
OKEECHOBEE FS	1.75	.91	.13	.21	3.00	1.75	2.66	2.79
g-135	.48	.98	.83	<b>54</b>	2.83	0.98	1.81	2.35
S-153	.40	.82	1.18	.83	3.23	1.16	2.01	2.83
S-191	.78	.30	.10	60.	1.27	0.78	1.08	1.18
S-308	.34	1.36	.90	.50	3.10	1.36	2.26	2.76
S-46	.57	1.62	1.88	.22	4.29	1.88	3.50	4.07
2-49	2.50	1.50	2.25	.20	6.45	2.50	4.00	6.25(>3)
S-80	1.94	.35	3.50	.57	6.36	3.50	4.07	5.79
S-97	2.00	1.01	3.04	.18	6.23	3.04	4.05	6.05
8-99	3.22	.22	2.00	.05	5.49	3.22	3.44	5.44
VERO BEACH	2.10	1.25	1.03	.45	4.83	2.10	3.35	4.38
VERO BEACH W	2.70	. 44	. 86	.14	4.14	2.70	3.14	4.00

Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "A" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

y Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for the Storm Events in the Martin- ucie Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995).
BLE 3-23. Daily Re St. Lucié
TA

					STORM	STORM DURATIC	N (RETURN F	PERIOD)	
STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	
						YWY	MAX	MAX	
C~18W	.15	4.21	.72	06.	5.98	4.21	4.93	5 . 8.3	
FT PIERCE FS	.05	4.22	1.64	.49	6.40	4.22(>3)	5.86(>3)	6.35(>3)	
OKEECHOBEE PS	8.	1.01	. 65	. 60	2.26	1.01	1.66	2.26	
S-135	.12	3.21	1.50	.14	4.97	3.21	4.71	4.85	
S-153	.01	4.18	1.05	.03	5.27	4.18(>3)	5.23	5.26	
S-191	8.	.20	.20	11.	0.51	0.20	0.40	0.51	
S-308	00.	3.52	1.27	60.	4.88	3.52	4.79	88.4	
S-46	.26	4.86	.43	.41	5.96	4.86	5.29	5.70	
S-49	.16	6.00	.49	.25	6.90	6.00(>1)	6.49(>5)	6.74(>3)	
S-80	.24	10.25	.53	.40	11.42	10.25(>100)	10.78(>25)	11.18(>25)	
S-97	.14	6.00	.41	.17	6.72	6.00(>10)	6.41(>3)	6.58(>3)	
S39	.24	5.90	1.24	.44	7.82	5.90(>10)	7.14(>5)	7.58(>5)	
VERO BEACH	.36	2.97	.78	.16	4.27	2.97	3.75	4 11	
VERO BEACH W	. 22	3.37	1.01	-1.00	4.60M	3.37M	4.38M	F	
Vinte: 1) Doturn Doriodo chour	1			Í					1

wore: 1) Hewrin Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# TABLE 3-24. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for the Storm Events in the Martin-St. Lucie Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995).

					-		STORM	STORM DU	RATION	(RETURN PERIO	(q
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	61/0I	тотаг (чі)	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY MAX	3-DAY Max	5-DAY MAY
C-18W	.14	1.85	.87	3.92	4.98	10.	11.77	4.98	8 90(>5)	9 77(510)	11 761-101
FT PIERCE PS	.60	1.50	.14	.34	4.49	.02	60.7	4.49(>3)	4.83	4.97	7 07 ( 23 )
OKERCHOBEE PS	.14	1.00	00.	.45	3.02	.03	4.64	3.02	3.47	3.50	4 . 61
S-135	.04	.80	.16	.77	2.90	.27	4.94	2.90	3.67	<b>1</b> 6 m	19.4
S-153	0.	.95	.05	1.10	4.01	-20	6.31	4.01(>3)	5.11	5.31	18.9
S-191	.05	.38	.02	.05	3.67	.11	4.28	3.67	3.78	1 60 . 1 60 .	20.4
<b>S-</b> 308	.54	.67	1.26	1.42	3.47	. 65	8.01	3.47	68.4	6.15(>3)	7.47(23)
S-46	.26	1.24	.72	3.11	13.90	00.	19.23	13.90(>100)	17.01(>100)	17.73(>100)	
S-49	.70	2.00	00.	1.00	5.60	.76	10.06	5.60(>5)	6.60(>5)	7.36(>5)	9.36(>10)
S-80	.28	1.45	.52	1.59	10.77	.06	14.67	10.77(>100)	12 36(>100)	12.88(>50)	14.61(>100)
S-97	-50	1.90	.15	.75	8.25	2.00	13.55	8.25(>50)	10.25(>25)	11.00(>25)	13.05(>50)
S-99	.12	2.21	.32	. 60	3.00	.70	6.95	3.00	3.70	4.30	6.83
VERO BEACH	90.	.72	.05	.63	2.51	.23	4.20	2.51	3.14	3.37	4.14
VERO BEACH W	1.00	-1.00	.03	.91	1.92	.49	3.35M	1.92M	2.83M		
Note: 1) Return Perio	ds shown	in parent	hesis are i	in years.	2) Storm	Duration a	Ind Storm T	otals may include	e missing data i	dentified bv "M" t	ao.

Ì 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# LOWER EAST COAST (PALM BEACH, BROWARD, AND DADE SUBBASINS)

The rainfall subbasins in the Lower East Coast cover the urbanized areas of Palm Beach, Broward, and Dade Counties. The reporting area does not include the western portions of these counties that fall within the boundaries of the Water Conservation Areas (WCAs); they are discussed with the WCA subbasin.

# Palm Beach County Subbasin

Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) produced relatively minor rainfall amounts in comparison with other Lower East Coast area events, thus no analysis is presented.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-25), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 1.84 to 6.46 inches; the subbasin received an average of 4.05 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.51 inches (DEFRAY BEACH W) to 3.92 inches (C-18W); the 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 0.98 to 4.15 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.39 to 4.73 inches. No stations had measured rainfall amounts for the 1-, 2-, or 3-day durations that had return periods greater than 3 years.

Daily point rainfalls and various durations for Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) are shown in Table 3-26. The 4-day storm total ranged from 1.68 inches (S-5AY) to 7.10 inches (S-41); the basin-wide average during this storm event was 4.89 inches. The 3day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.53 to 6.87 inches (S-5AY), with no higher than normal rainfall amounts observed during the 4-day storm in this subbasin.

During Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), rainfall totals from the 13 measuring stations ranged from 2.38 to 9.37 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 6.54 inches (Table 3-27). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.74 inches (S-5AY) to 8.08 inches (S-39). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.35 to 9.18 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.37 to 9.32 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at six rainfall measuring stations with the rainfall amounts having recurrence intervals of at least 3 and 5 years.

The October 14-19 storm event produced rainfall totals that ranged from 2.69 to 19.23 inches, and a 6-day basin-wide average of 10.07 inches (Table 3-28). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.02 inches (S-39) to 13.98 inches (S-46). The 2-day maximum ranged from 1.65 to 17.01 inches, the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.88 to 17.73 inches, and the 5-day maximum ranged from 2.64 to 19.23 inches. The minimum and maximum rainfall amount for all duration intervals were recorded at S-39 and S-46, respectively. There were several extreme rainfall amounts associated with individual stations, and the 2-, 3-, and 5-day durations. Associated return periods ranged from 3 to 5 years. Also, return periods of 25 and 100 years were associated with the rainfall amount measured at the S-44 and S-46 rainfall stations.

TABLE 3-25. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Palm Beach County Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995).

										STORM	STORM DUR.	ATION (RET	JRN PERIOD)
STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY Max	3-DAY May
C-14	00.	.16	00.	.23	53	.18	.56	2.92	1.02	5.66	2.92	3 94	
DEFRAY BEACH W	.00		.01	.47	.51	.41	.15	14	0	1.84	0.51	86 0	007
G-56	.08	.45	.14	1.42	1.00	1.37	.27	.37	00.	5.10	1.42	2.42	97.4
PBIA	.56	.05	.02	.77	.37	.20	.10	.46	1.26	з.79	1.26	1.72	1.82
S-155	.76	.06	.03	1.45	. 62	. 55	.26	.85	1.85	6.43	1.85	2.70	2,96
S-39	00.	.12	.17	.55	.89	. 58	1.48	2.67	00.	6.46	2.67	4.15	4.73
S-40	- 06	.28	.01	.80	.74	1.54	.27	.11	10.	3.82	1.54	2.28	3.08
S-41.	95.	.24	.01	.86	.77	.40	.30	. 29	10.	3.27	0.86	1.63	2,03
S-44	.76	70.	80.	.78	. 44	.20	.56	. 65	.73	4.16	0.78	1.38	1.94
S-46	-21	.15	00.		.38	.27	.34	.81	1.08	3.35	1.08	1.89	2.23
S-5A	.19	.23	10.	.37	.37	. 62	.20	.80	.40	3.19	0.80	1.20	1.62
S-5AY	.07	.18	00.	6E.	.23	.07	.12	.97	.45	2.48	0.97	1.42	1.54
WESTPORT	.35	.20	0.	.20	06.	.45	.20	.55	.23	3.08	0.90	1.35	1.55

and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. NOVE: 1) NO RETURN FERIOOS GREATER THAT 3 YEARS. 2) STORM DURATION 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Palm Beach County Subbasin (August 2-5, 1995). **TABLE 3-26.** 

					STORM	STORM DURA	TION (RETURN	( PERIOD)	
STATIONS	8/02	8/03	8/04	8/05	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	
				1	(ii)	MAX	MAX	мах	
C-18W	.82	1.20	1.92	.50	4.44	1.92	3,12	40.5	
DELRAY BEACH W	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	,	1			
G-56	. 04	1.94	3.02	1.48	6.48	3.02	4.96	6.44	
<b>PBIA</b>	.42	2.10	1.01	.13	3.66	2.10	3.11	3.53	
S-155	. 52	4.86	.57	.40	6.35	4.86	5.43	5.95	
S-39	. 07	.89	2.91	.43	4.30	2.91	3.80	4.23	
S-40	60.	3.04	1.53	2.05	6.71	3.04	4.57	6.62	
S-41	. 23	4.65	1.40	. 82	7.10	4.65	6.05	6.87	
S-44	.53	2.87	1.35	.24	4.99	2.87	4.22	4.75	
S-46	.57	1.62	1.88	.22	4.29	1.88	3.50	4.07	
S-5A	.15	.62	2.12	.26	3.15	2.12	2.74	3.00	
S-5AY	.27	.17	1.09	.15	1.68	1.09	1.26	1.53	
WESTPORT	.50	2.25	2.25	.50	5.50	2.25	4.50	5.00	
Note: 1) No Return Peri	iods areate	er than 3	vears.	2) Storm	Duration and	Storm Totals m	av include missi	inn data	

identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

					STORM	STORM DURAT	TION (RETUR	W PERIOD)
STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2 - DAY MAX	3-DAY MAX
C+18W	r T	10 4	5	6	00 2			
Dereav apacu w			4 4			17.8		0.83
VENUAL PEALD W	0T-	5.9T	97.	.05	4.33	16.5	4.17	4.27
G-56	49	4.81	1.44	00.	6.74	4.81	6.25	6.74
PBIA	.56	7.90	.30	.24	9.00	7.90(>5)	8.46(>5)	8.76(>5)
<b>S-155</b>	.33	6.59	.52	.01	7.45	6.59(>3)	7.11(>3)	7.44
S-39	.14	8.08	1.10	.05	9.37	8.08(>5)	9.18(>5)	9.32(>5)
S-40	.23	6.85	1.62	.33	9.03	6.85(>3)	8.47(>3)	8,80(>3)
S-41	E0.	6.60	1.14	.17	7.94	6.60(>3)	7.74(>3)	7.91(>3)
S-44	1.20	7.31	.43	.10	9.04	7.31(>5)	8.51(>5)	8.94(>5)
S-46	.26	4.86	.43	.41	5.96	4.86	5.29	5.70
S-5A	00,	1.83	EL.	.63	3.19	1.83	2.56	3.19
S-5AY	.02	1.74	.61	.01	2.38	1.74	2.35	2.37
WESTPORT	-1.00	3.75	.45	.35	4.55M	3.75M	4.20M	4.55M

 

 TABLE 3-27.
 Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the

 Palm Reach County Subhasin (August 23 - 26, 1995)

Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

12.9

s er er i s

# Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Palm Beach County Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995). **TABLE 3-28.**

							STORM	STORM DI	URATION (	RETURN PERIO	0
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	5-DAY
							(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX	MAX
C-1BW	.14	1.85	.87	3.92	4.98	10.	11.77	4.98	8 90(25)	101~/22 B	101-136 11
DELRAY BEACH W	.73	.43	-1.00	-1.00	1.42	00.	2.58M	1.42M	1.42M	1.16M	1.16M
G-56	.04	1.13	2.12	1.00	1.25	.24	5.78	2.12	3.25	4.37	5.74
PBIA	.31	1.70	.88	2.70	2.88	H.	8.58	2.88	5.58	6.46	8.47
S-155	.34	1.48	.87	3.05	2.18	.16	8.08	3.05	5.23	6.10	7.92
S-39	.23	.63	1.02	.19	.57	.05	2.69	1.02	1.65	1.88	2.64
S-40	.04	2.18	3.21	4.53	1.01	.58	11.55	4.53	7.74(>3)	9.92(>5)	11.51(>5)
S-41	.54	1.51	1.31	3.38	2.93	. 02	9.69	3.38	6.31	7.62	9.67(>3)
S-44	.12	1.67	.83	5.64	10.49	.02	18.77	10.49(>25)	16.13(>100)	16.96(>100)	18.75(>100)
S-46	-26	1.24	.72	3.11	13.90	00.	19.23	13.90(>100)	17.01(>100)	17.73(>100)	(001<) 23.01
S-5A	.39	1.08	1.78	5.06	2.45	.26	11.02	5.06(>3)	7.51(>3)	9.29(>5)	10.76(>10)
S-5AY	.07	- 95	.34	1.68	1.94	.11	5.09	1.94	3.62	3.96	5.02
WESTPORT	. 60	1.50	96.	3.80	1.30	.60	8.70	3.80	5.10	6.20	8.10

Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "M" tag.

# **Broward County Subbasin**

There were no significant amounts of rainfall in the Broward County subbasin due to Hurricane Opal (October 5-7), and an analysis is not presented for this subbasin.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-29), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 4.25 inches (S-124) near Bonaventure to 15.41 inches (S-29) in North Miami, with the subbasin receiving an average of 7.43 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from .24 inches (S-124) to 6.28 inches (S-29). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.26 to 8.78 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 3.10 to 13.12 inches. There were several stations with measured rainfall amounts for the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations that had return periods of at least 3, 5, and 10 years.

The resulting daily point rainfalls and various durations for Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) are shown in Table 3-30. The 4-day storm total ranged from 1.68 inches (S-34) to 7.93 inches (S-33). The basin-wide average during this storm event was 4.70 inches. The 3-day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.13 to 7.75 inches (S-33). There were no higher-than-normal rainfall amounts observed during the course of the storm over four days in this subbasin.

Table 3-31 shows the daily point rainfall resulting from Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26). Rainfall totals from the 20 measuring stations ranged from 3.23 to 9.37 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 6.25 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.3 (S-37A) to 8.08 inches (S-39). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.39 to 9.18 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.89 to 9.23 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at eight rainfall measuring stations for various durations with the rainfall amounts having a recurrence interval of at least 3, 5, or 10 years.

Table 3-32 shows the daily point rainfall resulting from the October 14-19 storm event. Rainfall totals from measuring stations ranged from 0.59 to 8.96 inches, and the 6day basin-wide average was 5.20 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.22 inches (S-28Z) to 3.86 inches (S-37A). The highest amount of rainfall was measured in the coastal areas of Broward County at stations S-37A and S-37B, however there were no extreme rainfall amounts associated with the individual stations or the 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day durations.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Broward County Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-29.** 

TATIONS         D/19         0/19         0/20         0/21         0/22         0/23         0/24         0/25         0/24         T_DAY         2-DAY         3-DAY         MAX         MAX<											STORM	STORM DUF	UATION (RI	ETURN PERIO	(Q
NAX         MAX         MAX         MAX         MAX         MAX           BONAVENTURE         -1.00<-1.00<-1.00<-1.00<-1.00<-1.00<-1.00         -1.00<-1.00         -1.00	SUCTICIS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	5-DAY
BONAVENTURE         -1.00         -1.12         -1.12											(11) (11)	MAX	MAX	MAX	MAX
CORAL SFRIMES	BONAVENTURE	-1,00	-100	00 1	- 1 0 0	00 F 1	00	c c	5	, ,					
TLAUD FS         .03         .11         .00         .86         .95         .74         2.41         2.87         5.28         6.02           FT         LAUD FS         .75         .10         .18         111         .00         .00         7.62         2.40         4.31         6.02           FT         LAUD FS         .16         .18         1.86         1.87         1.31         2.31         2.31         3.31         6.43           FT         .08         .45         .14         1.42         1.00         1.37         .37         .37         .37         .37         .37         .37         .37         .39         5.71         6.43         5.77           G-56         .01         .16         .15         .24         1.24         1.00         .33         1.24         2.26         3.10         5.29         3.173         5.21         5.14         5.26         3.10         5.26         3.10         5.26         3.10         5.26         3.10         5.26         3.10         5.26         3.12         5.26         3.12         5.26         3.21         5.26         5.26         5.26         5.26         5.26         5.26         5.26										nn	1	ı	1	1	•
FT LAUD FS         .75         .20         .13         2.12         1.91         2.40         11         .00         .00         7.62         2.40         4.31         6.43           FTL         .05         .16         .56         2.10         1.81         .39         .02         2.00         6.95         2.10         3.96         5.77           G-56         .16         .56         2.10         1.81         .39         .02         1.00         1.42         2.42         3.70           G-124         .01         .16         .15         .84         1.24         1.02         .69         1.4         .00         7.57         2.40         4.10         6.29         9.71(53)           S-123         .01         .01         .01         .03         4.00         2.29         1.24         2.26         3.10         3.11(53)         3.11(53)           S-123         .01         .01         .03         4.00         .00         .00         7.57         2.60         4.10         6.29         7.95(53)           S-229         .01         .02         .01         .00         .01         1.63         7.95(53)         3.12(510           S-	COMAL SPRINGS	.03		8.	• 86	95	74	2.41	2.87	8.	7.97	2.87	5.28	6.02	7.83
FTL       .05       .16       .56       2.10       1.86       1.81       .39       .02       .00       6.95       2.10       3.96       5.77         G-56       .08       .45       .14       1.42       1.00       1.37       .27       .37       .00       5.10       1.42       3.79         FULKY00D       .14       .77       .46       2.29       1.70       5.22       1.14       .40       .02       12.4       2.42       3.79         S-124       .01       .01       .16       .15       .84       1.24       1.00       7.37       .00       5.10       1.42       3.10         S-124       .01       .01       .02       .16       .15       .84       1.24       1.00       1.37       .27       3.79         S-128       .01       .01       .01       .01       .02       1.06       1.41       .00       .01       1.06       1.31       1.31       2.41       5.13       1.24       1.31       2.41       1.31       1.24       1.31       2.41       3.10       5.22       5.14       5.14       5.12       5.14       5.13       5.16       5.13       5.12       5.14	FT LAUD FS	.75	- 20	.13	2.12	1.91	2.40	1	.00	8.	7.62	2.40	4.31	6.43	6.76
	FTL	. 05	.16	.56	2.10	1.86	1.81	.39	.02	8.	6.95	2.10	3.96	5.77	6.72
BOLLYWOOD       .14       .77       .46       2.29       1.70       5.22       1.21.4       5.22       6.92       9.21(>3)         S-124       .01       .16       .15       .84       1.24       1.02       .69       .14       .00       4.10       6.22       9.21(>3)         S-124       .01       .16       .15       .84       1.24       1.02       .69       .14       .00       4.10       6.20       3.10         S-13       .65       .02       .30       2.10       1.50       2.60       .40       .00       7.57       2.26       3.10       5.26       5.29       5.16       7.95(>5)       5.12       7.95(>5)       5.12       7.95(>5)       5.26       7.95(>5)       5.12       7.95(>13)       1.26       7.95(>13)       1.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>13)       2.26       7.95(>10)       2.36       7.95(>10)       3.361       6.20       7.95(>10)       3.361       6.21(>3)       3.76       7.95(>10)       5.365       3.516       7.95(>10)       5.35	G-56	.08	.45	.14	1.42	1.00	1.37	.27	.37	°.	5.10	1.42	2.42	3.79	4.43
S-124       .01       .16       .15       .84       1.24       1.02       .69       .14       .00       4.25       1.24       2.26       3.10         S-13       .65       .02       .30       2.10       1.50       2.60       .40       .00       7.57       2.60       4.10       6.20         S-282       .65       .02       .30       2.10       1.50       2.60       .41       6.29       9.79(>5)         S-282       .67       .68       6.28       2.50       4.34       .41       .00       15.41       6.28(>3)       8.78(>5)       13.12(>10         S-292       .67       .68       6.28       2.50       4.34       .41       .00       15.41       6.28(>3)       8.78(>3)       12.2(>10         S-292       .01       .05       .01       .03       4.00       2.51       3.361       6.34(>3)       5.12       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.9	HOLLYWOOD	.14	.77	.46	2.29	1.70	5.22	1.14	.40	.02	12.14	5.22	6.92	9.21(>3)	10.81(>5)
S-13       .65       .02       .30       2.10       1.50       .40       .00       .00       7.57       2.60       4.10       6.20         S-282       .01       .01       .01       .03       4.00       2.29       3.50       1.70       .09       .00       11.63       4.00       6.29       9.79(>5)         S-282       .53       .67       .68       6.28       2.50       4.34       .41       .00       00       11.63       4.00       6.29       9.79(>5)         S-292       .53       .67       .68       6.28       2.55       4.41       .00       00       15.41       6.28(>3)       8.78(>5)       13.12(>10         S-30       .01       .06       .07       2.79       1.77       3.39       1.08       0.1       6.28(>3)       8.78(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       5.16       7.95(>3)       <	S-124	10,	.16	.15	.84	1.24	1.02	- 69	.14	8.	4.25	1.24	2.26	3.10	3.94
S-282       .01       .01       .01       .03       4.00       2.29       3.50       1.70       .09       .00       11.63       4.00       6.29       9.79(>5)       13.12(>10         S-292       .53       .67       .68       6.28       2.50       4.34       .41       .00       00       11.63       4.00       6.28(>3)       8.78(>5)       13.12(>10         S-292       .53       .67       .68       6.28       2.50       4.34       .41       .00       00       15.41       6.28(>3)       8.78(>5)       13.12(>10         S-30       .01       .06       .07       2.79       1.77       3.39       1.08       .01       .00       9.18       3.361       6.28(>3)       8.4(>3)         S-33       .10       .05       .31       1.33       1.27       2.10       .18       .00       .01       7.63       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.55       3.71       4.62       3.55       3.71       4.62       3.55       3.71       4.62       3.58       5	S-13	. 65	. 02	.30	2.10	1.50	2.60	.40	00.	<u>.</u>	7.57	2.60	4.10	6.20	6.90
5-29       .53       .67       .68       6.28       2.50       4.34       .41       .00       .00       15.41       6.28(>3)       8.78(>5)       13.12(>10         5-29Z       .01       .06       .07       2.79       1.77       3.39       1.08       .01       .00       9.18       3.39       5.16       7.95(>3)       8.78(>5)       13.12(>10         5-30       .01       .06       .07       2.79       1.77       3.39       1.08       .01       .00       9.18       3.351       6.84(>3)       8.78(>5)       13.12(>10       13.12(>10       13.12(>10       13.12(>10       13.12(>10       13.12(>10       13.12(>10       14.10       16       14.10       16       14.10       16       14.10       16       14.10       16       14.10       16       14.10       16       14.10       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       17       16       17       16       17       13       17       14       17       16       16       16       16       16       16       16       16	S-28Z	-01	. 01	.03	4.00	2.29	3.50	1.70	60.	00.	11.63	4.00	6.29	9.79(>5)	11.58(>10)
S-29Z       .01       .06       .07       2.79       1.77       3.39       1.08       .01       .00       9.16       7.95(>3)         S-30       .01       .29       .01       2.60       3.61       .63       .48       .00       .00       7.63       3.61       6.84(>3)         S-30       .01       .29       .01       2.60       3.61       .63       .48       .00       .00       7.63       3.61       6.84(>3)         S-33       .10       .05       .31       1.33       1.27       2.10       .18       .00       .00       7.63       3.55         S-34       .10       .05       .31       1.33       1.27       2.10       .18       .00       .00       7.63       3.55         S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.26       .96       .79       .00       .00       8.66       2.62       3.71       4.68         S-37       .30       .04       .38       1.25       2.54       .25       01       .00       5.66       2.65       3.71       4.62         S-37       .00       .00       .00       .00       .00       .00       .	S-29	.53	. 67	. 68	6.28	2.50	4.34	-41	8.	°.	15.41	6.28(>3)	8.78(>5)	13.12(>10	14 47 (>25)
S-30       .01       .29       .01       2.60       3.61       .63       .48       .00       .00       7.63       3.61       6.24(>3)         S-33       .10       .05       .31       1.33       1.27       2.10       .18       .00       .00       5.34       2.10       3.37       4.70         S-34       .10       .05       .31       1.33       1.27       2.10       .18       .00       .00       5.34       2.10       3.55         S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .96       .79       .00       .00       4.84       1.66       2.62       3.55         S-36       .30       .04       .38       1.25       2.54       .25       .01       .00       5.66       2.62       3.71       4.62         S-37A       .00       .00       .26       .01       .06       .00       5.55       2.65       3.71       4.62         S-37A       .00       .00       .06       .00       5.55       2.65       3.71       4.62         S-37B       .04       .16       1.05       1.10       1.82       .279       1.04       5.13	S-29Z	10.	.06	.07	2.79	1.77	Э.39	1.08	10.	00.	9.18	3.39	5.16	7.95(>3)	9.10(>3)
S-33       .10       .05       .31       1.33       1.27       2.10       .18       .00       .00       5.34       2.10       3.37       4.70         S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .96       .79       .00       .00       4.84       1.66       2.62       3.55         S-36       .30       .04       .38       .89       1.25       2.54       .25       .01       .00       5.66       2.54       3.79       4.68         S-37A       .00       .04       .38       9       1.25       2.54       .25       .01       .00       5.56       3.71       4.68         S-37A       .00       .00       .27       .10       1.25       2.54       .25       .01       .00       5.165       3.71       4.62         S-37B       .00       .00       .01       .35       .37       1.05       1.10       1.82       .28       .12       .01       4.79       1.82       2.92       3.88         S-38       .01       .35       .37       1.05       1.16       1.09       1.25       2.77       0.01       4.04       5.13       5.13      <	S-30	-01	. 29	1	2.60	3.61	. 63	.48	°.	00.	7.63	3.61	6.21(>3)	6.84(>3)	7.33(>3)
S-34       .09       .27       .14       .93       1.66       .96       .79       .00       .00       4.84       1.66       2.62       3.55         S-36       .30       .04       .38       .89       1.25       2.54       .25       .01       .00       5.66       2.54       3.79       4.68         S-37A       .00       .00       .25       .91       .06       .00       5.55       2.65       3.71       4.62         S-37B       .00       .00       .22       .65       1.06       .00       5.55       2.65       3.71       4.62         S-37B       .04       .16       .30       .96       1.10       1.82       .28       .12       .01       4.79       1.82       2.92       3.88         S-37B       .01       .35       .37       1.05       1.16       1.99       1.25       2.779       0.00       8.07       2.92       3.88         S-38       .01       .35       .37       1.05       1.16       1.09       1.25       2.779       0.04       5.13         S-39       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2	S-33	110	. 05	.31	1.33	1.27	2.10	.18	00.	00.	5.34	2.10	3.37	4.70	5.19
S-36       .30       .04       .38       .89       1.25       2.54       .25       .01       .00       5.66       2.54       3.79       4.68         S-37A       .00       .00       .22       .65       1.06       .00       5.55       2.65       3.71       4.62         S-37B       .00       .00       .22       .65       1.06       .01       4.79       1.82       3.88         S-37B       .04       .16       .30       .96       1.10       1.82       .28       .12       .01       4.79       1.82       3.88         S-37B       .01       .35       .37       1.05       1.16       1.09       1.25       2.79       .00       8.07       2.92       3.88         S-38       .01       .35       .37       1.05       1.16       1.09       1.25       2.79       00       8.07       2.92       4.04       5.13         S-39       .00       .12       .17       .55       .89       .58       1.48       2.67       .00       6.46       2.67       4.15       4.73	S-34	60.	.27	.14	.93	1.66	.96	.79	00.	00.	4.84	1.66	2.62	3,55	48
S-37A     .00     .00     .22     .65     1.06     .00     5.55     2.65     3.71     4.62       S-37B     .04     .16     .30     .96     1.10     1.82     .28     .12     .01     4.79     1.82     2.92     3.88       S-37B     .04     .16     .30     .96     1.10     1.82     .28     .12     .01     4.79     1.82     2.92     3.88       S-38     .01     .35     .37     1.05     1.16     1.09     1.25     2.79     .00     8.07     2.79     4.04     5.13       S-39     .00     .12     .17     .55     .89     .58     1.48     2.67     .00     6.46     2.67     4.15     4.73	S-36	.30	.04	.38	.89	1.25	2.54	. 25	.01	00.	5.66	2.54	3.79	4.68	5.31
S-37B     .04     .16     .30     .96     1.10     1.82     .28     .12     .01     4.79     1.82     2.92     3.88       S-38     .01     .35     .37     1.05     1.16     1.09     1.25     2.79     .00     8.07     2.79     4.04     5.13       S-39     .00     .12     .17     .55     .89     .58     1.48     2.67     .00     6.46     2.67     4.15     4.73	S-37A	00,	0	.22	- 65	1.06	2.65	.91	.06	00.	5.55	2.65	3.71	4.62	5.49
S-3801 .35 .37 1.05 1.16 1.09 1.25 2.79 .00 8.07 2.79 4.04 5.13 S-39 .00 .12 .17 .55 .89 .58 1.48 2.67 .00 6.46 2.67 4.15 4.73	S-37B	.04	.16		.96	1.10	1.82	.28	.12	5.	4.79	1.82	2.92	3.88	4.46
S-39 . 00 .12 .17 .55 .89 .58 1.48 2.67 .00 6.46 2.67 4.15 4.73	S-38	10.	.35	.37	1.05	1.16	1.09	1.25	2.79	00.	8.07	2.79	4.04	5.13	7.34
	2-39	00 -	.12	.17	\$ 5 7	. 89	.58	1.48	2.67	<u>.</u>	6.46	2.67	4.15	4.73	6.17
	8-9	00-	. 08	. 05	.53	1.83	1.57	1.00	.02	0	5.08	1.83	3.40	4.40	4.98

• -

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Event in the Broward County Subbasin (August 2-5, 1995). **TABLE 3-30.** 

STIONS	8/02	5078	8/04	8/05	STORM	STORM DURA	TION (RETUR	UN PERIOD)
		;	5	2	(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX
BONAVENTURE	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	1	1		
CORAL SPRINGS	.12	68.	2.69	.41	4.11	2.69	3.58	3.99
FT LAUD FS	.03	1.15	3.15	.60	4.93	3.15	4.30	06.4
FTL	.20	1.21	4.03	.86	6.30	4.03	5.24	6.10
G56	. 04	1.94	3.02	1.48	6.48	3.02	4.96	6.44
HOLLYWOOD	.11	.12	4.89	06.	6.02	4.89	5.79	5.91
S-124	.17	1.04	1.81	.15	3.17	1.81	2.85	3.02
S-13	00 -	1.10	3.88	1.00	5.98	3.88	4.98	5.98
S-28Z	.01	. 82	2.30	.76	3.89	2.30	3.12	3.88
S-29	-1.00	-1.00	2.36	.45	2.81M	2.36M	ı	t
S-292	- 05	.72	2.80	.95	4.52	2.80	3.75	4.47
S-30	. 05	.56	.76	.65	2.02	0.76	1.41	1.97
G-33	.18	1.30	5.45	1.00	7.93	5.45	6.75	7.75
G-34	E0.	. 60	.85	.20	1.68	0.85	1.45	1.65
S-36	.24	1.44	3.54	1.50	6.72	3.54	5.04	6.48
S-37A	.12	.83	3.01	1.98	5.94	3.01	4.99	5.82
S-37B	. 25	1.28	2.54	1.27	5.34	2.54	3.82	5.09
S-38	-16	1.47	3.89	. 60	6.12	3,89	5.36	5.96
S-39	.07	.89	2.91	с <b>н</b> ,	4.30	2.91	3.80	4.23
S-9	00.	.08	- 80	. 25	1.13	0.80	1.05	1.13

NOIS: 1) NO HETURD PENDOS GREATER THAN 3 YEARS. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

-

TABLE 3-31.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the
	Broward County Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995).

STATIONS	5 ( ) S	1010	30/0	2010	STORM	STORM DURAT	TION (RETUR	UN PERIOD)
		#7/0	C7 / O	07/0	(ii)	MAX MAX	Z - LAY MAX	MAX MAX
BONAVENTURE	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	ı	, ,	,	
CORAL SPRINGS	.52	5.67	1.00	• 06	7.25	5.67(>3)	6.67(>3)	7.19(>3)
FT LAUD FS	.21	33.33	1.07	8.	4.61	3.33	4.40	4.61
FTL	1.11	2.68	1.67	.19	5.65	2.68	4.35	5.46
G-56	.49	4.81	1.44	8.	6.74	4.81	6.25	6.74
HOLLYWOOD	1.08	3.32	3.22	1.75	9.37	3.32	6.54	8.29(>3)
S-124	.93	4.64	1.41	.20	7.18	4.64	6.05(>3)	6.98(>3)
S-13	.25	3.50	1.55	.24	5.54	3.50	5.05	5.30
S-28Z	.50	1.53	.86	.43	3.32	1.53	2.39	2.89
s-29	11.	1.78	2.54	1.94	6.37	2.54	4.48	6.26
S-29Z	.13	2.00	.86	.09	3.08	2.00	2.86	2.99
S-30	.22	3.91	1.74	. 02	5.89	3.91	5.65(>3)	5.87
S-33	.85	2.69	1.14	. 02	4.70	2.69	3.83	4.68
S-34	.22	6.64	1.57	-01	8.44	6.64(>5)	8.21(>10)	8.43(>5)
S-36	.78	2.92	1.73	.20	5.63	2.92	4.65	5.43
S-37A	60.	1.22	1.32	.60	3.23	1.32	2.54	3.14
S-37B	1.05	4.33	1.61	.10	7.08	4.32	5.93	6.98
S-38	.90	5.96	1.28	.25	8.39	5.96(>3)	7.24(>3)	8.14(>3)
S-39	.14	8.08	1.10	. 05	9.37	8.08(>5)	9.18(>5)	9.32(>5)
S-9	.24	4.61	1.70	- 30	6.85	4.61(>3)	6.31(>5)	6.61(>3)
lote: 1) Return Periods sho	ied ui um	ontheric	- Ci OTE	0 (C 0000	town Duration			

Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. R Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Broward County Area (October 14-19, 1995). **TABLE 3-32.** 

							STORM	STORM I	DURATION	(RETURN PI	ERIOD)
SNOTIBLE	<b>7</b> 1/01	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	3-DAY	S-DAY
							(in)	MAX	MAX	MAX	MAX
BONAVENTURE	£3	4 L	46	2	00 -	76					
2001000 180VJ		•		•			<b>71</b> .0	06.4	4.44	06.2	4.66
COMPLEX PRINCS	P.0.	- 62	. 63	.27	. 63	. 06	2.21	0.63	1.25	1.53	2.21
FT LAUD FS	. 80	.90	.50	.63	1.37	E0.	4.23	1.37	2.00	2.50	4.20
FTL	£6.	1.38	.96	1.25	2.41	.32	7.25	2.41	3.66	4.62	6.93
G-56	.04	1.13	2.12	1.00	1.25	.24	5.78	2.12	3.25	4.37	5 74
HOLLYWOOD	1.05	1.21	.63	1.72	2.37	.03	1.01	2.37	4.09	4.72	98 9
S-124	.66	.51	.15	.29	1.63	. 07	3.31	1.63	1.92	2.07	40.00
S-13	1.00	1.10	1.25	1.15	2.15	- 05	6.70	2.15	3,30	4.55	5.65
S-282	.12	.13	.22	-09	.02	10.	0.59	0.22	0.35	0.47	
S-29	.13	1.39	.29	.94	1.73	.15	4.63	1.73	2.67	2.96	4 50
S-29Z	. 22	1.52	.11	1.29	3.94	. 02	7.10	94	5.23	4 C - 2	
S-30	.52	1.47	1.26	.43	. 65	.16	4.49	1.47		- 40 - 40 - 40	
S-33	.50	.91	.48	.94	1.32	.28	4.43	1.32	2.26	47.2	- 4 - 1
S-34	.32	1.25	.76	.47	.40	1.45	4.65	1.45	2.01	2.48	
S-36	.17	1.15	1.02	.90	2.32	.26	5.82	2.32	3.22	4.24	
S-37A	. 03	1.22	1.16	3.86	1.57	. 44	8.28	3.86	1.4. 1.4.	6.59	 
S-37B	10.	1.51	1.59	2.08	3.18	.59	8.96	3.18	5.26	6.85	
S-38	00.	1.52	.34	1.09	2.85	.71	6.51	2.85	3.94	4.65	6.53
S-39	.23	.63	1.02	.19	.57	. 05	2.69	1.02	1.65	1.88	2.64
g-9	.62	1.90	.68	.35	.68	. 05	4.28	1.90	2.58	3.20	4.23
Note: 1) No Return Perioc	ds greater t	ihan 3 yea	trs. 2) St	orm Durat	tion and \$	Storm Tota	s may inclu	de missing dat	a identified F	M" too	

nineu by M rag. Į. 5 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# Dade County Subbasin.

Measured rainfall in the Dade County subbasin during Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26) and Hurricane Opal (October 5-7) was relatively low in comparison to other affected basins, and is not included in the analysis in this subbasin section.

. . .

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-33), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 9.18 to 16.21 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 10.27 inches. The majority of this rainfall amount fell from June 21-24. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 2.92 inches (S-27) to 6.28 inches (S-29). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 4.97 to 11.49 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 5.45 to 13.76 inches. Maximum rainfall amounts measured over a five day period ranged from 7.56 to 15.93 inches. Almost all of the rainfall stations had measured amounts for the 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day durations that had return periodsof 3, 5, and 10 years. The stations located in Hialeah and Tamiami Canal had measured rainfall amounts with associated recurrence intervals of 25 and 100 years.

During Hurricane Erin (August 2-5), the rainfall totals from the 28 measuring stations in the Dade County subbasin ranged from 1.53 to 5.30 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 3.30 inches (Table 3-34). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.68 inches (CHEKIKA EVER) to 3.48 inches (N DADE). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.11 to 4.44 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.50 to 5.27 inches. There were no observed rainfall amounts which were higher than normal.

Rainfall amounts recorded at measuring stations during the October 14-19 storm event, ranged from 0.59 to 7.94 inches, and the 6-day basin wide average was 4.95 inches (Table 3-35). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.22 inches (S-28Z) to 3.94 inches (S-29Z). Over the course of this storm event the maximum 5-day duration resulted in a total of 7.74 inches at the S-331 station. This amount was the only measured value which was higher than normal and had a return period of 3 years. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Dade County Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-33.** 

										STORM	STORM	DURATION	(RETURN PERIC	(QO)	
STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY Max	3-DAY Max	5-DAY Max	
															Т
CHEKIKA EVER	.24	.06	.01	3.70	3.52	2.11	.14	.00	00.	9.78	3.70	7.22(>5)	9.33(>10)	9.48(>10)	
HIALEAH W	.05	.03	.10	4.37	7.12	2.27	.63	.24	<u>0</u>	14.81	7.12(>10)	11.49(>50)	13.76(>100)	14.63(>100)	
HOMESTEAD AFB	-1.00	.01	60.	3.67	4.98	1.51	- 06	.00	.02	10.34M	4.98M	8.65M(>5)	10.16M(>10)	10.31M(>5)	
HOMESTEAD FS	0.	.10	.35	2.23	4.26	1.52	00-	0	8.	8.46	4.26	6.49(>3)	8.01(>3)	8.46(>3)	
MIAMI BEACH	.07	. 20	.46	3.22	3.21	.70	.20	00.	00.	8.06	3.22	6.43	7.13	62.7	
MIAMI FS	. 25	.03	0.	4.62	3.65	2.18	5.44	.04	80.	16.21	5.44(>3)	8.27(>5)	11.27(>10)	15.93(>50)	
MIAVI INTL	.00	8.	.01	4.88	2.78	1.34	1.65	.02	00.	10.68	4.88	7.66(>3)	9.00(>5)	10.67(>5)	
N DADE	.20	.31	- 08	3.35	2.29	2.54	1.51	.02	00.	10.30	3.35	5.64	8.18(>3)	(2<) 77.6	
PERRINE	.00	.13	.31	5.11	4.39	2.29	-04	.05	00.	12.32	5.11(>3)	9.50(>10)	11.79(>25)	12.23(>10)	
s-123	.13	. 05	.27	3.59	2.13	1.46	1.09	.01	00.	8.73	3.59	5.72	7.18	8 54 (>3)	
S-174	00.	.18	. 67	2.29	4.83	1.48	.01	.21	.00	9.67	4.83(>3)	7.12(>5)	8.60(>5)	9.45(>5)	
s-177	00-	.24	.23	2.33	4.64	.16	00.	.11	00.	7.71	4.64	6.97(>3)	7.20(>3)	7.60	
S-18C	0.	.64	.40	1.58	3.39	.48	.00	0.	00.	6.49	3.39	4.97	5.45	6.49	
S-20F	10.	.98	.56	3.25	4.61	1.19	8.	.07	00.	10.67	4.61	7.86(>5)	9,05(>5)	10.59(>5)	
S-20G	00,	.37	.44	2.65	4.42	1.09	5.	- 01	00.	8.99	4.42	7.07(>3)	8.16(>3)	8.97(>3)	
S-21	.17	10	34	2.49	3.27	1.36	00.	10.	.00	7.74	3.27	5.76	7.12	7.50	
S-21A	.00	.15	74	2.24	3.45	1.23	00-	.02	00.	7.83	3.45	5.69	6,92	7.81	
S-26	.01	10	60-	3.64	2.77	.73	66.	00.	.00	8.53	3.84	6.61	7.34	8.42(>3)	
S-27	.48	2.92	.19	2.90	2.45	.79	. 63	00.	.00	10.36	2.92	5.35	6.14	9.25(>3)	
S-28Z	10,		.03	4.00	2.29	3.50	1.70	60.	00.	11.63	4.00	6.29	9.79(>5)	11.58(>10)	
- 12 - 12 - 12	5.	. 67	.68	6.28	2.50	4.34	.41	00.	00.	15.41	6.28(>3)	8.78(>5)	13.12(>10)	14.47(>25)	
Z6Z-S	-01	.06	.07	2.79	1.77	9.39	1.08	5.	00.	9.18	3.39	5.16	7.95(>3)	9.10(>3)	
S-30	.01	. 29	- 10	2.60	3.61	. 63	.48	0.	<u>.</u>	7.63	3.61	6.21(>3)	6.84(>3)	7.33(>3)	
S-331	.11	00.	.15	4.00	3.21	2.31	.27	.03	<u>.</u>	10.08	4.00	7.21(>5)	9.52(>10)	9.94(>5)	
S-332	.01	.12	.12	2.44	5.64	- 90	5.	.19	00.	9.43	5.64(>5)	8,08(>5)	8.98(>5)	9.22(>5)	
S-338	.74	60.	.06	4.99	3.81	1.59	.31	0	<u>.</u>	11.59	4.99(>3)	8.80(>5)	10.39(>10)	10.76(>100)	
TAMIAMI	.18	.13	.18	4.73	3.97	2.68	. 65	ò	00,	12.59	4.73	8.70(>5)	11.38(>10)	12.21(10)	
TAMIAMI CANAL	.03	5	00.	5.41	3.33	2.59	1.03	.02	.01	12.46	5.41(>5)	8.74(>10)	11.33(>25)	12.38(>10)	
Inter 1) Deturn Doringe e	house is a				2	4									1

wee: 1) Return Petrods shown in parentnesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00"

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Dade County Area (August 2-5, 1995). **TABLE 3-34.** 

					STORM	STORM DURA	TION (RETUR	UN PERIOD)
TATIONS	8/02	8/03	8/04	8/05	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2 - DAY Max	3 - DAY Max
HEKIKA EVER	. 03	65.	.43	.68	1.53	0.68	11.1	1.50
IALEAH W	.04	.44	1.58	.55	2.61	1.58	2.13	2.57
OMESTEAD AFB	00.	.56	1.37	1.92	3.85	1.92	3.29	3.85
OMESTEAD FS	00.	.20	1.19	1.59	2.98	1.59	2.78	2.98
IAMI BEACH	-1.00	.02	2.39	.58	2.99M	2.39M	2.97M	2.99M
IAMI FS	.06	.69	1.05	. 69	2.49	1.05	1.74	2.43
IAMI INTL	.02	.36	1.11	.71	2.20	11.1	1.82	2.18
DADE	.03	.83	3.48	-96	5.30	3.48	4.44	5.27
errine	8.	.61	1.65	1.50	3.76	1.65	3.15	3.76
-123	.02	.46	1.56	2.84	4.88	2.84	4.40	4.86
-174	<del>г</del> .	.48	66.	.94	2.42	0.99	1.93	2.41
-177	.06	.19	1.59	. 61	2.45	1.59	2.20	2.39
-18C	. 05	.08	1.91	67.	2.53	1.91	2.40	2.48
-2015	.01	.42	1.14	2.65	4.22	2.65	3.79	4.21
-20G	.03	.30	1.59	2.04	3.96	2.04	3.63	3.93
-21	.10	.20	2.06	2.24	4.60	2.24	4.30	4.50
-21 <b>A</b>	.04	.46	1.17	1.94	3.61	1.94	3.11	3.57
-26	.02	.87	1.50	1.19	3.58	1.50	2.69	3.56
-27	.06	.82	3.26	.66	4.80	3.26	4.08	4.74
-282	<b>1</b> 0.	. 82	2.30	.76	3.89	2.30	3.12	3.88
-29	-1.00	-1.00	2.36	.45	2.81M	2.36M	ı	ı
-292	. 05	. 72	2.80	.95	4.52	2.80	3.75	4.47
-30	.05	.56	.76	. 65	2.02	0.76	1.41	1.97
-331	.02	.66	.97	1.25	2.90	1.25	2.22	2.88
-332	.04	. 28	1.43	.67	2.42	1.43	2.10	2.38
-338	.01	.41	1.35	.86	2.63	1.35	2.21	2.62
AMIAMI	.00	.63	2.49	1.07	4.19	2.49	3.56	4.19
AMTANT CANAL	5	č	č	6	•			

Note: 1) No Return Periods greater than 3 years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Dade County Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995). **TABLE 3-35.** 

	1						STORM	STORM D	URATION	(RETURN PE	RIOD)
SNOTINES	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY Max	2-DAY Max	3-DAY Max	5-DAY Way
CHEKIKA EVER	14	70 F				, t					
UTALVAV W					1	00.1-	MOC. 7	1.U4M	1.51M	I.95M	ı
	0 I 0 I	2.30	1.24	1.31	<b>9</b> M	. 03	6.70	2.90	4.14	5.45	6.67
HOMESTEAD AFB	.52	-1.00	.01	.21	1.45	.74	Z.93M	1.45M	2.19M	4	r
HOMESTEAD FS	.49	1.00	00.	1.13	1.08	.13	3.83	1.13	2.21	2.34	3.70
MIAMI BEACH	.11	1.18	0	. 66	.76	.16	2.87	1.18	1.42	1.84	2.76
NIAMI FS	.50	2.00	.57	1.57	.78	. 05	5.47	2.00	2.57	4.14	5.42
MIAMI INTL	.88	1.93	.33	1.74	1.36	. 02	6.26	1.93	3.10	4.00	6.24
N DADE	.28	1.91	-55	1.07	2.91	.10	6,82	2.91	3.98	4 53	6.72
PERRINE	.71	2.90	.17	2.02	1.05	. 05	6.90	2.90	3.61	5.09	6.85
S-123	.31	3.74	.02	1.79	1.35	.18	7.39	3.74	4.05	5.55	7.21
S-174	.55	1.74	.34	1.03	2.48	.07	6.21	2.48	3.51	л. 85	6 14
S-177	.70	1.74	.03	.81	2.46	. 02	5.76	2.46	3.27	9-30 1	5.74
S-18C	.24	2.56	.03	1.15	1.33	.03	5.34	2.56	2.80	3.74	
S-20F	.22	1.75	.06	.78	.73	.58	4.12	1.75	1.97	2.59	0.6
8-200	- 35	1.45	.02	.48	.76	1.09	4.15	1.45	1.85	2.33	08.6
5-21	.20	1.48	90.	.01	1.55	.06	3.36	1.55	1.68	1.74	3.30
S-21A	. 04	1.35	.04	00	1.29	1.53	4.25	1.53	2.82	2.82	10.4
S-26	.34	1.85	. 69	1.23	1.50	.05	5.66	1.85	2.73	3.77	19.5
S-27	.56	2.02	.46	.57	1.14	.03	4.78	2.02	2.58	3.05	4.75
S-28Z	.12	.13	.22	60.	.02	.01	0 59	0.22	0.35	0.47	0.58
S-29	.13	1.39	.29	46.	1.73	.15	4.63	1.73	2.67	2.96	4.50
267-2	. 22	1.52	:	1.29	96°E	.02	7.10	3.94	5.23	5.34	7.08
S-30	.52	1.47	1.26	.43	. 65	.16	4.49	1.47	2.73	3.25	4.33
TEE S	1.14	1.25	.61	1.53	3.21	.20	7.94	3.21	4.74	5.35	7.74(>3)
S-332	.54	1.31	.22	.97	2.38	.04	5.46	2.38	3.35	3.57	5.42
S-338	80.	.26	.68	.89	.71	.82	3.44	0.89	1.60	2.42	3.36
TAMIAMI	.37	2.67	.29	1.44	.61	.15	5.53	2.67	3.04	4.40	
TAMIAMI CANAL	.40	.86	2.21	.50	.04	.02	4.03	2.21	3.07	3.57	4.01
Note: 1) Return Periods ( 3) Mission Values on a pa	shown in pa	renthesis	are in yea	ars. 2) St	om Dura	tion and S	torm Totals n	nay include mi	ssing data id	lentified by "M"	tag.
or initiating values on a pa	racular day	are identi	fied by "-1	3							,
## CALOOSAHATCHEE SUBBASIN

The Caloosahatchee subbasin covers the portions of Lee, Hendry, Glades and Southern Charlotte Counties that surround the Caloosahatchee River flowing from Lake Okeechobee to the Gulf of Mexico. Measured rainfall in this area during Hurricanes Erin (August 2-5) and Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor in comparison to other basins, and an analysis of these events is not presented for this subbasin.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-36), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 2.86 to 6.91 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 4.65 inches. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.67 inches (CV-5) to 2.84 inches (S-79). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.05 to 3.22 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.37 to 3.96 inches. There were no stations which measured heavier than normal amounts of rainfall over the course of one to five days.

During Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), rainfall totals from the 10 measuring stations ranged from 2.85 to 10.01 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 5.91 inches (Table 3-37). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.12 inches (S-78) to 5.55 inches (FT MYERS). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.99 to 7.90 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.76 to 9.78 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at five rainfall measuring stations with the rainfall amounts having a recurrence interval of at least 3, 5, or 10 years.

The daily point rainfall resulting from the October 14-19 storm event, ranged from 1.73 to 7.67 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 4.65 inches (Table 3-38). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.04 inches (S-79) to 4.86 inches (BONITA SPRINGS). The 2-day maximum ranged from 1.21 to 5.52 inches, the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.33 to 6.57 inches, and 1.73 to 7.47 inches for the 5-day maximum. There were several extreme rainfall amounts associated with the individual stations, or the 1, 2, 3, and 5-day durations with associated return periods ranging from 3 to 5 years.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Caloosahatchee Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-36.** 

PERIOD)										STORM	STORM DURI	VTION (RETU	NEL
STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2 - DAY Max	3-DAY Max
ARCHBOLD	00.	.08	.22	80.	06	60	2 4 K	÷	00				
BONITA SPRINGS	12.1									10.0	0.8.7	3.06	3.96
		141		2	. 44	7.7	<b>4</b> 1.7	. 28	00	6.02	2.14	2.86	3.30
CURRECKEW HO	. 93	. 61	1.20	.07	-94	.54	2.37	. 25	0	6.91	2.37	2.91	908 10
CV-5	.09	06.	.48	13	5.	.19	• 67	.38	TT.	2.86	0.67	1 05	
<b>FT MYERS</b>	.06	.07	11.	.01	.66	.45	2.70	. 03	00,	4.09	0.00		
G-136	00.	1.48	.04	.57	2.65	39	15	85			2 4 C	n ( 	10.0
IMMOKALEE	-1.00	1.16	.97	.14	. 60	00	-1-00	-1.00		0.00 0.00			10.0
S-77	°.	. 83	.21	.22	1.55	.50	. 28	00.		4 19 e	1 55 1 55	2 JE	M/7.7
S-78	.21	2.76	.10	.17	.19	16	. 79	5	80.	4.96	36.6		
S-79	00-	- 08	.27	.42	.04	.06	2.84	.05	10.	3.77	2 - 94 2 - 94	2.90	50.0

missing data identified by "M" tag. e may

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

.

STATIONS 8/23 8/24 8/25 8/26 TOTAL 1-DAY Low						Madma		NOTE NOTE	(UV) FOAG
ARCHBOLD   .00   .21   3.85   1.10   5.16   3.85(>3)   4.95     BONITA SPRINGS   .59   .32   5.52   1.71   8.14   5.52(>5)   7.23(>5)     CORKSCREW HQ   1.13   3.75   4.45   .68   10.01   4.45(>3)   8.20(>10)     CORKSCREW HQ   1.13   3.75   4.45   .68   10.01   4.45(>3)   8.20(>10)     CV-5   .09   1.46   .60   .70   2.85   1.46   2.06     CV-5   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.55(>5)   7.90(>5)     CV-5   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.55(>5)   7.90(>5)     CV-5   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.56(>5)   7.90(>5)     CV-5   .00   1.88   5.55   2.03   4.86   2.40   4.43     IMMOKALER   1.15   3.40   1.52   1.00   6.07M   3.40M   4.92M     S-77   .08   1.50   1.25   8.7   3.40   4.92M  <	STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY	3-DAY MAX
BONITA SPRINGS   .59   .32   5.52   1.71   8.14   5.52(>5)   7.23(>5)     CORKSCREW HQ   1.13   3.75   4.45   .68   10.01   4.45(>3)   8.20(>10)     CV-5   .09   1.46   .60   .70   2.85   1.46   2.06     FT MYERS   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.55(>5)   7.90(>5)     G-136   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.55(>5)   7.90(>5)     G-136   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.55(>5)   7.90(>5)     G-136   .00   2.40   2.03   .43   4.86   2.40   4.43     IMMOKALEE   1.15   3.40   1.52   -1.00   6.07M   3.40M   4.92M     IMMOKALEE   1.15   3.40   1.52   1.25   .83   3.66   1.12   2.75     S-77   .08   1.25   .83   3.66   1.12   1.99   1.99     S-78   .01   1.03   .87   1.12   3.40   1.19	ARCHBOLD	00.	.21	3.85	1.10	5.16	3.85(>3)	4.95	5.16
CORKSCREW HQ   1.13   3.75   4.45   .68   10.01   4.45(>3)   8.20(>10)     CV-5   .09   1.46   .60   .70   2.85   1.46   2.06     FT MYERS   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.55(>5)   7.90(>5)     G-136   .00   1.88   5.55   2.35   9.78   5.55(>5)   7.90(>5)     G-136   .00   2.40   2.03   .43   4.86   2.40   4.43     INMOKALEE   1.15   3.40   1.52   1.00   6.07M   3.40M   4.92M     S-77   .08   1.55   .83   3.66   1.52   1.99     S-78   .01   1.25   .83   3.66   1.12   1.99     S-78   .09   1.12   1.12   1.12   1.12   1.99     S-79   .01   1.03   .87   1.12   1.99   1.99	BONITA SPRINGS	-59	.32	5.52	1.71	8.14	5.52(>5)	7.23(>5)	7.55(>3)
CV-5     .09     1.46     .60     .70     2.85     1.46     2.06       FT MYERS     .00     1.88     5.55     2.35     9.78     5.55(>5)     7.90(>5)       G-136     .00     1.88     5.55     2.35     9.78     5.55(>5)     7.90(>5)       G-136     .00     2.40     2.03     .43     4.86     2.40     4.43       INMOXALEE     1.15     3.40     1.52     1.00     6.07M     3.40M     4.92M       S-77     .08     1.50     1.25     .83     3.66     1.50     2.75       S-78     .01     1.03     .87     1.12     3.40     2.75       S-78     .03     .04     1.25     .83     3.66     1.12     1.99       S-78     .03     .03     .03     .03     .03     1.99	CORKSCREW HQ	1.13	3.75	4.45	. 68	10.01	4.45(>3)	8.20(>10)	9.33(>10)
FT MYERS     .00     1.88     5.55     2.35     9.78     5.55(>5)     7.90(>5)       G-136     .00     2.40     2.03     .43     4.86     2.40     4.43       INMOKALES     1.15     3.40     1.52     -1.00     6.07M     3.40M     4.92M       S-77     .08     1.55     .83     3.66     1.50     2.75       S-78     .03     .03     1.25     .83     3.66     1.50     2.75       S-78     .08     1.50     1.25     .83     3.66     1.12     1.99       S-78     .08     1.12     3.40     1.12     1.99     1.99	CV-5	60 <sup>-</sup>	1.46	.60	.70	2,85	1,46	2.06	2.76
G-136     .00     2.40     2.03     .43     4.86     2.40     4.43       INMONALEE     1.15     3.40     1.52     -1.00     6.07M     3.40M     4.92M       S-77     .08     1.50     1.25     .83     3.66     1.50     2.75       S-78     .47     1.03     .87     1.12     3.40     4.92M       S-78     .08     1.50     1.25     .83     3.66     1.50     2.75       S-78     .47     1.03     .87     1.12     3.49     1.12     1.99       S-79     .03     2.02     2.02     2.32     5.02     1.19     1.99	FT MYERS	00-	1.88	5.55	2.35	9.78	5.55(>5)	7.90(>5)	9.78(>10)
INMONALER     1.15     3.40     1.52     -1.00     6.07M     3.40M     4.92M       S-77     .08     1.50     1.25     .83     3.66     1.50     2.75       S-78     .47     1.03     .87     1.112     3.49     1.12       S-78     .47     1.03     .87     1.112     3.49     1.12       S-78     .47     1.03     .87     1.112     3.49     1.122       S-78     .47     1.03     .87     1.122     3.49     1.122     1.99       S-79     .40     .57     .57     .51     1.99     .51	G-136	00 -	2.40	2.03	.43	4.86	2.40	4.43	4.86
S-77 .08 1.50 1.25 .83 3.66 1.50 2.75   S-78 .47 1.03 .87 1.12 3.49 1.12 1.99   S-79 .77 .87 1.12 3.49 1.12 1.99   S-79 .77 .75 .75 .47 .103 .87 1.12 3.49 1.12 1.99   S-79 .77 .75 .75 .75 .75 .75 .75	IMMOKALEE	1.15	3.40	1.52	-1.00	6.07M	3.40%	4.92M	6.07M(>3)
S-78     .47     1.03     .87     1.12     3.49     1.12     1.99       S-70     01     66     02     22     6.00     2.35     4.05     1.15	S-77	. 08	1.50	1.25	.83	3.66	1.50	2.75	3.58
	S-78	.47	1.03	.87	1.12	3.49	1.12	1.99	3.02
	S-79	.01	.66	2.08	2.33	5.08	2.33	4.41	5.07

Note: 1) Herum Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

•

57

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Caloosahatchee Area (October 14-19, 1995). **TABLE 3-38.** 

							STORM	STORM DUF	LATION (F	LETURN PERI	(DD)
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY MAX	2-DAY Max	3-DAY MAX	5-DAY Max
ARCHBOLD	60	8	00	01 17	89 C	5					
BONITA SPRINGS	. 24	4.86	.66	20.1				4 00 V L	0.00 T T022	2.07	4.13
CORKSCREW HO	1.05	4.15	.17	202		א ע ייי ייי		(CA)00.#	(F<)70.5	70.0	7.43
CV-5	00.	2.81	3	00.	.76	3 5	82.5 82		(r<) n7.0		6 G
PT NYERS	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	10	, , , ,	4 5 1 4	1014	10.2	n00
G-136	.58	1.28	1.46	3.49	. 66	0	7.47	3.49	4.95(23)	(23(23)	(Ex) 44 - 4
IMMORALEE	-1.00	-1.00	. 65	.07	1.64	.10	2.46M	1.64M	1.74W	10.104.0	
S-77	.51	2.97	00.	1.05	1.08	. 02	5.63	2.97	3.48	4.02	5 61
S-78	.06	1.15	00.	.18	.34	00.	1.73	1.15	1.21	1.33	12-7 22-1
S-79	.91	1.04	.00	.05	.31	10.	2.32	1.04	1.95	1.95	16.5
Voto: 1) Doting Conjectes				i							

Note: 1) Heturn Periods shown in parunthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

•

## **COLLIER COUNTY**

Measured rainfall in the Collier County subbasin during Hurricanes Erin (August 2-5) and Opal (October 5-7) was relatively minor in comparison to other effected basins, and is not included in the analysis for this subbasin.

91

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-39), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 2.34 to 12.18 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 6.68 inches. The heaviest amount of rainfall in the subbasin area was recorded at rainfall stations in Everglades National Park and Marco Island. Also, the measured rainfall amounts for these stations for the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations had return periods of at least 3 or 5 years. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 0.79 inches (G-155) to 4.77 inches (EVERGLADES NP). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 1.08 to 8.52 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 1.42 to 9.32 inches.

Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26) produced heavy rainfall throughout the subbasin area with rainfall totals from the 11 measuring stations ranging from 5.97 to 13.63 inches and produced a four day basin-wide average of 8.63 inches (Table 3-40). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 2.95 inches (S-140) to 4.86 inches (BONITA SPRINGS). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 5.73 to 12.71 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 5.97 to 13.59 inches. Higher than normal rainfall was measured at all of the measuring stations with the rainfall amounts having recurrence intervals ranging from 3 to 25 years.

During the October 14-19 storm event, rainfall totals from measuring stations ranged from 3.38 to 7.67 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 5.64 inches (Table 3-41). The heaviest amount of rain fell in Bonita Springs, and the least amount was recorded for Marco Island. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.01 inches (MARCO ISLAND) to 4.86 inches (BONITA SPRINGS), and the maximum 5-day amounts ranged from 3.19 to 7.43 inches. Two stations measured rainfall amounts which were higher than normal, and had associated return periods ranging from 3 to 5 years.

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Collier County Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-39.** 

										STORM	STORM DIRAT	TON (RETTRA	( DEBIOD)
STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY Max	2-DAY Max	3-DAY
													-
BONITA SPRINGS	1.31	.21	<u>.</u>	.92	.44	.72	2.14	.28	00.	6.02	2.14	2.86	06 6
COOPERTOWN	-1.00	.07	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	.37	.02	-1.00	0.46M	0.37M	Mer C	
CORKSCREW HQ	69.	. 61	1.20	.07	94.	.54	2.37	.25	00.	6.91	2.37	2.91	20.0 28
EVERGLADES NP	.75	1.40	.50	4.77	3.75	.80	00.	.21	00	12.18	4.77(>3)	8.52(25)	0 37/251
G-155	.03	.79	.03	.60	.48	.11	-01	.29	.00	2.34	0.79	1.08	1 40
IMMOKALEE	-1.00	1.16	.97	.14	.60	00.	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	2.87M	1.16M	2.13M	MLC C
INMOXALEE LF	.04	.95	1.10	.25	. 65	.44	1.33	.20	00.	4.96	1.33	2 05	2 42
MARCO ISLAND	1.27	.20	.26	2.08	4.64	1.35	1.36	.12	00.	11.28	4.64(>3)	6.72(>3)	8 07 (N3)
NAPLES FS	00.	1.02	1.30	00.	. 65	.30	2.41	00.	00,	5.68	2.41	2.71	3.36
RACCOON POINT	.83	2.00	.19	1.72	1.93	.37	.01	.06	.01	7.12	2.00	5.5	20. T
S-140	.02	.87	.03	1.55	.75	.35	00.	00.	.02	3.59	1.55	2.30	2.65

cotals may include missing data identified by "M" tag.

3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Collier County Area (August 23-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-40.** 

STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	STORM TOTAL	STORM DURA	TION (RETURN 2-DAY	PERIOD) 3-DAY	
					(in)	XXX	МАХ	MAX	
BONITA SPRINGS	.59	.32	5.52	1.71	8.14	5.52(>;)	7.23(>5)	7 55(>3)	
COOPERTOWN	-1,00	-1.00	-1.00	.20	1				
CORKSCREW HQ	1.13	3.75	4.45	.68	10.01	4.45(>3)	8.20(>10)	9.33(>10)	
EVERGLADES NP	.04	3.00	17.6	.88	13.63	9.71(>25)	12.71(>25)	13.59(>25)	
G-155	0	4.05	3.01	.13	7.19	4.05(>3)	7.06(>5)	7.19(>5)	
IMMOKALEE	1.15	3.40	1.52	-1.00	6.07M	3.40M	4.92M	6 07M(>3)	
IMMOKALEE LF	.45	3.85	2.50	. 25	7.05	3.85(>3)	6.35(>3)	6.80(>3)	
MARCO ISLAND	.76	2.00	8.34	00.	11.10	8.34(>10)	10.34(>10)	11.10(>10)	
NAPLES FS	.23	3.20	6.4S	-40	10.28	6.45(>5)	9.65(>10)	10.05(>10)	
RACOON POINT	1.00	1.88	3.90	.05	6.83	3.90(>3)	5.78(>3)	6.78(>3)	
S-140	00.	2.78	2.95	.24	5.97	2.95	5.73(>3)	5.97(>3)	
									1

Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Collier County Subbasin (October 14-19, 1995). **TABLE 3-41.** 

					-		STORM	STORM DUI	ATION (	RETURN PI	RIOD)
STATIONS	10/14	10/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY Max	2-DAY May	3-DAY	5-DAY
										-	VUN
BONITA SPRINGS	.24	4.86	.66	1.05	.56	.30	7.67	4.86(>5)	5.52(>3)	6.57	5 A 7
COOPERTOWN	-1.00	-1.00	.60	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	1				
CORKSCREW HQ	1.05	4.15	.17	.20	.76	.56	6.89	4.15(>3)	5.20(>3)	5 27	£ 23
EVERGLADES NP	.50	1.50	.52	.21	.75	2.53	6.01	2.53	3.28	94.6	с. с С с С с
G-155	00.	.87	2.74	.97	1.43	.55	6.56	2.74	3.71		4 5 F
IMMOKALEE	-1.00	-1.00	. 65	.07	1.64	.10	2.46M	1.64M	1.74M	•	
IMMOKALEE LF	.55	2.50	.80	60.	17.	00.	4.65	2.50	9.30	3,85	4 65
MARCO ISLAND	.19	1.00	.47	.17	.45	1.10	3.38	1.10	1.55	1.72	0.0
NAPLES FS	.13	3.90	8.	1.40	.20	.35	5.98	3.90	4.03	5.30	5.85
RACCOON FOINT	.57	1.63	1.85	.63	.14	00.	4.82	1.85	3.45	4.11	4.82
S-140	.12	.68	1.22	1.48	.74	.58	4.82	1.48	2.70	3.44	4.70
Jote: 1) Return Periods s	hown in na	renthecie	are in ves	10	0.00		Tetel -				

Id Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. ផលេខទ 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

e

55.35

•

61

# SOUTHWEST COAST SUBBASIN

This subbasin covers the coastal areas of Collier and Lee Counties. Measured rainfall in this subbasin during Hurricane Erin (August 2-5) was relatively minor in comparison to other basins, and is not included in the analysis for this subbasin.

For the June 18-26 storm event (Table 3-42), rainfall totals from the measuring stations ranged from 2.87 to 11.28 inches, with the subbasin receiving an average of 5.80 inches. The heaviest amount of rain was recorded at the Marco Island rainfall station. The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.16 inches (IMMOKALEE) to 4.64 inches (MARCO ISLAND). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 2.13 to 6.72 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 2.27 to 8.07 inches. The Marco Island station measured higher than normal rainfall for the 1-, 2-, and 3-day durations and had return periods of at least 3 years.

For Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26), the rainfall totals from the 7 measuring stations ranged from 5.08 to 11.10 inches, and the 4-day basin-wide average was 8.64 inches (Table 3-43). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 2.33 inches (S-79) to 8.34 inches (MARCO ISLAND). The 2-day maximum rainfall ranged from 4.41 to 10.34 inches, and the 3-day maximum ranged from 5.07 to 11.10 inches. Almost all of the rainfall stations recorded higher than normal precipitation having recurrence intervals of at least 3, 5, or 10 years.

The measured rainfall from Hurricane Opal (October 5 -7) shows storm totals ranging from 3.84 to 6.59 inches (Table 3-44). The 1-day maximum amounts ranged from 3.35 to 5.81 inches, and the 2-day maximum ranged from 3.84 to 6.58 inches. The Bonita Springs and Naples rainfall stations measured higher than normal precipitation with return periods of at least 3 or 5 years.

During the October 14-19 storm event, rainfall totals from measuring stations ranged from 2.32 to 7.67 inches, and the 6-day basin-wide average was 5.25 inches (Table 3-45). The 1-day maximum rainfall amount ranged from 1.04 inches (S-79) to 4.86 inches. The 5-day maximumranged that between 2.31 and 7.43 inches. There were several higher than normal rainfall amounts measured at the Bonita Springs and Corkscrew headquarters with associated return periods ranging from 3 to 5 years. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Southwest Coast Subbasin (June 18-26, 1995). **TABLE 3-42**.

										STORM	STORM DURAT	ION (RETURN	PERIOD)
STATIONS	6/18	6/19	6/20	6/21	6/22	6/23	6/24	6/25	6/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY Max	2-DAY Max	3-DAY Max
SONTAGS REINOG	- -	ŗ	å	5	:	;							
CONTURE VITNOG	11	12.	3.	7 7	. 4	7	4.14	BY		9.02	2.14	2.86	3.30
CORKSCREW HQ	.93	. 61	1.20	.07	.94	.54	2.37	.25	.00	6.91	2.37	2.91	3.85
FT MYERS	- 06	.07	TE-	10.	.66	.45	2.70	.03	00.	4.09	2.70	3.15	3.81
IMMORALEE	-1.00	1.16	.97	.14	.60	00.	-1.00	-1.00	-1.00	2.87M	<b>1.16M</b>	2.13M	2.27M
MARCO ISLAND	1.27	.20	.26	2.08	4.64	1.35	1.36	.12	00.	11.28	4.64(>3)	6.72(>3)	8.07(>3)
NAPLES FS	°.	1.02	1.30	00.	. 65	30	2.41	.00	.00	5.68	2.41	2.71	3.36
S-79	00.	.08	.27	.42	.04	.06	2.84	.05	.01	3.77	2.84	2.90	2.95
Vote: 1) Return Periods	shown in p	arenthe	sis are in	years.	2) Storr	n Durati	on and (	Storm Tc	itals may	include mist	sing data identifi	ed by "M" tag.	

Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# TABLE 3-43. Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Southwest Coast Subbasin (August 23-26, 1995).

. n. i

					STORM	STORM DURAT	ION (RETURN	PERIOD)
STATIONS	8/23	8/24	8/25	8/26	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY Max	2-DAY Max	3-DAY Max
BONITA SPRINGS	. 59	.32	5.52	1.71	8.14	5.52(>5)	7.23(>5)	7.55(>3)
CORKSCREW HQ	1.13	3.75	4.45	.68	10.01	4.45(>3)	8.20(>10)	9.33(>10)
FT MYERS	00-	1.88	5.55	2.35	9.78	5.55(>5)	7.90(>5)	9.78(>10)
IMMOKALEE	1.15	3.40	1.52	-1.00	6.07M	3.40M	4.92M	6.07M(>3)
MARCO ISLAND	.76	2.00	8.34	0.	11.10	8.34(>10)	10.34(>10)	11.10(>10)
MAPLES FS	.23	3.20	6.45	.40	10.28	6.45(>5)	9.65(>10)	10.05(>10)
S-79	.01	.66	2.08	2.33	5.08	2.33	4.41	5.07
Vote: 1) Return Periods	shown in	narenthe	i are j	n vears	2) Storm Durs	tion and Storm To	tale may include	missing data identified

include missing data identified by "M" tag. Į DUTATION 20 v Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

<del>წ</del>

TABLE 3-44.	Daily Rainfall (Inches) Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period (Years) for the Storm Events in the Southwest Coast Subbasin (October 5-7, 1995)

				STORM	STORM DURATION	(RETURN PERIOD)	
SILLIONS	10/05	10/06	10/07	TOTAL	1-DAY	2-DAY	
				(11)	MAX	MAX	
BONITA SPRINGS	.77	5.81	.01	6.59	5.81(>5)	6.58(>3)	
CORKSCREW HQ	1.10	3.38	.03	4.51	3.38	4.48	
FT MYERS	1.00	-1.00	-1.00	<b>1.00M</b>	ı	1	
IMMOKALEE	.98	3.23	-1.00	4.21M	3.23M	t	
MARCO ISLAND	1.57	3.35	.12	5.04	3.35	4.92	
NAPLES FS	1.23	4.74	.28	6.25	4.74(>3)	5.97	
S-79	.44	3.40	00.	3.84	3.40	3.84	

Note: 1) Return Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# TABLE 3-45. Daily Rainfall Summary, Storm Durations and Return Period for the Storm Events in the Southwest Coast Area (October 14-19, 1995).

STATIONS     10/14     10/15     10/16     10/17     10/1       BONITA SPRINGS     .24     4.86     .66     1.05     .5       CORKSCREW HQ     1.05     4.15     .17     .20     .7       FT MYERS     -1.00     -1.00     -1.00     -1.00     -1.0     1.65       INMONTALER     -1.00     -1.00     .17     .20     .7	101 SNG	14 10						MACHN	CLUC MOCEO	a HOLE		
BONITA SPRINGS .24 4.86 .66 1.05 .5 CORKSCREW HQ 1.05 4.15 .17 .20 .7 FT MTERS -1.00 -1.00 -1.00 -1.0 INMONALEE -1.00 -1.00 .65 .07 1.6			1/15	10/16	10/17	10/18	10/19	TOTAL (in)	1-DAY	2-DAY IF	3-DAY	S-DAY
BONITA SPRINGS .24 4.86 .66 1.05 .5 CORKSCREW HQ 1.05 4.15 .17 .20 .7 FT MYERS -1.00 -1.00 -1.00 -1.0 -1.0 IMMOKALEE -1.00 -1.00 .65 .07 1.6												<b>V</b> 171
CORRECREW HQ 1.05 4.15 .17 .20 .7 FT MYERS -1.00 -1.00 -1.00 -1.00 -1.0 INMORALEE -1.00 -1.00 .65 .07 1.6	A SPRINGS	24 4	.86	.66	1.05	.56	06.	7.67	4.86(>5)	5.52(23)	6.57	7 A2
FT MYERS -1.00 -1.00 -1.00 -1.00 -1.0 IMMORALEE -1.00 -1.00 1.65 .07 1.6	REW HQ 1.	05 4	. 15	.17	.20	.76	. 56	68.9	4 15(23)	5 20(23)		
IMMOKALEE -1.00 -1.00 .65 .07 1.6	L-1.	00 -1	00,	-1.00	-1-00		2					
	LEE -1.	1- 00	00.	59	5	1 64		7 4 CM			ı	ı
MARCO ISLAND .19 1.00 .47 17 4	ISLAND	19	00	47			1011	107. v			· 6	• •
NAPLES FS	52	0	06.	00.	1.40	200		86.4			7.7	ν. γ
S-79 .91 1.04 .00 .05 .3	•	91 1	.04	00.	.05	16.		2.32	1.04	1.95		0.0

Note: 1) Heturn Periods shown in parenthesis are in years. 2) Storm Duration and Storm Totals may include missing data identified by "M" tag. 3) Missing Values on a particular day are identified by "-1.00".

# **BASIN PRECIPITATION MAPS**

The historic monthly rainfall amounts summarized in Table 3-1 are derived from rainfall amounts at individual stations; rainfall is averaged for each basin by Thiessen weighting. These monthly data are plotted for the whole District area to depict rainfall for the various reporting areas for the entire year, including the wet season. These maps provide an overview of the total amount of rainfall and compare the amounts with the long-term averages. The 1995 annual totals by reporting area are shown for the entire District in Figure 3-3. (Figures begin on page 67.) This map shows the variation in total rainfall measured among the various areas in the District. Figure 3-4 summarizes the total yearly rainfall and the long-term averages, by reporting the difference between the two amounts. Figure 3-3 shows that the Upper Kissimmee area received a total of 54.1 inches in contrast to the Southwest Coast and Collier County areas which received a total of 78.1 and 71.0 inches of rain, respectively. This map also shows that the upper and central District areas received an of average of 10 to 20 inches less total rainfall than the coastal areas of the District. Figure 3-4 shows that the Southwest Coast area received 23.3 inches more rain than the long term average, and that the Martin-St. Lucie area received 13.8 inches of rain more than normal.

2 24

The 1995 wet season total for each area is shown in Figure 3-5, and the comparison to the long term averages is presented in Figure 3-6. Figure 3-5 shows that the wet season brought 40.7 inches of rain to the Lower Kissimmee area, and 58.7 inches to the Dade County area. Higher than normal rainfall was measured in all of the reporting areas for the 1995 wet season. For instance, in Figure 3-6 the Palm Beach County area received 9.5 inches of rain more than normal for the wet season period, and Collier County received 16.8 inches more than normal.

Monthly comparisons of actual rainfall totals and the long term average for each reporting area for individual wet season months are shown in Figures 3-9 through 3-12. This is reported as the difference between the monthly long term average and the actual rainfall totals received in each area. Figure 3-7 depicts the difference between the actual rainfall total (May 1995) and the long term average. This figure shows that all of the reporting areas received less than normal amounts of rainfall, except for Collier County, and indicates a rainfall deficit at the beginning of the wet season.

Figures 3-8, 3-10, and 3-12 show the highest amounts of above average rainfall for the various areas of the District occurring during June, August, and October 1995, respectively. These months received very heavy rainfall amounts from several tropical storms, hurricanes, and enhanced storm events.

During the month of June 1995 (Figure 3-8) Dade County, Broward County, Southwest Coast, and the Collier County areas received the highest amounts of above average rainfall ranging from 3.6 to 6.5 inches. In August 1995 (Figure 3-10) the highest amounts of above average rain were received in the Southwest Coast, Collier, Broward, Palm Beach, and Martin-St. Lucie subbasins, with above normal amounts ranging from 4.9 to 10.9 inches. The October 1995 (Figure 3-12) map shows above normal rainfall amounts ranging from 7.0 to 10.0 inches were the highest in the Collier, Southwest Coast, Palm Beach , and Martin-St. Lucie subbasins. The September 1995 (Figure 3-11) map shows that most of the subbasins received less than the normal amount of rainfall for this particular month.

During the wet season, there were several storm events which contributed very heavy rains throughout the District area. One storm in particular produced heavy amounts of precipitation falling on the District over the course of six days during October 14-19. The total rainfall amounts received from this storm and the maximum 1-, 2-, 3-, and 5-day time intervals are shown in Figures 3-13 through 3-17. The storm totals for each area is shown in Figure 3-13, and the area averages range from 1.8 inches in the Upper Kissimmee to 8.9 and 10.1 inches in the Palm Beach and Martin-St. Lucie subbasins, respectively. Also shown in this map are selected rainfall totals for some of the highest point rainfall amounts measured at rainfall stations throughout the District during the course of the storm event. Figures 3-14, 3-15, 3-16 and 3-17 also depict selected sites for which some of the highest amounts (maximums) of rainfall were measured over the course of 1, 2, 3, and 5 days. For instance in Figure 3-14, the highest 1-day rainfall amount was measured at station S-46 in northern Palm Beach County, and the average of the 1-day maximum amounts for this county was 4.5 inches.



FIGURE 3-3. Total Rainfall in Inches, January-December, 1995.











FIGURE 3-6. Wet Season Rainfall in Inches Above Average, May - October, 1995











FIGURE 3-9. Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, July 1995.



FIGURE 3-10. Rainfall in Inches Above or Below Average, August 1995.











FIGURE 3-13. Average Basin Rainfall (Inches) Totals for Storm Event of October 14-19,1995.



FiGURE 3-14. Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 1-day Maximum for Storm Event of October 14-19, 1995.





FIGURE 3-15. Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 2-Day Maximum for Storm Event of October 14-19, 1995.



FIGURE 3-16. Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 3-Day Maximum for Storm Event of October 14-19, 1995



FIGURE 3-17. Average Basin Rainfall (Inches), 5-Day Maximum for Storm Event of October 14-19, 1995

. .

# (This page intentionally left blank.)

# **CHAPTER 4**

# SYSTEM OPERATION (WATER LEVELS AND DISCHARGES)

# **UPPER KISSIMMEE RIVER BASIN**

The Upper Kissimmee River Basin consists of Lakes Alligator, Myrtle, Hart, East Tohopakaliga, Tohopakaliga, Cypress, Hatchineha, Gentry and Kissimmee. They are referred to as the Upper Kissimmee Chain of Lakes (UCOL). Daily water level stages and regulatory schedule levels for each lake are presented in Figures 4-1 through 4-3.

Regulation schedules are rule curves (specified levels) that are used to determine when water must be released to maintain desired water levels. Regulation schedules do not directly indicate optimum water levels at any point in time nor do they restrict inflow when water levels are above regulation. The rule used when applying the schedules is that releases are required in order to intentionally lower water levels when those levels are above the schedule. Too rapid a return to regulatory levels is undesirable, thus, discharges are set to return water levels in a more reasonable length of time in order to best balance all systems. Complex regulation schedules may state specific levels of regulatory flow based on water level and time of year. No releases are required to intentionally lower water levels when the levels are below the regulation schedule. Releases for purposes other than water level control may, of course, be made when stages are below the schedule.

The lakes in the Upper Chain of Lakes were operated on slightly different schedules than usual during 1995 in preparation for a planned extreme drawdown in Lake Kissimmee. The drawdown was scheduled to begin on Nov. 1, 1995 and continue through the spring months of 1996. All of the regulated Upper Chain of Lakes reached their new temporary schedules during July 1995.

The start of the Lake Kissimmee Drawdown was delayed 30 days (from November 1 to December 1, 1995) due to the large regulatory releases from Lake Okeechobee that were necessary in early November. The delay allowed the drawdown to proceed with minimal impact to the estuarine environment downstream of Lake Okeechobee, an environment already highly stressed due to unusually large volumes of freshwater inflows.

Outflows from each of the lakes in the Upper Kissimmee Chain are channeled to Lake Kissimmee and then to Lake Okeechobee via the C-38 canal. Discharges to Lake Okeechobee from Lake Kissimmee are controlled by structure S-65. Table C-1 in Appendix C contains the headwater and tailwater stages, as well as the daily discharges, from Structure S-65.



FIGURE 4-1. Water Levels and Regulation Schedules for Major Lakes in the Upper Kissimmee River Basin.



FIGURE 4-2. Water Levels and Regulation Schedules for Major Lakes in the Upper Kissimmee River Basin.



FIGURE 4-3. Water Levels and Regulation Schedule for Lake Kissimmee.

## **Conditions During Storm Events**

**Storm of June 18-26, 1995:** The Upper Kissimmee Basin lake stages (Figures 4-1 through 4-3) were near or within regulatory levels with the exception of Lake Kissimmee. The regulatory stage level for Lake Kissimmee from May through October was 50 ft. (NGVD). Actual stages for Lake Kissimmee (shown in Figure 4-2) were near regulatory level throughout this storm. Maximum releases from S-65 can range from 3000 to 11,000 cubic feet per second (cfs) depending on the local inflow in C-38. During this storm, the discharge from structure S-65 ranged from a low of 178 cfs to a high of 916 cfs. The maximum discharge through S-65 as a result of this storm was 2240 cfs., and was observed on July 1.

Hurricane Erin of August 2-5: Hurricane Erin passed directly over the Upper Kissimmee Basin on August 2 contributing 4.5 inches to basin rainfalls which were above normal for the month of August. Although large flows were required from all

control structures in the area, water levels were held near the target levels throughout the month. Lake stages in all of the Upper Kissimmee Lakes were above the regulatory levels, except for Lake Gentry. Discharges through S-65 ranged from 3900 to 4860 cfs during the hurricane period, with a peak discharge of 5080 cfs occurring on August 8.

**Tropical Storm Jerry of August 23-26**: Regulatory stage levels were exceeded for all of the Upper Chain of Lakes, with the exception of Lakes Gentry and Myrtle (Figures 4-1 and 4-2). Discharges through S-65 after the end of Hurricane Erin continued to decrease to approximately 3800 cfs on August 25 during the onset of Tropical Storm Jerry. As a result of tropical storm Jerry, discharges then increased to a maximum of 5700 cfs on the September 7. After the resulting peak occurred, a reduction in flow continued until October 4 at which time a rate of 1430 cfs was recorded.

Hurricane Opal of October 5-7: During the onset of Hurricane Opal, all of the lake stages were within regulatory levels. After Jerry, releases decreased steadily, ranging from 5690 to 1430 cfs; with the onset of Opal, discharges through S-65 began to increase, reaching a peak discharge of 2460 cfs on October 13.

**Storm of October 14-19:** Discharges through S-65 started to increase from 2650 cfs on October 14 to a high of 4630 cfs on October 20. After this storm event, discharges gradually decreased.

# LOWER KISSIMMEE AND LAKE OKEECHOBEE BASINS

### Inflows to Lake Okeechobee

The Kissimmee River discharges into Lake Okeechobee through S-65E; Table C-1 in Appendix C contains the inflow data for S-65E. There are 10 other structures which discharge into the lake in addition to the Fisheating Creek. These structures control tributary discharges from basins on the northern rim of Lake Okeechobee, whereas Fisheating Creek is a natural, uncontrolled stream. Most of the surface water inflow to Lake Okeechobee comes from north of the lake.

From May 1 to December 31, discharges from the Kissimmee River into Lake Okeechobee through structure S-65E accounted for approximately 55% of the total surface water inflows from the northern basins and tributaries discharging to the lake. During the same period, the Fisheating Creek tributary accounted for approximately 11% of the inflow. Runoff to Lake Okeechobee from the Lake Istokpoga/Indian Prairie areas through structures S-71 and S-84 (combined) accounted for 18% of the total discharges to the lake; runoff from the Taylor Creek/Nubbin Slough Basins, which discharge through structure S-191, accounted for approximately 6% of the total. The remaining 10% came from pump stations on the North Shore, at S-4, and occasionally from S-2 and S-3 when conditions in the EAA required emergency pumping. Appendix D summarizes the inflows from these controlled tributaries, and Appendix E shows the streamflow from Fisheating Creek. Most of the major storm events during the wet season produced high runoff rates which increased the storage in Lake Okeechobee and helped push the stage level in the lake to the highest recorded level in nearly 50 years.

Lake Okeechobee reached a stage of 18.64 feet on October 26, 1995, the highest water level recorded since November 1947 (Figure 4-4). During the last week of October 1995, maximum flow rates from Lake Okeechobee to the Caloosahatchee River reached 7100 cfs and to the St. Lucie Canal reached 7400 cfs. These high discharges were adequate to regain control of lake stages. By the first part of December, it was possible to reduce regulatory releases to the pulse release level. Pulse releases continued into 1996. The actual daily lake stages are presented in Table H-1 in Appendix H. Effects from the various storms on the northern basins and the resulting tributary inflows to Lake Okeechobee are discussed below.

High water levels in Lake Okeechobee during October prompted intense monitoring of the Herbert Hoover Dike surrounding the Lake. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers brought in geotechnical experts to direct the monitoring and to coordinate emergency repairs in case they were needed. Precautionary measures, including building temporary berms and pumping water to raise water levels adjacent to the land side of the levee, were initiated to reduce potential hazards.



FIGURE 4-4. Actual Daily Lake Okeechobee Stage and Regulatory Zone Stages. Pulsed releases to estuaries are used to maintain lakestage below Zone C levels. Progressively larger volumes of water are released from the Lake as stage increases toward Zone A levels, above which maximal discharges are mandated.

### **Conditions During Storm Events**

**Storm of June 18-26, 1995:** Prior to the onset of this storm event, the stage in Lake Okeechobee was at 15.12 ft (NGVD) and reached a level of 15.36 ft. at the close of the event. Surface water inflows to the lake before the onset of the storm event produced a total combined discharge from the northern basins of from 100 to 200 cfs daily. However, flow began to increase from 1301 cfs on June 23 to a maximum of 5821 cfs on June 27. Flows receded gradually to a low of 1263 cfs on July 24.

**Hurricane Erin of August 2-5:** Inflows to the lake were at a level of 6000 cfs for two days prior to the onset of Hurricane Erin. On the first day of the hurricane, a total of 9341 cfs was being discharged from the northern basins to the lake. By August 4, discharges had reached a level of 14,234 cfs; of that, 8620 cfs came from the Kissimmee River. The total combined discharge to the lake from the northern basins remained at around 10,000 cfs for several days after the cessation of the hurricane rains.

**Tropical Storm Jerry of August 23-26:** Inflows to the lake totaled approximately 6500 cfs for two days prior to Tropical Storm Jerry and increased to 14,320 cfs on the last day of the storm. Total runoff from the northern basins to the lake continued to be high

through September 19 due to continuous rainfall in the basins. Total combined discharges ranged from 10,000 to 18,000 cfs during this period.

Hurricane Opal of October 5-7: Total basin discharge to the lake before and during this hurricane ranged from 4800 to 6900 cfs daily. Discharges started to increase after the hurricane, reaching a maximum of 10,080 cfs on October 8.

**Storm of October 14-19:** Prior to this storm event, the total discharge to the lake was in the vicinity of 9000 cfs.; discharge continued to increase during the storm and reached a high of 22,416 cfs on October 20. Discharge from the Kissimmee River accounted for about 4000 cfs of the total, increasing to 7900 cfs at storm's end.

# Outflows from Lake Okeechobee through St. Lucie Canal and Caloosahatchee River

Large regulatory releases were required to manage high water levels in Lake Okeechobee for the second consecutive year. Pulse releases, which are a less environmentally stressful means of removing excess water from Lake Okeechobee than the more sustained releases, were initiated on September 21, 1994. However, the pulse release procedures were inadequate to handle the additional inflow from Tropical Storm Gordon. As a consequence, releases to Zone C began on November 16, 1994. Additional heavy rain in December 1994 required that Zone C releases continue into the first week of February 1995. Pulse releases continued until April 28, 1995. Because of the cumulative impact of high inflows into Lake Okeechobee during the normal dry season months, the wet season in June started with a lake level about two feet above normal.

In response to near normal inflows in June and July, Lake Okeechobee again rose to levels which required pulse releases beginning July 31, 1995. Heavy inflows continued through August, triggering Zone C releases during the month, and increasing to Zone B releases on August 28. The large Zone B releases were necessary for most of the month of September. It was possible to reduce regulatory flows to Zone C releases the last week of September; however, these could only be maintained until mid-October when a stalled front brought very heavy rains that resulted in a rapid increase in the Lake Okeechobee water level. Large inflows required that Zone B releases be scheduled on October 17. It was not possible to fully implement the larger discharges at that time due to downstream limitations at all possible outlets. It was actually necessary to temporarily stop Lake Okeechobee releases to the St. Lucie Canal because of downstream flooding. Lake releases were carefully coordinated between the U.S.Army Corps of Engineers, South Florida Water Management District, Martin County engineers and emergency managers to ensure that victims of flooding in the South Fork of the St. Lucie River downstream of S-80 would not be impacted by
releases from Lake Okeechobee. By October 24 maximum capacity discharges were realized from all outlets.

Releases from Lake Okeechobee occur through Structures S-77 and S-308 on the west and east sides of Lake Okeechobee, respectively. Discharges from the west side at S-77 are conveyed by the C-43 Canal (the Caloosahatchee River) to the Caloosahatchee Estuary, after passing through structures S-78 and S-79. From the east side, S-308 discharges are conveyed by the St. Lucie Canal to the St. Lucie Estuary after passing through Structure S-80. Additional outflows, which convey water to the Everglades Agricultural Area (EAA), pass through structures on the southern rim of the Lake. The daily stage and flow data for S-77 and S-308 are presented in Appendix E. The discharges made through these structures during the five major storm events are discussed below. More specific impacts to the St. Lucie and Caloosahatchee Estuaries are discussed in Chapter 6.

## **Conditions During Storm Events**

**Storm of June 18-26, 1995:** There were no regulatory discharges made from Lake Okeechobee through S-77 and S-308. However, water supply releases through S-77 were made to the Caloosahatchee Basin from June 7 to June 12. Water supply releases through S-308 were also made to the St. Lucie Basin during the first week of June.

Hurricane Erin of August 2-5: Regulatory discharges of 1400 cfs to the Caloosahatchee River began two days prior to the onset of Hurricane Erin. By August 3, discharges had increased to 4190 cfs. but then decreased gradually to a low of 690 cfs on August 8. Discharges through S-77 continued to rise following the storm due to high stage levels in Lake Okeechobee. Regulatory discharges were also made to the St. Lucie Canal through structure S-308 starting two days prior to Hurricane Erin and continuing until August 3. Structure S-308 remained closed until August 8 at which time regulatory discharges began again. The direct impact of Erin was not great, but feeder bands trailing Erin during the next few days of August thoroughly soaked the area.

**Tropical Storm Jerry of August 23-26:** Discharges through S-77 and S-308 during Tropical Storm Jerry were curtailed to allow downstream structures to discharge local runoff to tide. Local runoff for the Caloosahatchee Basin is the difference between the flows measured at S-79 and S-77, and the local runoff for the St. Lucie Basin is difference in flows measured at S-80 and S-308. Regulatory discharges through the St. Lucie Canal and the Caloosahatchee River (C-43) recommenced after sufficient downstream channel capacity was reached.

Hurricane Opal of October 5-7: Discharges through S-77 to the Caloosahatchee River were continuous throughout September; in October the structure was closed to

allow downstream channel capacity to be regained. The lowest discharge during this entire period was 3110 cfs; the highest was 6420 cfs. Regulatory releases to the St. Lucie Canal were also continuous throughout September and October. The discharges through S-308 ranged from a low of 763 cfs to a high of 3420 cfs during the month of September and through the end of Hurricane Opal on October 7.

**Storm of October 14-19:** Due to a rising stage in Lake Okeechobee from heavy October rainfall, regulatory discharges ranging from 3250 to 4470 cfs were conducted during this storm event; these correspond to releases from Zones C and D into the Caloosahatchee River through S-77. Discharge through S-77 continued to increase after the storm to a maximum of 7,040 on October 29, 1995. Discharges to the St. Lucie Canal through S-308 ranged from no-flow to a high of 1820 cfs during this storm event, and continued to rise thereafter to a maximum of 7410 cfs on October 30.

## UPPER EAST COAST BASIN (MARTIN/ST. LUCIE)

Water levels in C-23, C-24, and C-25 were lowered dramatically at the end of July in preparation for possible direct impact by Hurricane Erin. Although Erin's impact was not great, trailing feeder bands over the next few days of August thoroughly soaked the area. Tropical Storm Jerry formed off the coast of Palm Beach and Martin Counties on August 23. The area was impacted by very heavy rains from this system. Following so closely behind previous heavy rainfall conditions, it came very close to overloading the capacity of C-23, C-24, and C-25. Tributary areas to C-24 (White City, St. Lucie West, and the Ten Mile Creek areas downstream of project control structures) suffered severe flooding as a result of the heavy rain from this series of rainfall events. Water levels downstream of S-49 on C-24 were monitored carefully to ensure that releases from this structure did not contribute to flooding in these areas.

In spite of dangerously large releases from C-23 at S-97, water levels continued to rise, triggering concern for the safety of this key structure. As a result of this concern, contingency plans were made to cut bypass channels to create an emergency diversion in the event it became necessary to relieve some of the excess water going into C-24. However, a cooperative effort between the District and local agricultural interests was successful in temporarily reducing inflows until water levels could be brought under control. The necessity of completing the bypass channel at this time was averted as a result of this cooperation. Nevertheless, the return of extremely heavy rainfall in October made it necessary to complete the emergency diversion.

Extremely heavy rainfall resulted when a front, stalled over Palm Beach County on October 16 and 17, began moving north. Flooding was again common in the C-23 Basin and in West Port St. Lucie. Reduction in agricultural pumping was not adequate to forestall the possibility of structural failure at S-97; bypass channels were cut around the G-78 and G-79 control structures, allowing excess water in C-23 to enter C-24 where it could be removed safely. Erosion damage resulted from the high flows in both C-23 and C-24.

Extremely heavy rains and wet antecedent conditions, combined with high tides and strong easterly winds, caused generalized flooding conditions in the South Fork of the St. Lucie River during the event in mid-October. Due to the severe flooding, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (the Corps), who controls the releases from Lake Okeechobee and the St. Lucie Lock, coordinated with the District, emergency managers, and Martin County personnel to delay regulatory releases from Lake Okeechobee so that these areas would not be adversely impacted.

Southern Martin County and northern Palm Beach County felt the brunt of the extremely heavy rains that resulted from the stalled front on October 16 and 17. Point rainfall at some locations in this area exceeded the 1-in-100 year storm frequency. In southern Martin County, inadequate or nonexistent surface water drainage systems, combined with the heavy rainfall, resulted in damage from deep, standing water over extended time periods.

# **EVERGLADES AGRICULTURAL AREA (EAA)**

### Inflows to Lake Okeechobee from EAA

Discharges into Lake Okeechobee from the EAA occur through structures S-2 and S-3. Guidelines for the allowable volume of water to be back-pumped to the lake through these structures were established in the Interim Action Plan (IAP), through an operating permit (#50-0679349) issued to the SFWMD from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP).

Excess rainfall is normally diverted south (via S-2 and S-3 pumps) to the Water Conservation Areas, except during very heavy rainfall events, at which time the S-2 and S-3 pumps are pressed into service to back-pump the excess water into Lake Okeechobee to prevent flooding.

Table 4-1 shows the amount of inflow to the lake from the EAA during the 1995 wet season; this includes the effects from the 5 major storm events described in Chapter 2. The total amount of water discharged to the lake from the EAA through S-2 and S-3 from May through December 1995 was 67,180 acre-feet. This represents approximately two inches of back-pumped water over the entire Lake area.

**TABLE 4-1.** Discharges from the EAA to Lake Okeechobee (acre-feet). (Back-pumping in June was for maintenance and testing of emergency procedures only, not water control.)

MONTH	Structure S-2	Structure S-3
Мау	0	0
June	650 <sup>*</sup>	270*
July	0	0
August	19,500	8,960
September	0	1,175
October	26,520	9,835
Totals	46,670	20,510

## **Conditions During Storm Events**

**Storm of June 18-26, 1995:** During this storm, no water was discharged from the Lake Okeechobee (the lake) into the EAA through structures S-2, S-3, and S-352. However, approximately 650 acre-feet was back-pumped into the lake on June 20 through S-2, while a total volume of 270 acre-feet was back-pumped through S-3 during this storm period. The pumping at both S-2 and S-3 during this event was for maintenance and emergency procedure testing rather than for water control.

Hurricane Erin of August 2-5: The EAA did not receive any water from the lake through the three primary inflow structures during this period.

**Tropical Storm Jerry of August 23-26:** During this period, back-pumping was initiated at S-2 and S-3 to relieve rising water level conditions in the canals in the northern portion of the EAA.

Hurricane Opal of October 5-7: Approximately 2,000 acre-feet of water was back-pumped to the lake through structure S-2 during this period, while S-3 remained closed. Gravity flows from the lake to the EAA through structure S-352 started on September 19 and continued through this storm event until October 13.

**Storm of October 14-19:** Both S-2 and S-3 were actively back-pumping water to the lake during this period. Gravity discharges through S-352 ceased on October 14 and the structure remained closed through November 7.

### Inflows to the EAA from Lake Okeechobee

The mean daily stages and discharge data for structures S-2, S-3, and S-352 (primary inflows) are presented in Table F-1 in Appendix F. Negative values in the discharge data in Table F-1 represent water that was conveyed to the lake through pumping activities; the monthly total volumes are shown above in Table 4-1.

## Outflows from the EAA to the Water Conservation Areas (WCAs)

Water from the EAA is conveyed to the WCAs through primary outflow structures S-6, S-7, S-8, and the S-5A complex (S-5A+S-5AW+G-250). During 1995, the Everglades Nutrient Removal Project (ENR) diverted a significant volume of water away from S-5A in order to remove nutrients prior to the water entering WCA-1. Water that was treated prior to entering WCA-1 was removed from the EAA at pump station G-250. Twenty-four percent of the water that otherwise would have entered the conservation area at S-5A during 1995 was diverted to the ENR for treatment. The percentage of water treated by the ENR project varied widely from a low of 10% in February to 93% in May. In order to lower lake levels, a limited volume of water was moved from Lake Okeechobee through the EAA to WCA-1 and WCA-2A and eventually to tidewater via the east coast canals. The ENR project was used to the greatest extent possible to treat the lake water first. The distribution and volume of these lake releases were limited to avoid adverse impacts to WCA-3A. The mean daily stage and discharge data for these structures is presented in Table G-1 in Appendix G.

#### WATER CONSERVATION AREAS (WCAs)

Mean daily stages for WCAs 1, 2, and 3 are presented in Table H-1 of Appendix H and are depicted in Figure 4-5 with regulation schedules. No water supply or regulatory releases were conducted from Lake Okeechobee to the WCAs except when they could be passed through WCA-1 and WCA-2 to the east coast. However, the WCAs received heavy discharges from the EAA through structures S-5, S-6, S-7 and S-8, due to high local runoff, in addition to heavy inflows from S-140, S-190 and the uncontrolled L-28 gap area. The area west of L-1, L-2, and L-3 contributed heavily to the S-8 basin as well. The water that was moved into the S-8 basin was subsequently pumped to WCA-3A at S-8. For extended periods during 1995, maximum discharges were made through the S-12 structures, which are the primary outlet for WCA-3A. Water levels in WCA-3A were high enough to cause extensive environmental damage during both 1994 and 1995. A later section of this report describes actions taken to minimize these high stages, analyzes the distribution and magnitude of the contributing factors, and provides recommendations on measures to reduce future impacts.

## **Conditions During Storm Events**

**Storm of June 18-26:** Prior to the beginning of this storm, discharges were being made from the EAA to the WCAs from structures S-6, S-7, and S-8. During this storm event, daily flows through the Hillsboro Canal at S-6 ranged from 425 to 1990 cfs. In the North New River Canal at S-7, they ranged from a low of 250 cfs on June 26 to a high of 1680 cfs on June 23. Additionally, flows through S-8 in the Miami Canal ranged from 128 cfs on June 19 to 2710 cfs on June 23. However, only 941 cfs of discharge occurred through the S-5A complex in the West Palm Beach Canal on June 23.

Hurricane Erin of August 2-5: Rainfall in the EAA Basin during the month of July, prior to the onset of Hurricane Erin, was fairly continuous. As a result (due to local runoff), discharges to the WCAs through structures S-5A, S-6, S-7 and S-8 began in early July to alleviate flooding in the EAA and continued until the middle of August. During this storm event, the discharges from S-6 ranged from 772 to 1520 cfs and those from S-7 ranged from 540 to 855 cfs. The range of discharge through S-8 was from 1,170 to 1880 cfs, and through the S-5A complex from 741 to 2870 cfs.

**Tropical Storm Jerry of August 23-26:** Discharge to the WCAs during the middle of August was initiated in anticipation of Tropical Storm Jerry. Structures 5A, S-6, S-7, and S-8 were operating at high levels and discharging water at daily rates ranging from 2000 to 3000 cfs.

Hurricane Opal of October 5-7: Water levels in WCA-1 remained below the regulation schedule for the month of September and through the beginning part of October. By mid-September water levels had decreased to around 16.52 feet (NGVD), local runoff from the EAA had diminished, and discharges through structure S-6 had been reduced to 300 to 400 cfs daily. With the onset of Opal, however, water levels in WCA-1 began to rise and reached 17.11 feet (NGVD) by the end of the hurricane. During the hurricane, discharge rates from S-5A to WCA-1 ranged from 258 to 1340 cfs; discharges from S-6 increased from 286 to 555 cfs (prior to the onset of the hurricane) to approximately 1200 cfs and remained at this level until October 10.

Prior to the onset of this storm event, water levels in WCA-2 were approximately 13.43 feet (NGVD), with minimal inflows occurring from the EAA through S-7. During the hurricane, the maximum daily discharge through the structure reached 1500 cfs.

On October 4, the water level in WCA-3 was approximately 13.31 feet (NGVD). By October 9, the water level had increased to 13.91 feet (NGVD) due to runoff generated from the storm. The highest daily discharge from structure S-8 was 2230 cfs.



FIGURE 4-5: Mean Daily Water Levels and Regulation Schedules for WCA-1 (top), WCA-2 (middle), and WCA-3 (bottom), May-December 1995.

**Storm of October 14-19:** The combined effects of Hurricane Opal and this storm event caused the water level in WCA-1 to rise from 17.11 feet on October 8 to 17.93 feet on October 20. After Opal, discharges from S-6 and S-5A were curtailed and daily rates were reduced from 1150 cfs to 413 cfs and from 1430 to 589 cfs, respectively. During this storm, the discharge rate from S-6 increased again from 413 cfs to a maximum of 2380 cfs on October 18. Discharges from the S-5A complex to WCA-1 increased from 589 cfs to a maximum of 4760 cfs on October 19. Discharges to WCA-1 through both structures gradually decreased after the storm event ended.

After Hurricane Opal, water levels in WCA-2 receded to a level of 13.38 feet (NGVD). However, with the onset of the October 14-19 storm event water levels began to increase once again, reaching a high of 14.91 feet (NGVD) by the end of the storm. The corresponding discharge from S-7 was 2250 cfs. Both the stage and discharge for S-7 started to diminish after October 17.

Water levels in WCA-3 fluctuated from 13.91 to 13.26 feet (NGVD) after Hurricane Opal. On October 20 the stage reached a maximum of 14.72 feet, with a corresponding discharge of approximately 3040 cfs from S-8.

# HIGH WATER CONTROL IN WATER CONSERVATION AREA 3A

Water levels in WCA-3A reached an all-time-record high in November and December 1994. Regulatory releases from Lake Okeechobee during 1994 were intentionally diverted away from WCA-3A to prevent further impact to the already high water level conditions (stages) there. Maximum releases were discharged through the S-12 structures, which are the primary outlet for WCA-3A. The East Coast canals, which have the capability to remove a small to moderate amount of excess water, provided a secondary outlet for water from the WCAs to the Atlantic Ocean. They were used to the greatest extent possible without endangering downstream users. Even with maximum outflow and minimum inflow, it was not until May and early June 1995 that the water receded to more normal levels. These high water conditions took a heavy toll on the wildlife that normally inhabit the area. Older, established trees on the tree islands also suffered severely from the extended period of high water. More detailed information on these observations can be found in the report entitled 1994-1995 High Water Event in the Everglades and Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area (November 1995) by S. P. Coughlin and L. B. Richards of the Florida Game and Fresh Water Fish Commission (FGFWFC).

Continued heavy rain through the summer months again raised concern as water levels increased in both Lake Okeechobee and WCA-3A. In September 1995, a team of

experts from the District, the FGFWFC, the DEP, Everglades National Park, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the Miccossukee Tribe, and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service visited impacted tree islands in WCA-3A. In addition to assessing the threat of permanent damage to the tree islands, this team also discussed the possible need to use the WCAs as a means to remove water from Lake Okeechobee. There was general agreement that additional flow from Lake Okeechobee to WCA-3 should be avoided if possible.

However, rainfall in October caused Lake Okeechobee to rise to the highest levels in nearly 50 years and brought WCA-3A levels close to the record levels experienced during the previous year. It became necessary to make maximum practical releases from Lake Okeechobee under Zone A regulatory discharge criteria. The Zone A release criteria requires that maximum practical releases be made to the WCAs as well as to the St. Lucie and Caloosahatchee Canals. Water was not released from the lake to the WCAs during the Zone A release period (which ended the first week of November), because local flood control in the EAA, combined with the serious condition in WCA-3A, required nearly all of the available discharge capacity. The St. Lucie Estuaryand the Caloosahatchee Estuary thus suffered the brunt of very large discharges.

Additional regulatory discharges from Lake Okeechobee were still required to restore safe operating conditions. Under normal conditions, discharge through the EAA to WCA-1, WCA-2 and WCA-3 would be made to further reduce the impact to the estuaries. The control strategy used in this instance, however, was to continue to divert Lake Okeechobee regulatory flow away from WCA-3A. Lake Okeechobee water was diverted to WCA-1 and WCA-2, but only if it could, in turn, be sent to the ocean via the East Coast canals or kept in storage without passing it to WCA-3. Flow to the East Coast canals continued to be used, to the greatest extent possible, to lower water levels in the WCAs. The S-12 structures, the primary outlet for WCA-3A, were used at full capacity, and S-333 was brought into service when downstream conditions permitted.

An assessment of additional environmental damage in WCA-3A due to continued high water levels during 1995 will be conducted in early summer 1996 after seasonal changes which will allow a more efficient assessment of the damage to deciduous vegetation. Under the direction of Everglades National Park, an interagency task force will be preparing this assessment during the later half of 1996.

Figure 4-5 provides a comparison of water levels in WCA-1, WCA-2A, and WCA-3A during 1995 with regulation schedules in each of the areas. Water levels in WCA-1 and WCA-2A did not cause undue concern, although structural considerations limited additional increases. Water levels in WCA-3A were not of a magnitude to cause concern over structural integrity; however, stage levels experienced in both 1994 and 1995 were environmentally damaging (FGFWFC report, 1995).

A water budget analysis was conducted to provide a predictive understanding of high water conditions in WCA-3A. This analysis quantified water sources and where it went, allowing further exploration of future options to either increase outflow or decrease inflow when water is too high.

The relative distribution of outflow from WCA-3A (Figure 4-6) documents the relatively small impact that water management controls have over water levels in WCA-3A. As shown, over half of the outflow leaves the area through evapotranspiration, largely uncontrollable through water management practices. During 1995, evapotranspiration



FIGURE 4-6. WCA 3A Outflow Distribution during 1995.

accounted for 51.7% of the total outflow, a percentage far less than normal years due to a concentrated effort to maximize surface water outflow for most of the year.

The relative contribution of S-333 was much smaller than normal because flow through this structure had to be restrained for much of the year due to high water conditions downstream. Under hydrologic conditions in which tailwater constraints are not important, 55% of the surface water outflow is routed through S-333 and 45% through the S-12 structures. This 55%-45% distribution approximates the historical distribution of flow between Northeast Shark River Slough (S-333) and Shark River Slough (S-12) under "average" hydrologic conditions.

The portion labeled "Big Cypress" refers to the set of culverts, S-343A, S-343B and S-344, located near the southwestern corner of WCA-3A. This set of three structures controls flow from WCA-3A through levee L-28 to the Big Cypress Preserve and, eventually, through a series of culverts under US 41 and Loop Road.

Under current water control criteria these culverts are used only when WCA-3A is high. Flow must be limited to protect US 41 and to prevent flooding in the Loop Road area. Flows through this group of culverts was much higher than normal during 1995 due to improvements in the Loop Road culverts and because of the extended high water conditions in WCA-3A. The possibility of changing the operating criteria at these structures to better meet multi-objective criteria will be investigated. It is possible that additional environmental benefits, as well as small to moderate improvement in high water control, could be realized in WCA-3A.



A more detailed view of the surface water outflows from WCA-3 is presented in Figure 4-7. The large volume of water handled by S-12 is most striking. Well over 2,000,000 acrefeet of water was removed from WCA-3A to Everglades National Park in 1995. This is the equivalent of over 4.5 feet of water over the entire WCA-3A. In order to accomodate this

FIGURE 4-7. WCA 3A Surface Water Outflow Distribution

extraordinary flow volume, it was necessary to open the gates clear of the water at all S-12 structures for most of the year. When all gates at these structures are fully open, the structures and the associated levee provide virtually no resistance to flow, even at the high flow rates observed during 1995. Under these high flow conditions, flow at any flow, even at the high flow rates observed during 1995. Under these high flow conditions, flow at any given water level in WCA-3A is limited by flow resistance provided by the relatively shallow marsh conditions in Everglades National Park, together with other flow obstacles that lie downstream of the S-12 Structures, such as the Old Tamiami Trail.

At S-12, the downstream condition makes it impossible to develop more than a small portion of the 32,000 cfs design rate, as was demonstrated during the extreme water level conditions realized in December 1994. It was not possible to develop sustained flow larger than 7000 cfs even with the record high water levels observed at that time. S-12 has by far the largest outflow over which water managers have any control; for this reason special attention should be placed on preserving the current emergency flow capability and enhancing this capability to the maximum extent possible in order to allow water managers to effectively respond to high water emergencies in WCA-3A. Possible projects which might fall into this category are: to remove large sections of the Old Tamiami Trail in order to reduce current downstream flow resistance, and to rethink alternative solutions (which can achieve similar flow redistribution benefits without adversely impacting S-12 emergency flow capability) to filling in the L-67 Extension Borrow ditch as a part of the Modified Deliveries to Everglades National Park.



FIGURE 4-8. WCA-3A Relative Inflow Distribution

As with the outflow, a large portion of the inflow to WCA-3A is not under the control of water managers. Rainfall, for example, accounted for half of the water entering WCA-3A in 1995 (Figure 4-8). Some of the current inflows on the western boundary are also natural, rather than controlled inflows. That portion of the pie chart in Figure 4-8 labeled "East in" represents pumping at the S-9 Pump Station, which includes a significant amount of return seepage from WCA-3A. The "West in" portion includes the measured inflows at S-140, S-190, G-155, and G-89, along with an estimate of inflows through the L-28 gap based on

similar unit runoff values observed in the S-190 basin. The S-140 inflow includes a small amount water which reaches S-140 from L-3 via G-89. "EAA in" includes gravity inflow from S-150 and pumped inflow at S-8. The S-8 inflows include a portion of the flow west of the EAA that entered the S-8 basin from G-136 and G-88. The relative portion of S-8 flow volume from these western areas was higher than normal because high water levels in WCA-3A severely restricted the ability of G-155 to relieve flooding in the areas draining to L-1, L-2, and L-3. "WCA 2" consists of flow from S-11. Part of the inflow from S-11 originates as agricultural runoff in the EAA from S-5A, G-251(ENR), S-6, and S-7, which pump to WCA-1 and WCA-2A. Direct rainfall on WCA-1 and WCA-2 add to the inflow, while evapotranspiration and flow to the East Coast canals remove water. The resulting excess of inflows over outflows in WCA-1 and WCA-2A enters WCA-3A through S-11.

ويحجد والمراجد



possible to reduce the surface water inflows significantly without adverse impacts to flood protection unless



additional long-term storage can be provided, or unless the inflows can be diverted to another receiving body. The impact of the proposed "Talisman" acquisition of 20,000-30,000 acres of additional water storage in the S-8 basin can be approximated from the information available. Assuming water can be stored to a depth of from 5 to 10 feet over the storage area, and assuming also that the storage area would be empty at the start of the year, the available storage to reduce water levels in WCA-3A would be on the order of 150,000 to 200,000 acre-feet. It is apparent that there is adequate water available to fully use that storage, but the additional storage alone would not solve the high water problems which were observed in WCA-3A during 1994 and 1995. The additional water storage area would be very valuable in improving the timing of water deliveries to the Everglades Protection Area. This would improve treatment efficiencies of the STAs, provide additional water control flexibility, maintain minimum flows and levels, and serve other valuable functions, but would not in itself provide adequate relief for high water levels in WCA-3A.

Additional water storage areas in the EAA, beyond the "Talisman" tracts, and in the East Coast buffer areas near S-9, could be used to further increase our ability to manage levels in WCA-3A.

One key element of the water management strategy used in 1994 and 1995 to relieve high water conditions is not apparent from the water budget analysis presented. This strategy involved the reduction of inflows to WCA-3A through an aggressive program of moving water (that otherwise would go to WCA-3A) east to the Atlantic Ocean. The primary routes that can be used for this purpose are C-51 via S-5AS, S-5AE, and S-155; the Hillsboro Canal via S-39 and G-56; C-14 via S-38, S-37B, and S-37A; and the North New River Canal via S-34 and G-54. These canals and structures must be devoted to meeting flood control needs east of the water conservation areas during storm conditions, but may be used to divert excess water from WCA-1 and WCA-2A away from WCA-3A when the need for flood protection subsides.

Using the East Coast canals to reduce WCA-3A inflows in 1995 was very successful. Although available capacity is relatively small, the cumulative effect of moderate discharges sustained over extended periods was substantial. In 1995, over 1,000,000 acre-feet was released from WCA-1 and WCA-2A eastward to the coast. A small portion of the water released to the East Coast canals went to meet water supply needs in 1995 rather than being dumped to tide, and a portion passed through the WCAs to the East Coast as regulatory releases from Lake Okeechobee. All of these releases helped reduce inflow to WCA-3A. The water diverted away from WCA-3A by the canals was roughly equivalent to the largest single source of inflows, which is S-11. The magnitude of success in diverting water eastward suggests that it will be worthwhile to fine-tune this operation. If remote telemetry control was available to replace the current manual operations at four additional sites, it is reasonable to assume that an additional 10% could be diverted eastward. This would appear to be a very cost effective method to gain control of an additional 100,000 acre-feet of potential inflow diversions from S-11. The sites that require telemetry control are S-5AE, S-5AS, S-38, and S-34.

### Summary of Recommendations for Future High Water Control

- 1. Provide telemetry control at S-5AS, S-5AE, S-38, and S-34 to allow more water to be moved eastward from the WCAs.
- 2. Support the proposed "Talisman" acquisition for additional water storage. This acquisition will contribute to reducing adverse high water impacts on WCA-3A in addition to substantial environmental, water supply, and water control flexibility benefits.
- 3. Revisit the Modified Deliveries to Everglades National Park Plan to find alternate solutions to filling in the L-67 Extension Borrow ditch. Alternate solutions should achieve similar flow redistribution benefits without adversely impacting S-12 emergency flow capability.
- 4. Remove key sections of the Old Tamiami Trail to reduce current impediments to flow out of WCA-3A. This will increase the capacity to remove water from WCA-3A through the S-12 structures under extremely high water conditions.
- 5. Investigate the possibility of changing the operating criteria at the Big Cypress Structures (S-343A, S-343B, and S-344) to better meet multi-objective criteria. It is possible that additional environmental benefits could be realized, as well as a small to moderate improvement in high water control in WCA-3A. This should be an interagency effort, as impacts on endangered species, possible long term vegetative changes, and water supply impacts should be evaluated.
- 6. Accelerate current efforts to remove obstacles to full utilization of S-333. These consist of improvements to the Tiger Tail Indian village and flooding mitigation for the East Everglades area. Both these measures are now addressed in the Modified Deliveries to Everglades National Park Plan.

# LOWER EAST COAST BASIN (LEC)

#### Palm Beach County

踅

 $\mathbf{E}_{i}$ 

史 :

z.

Ľ

Extremely heavy rainfall in Palm Beach County during mid-October caused severe urban and agricultural flooding in many areas where rainfall exceeded drainage capacity. Heaviest rainfall occurred in the northeastern portion of the county between Stuart and Palm Beach Gardens and generally east of Military Trail/I-95. These areas, for the most part, are not served by the system of project canals and drainage structures operated by the District. Drainage in these areas is normally quite good but was not adequate enough to handle the very heavy rainfall which occurred on October 16 and 17. Storm rainfall in this area exceeded the 100-year return period for a three-day period. The most severely impacted areas served by the project system included the C-18, C-17, and C-51 drainage areas.

Late in the afternoon on October 17, the C-18 area was threatened by potential flooding. Structure S-46 was operated at maximum capacity to bring water levels in C-18 to lower than normal levels in order to facilitate drainage. G-92 (which normally serves as a water supply structure to augment freshwater discharges to the North Fork of the Loxahatchee River from C-18) was opened to allow water to flow backwards through the structure, and to lessen impacts of the heavy rain on residents in the Jupiter Farms area.

The C-17 canal was discharging at maximum capacity beginning on October 16. With few exceptions, water levels remained at or slightly above bank level in most of the drainage area east of I-95. Severe flooding in this basin occurred west of I-95 due to the limited capacity of the secondary drainage system. Improved drainage systems to the west are being proposed to reduce the likelihood of future flooding in that area. This approach must be used with caution to prevent overwhelming the easternmost portion of the basin (particularly the Lake Catherine/Lighthouse Drive area) with additional runoff water from the west during an extended flood peak.

On the morning of October 15, water levels at the western end of C-51 increased to such an extent that flow entering from L-8 was no longer desirable. Indian Trails Drainage District was asked to curtail flow from the Acreage into C-51 in accordance with permitted conditions. By afternoon on October 16, the area south of C-51 was feeling the effects of heavy rain. The Lake Worth Drainage District was making large southerly releases into the C-15, C-16, and the Hillsboro canals as well as moderate discharges into C-51. Heavy rainfall continued and, by late night/early morning of October 17, all Lake Worth Drainage District structures were operating at full capacity. Water levels in the western end of C-51 remained extremely high through October 18. The Lake Worth Drainage District monitored conditions carefully at their inflow structure to C-51 near SR7, adjusting gate openings frequently to prevent back-flow from aggravating flooding within their drainage area. By October 19 water levels had improved to the point where flows from Lake Worth Drainage District were all diverted southward. Indian Trails was then granted permission to discharge excess water to C-51. Water levels at the western end of C-51 were too high for the installed instrumentation to measure stages and flows during the peak of the event.

### Dade County Area

Dade County experienced wide-spread flooding in June 1995. A week-long period of heavy rain began on June 18 as a deep trough developed over the southeastern United States and expanded into the Gulf of Mexico. Excessive rains, averaging more than nine inches, fell over Dade County from June 20 through 22. The average monthly total for Dade County was nearly 17 inches, which was over twice the normal monthly rainfall for June. Several official rainfall stations in the area measured more than 25 inches of rain during June 1995. Some of the most severe flooding during this storm occurred in the western C-4 basin. Several individual rain gages in this area measured 3-day rainfall totals exceeding the 100-year storm level, indicating that flooding of this magnitude is expected to occur only infrequently. Sweet Water, situated in an area referred to as "AREA B" where drainage capacity is very limited, was the most heavily impacted area in the C-4 basin. Corps of Engineers documents indicate that a pumped drainage system was originally proposed to augment current drainage capacity in Area B, but the project was deferred for economic reasons. Other locales subjected to flooding during this event were in low-lying areas within the eastern C-9, western C-8, and C-7 basins, Broward County and the Homestead/Florida City area.

1. 1. W. S. W.

Flooding of a more chronic nature occurred in the 8.5 square-mile area of southwestern Dade County, also referred to as the East Everglades. This area is located west of levee L-31N south of Tamiami Trail. L-31N forms the western boundary of the area protected by the system of federally constructed canals, levees, and water control structures. No direct flood protection is available to the residents of this area, although water controls are temporarily lowered in L-31N following heavy rainfall to help accelerate recovery following flooding, provided protected areas are not adversely impacted. During periods of extended, above-normal rainfall, this secondary drainage relief is not very effective. Water levels over 6.0 feet at an indicator well named "Angels" are generally indicative of standing surface water conditions with some yard and road flooding. Water levels exceeded 6.0 feet at this location for 254 days in 1995. A task force is exploring options to provide more significant flood relief to this area.

### **EVERGLADES NATIONAL PARK (ENP)**

# Inflows from Water Conservation Area 3 to the ENP

Surface water inflows to Everglades National Park from WCA-3 occur through structures S-12-A, S-12-B, S-12-C, and S-12-D. These structures are gated spillways with a total design discharge rate of 32,000 cfs. As a practical matter, it is not possible to develop discharge rates of this magnitude with reasonable water levels upstream of the S-12 structures. This was demonstrated by the maximum sustained rate of less than 7000 cfs which developed during the extreme conditions of December 1994. The major impediment to realizing discharge rates approaching design levels is the high water levels downstream caused by flow resistance in the relatively shallow marsh downstream and flow obstructions, such as the Old Tamiami Trail south of the current US 41. Presented in Table I-1 in Appendix I are the mean daily inflows from each of the structures as well as the combined inflow total for all structures from May 1 to December 31, 1995.

### **Conditions During Storm Events**

**Storm of June 18-26:** During the first month of the wet season (May) total surface water inflows to the ENP through the S-12 structures ranged from 414 cfs to 848 cfs. During this storm period, the total inflow to the ENP ranged from a low of 553 cfs to a high of 1808 cfs. Inflows gradually diminished after June 23.

Hurricane Erin of August 2-5: Before the onset of Hurricane Erin, inflow to the Park was taking place at a rate of 1500 to 1600 cfs per day. However, these rates increased to approximately 2000 cfs by August 7. Total surface water inflows through the structures during the hurricane period ranged form 2121 cfs to 2270 cfs.

**Tropical Storm Jerry of August 23-26:** The combined total discharge through the structures continued at a fairly constant rate of approximately 2200 cfs after Hurricane Erin, continuing through the start of Tropical Storm Jerry. Tropical Storm Jerry brought heavy rainfall to the southern portion of the District, which increased discharges to the Park.

Hurricane Opal of October 5-7: Following Tropical Storm Jerry, discharges gradually increased from around 3000 cfs to 5400 cfs by the end of Hurricane Opal.

**Storm of October 14-19:** Discharges through the S-12 structures continued increasing after this storm and reached a maximum of 5724 cfs on October 14-19. Inflows to the Park gradually decreases, diminishing to 2566 cfs by December 31, 1995.

### Inflows to C-111 and Taylor Slough

The eastern portion of Florida Bay receives freshwater inflows from C-111 and from Taylor Slough. Excess stormwater from the area west of Homestead near L-31N is routed into Everglades National Park and Florida Bay through C-111 via S-176, and through Taylor Slough via S-174. Flow at S-18C is a good index of how much water the panhandle area of the Park receives. Under normal conditions, in order to provide a more favorable distribution of inflows to Everglades National Park and Florida Bay, as

much of this stormwater as possible is moved westward to Taylor Slough rather than using C-111. The relative magnitude of S-174 and S-176 flows generally indicate how successful the westward diversion was in any year. Excess stormwater moved to Taylor Slough is quantified at S-174. Pumping at S-332 is used to facilitate the movement of water through S-174 and to augment flow to Florida Bay.

Structure S-197 is an environmentally sensitive structure that controls emergency overflows from C-111 to Barnes Sound. Water in the C-111 canal system is normally discharged through gaps in the spoil material on the south bank of the canal to the marsh systems (which form the eastern panhandle of Everglades National Park) and eventually to Florida Bay. When rainfall exceeds the handling capacity of this system, S-197 must be opened to provide flood relief. Prior to 1990 the capacity of this structure was very limited. Large flood events required the removal of an earthen plug near the culvert structure, often resulting in severe adverse impacts on the downstream estuarine environment. The capacity of S-197 was expanded in 1990 from three culverts to 13 culverts. Along with the increased structure capacity, a carefully crafted discharge strategy was developed which progressively increased the amount of flow discharged in proportion to the severity of the storm runoff. This discharge strategy was designed to eliminate adverse downstream impacts while preserving necessary flood relief. Intensive water quality and biologic monitoring is conducted whenever the enlarged structure is used for flood control purposes and monitoring continues for the recovery period after flow termination. The modern flow control techniques were highly successful during 1995. The structure was frequently used during 1995, but no observable adverse impacts from these discharges were detected even with intensive monitoring. Presented in Table J-1 in Appendix J are the daily mean headwater and tailwater stages for S-18C, S-197, S-176, S-174 and S-332, as well as the daily flows from these structures.

# **Conditions During Storm Events**

**Storm of June 18-26:** Flows to S-18C prior to the storm were taking place at a rate of around 300 cfs. By June 17 flows had increased to 599 cfs. During the storm event, flow from S-18C ranged from 323 to 1960 cfs. Discharges from S-197 ranged from no flow to 2565 cfs.

**Hurricane Erin of August 2-5:** During this hurricane, flow from C-111 to Florida Bay ranged from 520 cfs to 1130 cfs through S-18C and from 0 to 828 cfs through S-197.

**Tropical Storm Jerry of August 23-26:** Prior to the onset of Topical Storm Jerry, an approximate flow of around 400 cfs was being released from S-18C, and the culverts at S-197 were closed. During this storm, the flow from S-18C ranged from 410 cfs to 1070 cfs. Daily flows from S-197 varied from no flow to 742 cfs.

Hurricane Opal of October 5-7: Discharges from S-18C decreased to 386 cfs on October 5 after Tropical Storm Jerry. Flows increased slightly to 458 cfs by the end of Hurricane Opal. During the entire period of this hurricane, the southernmost structure, S-197, remained closed.

**Storm of October 14-19:** Flows gradually increased after Hurricane Opal and reached a maximum of 1540 cfs by October 18. After the storm, they then gradually decreased. On October 10, the culverts at S-197 were opened, discharging at a rate of 325 cfs. By October 19, the rate had increased to a maximum of 1509 cfs. Flows then gradually decreased to 248 cfs by November 1, and the culverts at the structure were closed on November 2.

### **Reports on the Impacts of High Water in the Southern Everglades**

In 1996, an expert panel was convened to examine current research efforts to assess the impacts of high water levels in 1994-95. The panel' s report, *Report of an Expert Panel - Ecological Assessment of the 1994-95 High water levels in the Everglades*, is available from the south Florida Natural Resources Center of Everglades National Park. Major findings and recommendations of the panel include: current data provide an incomplete picture of ecosystem responses; forested habitats, at least with the Park, do not appear to have been seriously affected by high water; flooding of grasslands west of Shark River Slough eliminated breeding habitat for the Cape Sable Sparrow; fish populations appear to have benefited overall from the high water, while alligators appeared to be stressed; and regarding bird species, the effects were mixed.

The Florida Game and Freshwater Fish Commissions report, 1994-95 High Water Event in the Everglades and Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area, (Coughlin and Richards) also addresses impacts. Findings in this report include: most tree islands were inundated and experienced loss of tree and shrub species; mammalian wildlife was impacted greatly, and the deer population appears to have been reduced dramatically; and while reductions in the quality of tree island habitat and upland habitat appear to be temporary (except for hardwoods, which will take years to recover), severe losses of dahoon holly and red bay in WCA 2A will reduce habitat quality for the long term.

### DISTRICT WIDE WATER CONTROL STRUCTURE OPERATIONS

Highlights of the operational management of water control structures during the June and October storm periods are presented in Appendix K.

# CHAPTER 5

# DISTRICT WIDE FLOODING COMPLAINTS

Flooding complaints from ten counties were received by the District from the major storm events which occurred during the wet season of 1995. These complaints are listed below. Location of the flooded areas, by counties, is depicted in Figures 5-1 through 5-10. (Projects with numbers indicate SFWMD Surface Water Management Permits.)

# CONDITIONS DURING STORM EVENTS

JUNE 3-5, 1995: This rainfall event caused some flooding in Palm Beach County. Two areas in particular were:

-Hypoluxo Road -Acreage (Permit #'s 50-00754-S and 50-00761-S).

**JUNE 20-23, 1995:** This storm in Dade, Broward, Lee and Charlotte Counties caused some street and yard flooding. We did not receive any reports of homes being flooded. Complaints were received from the following areas:

Dade County

- -Sweet Water Golf Estates -Homestead -Miami -Miami International Airport -Blue Lagoon Area -Serena Lakes -Agricultural Flooding -North Miami Beach -Severa Lake -Hialeah
- Broward County

-Hallandale

#### Lee County

- North Ft. Myers

# **Okeechobee County**

- Pastures west of 441 in the northern county
- West of Walmart near southern 441

(Okeechobee County, continued) - Sun MHP - Quail Woods

St. Lucie County - SR 70 and pastures.

AUGUST 1-3: This rainfall event caused some flooding of streets and yard in Collier, Palm Beach, Okeechobee and St. Lucie Counties:

Collier County

- Pelican Nursery (Permit #11-00257-S)
- Bay West Nursery (Permit # 11-00180-S)
- Berkshire Lakes (Permit # 11-00364-S)
- Imperial Golf Estates (Permit # 11-00173-S)
- Golden Gate Estates (Permit # 11-00154-S)
- Gopher Ridge Grove (Permit # 11-00363-S)
- Dupree Road

**Okeechobee County** 

- West of St. Lucie/Okeechobee line, ag flooding residential area
- Southeastern Okeechobee City residential flooding
- Blue Cypress MHP

Palm Beach County

-Steeplechase

- -Rainbow Lakes (Permit # 50-00743-S)
- -Acreage (Permit #'s 50-00754-S and 50-00761-S)

St. Lucie County

- St. Lucie Gardens

**AUGUST 23-26, 1995:** In the areas that were evacuated, there was wide-spread flooding of homes. In addition, there was extensive flooding of street and yards and agricultural fields in the following counties:

Collier County

-Village Walk (Permit # 11-00371-S)

-Estero, E. Broadway

-Quail West (Permit # 11-00768-S)

- Immokalee Road/CR 951 Area
- Corkscrew Island

(Collier County, continued)

- Eagle Island Grove (Permit # 11-00323-S)
- Bay West Nursery (Permit # 11-00180-S)
- Palm River Estates (Permit # 11-00029-S)
- Kensington (Permit # 11-00993-S)
- Kings Lake (Permit # 11-00145-S)
- Silver Lakes RV Park (Permit # 11-00950-S)
- Plantation (Permit # 11-00468-S)
- Kamp Keais Strand Ag Area
- Golden Gate Estates (Permit # 11-00154-S)

Lee County

- -The Forest (Permit # 36-00161-S)
- -Bonita Springs
- -Manna Christian Mission RV Park+ (Permit # 1023-85-S)
- -Saldivar Migrant Camp\*

-Oakland Park Migrant Camp\*

-Downs St.\*

-Quinn St.\*

-Edith St.\*

-East of Lime St.\*

-North of Bonita Beach Rd.\*

-West of Fagen Ln.\*

-South of E. Terry St.\*

+Lee County Evacuation Order of August 25, 1995 \*Lee County Evacuation Order of August 26, 1995

# Hendry County

-Montura Ranch (Permit # 26-00156-S)

Martin County

-Rivers Edge Road

-Willoughby (Permit # 43-00387-S)

-Palm City Farms

## Okeechobee County

- Martin Grade pastures flooding

- Northwest of Okeechobee City

Palm Beach County

-Highland Pines (Permit # 76-00023-S)
-Square Lake (Permit # 50-02422-S)
-Alden Ridge
-Springfield Drive
-Newport Cove
-Boca Greens (Permit # 50-00632-S)
-Military Trail and Haverhill
-Westchester (Permit # 50-00744-S)
-Mission Bay (Permit # 50-01326-S)
-Boca Gardens/Lyons Road (Permit # 50-01284-S)
-Loxahatchee River Road
-Boca Woods (Permit # 50-00737-S)
-Bermuda Drive
-Acreage (Permit #'s 50-00754-S and 50-00761-S)
-Loggers Run (Permit # 50-00461-S)

St. Lucie County

-The Reserve (Permit # 56-00674-S)
-C-23 Agricultural Area
-St. Lucie West (Permit # 56-00573-S)
-10 Mile Creek Area
-White City
- Midway Road and South 25th Street
- Ft. Pierce - Longwood area

# EMERGENCY AUTHORIZATIONS ISSUED

**August 30, 1995** - Issued to N.T. Gargiulo in Lee County for removal of ditch plugs east of I-75 to relieve flooding within the Bonita Beach Road area. This authorization was extended to November 30, 1995 on September 15, 1995.

**September 1, 1995** - Issued to FDOT, LaBelle Private Drainage District and Jack M. Berry, Inc. to reduce surface water flows in the Roberts Canal to lower the water stage upstream of the FDOT bridge at SR 80 in Hendry County. The bridge was in danger of failing due to erosion.

**September 1, 1995** - Issued to Callaway Land and Cattle Company for installation and operation of two culverts in the Reserve project in St. Lucie County. The culverts were authorized due to flooded roads and backed up septic systems.

September 1, 1995 - Issued to FDOT and Hendry County for deepening and widening of certain portions of Banana Branch north of CR 78A to reduce stages in the Roberts Canal in order to protect the SR 80 bridge from damage.

**September 7, 1995 -** Issued to Roberts Jones for installation and operation of three small discharge pumps to prevent flooding in a sewage treatment plant located within the Jones Mobile Village project in Lee County.

**OCTOBER 7, 1995:** In the areas that were evacuated, there was wide-spread flooding of homes. In addition, there was extensive flooding of streets and yards as well as agricultural fields.

**Collier County** 

- Pelican Nursery (Permit # 11-00257-S)
- Bay West Nursery (Permit # 11-00180-S)
- Quail West (Permit # 11-00768-S)
- Sunbelle Grove
- Kamp Keais Strand Ag Area

Lee County

-Manna Christian RV Park\*\* (Permit # 1023-85-S) -Saldivar Migrant Camp\*\* -Oakland Park Migrant Camp\*\* -Oakland Drive\*\* -Carpenter Lane\*\* -Taylor St.\*\* -Downs St.\*\* -Quinn St.\*\* -Quinn St.\*\* -McKenna St.\*\* -Saunders St.\*\* -Pauley St.\*\* -Chapman St.\*\*

\*\*Lee County Evacuation Order of October 7, 1995

Highlands County

- Commercial site

# Okeechobee County - Quail Woods

### **Emergency Authorizations Issued:**

**October 10, 1995** - Issued to L.P. Gargiulo for removal and placement of ditch plugs and ditch improvements to relieve flooding on G & Farms within the Bonita Beach Road area in Lee County.

**OCTOBER 13-17, 1995:** This storm dropped significant amounts of rain on Glades, Highlands, Martin, Okeechobee, Northern Palm Beach and St. Lucie Counties. In addition to street, yard and agricultural flooding, there were hundreds of homes flooded on the floors. The following list identifies reported areas of flooding

Collier County

- Pelican Nursery (Permit # 11-00257-S)
- Crystal Lake RV Park (Permit # 11-00195-S)
- Old Florida Golf Club
- Good E Nuff Farm (Permit # 11-00536-S)
- Acremaker Road
- Longshore Lakes (Permit # 11-00420-S)
- Bay West Nursery (Permit # 11-00180-S)
- Immokalee/Mockingbird Lake Area
- Quail West (Permit # 11-00768-S)
- Pine Ridge (Permit # 11-00360-S)
- Golden Gate Estates & City (Permit # 11-00154-S)
- Lakewood (Permit # 11-00050-S)

**Glades** County

- Lakeport
- Brighton

Highlands County

- Commercial site

# Martin County

- -Warner Creek Area
- -State Rd. 76 and Cove Road
- -Foxwood (Permit # 43-00096-S)
- -Manatee Pocket And Cove Road

-Tropical Farms

-Locks Road

(Martin County, continued)

-Bessie Creek east of the Turnpike

-Mariner Sands (Permit # 43-00177-S)

-Mariner Village (Permit # 43-00405-S)

-Hobe Heights

-The Woodlands (Permit # 43-00124-S)

-Rocky Point/Bossier Village (Permit # 43-00250-S)

-Solitron

-Heritage Ridge (Permit # 43-00126-S)

-Kitching Creek

-D.O.T. Ditch to Manatee Pocket

-Tropic-Vista

-Rivers Edge

-Section 28&33 Farms

-South Fork Estates (Permit # 43-00520-S)

-Tropical Paradise Mobile Home Park (Permit # GP 78-20)

-South Fork of the St. Lucie River south of Hwy 76

-Ranch Colony (Permit # 43-00187-S)

-North Passage to the Tequesta Country Club

Hobe Sound Area

-Flora Avenue south of Bridge Road west of U.S. 1

-Ranchland Avenue south of Bridge Road

-Pinecroft (Permit # 43-00316-S)

-Stonebridge/ The Preserve/ Lost Lakes area (Permit # 43-00442-S)

Port Salerno Area

-East of U.S. 1 west of Dixie Highway (Gomez area from Hobe Sound to Stuart)

# **Okeechobee County**

- West of St. Lucie/Okeechobee line, ag flooding residential area

- Taylor Creek area
- Four Seasons
- Sunset Strip
- John Burton MHP
- Dark Hammock area
- Lazy 7
- Lipton Creek
- Quail Woods
- Bluefield Road area

Palm Beach County

-Garden Oaks (Permit # 50-02144-S) -Cypress Cove (Permit # 50-02228-S) -Northfork (Permit # 50-01841-S) -North Palm Beach Heights@ (Permit # 50-01364-S) -Wellington (Permit # 50-00548-S) -Lake Worth Road & Military Trail -M-1 Acreage (Permit # 50-00761-S) -M-2 Acreage (Permit # 50-00754-S) -Caloosa (Permit # 50-00474-S) -Palm Beach Country Estates -Jupiter Farms (Permit # 50-01198-S) -Juno Ocean Walk RV Park -Eastpointe Country Club (Permit # 50-00532-S) -Westwood Lakes (Permit # 50-01151-S) -L-8 Tieback area -Sunny Urban Meadows -U.S. Highway 1 north of PGA Blvd. -A1A east of U.S. 1 north end of Singer Island -Foxhall (Permit # 50-01817-S) -Sabal Ridge (Permit # 50-01189-S) -Earman River -The Oaks -Haverhill Road North of M Canal -Westchester/Jog Road (Permit # 50-00744-S-03) -Pine Acre Estates Lees Crossing (Permit # 50-00753-S) -Winston Trail (Permit # 50-02454-S)

-Lake Charleston (Permit # 50-01625-S)

Palm Beach Gardens Area

-Garden Woods@

-Central Boulevard north of PGA Blvd.

-Maheau Estates Areas

-The Sanctuary

-Frenchman's Creek (Permit #50-00091-S)

-Monet Oaks@

-Yogi Bear Campground (Permit # 81-00087-S)

-Seacoast Utilities (Permit # 50-01695-S)

-Mecca Farms (Permit # 50-01626-S)

@ - Areas of known house floor flooding

Jupiter Area

-The Shores@ (Permit # 50-01436-S)

-Jupiter Medical Center (Permit # 50-00885-S)

-Jupiter Area

-Delaware Street south of Indiantown Road

St. Lucie County

- Port St. Lucie vicinity of C-24

- C-23 and C-24 canal area

- Port St. Lucie - Howard Creek area

- Carlton Road

@ - Areas of known house floor flooding

#### EMERGENCY ORDERS ISSUED

**October 18, 1995** - Issued to The Shores for installation and operation of a portable pump in the Northern Palm Beach County Improvement District's drainage easement to relieve flooding in the Shores subdivision in Jupiter, Palm Beach County.

**October 19, 1995** - Issued to all persons, firms, etc. within Hendry, Martin, Palm Beach and St. Lucie Counties for cessation of all identified off-site pumped discharge of storm water that is causing or contributing to flooding in affected counties. A pump within the Cypress Links Golf Course project were posted with this Order.

**October 20, 1995** - Issued to Indian Trail Water Control District for discharge of storm water at a rate in excess of that permitted to relieve flooding in the Acreage area of Palm Beach County. This Authorization was issued a supplement on October 23, 1995 to allow additional pumped discharges.

**October 24, 1995** - Issued to the Town of Juno Beach for installation and operation of a portable pump to discharge surface water from Juno Ocean Walk RV park in Palm Beach County into the Bluff's Shopping Center surface water management system.

October 26, 1995 - Issued to Wildcat Farms, Ltd. for excavation of portions of wetlands in the Wildcat Farms project in Lee County to form surface water drainage ditches to relieve flooding of agricultural lands.

**November 7, 1995** - Issued to Garden Oaks Homeowner's Association (District Surface Water Management Permit #50-02144-S) for installation and operation of

discharge pumps to relieve flooded roads in the Garden Oaks project in Palm Beach County caused by unexpected off-site inflows and a crushed culvert.

**November 8, 1995** - Issued to Palm Beach County and Lake Worth Drainage District for construction of a swale and installation of a culvert and riser to establish a connection between LWDD L-4 and E-2 canals to relieve flooding in the area north of Southern Boulevard at Hooper Road.

**November 9, 1995** - Issued to Berry Groves, Inc. to lower the control elevation in 2 detention areas in Berry/Payson Grove to protect the viability of the project's preserve areas in Charlotte County.

**November 14, 1995 -** Issued to The Florida Club in Martin County for temporary alteration of the surface water management system to prevent, during construction, discharge of turbid storm water into Roebuck Creek.

**November 29, 1995 -** Issued to Pete Clemons, Kenneth Whitestone and Perry Smith & Sons for excavation of 800 feet of ditch east of CR 721 to direct surface water discharges from a citrus grove to C-38 to reduce flooding impacts in and around CR 721 and Larson Dairy Road in Highlands County.

# FOLLOW-UP BY REGULATION STAFF

On projects with District surface water management permits, staff have been working with permittees to correct any known project deficiencies. In addition, permit staff have been working with permittees that have expressed interest in modifying their surface water management permits in order to lessen flooding impacts in the future. Also, staff has been working with local governments in finding ways to improve drainage in impacted areas.


























1.1.1.1















# **CHAPTER 6**

# IMPACTS TO ESTUARIES AND BAYS

This chapter provides an evaluation of 1995 wet season effects on estuaries and bays. Specifically, it addresses the effects of the season's high freshwater discharges and inflows to the Caloosahatchee and St. Lucie Estuaries, as well as to Florida Bay.

# Caloosahatchee River Estuarine System During the 1995 Wet Season

The Caloosahatchee River system (Figure 6-1) is comprised of a freshwater reach (Caloosahatchee River or C-43) and an estuary (Caloosahatchee Estuary). The freshwater reach extends 42 miles from Lake Okeechobee to the Franklin Lock and Dam (S-79), where it discharges into the estuary. The Caloosahatchee River (C-43) serves as a waterway, and provides freshwater for municipal and agricultural needs. The major sources of water for C-43 are its 850 square-mile watershed and its discharges from Lake Okeechobee. Discharges occur via S-77 at Moore Haven and are made to provide water to downstream users and to maintain lake levels according to a prescribed schedule. The Caloosahatchee Estuary, located in Lee County, stretches about 26 miles from S-79 to Shell Point, where it empties into San Carlos Bay at the southern end of Charlotte Harbor (Figure 6-2). Although the estuary itself drains a watershed of some 500 square miles, the drainage from the C-43 basin and the discharges from Lake Okeechobee largely determine the amount of freshwater entering the Caloosahatchee Estuary.

Because of its unnatural connection to Lake Okeechobee and because of modifications to the watershed, present-day freshwater discharge to the Caloosahatchee Estuary is no doubt quite different than it was before these alterations took place. As a consequence, salinity in the estuary varies widely in both space and time. Salinity varies naturally in an estuary; it exerts a profound influence on the distribution of marine organisms, the composition of estuarine communities and the organization of food webs. Excessive variation in salinity can thus maintain estuarine biota in a constant state of flux between those favoring higher salinities and those favoring lower salinities. In the extreme, appropriate salinity conditions do not last long enough for organisms to complete their life cycle, and the estuary becomes devoid of selfsustaining populations and communities.









#### Salinity Envelope for the Caloosahatchee River Estuary

In order to keep salinity variation within biotically acceptable limits, Chamberlain et al. established an optimum discharge envelope (Chamberlain, R.H., D.E. Haunert, P.H. Doering, K.H. Haunert, and J.M. Otero, 1995, Preliminary estimate of optimum freshwater inflow to the Caloosahatchee Estuary, Florida, South Florida Water Management District, in review, draft manuscript for publication). The recommended minimum and maximum mean monthly discharges to the Caloosahatchee Estuary at S-79 are 300 and 2800 cfs. Flows within this discharge envelope maintain tolerable salinities within the distributional range of important submerged aquatic plant species in the Caloosahatchee Estuary and San Carlos Bay (Figure 6-2). Flows outside this envelope may be problematic, causing mortality of some species and allowing others to invade.

#### Analysis of the 1995 Wet Season

The impacts of the 1995 wet season on the Caloosahatchee Estuary were analyzed in the following manner. First, rainfall in the Caloosahatchee watershed was compared to the long-term average condition. Total freshwater discharge at S-79 was partitioned into the amount separately contributed by the basin and lake. Basin runoff was determined by taking the difference between discharge at S-79 and S-77. Total basin and lake discharges for 1995 were placed in historical perspective by comparing these with long-term averages computed from a 29-year record (1966-1994). Effects of major storms and regulatory releases from Lake Okeechobee on the time-series of discharge at S-79 were also evaluated. The influence of wet season discharges on salinity in the estuary was determined by examining records from five continuous recorders located along the longitudinal axis of the estuary (Figure 6-2). Finally, potential effects of 1995 wet season discharges on two species of sea grass (*Halodule wrightii* and *Thalassia testudinum*) were examined by comparing the average seasonal cycle with that computed from a 4-year record (1986-1989).

#### Rainfall in the Basin and Freshwater Discharge at S-79

Rainfall in the Caloosahatchee basin was above normal for all months during the 1995 wet season except May and September (Figure 6-3). This above-normal rainfall resulted in an increase in basin discharge to the estuary of 217% above the long-term average (Figure 6-4). The discharge from Lake Okeechobee was 486% above the long-term average. These high discharges combined to produce discharges at S-79 that were 295% above the long-term average for the wet season (Figure 6-4). Based on the 29-year period of record, the basin normally contributes about 75% of the discharge at S-79 during the wet season, while releases from Lake Okeechobee

account for the remaining 25%. In 1995, the basin accounted for only 55% of the total discharges and releases from the Lake for the remaining 45%. The daily record of discharge at S-79 clearly depicts the difference between a long-term average wet season and the wet season of 1995 (Figure 6-5). During the first 3 months of the 1995 wet season, discharge was derived almost entirely from basin runoff. Peak flow events in early and late June correspond to Hurricane Alison (June 2-5) and an unnamed storm (June 18-24). During August, September, and October a series of storms continued to control runoff from the Caloosahatchee Basin. Peak basin discharge events in early and late August reflect the influence of Hurricane Erin (August 1-3) and Tropical Storm Jerry (August 23-26). The bimodal pattern of basin discharge in October stems from Hurricane Opal (October 5-6) and an unnamed tropical storm (October 14-19). The feature that distinguishes the first three months of the wet season from the last three months is the contribution of releases from Lake Okeechobee to the total (Figure 6-5). The contribution of the Lake to the total discharge is represented by the space between the two lines on Figure 6-5. Erin, Jerry, Opal, and the unnamed, mid-October tropical storm necessitated regulatory releases from the Lake. Lake releases dominated total discharge at S-79 during mid-August and for most of September. The maximum daily discharge for the wet season (17,288 cfs) occurred in October. The last daily discharge exceeding 17,000 cfs occurred in 1982.

The long-term average record (Figure 6-5) suggests that the flow envelope established by Chamberlain et al. (1995) is most often exceeded from mid-June to mid-July and again during the month of August. September and October discharges are less likely to exceed the maximum recommended discharge of 2800 cfs. Discharges during the May through August period of the 1995 wet season conformed to this average picture. Unlike the long-term average condition, discharges at S-79 exceeded 2800 cfs for the entire October-September period. The time-series of calculated basin discharge underscores the effects of regulatory discharges from Lake Okeechobee. Had regulatory releases not occurred, even in this relatively wet year, flow to the Caloosahatchee at S-79 would have fallen within the envelope for short periods in August and September, and would have returned to biotically acceptable levels by the end of the wet season. Regulatory releases prevented this from happening.

#### Impacts on Salinity and Submerged Aquatic Vegetation

The time-series of salinity from the continuous recorders indicated that from July to the end of October the estuary was entirely fresh at least down to Ft. Myers. Records indicate that salinity at Shell Point and at the Sanibel Causeway declined from June to the end of July, falling below 20 ppt for extended periods. Analysis of survey data from the Caloosahatchee (Chamberlain et al. 1995), indicates that the abundance of both shoal grass (*Halodule wrightii*) and turtle grass (*Thalassia* 



FIGURE 6-5. Daily Discharge (cfs) at Structure S-79 and from the Caloosahatchee Watershed (Basin) During the Wet Season.

۰.

*testudinum*) tends to be low when salinities fall below 20 ppt. The sensors at Shell Point and the Sanibel Causeway are located on either side of San Carlos Bay. Data from these sensors indicate that salinities fell below 20 ppt in San Carlos Bay at least during August and early September and suggest potential impacts on the sea grass beds in this region of the system (Figure 6-6).

The abundance of shoal grass in San Carlos Bay was almost certainly impacted by the high discharges experienced during the wet season of 1995 (Figure 6-7). During May and June when discharges were similar to prior years, the density of shoal grass was also comparable to previous years. During August, September and October when discharges were higher than expected, shoal grass density was far below average. By contrast, turtle grass did not appear as clearly affected as shoal grass. Turtle grass is more robust than shoal grass and its roots and rhizomes are more deeply buried in the sediment. Thus its response to environmental perturbation may be slower and less pronounced.

It is difficult to establish cause and effect from observational data such as these. However, it seems clear that the abnormally low densities of *Halodule wrightii* in San Carlos Bay were associated either directly or indirectly with the high discharges occurring during the 1995 wet season. From August through October, the period of greatest sea grass decline, these high discharges were rendered even higher by regulatory releases from Lake Okeechobee. The potential contribution of these regulatory releases to the decline in *Halodule wrightii* cannot be dismissed and deserves further scrutiny in the future.



FIGURE 6-6. Salinity in the Caloosahatchee Estuary During the 1995 Wet Season. Data are from Continuous Conductivity Recorders.



FIGURE 6-7. S-79 Mean daily discharge 30 days prior to sampling seagrass (top). *Halodule* and *Thallasia* blade density San Carlos Bay.

#### St. Lucie Estuary Watershed

The St. Lucie Estuary is located on the southeastern coast of Florida, encompassing portions of both Martin and St. Lucie Counties within the watershed. The North Fork and South Fork flow together at the Roosevelt Bridge near the City of Stuart, and then flow eastward approximately six miles to the Indian River Lagoon and the Atlantic Ocean at the St. Lucie Inlet (Figure 6-8). Tidal influences in the North Fork reach 15 miles north of Stuart at Five-Mile Creek, and to a water control structure on Ten-Mile Creek just west of the Florida Turnpike. Tidal influences in the South Fork extend about eight miles south of Stuart to the St. Lucie Lock and Dam (S-80) on the St. Lucie Canal and into the extremes of the Old South Fork tributary.

The St. Lucie Estuary is divided into three major areas: the inner estuary, comprised of the North and South Forks; the mid-estuary, consisting of the area from the juncture of the North and South Forks to Hell Gate; and the outer estuary extending past Hell Gate into the Intracoastal Waterway and the St. Lucie Inlet. The main body of the North Fork is about four miles long, with a surface area of approximately 4.5 square miles. The South Fork is approximately half the size of the North Fork with a surface area of about 1.9 square miles. The mid-estuary extends approximately five miles from the Roosevelt Bridge to Hell Gate and has an area similar to the North Fork (4.7 square miles).

While the St. Lucie Estuary encompasses about 8 square miles, the watershed covers an area of almost 775 square miles. The watershed is divided into eight basins, five major and three minor ones (Figure 6-8). Three of these major basins, the C-23, C-24, and C-44, represent basins now draining to the estuary through primary canals. In addition to drainage from within the C-44 basin, the C-44 Canal (St. Lucie Canal) also conveys flood control discharges from Lake Okeechobee to the St. Lucie Estuary. The other two major basins, the North Fork and the Tidal Basin, include numerous drainage connections to the St. Lucie Estuary.

Numerous physical drainage modifications have been made within the St. Lucie Estuary watershed. Beginning in the early 1900s, canals and water control facilities were constructed. The St. Lucie Canal (C-44) was constructed between 1916 and 1924 to provide an improved outlet for Lake Okeechobee flood waters. In 1918 the North St. Lucie River Drainage District, now the North St. Lucie Water Control District (NSLWCD), was formed. A system of canals and control structures was designed to provide flood control for about 75,000 acres in the North Fork Basin. As part of this project, Five-Mile and Ten-Mile Creeks were channelized to increase drainage. The C-24 Canal was constructed to provide drainage west of the



 $(x,y) \in [0,\infty)$ 

Sec. Sec. Sec.

FIGURE 6-8. St. Lucie Estuary Watershed

NSLWCD. The C-23 provided drainage to the St. Lucie Estuary for the Allapattah Flats Marsh.

Following severe flooding in 1947, the U.S. Congress authorized the design and construction of the Central and South Florida Flood Control (C&SF) Project. The C-23, C-24, and C-44 canals were improved under the C&SF Project.

#### Salinity Envelope for the St. Lucie Estuary

To determine appropriate water quantity inflows to the estuary, reasonable biological indicators with definable salinity preferences must be chosen along with its desired range within the estuary. Highly dynamic conditions within systems, such as the St. Lucie Estuary, discourage the use of transient, adaptable indicators such as fishes which can be readily influenced by short-term conditions caused by the weathering of soils (edaphic conditions) rather than weather conditions. However, fishes and other biota would be considered in a final evaluation. Within northern portions of the Indian River Lagoon, the salinity tolerance of clam larvae has provided a basis for evaluating the appropriate freshwater inflows to the system.

The long-term salinity regime within the St. Lucie Estuary can be assessed based upon favorable salinity conditions for the oyster and shoal grass. Oyster populations are most abundant in salinities over a range from about 5 to 18 ppt, and the lowest salinity tolerated by shoal grass is near 3 ppt. To maintain viable oyster and shoal grass populations within the St. Lucie Estuary, flows from contributing basins must be managed such that the aggregate flow maintains salinities within the appropriate salinity range over the appropriate geographic area of the estuary. An inflow/salinity model was used to generate St. Lucie Estuary inflow/salinity curves for the inner and middle estuary. Historical oyster and shoal grass distributions within the estuary have been compared to the inflow/salinity curves to develop a preliminary "salinity envelope" for the St. Lucie Estuary which is 350 to 1500 cfs (Figure 6-9).

#### Analysis of the 1995 Wet Season Flows

Since a salinity envelope has been established for the estuary, the distribution of historical wet season flows can be assessed in relation to desired levels of flow that would allow oysters and shoal grass to populate the estuary. Figure 6-10 shows that flows greater than 1500 cfs have occurred numerous times during the period of record (May through December, 1965 through 1990). Clearly, from an historical perspective, the salinity envelope is violated frequently enough to nearly exclude oyster and shoal grass populations from developing in the inner estuary.









#### **St. Lucie Estuary**

Flows to the St. Lucie Estuary that occurred during the 1995 wet season (Table 6-1) were evaluated by comparing them to the historical flows (Figure 6-10). Inflows during August through November severely violated the salinity envelope (Figure 6-9) to the point that the entire estuary was freshwater for these four months. The inflow of 9,864 cfs in October has not been experienced in the estuary for over 40 years. Even without regulatory discharges from Lake Okeechobee, watershed runoff alone far exceeded the salinity envelope from August to October.

Month	S-80	S-97	S-49	South Fork	North Fork	Total Flow with L.O.	Total Flow without L.O.
May	52	0	0	0	0	52	0
June	203	41	17	6	17	284	81
July	175	186	224	75	224	879	709
August	2648	1212	1288	430	1288	6866	4218
September	3479	673	724	241	724	5841	2362
October	4054	1799	1719	573	1719	9864	5810
November	3700	16	58	19	58	3851	151
December	988	0	0	0	0	988	0

TABLE 6-1.	Wet Season	1995 Flows	to the	St. Lucie	Estuarv
------------	------------	------------	--------	-----------	---------

#### **Indian River Lagoon**

From field observations of the St. Lucie Estuary and adjacent Indian River Lagoon, it has been noted that, if total flows to the estuary are under about 2,000 cfs, there is minimal exchange of estuarine waters with Indian River Lagoon waters north and south of the St. Lucie Inlet. However, when flows exceed about 2,000 cfs for more than a month, water exchange begins to become apparent. As flows increase above 2,000 cfs, salinity in the lagoon decreases more rapidly. In addition, if north winds occur while flows are greater than approximately 2,500 cfs, additional estuarine waters are driven south in the Intracoastal Waterway towards Jupiter Inlet. Table 6-1 shows that flows much greater than 2,000 cfs occurred between August and November 1995, with flows ranging from about 3,800 to 10,000 cfs.

Salinities in the Indian River Lagoon between Ft. Pierce Inlet and the Jupiter Inlet rarely are less than 25 ppt. Exceptions to this are most often related to extreme wet seasons and regulatory discharges from Lake Okeechobee. Figures 6-11 and 6-12 demonstrate how the 1995 wet season flows affected the salinity of the Indian River Lagoon during this wet season. The salinity distribution has been partitioned into three categories. The first category is 26 to 35 ppt, representing salinities most favorable to marine organisms that utilize the Indian River Lagoon between Jupiter and Ft. Pierce. The second category is 19 to 25 ppt, or caution areas where salinities have decreased and may become low enough to be represented in the third (0 to 18 ppt). Once the salinity reaches about 18 ppt and continues to decline, marine organisms with limited mobility (e.g. marine snails and clams) will be severely stressed and may perish. Figure 6-11, depicts conditions on October 9, 1995; it reveals a large area north and a limited area south of the St. Lucie Inlet that is being exposed to severe salinity stress. Large discharges continued and on November 9, 1995, the category 3, (0 to 18 ppt) had moved north and south, and included a large portion of the lagoon between the St. Lucie and Jupiter Inlets (Figure 6-12). Field observations on January 9, 1996 revealed that salinities had returned to normal levels.

As the amount of color and suspended material in the water increases, the depth of appropriate light penetration required to support photosynthesis of submerged aquatic vegetation decreases rapidly. Therefore the introduction of colored, turbid water to the Indian River Lagoon can have severe impacts on the health of submerged aquatic vegetation, especially those located in the deeper areas.

Although the density of submerged aquatic vegetation is naturally low during the winter months, some vegetation is usually present. Field observations on November 9, 1995 showed that nearly all of the submerged aquatic vegetation was absent along established sea grass transects throughout the study area. It is speculated that defoliation resulted, since the transparency of the water was reduced dramatically during the large releases. The potential for the sea grasses to recover depends on the length of time the roots are able to survive under the stressful conditions.

#### **Environmental Issues: St. Lucie Estuary and Indian River Lagoon**

The estuarine environment is sensitive to freshwater inflows, and modification of the quality, quantity and timing of these inflows can cause severe stress upon the entire ecosystem. The entire watershed of the St. Lucie Estuary has been extensively modified and increased in size due to agricultural and residential development. Major effects of these man-made alterations are increased drainage, manifested by a lowered groundwater table and dramatic changes in storm water runoff characteristics. Typically, when a watershed is well drained like the St. Lucie Estuary watershed, all three freshwater runoff factors (quality, quantity and timing) are



**FIGURE 6-11.** Salinity distribution in the Indian River Lagoon (November 9, 1995).

.



FIGURE 6-12. Salinity distribution in the Indian River Lagoon (November 9, 1995).



FIGURE 6-13. Florida Bay.

#### **Rainfall and Freshwater Discharge**

In Florida Bay, as in other areas of South Florida, very high rainfall occurred during the 1995 wet season. Rainfall during the 1995 water year (November 1994-October 1995) was the highest ever recorded at S-18C and wet season rainfall was the second highest on record at 52 inches (Figure 6-14). Periods of heavy rainfall occurred during June, August, September and October. S-18C had a monthly average rainfall of 9.1 inches during this period. The rainfall pattern at the Joe Bay station in northeastern Florida Bay was similar to that of S-18C, with a monthly average of 7.7 inches in June through September, compared to an average of 9.1 inches at S-18C.

With the record rainfall of 1995, fresh water discharge to the southern Everglades also reached record levels. Fresh water flow past the Taylor Slough bridge during the 1995 wet season was 57,000 acre-feet, the second highest on record. Wet season flow into Taylor Slough has continued to increase since the drought of 1989.

Along with large discharges into Taylor Slough, fresh water flow through lower C-111 reached a record level. It is estimated that over 193,000 acre-feet flowed past S-18C during the 1995 wet season (Figure 6-15) and this quantity greatly exceeded all previous wet season totals. Thus, the absolute amount of water entering Taylor Slough was very high in 1995, and much more water continued to be diverted to the east through C-111.

Water that flowed from the southern part of C-111 (Figure 6-16) generally followed one of two paths: it either flowed out through the C-111 gaps toward Joe Bay and Long Sound, or it flowed through S-197 into Manatee Bay when the S-197 culverts were opened. With high water levels and the potential for flooding that existed in the 1995 wet season, the S-197 culverts were open during 55 days of the 1995 wet season, allowing more than 94,000 acre-feet to flow into Manatee Bay. The number of days and the flow volume were the highest for S-197 since measurements began in 1970. Peak flows of 4700 to 5100 acre-feet per day from S-197 occurred from June 22 to 24, 1995. These rates were only exceeded by flows during June 1992.

#### Salinity in Manatee Bay and Florida Bay

Salinity decreased in Manatee Bay and Florida Bay during the 1995 wet season as a result of the high rainfall and fresh water discharge volumes. At a station near the southern end of Manatee Bay (near Barnes Sound), salinity dropped from 26 ppt in May 1995 to 15 ppt in October 1995 (Figure 6-17). Salinity at this station has exhibited a pattern of decline since monitoring began in 1991, following the 1989-1990 drought.



FIGURE 6-14. Rainfall in the Southern Everglades (S-18C).



FIGURE 6-15. Water flow in Taylor Slough and Southern C-111.



FIGURE 6-16. Water Flow from Southern C-111.



FIGURE 6-17. Salinity in Manatee Bay.

Florida Bay has followed the same general pattern of decreasing salinity since 1991. Salinity time-series data for three Florida Bay stations, Duck Key, Joe Bay, and Whipray Basin, are shown in Figure 6-18. As in Manatee Bay, salinity in Joe Bay followed a regular seasonal pattern of increasing during the dry season and decreasing during the wet season. At the beginning of the 1995 wet season, salinity was 15 ppt, but from August through November 1995, water was nearly fresh in Joe Bay, with 1.5 ppt to 0.2 ppt salinity. Salinity at Duck Key was higher than in Joe Bay, but a record low salinity of 13 ppt was measured in October 1995. Salinity in Whipray Basin followed a different seasonal pattern than is found in the northeastern Bay, with salinity peaking during the summer and reaching its lowest point during the winter. This station is less directly influenced by fresh water runoff from the Everglades than are the northeastern bay stations. Despite this difference, the general pattern of decreasing salinity since 1991 was found in Whipray Basin, with a record low salinity of 20 ppt being measured in November 1995.

#### Water Quality in Florida Bay

Chlorophyll *a* concentrations at two Florida Bay stations are shown in Figure 6-19, top panel. Chlorophyll *a* in the water is indicative of the concentration of phytoplankton in the water. These data illustrate the absence of phytoplankton blooms in eastern Florida Bay and the occurrence of blooms in central Florida Bay. At Duck Key, chlorophyll concentrations remained below  $1 \mu g/L$  during the 1995 wet season. In Whipray Basin, elevated chlorophyll concentrations were first observed in September 1992 and have varied widely since that time. However, during the late 1995 dry season and early 1995 wet season, chlorophyll concentrations did drop to their lowest level since 1992. This trend, which potentially indicated an end to the bay's algal blooms, reversed in October, with high chlorophyll levels once again.

Total phosphorus concentrations at these two Florida Bay stations also reflect marked regional differences within the Bay (Figure 6-19, middle panel). While phosphorus was very low (generally < 10  $\mu$ g/L) at Duck Key in the eastern bay, Whipray Basin in the central basin has much higher total phosphorus (generally 15 to 40  $\mu$ g/L). However, total phosphorus concentrations were relatively low in 1995.

Total nitrogen concentrations at these Florida Bay stations show a regional pattern similar to the total phosphorus pattern, with lower nutrient concentrations in the eastern bay than in the central bay (Figure 6-19, bottom panel). However, the absolute value of these concentrations is much higher for nitrogen than for phosphorus in both regions. Total nitrogen concentrations in 1995 were similar to concentrations measured since 1991.







FIGURE 6-18. Salinity in Florida Bay.



FIGURE 6-19. Water quality in eastern (Duck Key) and central (Whipray Basin) Florida Bay.

Thus, while the inflow of fresh water to Florida Bay during the 1995 wet season reached record levels, there was no dramatic change in the water quality of the bay.While water quality problems (particularly phytoplankton blooms and high turbidity) persist in the central bay, these problems were apparently not aggravated by increased fresh water flow to the bay.

#### Sea Grass Status

During the past year, FDEP scientists conducted extensive monitoring of sea grasses throughout most of Florida Bay, with over 300 sample sites within 10 basins (personal communication, Dr. M. Durako). Results from this effort showed that *Thalassia* die-off is continuing in western Rabbit Key basin and Johnson Key basin. Furthermore, *Thalassia* was found to be declining in the Twin Key basin. Elsewhere in the bay, little change has occurred; neither further die-off nor recovery was evident for *Thalassia*. Information regarding *Halodule* change is incomplete at this time, but no widespread growth of *Halodule* in die-off areas is evident.

The status of sea grasses along the coast of northeastern Florida Bay and Manatee Bay is being monitored by Dade DERM, with funding from the District and in coordination with the FDEP monitoring program. From October 1993 through September 1995, little change was noted in the abundance or biomass of *Thalassia* in northeastern Florida Bay. This species is the dominant sea grass at 4 of the 6 monitoring sites (Long sound, Trout Cove, the mouth of Little Madeira Bay, and the mouth of the Taylor River), with mean abundances of 210 to 410 shoots/m<sup>2</sup> at these sites. As expected, greater changes were found for *Halodule* and *Ruppia*, which dominate the two remaining sites (Joe Bay and Highway Creek). In Joe Bay, both species decreased from 1994 to 1995, while in Highway Creek, *Halodule* decreased and *Ruppia* increased over this time.

The status of sea grasses in Manatee Bay and Barnes Sound is also of concern, given the large releases of water from S197 during the 1995 wet season. These releases appear to have had little impact on these sea grasses. Note, however, that evidence of negative effects of fall and summer releases may not be evident until this spring. Two sites in Manatee Bay (M1 in the northeastern part, and M3 at the southern channel to Barnes Sound) were dominated by *Thalassia*, averaging 380 shoots/m<sup>2</sup> and 250 shoots/m<sup>2</sup>, respectively, over the past 6 years. These populations have changed little over this time. The third site in Manatee Bay (M2) is near the outlet of C-111 and is dominated by *Halodule*, with mean abundance of 1650 shoots/m<sup>2</sup> (Figure 6-20a). This population fluctuated seasonally, with wet season peaks from 1989 to the present. A peak mean abundance of 3250 shoots/m<sup>2</sup> population was measured during the 1993 wet season. A decline did occur during the past year, but in December 1995, there were still 1820 shoots/m<sup>2</sup>.



FIGURE 6-20. Sea Grass Abundance in Manatee Bay near C-111.

Thalassia shoot abundance at Manatee Bay station M2, near the outlet of C-111, increased slightly during the 1995 wet season, from a mean of 107 shoots/m<sup>2</sup> in March 1995 to 147 shoots/m<sup>2</sup> in September 1995 (Figure 6-20b). *Thalassia* at this station was quite patchy, with almost all of the shoots occurring at only one of three fixed plots. Nevertheless, a clear trend has been observed at M2, with the growth of *Thalassia* from near zero abundance in 1989 to current levels. Low abundance in 1989 may have been caused by the large releases of water from S197 that occurred in 1988 (personal communication, D. Haunert); following this discharge, *Thalassia* mortality was qualitatively observed.

and the second 
### Conclusions

- 1. Unusually high rainfall during 1995 resulted in record levels for freshwater inflows and discharges into Florida Bay. Rainfall during the 1995 water year was the highest ever recorded at S-18C and wet season rainfall was the second highest on record. The fresh water which flowed past the Taylor Slough bridge during the wet season was the second highest on record and freshwater discharges through the lower C-111 and the S-197 culverts reached record levels.
- 2. Salinity continued the general pattern of decline it has exhibited since 1991, reaching record lows in Joe Bay, Duck Key, and Whipray Basin.
- 3. Phytoplankton blooms and high turbidity persist in the central bay, but the increased inflow of fresh water into the bay does not appear to have aggravated the water quality problems.
- 4. The effects of the high fresh water inflows on sea grasses varied depending upon location and species. In the northeastern portion of the bay little change was noted in the abundance or biomass of *Thalassia*, while greater changes occurred with *Halodule* and *Ruppia*. The releases of water from S197 have had little impact on sea grasses in Manatee Bay and Barnes Sound.

# **CHAPTER 7**

#### WATER QUALITY CONDITIONS

## ANALYSIS OF WATER QUALITY

A wet year, such as 1995, can impact water quality by moving nutrients and sediments that have accumulated through the water conveyance system. As a result, both concentrations and loads tend to be higher than those expected during a year with average rainfall. If rainfall intensities are such that a lot of sediment materials are not dislodged and transported with the storm runoff, resulting loads may be high, but the overall concentration of nutrients will be low due to dilution by the relatively pure rainwater.

In this section, time series graphs are presented for total phosphorus (**TP**), total nitrogen (**TN**), and total suspended solids (**TSS**), for all structures where sufficient data have been collected for interpretation of water quality trends. Each graph is identified with a structure name or location. All time series graphs are in monthly time increments to show seasonality and major storms. Each graph contains data for the period of record to provide an historical perspective.

For all structures, three groups of graphs are provided. The "a" time series plots for total phosphorous (TP) load (metric tons) and flow (cubic meters per day) are designated by a generic caption of "xxxTPC.mth," where xxx is a specified station name. The "b" time series plots total nitrogen (TN) and total suspended solid (TSS) load (metric tons), and have the generic caption of "xxx.lod". At sites where TSS data are not available, a dotted line is plotted across the graph at 0. The "c" time series plots TP and TN concentration (mg/L) and total nitrogen concentration (mg/L) are labeled with the generic caption of "xxx.cnc". At sites where the 1995 data did not document any notable deviation in loads or concentrations from the historical record, graphs "b" or "c" are not included in the report.

Time series plots depict monthly historical flow through the structures and reflect the material load of P, TN and TSS. Displaying flow, loading and concentration data allows the reader to interpret water quality observed at a particular location. Material load is calculated by the flow volume multiplied by the material concentration in that volume. It is important to note that monthly concentrations are flow weighted values and that TSS were not measured at all structures.

#### **KISSIMMEE RIVER WATER QUALITY**

The chain of lakes north of the Kissimmee River are the headwaters of the Everglades watershed. S65 is the first major structure that controls flow from the headwater, however, flow and material concentrations are measured at five additional structures downstream. In this report, we include graphics for three of the five structures, as well as for two structures along the flow from Lake Istokpoga. Additional water from surrounding improved pastures join the flow at these and other structures. Most of the water and material passing through these structures eventually flows into Lake Okeechobee.

and a second 
Due to the high volume of rain which fell during 1995, the total flow volume at most structures was the highest it has been in over 10 years with the exceptions of S65C, which is located in the middle section of the Kissimmee River valley, and S154, located about 5 miles northwest of Lake Okeechobee. In most cases, high material loads in 1995 can be directly attributed to high flow volumes. At structure S65, the increase of P loads was greater than the increase of flow volume (Figure 7-1) which indicates that some movement of P from the improved pastures occurred in the headwater area. However, TN and TSS (Figure 7-2) did not show the same increase relative to historical records. These observations are consistent with the concentration data shown in Figure 7-3.

The recorded flow and loads through S65C were well within the range of values seen in earlier years (Figure 7-4). The TP and TN became somewhat diluted at S65E due to the heavy rains, but the loads remained high (Figures 7-5 and 7-6); no data were available for total suspended solids. Relatively high TN loads and concentrations were recorded at several on the Kissimmee River. The large water volume out of Lake Istokpoga through structures S68 and S84 (Figures 7-7 and 7-10) carried very high loads of nitrogen (Figures 7-8 and 7-11). However, the loads for TP and TSS through these structures were within the range of values commonly seen over the last 10 years. Concentrations (Figures 7-9 and 7-12) reflect relatively greater amounts of nitrogen than phosphorus in 1995, although recorded concentrations are not out of the ordinary for these structures. At S154 neither TP nor TN loads were not very high compared to historical load (Figures 7-13 and 7-14). Total suspended solids was not recorded at S154.



FIGURE 7-1. Historical Monthly Total PhosphorusLload and Water Flow at S65.



FIGURE 7-2. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S65.


**FIGURE 7-3.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S65.



FIGURE 7-4. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S65C.



FIGURE 7-5. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S65E.



FIGURE 7-6. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S65E.



FIGURE 7-7. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S68.



FIGURE 7-8. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended solids at S68.



FIGURE 7-9. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S68.



FIGURE 7-10. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S84.



FIGURE 7-11. Historical Monthly total Nitrogen and Total suspended Solids at S84.



**FIGURE 7-12.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S84.



FIGURE 7-13. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S154.



FIGURE 7-14. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S154.



FIGURE 7-13. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S154.



FIGURE 7-14. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S154.

## LAKE OKEECHOBEE WATER QUALITY

Many of the figures in this section are routinely reported every three months in the District's Water Quality Conditions Report. For this report, data from the Water Quality Conditions quarterly report up through September 1995 are included. Provisional data have been used to update the dataset through the end of December 1995.

Algal chlorophyll <u>a</u> values from samples collected in the months of October through December 1995 are shown in Figures 7-15, 7-16, and 7-17. A total of 71 chlorophyll samples are included in the summary of this three-month period; values displayed in the figures are 14, 25, and 32, respectively. This variation in the numbers of data points reflects normal seasonal changes in sampling frequency and location, and samples missed due to weather conditions. These chlorophyll <u>a</u> maps are generated using the Kriging method, a process which involves regionalizing and smoothing the point data.

Data collected during this three-month period indicates that moderate bloom conditions (over 40 ppb, parts per billion chlorophyll <u>a</u>) were present at 29 of 71 sampled sites. However no concentration reported was over 60 ppb, a level corresponding to a dense algal bloom. All told, the frequency of algal blooms in Lake Okeechobee was not unusually high during 1995 in comparison to other recent years.





19.24.5 24 1





Lake Okeechobee Chlorophyll a Concentration (ppb) for November **FIGURE 7-16.** 1995.



**FIGURE 7-17.** Lake Okeechobee Chlorophyll <u>a</u> Concentration (ppb) for December 1995.

# LAKE OKEECHOBEE PHOSPHORUS INPUTS AND TRENDS

Performance Standards and Trends

This section charts the progress toward achieving the phosphorus management goals as stated in the Lake Okeechobee SWIM plan. The Plan sets a target of 0.18 milligrams per liter (mg/L = ppm, parts per million) for lake inflows that have elevated phosphorus concentrations. Other inflows with lower concentrations are limited to their historical flow-weighted averages.

To show the performance standards and trends, Figure 7-18 displays flowweighted TP concentrations for the Lower Kissimmee River at C-38 and S-154. Data for Fisheating Creek and Taylor Creek/Nubbin Slough (S-191) basins are provided in Figure 7-19. These plots are 12-month moving flow-weighted averages; the last data point of each time series reflects the flow-weighted phosphorus concentration for the year ending December 31, 1995. For the Lower Kissimmee River basin, TP loads at S-65 (Lake Kissimmee) are subtracted from those at S-65E before calculating the flowweighted concentration.

As shown in these figures, average TP concentrations at S-154 and S191 wer e above the 0.18 mg/L target concentration at about 1.1 amd 0.7 mg/L, respectively, for 1995. However, measured TP concentrations at S-191 have generally shown a declining trend during the past ten years. The most recently calculated TP concentration for S-191 is 55% less than the maximum 12-month moving average concentration recorded in March 1982. The TP concentration at C-38 (0.24 mg/L) is above the target level, while the TP concentration at Fisheating Creek (0.12 mg/L) is less than the target level. The large water inflow volume for 1995 conmtributed to the increases in load values, particularly at S154. S154C38.pst



FIGURE 7-18. Phosphorus Concentrations for S-154 and C-38 Basins - 12-Month Moving Flow-Weighted Values.



**FIGURE 7-19.** Phosphorus Concentrations for S-191 and Fisheating Creek Basins; 12-Month Moving Flow-Weighted Values.

## Loading Trends

In the 1987 SWIM Act, the District was directed to design and implement a program to protect the water quality of Lake Okeechobee. The Act stated that this program "shall be designed to result, by July 1, 1992, in reduction of phosphorus loadings to the lake by the amount specified as excess in the South Florida Water Management District's Technical Publication 81-2."

In Technical Publication 81-2, the amount of excess phosphorus was estimated by a modified version of the Vollenweider (1976) phosphorus loading model. The target loading rate is a function of how much water enters the lake and how long that water resides in the lake. Therefore, the target loads will fluctuate due to hydrologic variability.

To compare Lake Okeechobee's phosphorus loads to the model's target loading rate, the actual and target loads were computed for successive 12-month periods. The difference between the actual and the target loads shown in Figure 7-20 for the year ending September 30, 1995 is about 260 tons (1 ton = 2000 pounds). The increases in loading above the target level for 1995 are due primarily to heavy rainfall and associated increases in phosphorus inputs to the lake. The secondary cause is that the target loading rate leveled off during this period due to high lake stages and tributary inflows caused by heavy rainfall. These two factors combined to reduce water residence time, which is a key component of the loading model. Loading values for 1995 exceeded the target by a level comparable to that recorded in 1990 and 1993. This exceedance is not unexpected for a very wet season with the volume of stormwater runoff well above average.



FIGURE 7-20. Actual and Target Total Phosphorus Load for Lake Okeechobee.

## Inflows from the North to Lake Okeechobee

While direct rainfall contributes most of the water to the lake, most nutrients and other materials are transported to and from Lake Okeechobee by stream flows. In 1995, the total flow into the lake from the north was the greatest since 1979. TP loads at many of the inflow points from the north were high, with some reaching levels not seen in over ten years. Data on TP loads for this unusual year are displayed in Figures 7-21, 7-24, 7-27, 7-30, 77-33, 7-36, 7-39, 7-42, and 7-45. Phosphorus inputs were the highest recorded in over ten years at 7 of the 9 structures evaluated for this section of the lake .

Time series plots of TN and TSS entering Lake Okeechobee from the north are shown in Figures 7-22, 7-25, 7-31, 7-34, 7-37, 7-40, 7-43 and 7-46. As expected, the high material loads for TN are associated with corresponding increases in flow volume. In 1995, TN and TSS loads through S133, S127, S72 and S131 were the highest ever recorded. Higher-than-normal nutrient concentrations were also recorded at some of these stations (Figures 7-23, 7-26, 7-29, 7-32, 7-35, 7-38, 7-41, 7-44 and 7-47). The highest TP concentration since 1980 was observed at S135. Furthermore, a reversal in the downward trend in nutrient concentrations was recorded at S191, S133, S127, S71 and S131. Overall, waters moving into Lake Okeechobee from the north carried very high nutrient and solids loads associated with the large volume of stormwater runoff during the 1995 wet season.



FIGURE 7-21. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S133.



**FIGURE 7-22.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S133.



FIGURE 7-23. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total NitrogenConcentrations at S133.



FIGURE 7-24. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Flow at S191.



**FIGURE 7-25.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S191.



**FIGURE 7-26.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S191.



FIGURE 7-27. Historical monthly total phosphorus load and flow at S127.



**FIGURE 7-28.** Historical Monthly Yotal Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S127.



**FIGURE 7-29.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S127.



FIGURE 7-30. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S72.



FIGURE 7-31. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S72.



FIGURE 7-32. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S72.



FIGURE 7-33. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S135.



**FIGURE 7-34.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S135.



**FIGURE 7-35.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Cconcentrations at S135.



FIGURE 7-36. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S71.



FIGURE 7-37. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S71.



**FIGURE 7-38.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S71.



**FIGURE 7-39.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S129.

S129.lod



**FIGURE 7-40.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S129.



FIGURE 7-41. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrationsat S129.

.





**FIGURE 7-42.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S131.

S131.lod



**FIGURE 7-43.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S131.



**FIGURE 7-44.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S131.



**FIGURE 7-45.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow for Fisheating Creek at SR 78.



**FIGURE 7-46.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids for Fisheating Creek at SR 78.



**FIGURE 7-47.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations for Fisheating Creek at SR78.

# **Outflows from Lake Okeechobee to Estuaries**

Water moves from Lake Okeechobee to estuaries on both the eastern and western coasts of the Florida peninsula. On the eastern shore of Lake Okeechobee, the St. Lucie Canal provides the connection between the lake and the Indian River Lagoon, an estuary on Florida's east coast. Water from the lake is important to the estuary in that it can moderate the salinity and nutrient budget of the ecosystem or harm the biota if high flows persist for long durations. The quality of water flowing to the St. Lucie Canal is assessed at S-308, the point of inflow from the lake to the canal (Figures 7-48, 7-49 and 7-50). Even though the material loads were high in 1995, water quality in terms of concentrations was within the range of values commonly seen at this structure. As water moves down the canal to S80 (the point at which it moves from the canal into the estuary) it is subject to some loss of materials through settling, dilution by surface water runoff and chemical changes within the canal. Materials are added from local surface inflows into the St. Lucie Canal is quite similar to that entering, as can be seen in Figures 7-51, 7-52, and 7-53.

To the west, the quality of water discharging into the estuary of the Caloosahatchee River is monitored at S79. Flow through this sturcture was higher than has been seen in over 10 years, but phosphorus loading was quite typical for this location (Figure 7-54). Nitrogen loading through S79 was high during 1995, but within the range of values seen repeatedly during the period of record (Figure 7-55).

Both TP and TN concentrations (Figure 7-56) were within the bounds of earlier data, although phosphorus there appears to be a decline since 1993.


Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S80.



6

**FIGURE 7-49.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S80.



**FIGURE 7-50.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S80.



FIGURE 7-51. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S308.



FIGURE 7-52. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S308.

204



FIGURE 7-53. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S308.

### Outflows from Lake Okeechobee to the South

Water moving through structures located along the southern rim of Lake Okeechobee, including L8.441, S352, S4, S236, and S3, affects the quality of agricultural, urban, and ecological water supply downstream. Water quality at these stations on the south side of the Lake is depicted in Figures 7-57 through 7-74. At L8.441, both nutrient loads and concentrations remained unchanged from recent years, and were within the range commonly seen over the last twenty years. Relatively high flows were pumped through both S352 and S236 in 1995, but somewhat lower concentrations of TP and TN were reported than in previous years. At S3, both flow and loading were quite low for 1995; however records from S4 show the highest flow volume and TN load seen in recent years.

Several culverts provide local drainage into the lake from the south side. Flow from these structures is relatively small in volume but is often high in nutrient concentrations (Figures 7-72, 7-73, and 7-74). In 1995, Culverts 12A and 4A showed TP loads and flow levels that were quite typical of those recorded over the period of record since 1978. Culvert 12 recorded very high TP loading for this year.



FIGURE 7-57. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at L8.441.



L8.441.lod

FIGURE 7-58. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at L8.441.



**FIGURE 7-59.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at L8.441.





FIGURE 7-60. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S352.

110 1400 100 1300 (metric ton(s)) 1200 Total Nitrogen (metric ton(s)) 90 1100 80 1000 70 900 Solids ( 800 60 ------700 50 Total Suspended 600 40 500 1 30 400 300 20 200 10 100 Ŵ 0 0 JUN78 JUN79 JUZOC JUN81 J U N 8 3 Ŭ N B 2 10488 7 G Z O L 2 5 1 1 1 1 1 JUZ94 UN B 9 10491 JUN 95 Ŭ N 9 0 10196 8 DATE IN Load TSS Load

S352.lod

FIGURE 7-61. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S352.



**FIGURE 7-62.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S352.

.



FIGURE 7-66. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S236.

S236.lod



FIGURE 7-67. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S236.



**FIGURE 7-68.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S236.



FIGURE 7-69. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S3.

S3.lod



FIGURE 7-70. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S3.

217



FIGURE 7-71. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S3.





**FIGURE 7-72.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at Culvert 12A.

CULV.12TPC.mth



**FIGURE 7-73**. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at Culvert 12.



**FIGURE 7-74.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at Culvert 4A.

## **Everglades Agricultural Area**

The Everglades Regulatory Program for the Everglades Agricultural Area (EAA), described in Rule 40E-63,F.A.C., mandates reduction of total phosphorus discharges from the EAA to the Everglades. The Rule requires that for the period May 1 through April 30 of each year beginning in 1996, the annual TP load from the EAA is to be reduced by 25% relative to the base period of 1979-1988. The 25% TP load reduction target is to be achieved by implementing on-farm best management practices (BMPs).

Although the deadline for meeting the 25% load reduction target is not until April 30, 1996, the EAA basin discharge loads are monitored to track the progress made towards the goal. The annual percent TP load reduction achieved in the EAA is shown in Figure 7-75. To achieve a 25% load reduction, the basin load should be less than 75% of the base period load adjusted by annual rainfall. For the most recent period (1994-95), the EAA basin achieved approximately 31% TP load reduction, as certified by the Governing Board on April 30, 1996. To track progress toward the 25% load reduction target over the short-term, a moving 12-month average TP% load reduction is plotted for each month in Figure 7-76.

EAAtp.PRg



FIGURE 7-75. Total Phosphorus% Load Reduction for the EAA Basin.



FIGURE 7-76. 12-Month Average Total Posphorus% Load Reduction for the EAA Basin.

# WATER CONSERVATION AREAS

Water flows from the Everglades Agricultural Area (EAA) into the Water Conservation Areas (WCAs). From WCA-3A water flows into Everglades National Park. Water is also released from the WCAs into canals flowing eastward to coastal urban areas. Largely due to chemical and biological water treatment by the WCA marshes, the quality of water flowing out at the southern end of the WCAs is typically better than the quality of water flowing in the northern end.

Historical flow and loads of TP, TN and TSS are depicted in the following timeseries plots at monitored structures located on the levees of each WCA. Although the WCAs are designed to have sheet flow over the entire interior area, more water tends to flow around the perimeters of each area. As a result of this characteristic, the WCA graphs shown here as inflow and outflow may not necessarily represent the water quality of the interior portions of the WCAs nor do they necessarily represent water that has always moved across the entire interior of each marsh.

#### WCA 1, the Loxahatchee Wildlife Refuge

Inflows from the EAA to WCA-1 are recorded at S5A, S5AE, and S6, and data for these structures are presented in Figures 7-77 through 7-85. Flows through these structures are adjusted to comply with a regulation schedule. Flow volumes and material loading levels recorded at these structures fell within the bounds of data recorded for the period of record and showed no consistent pattern of response to the 1995 wet season. On its southern boundary, WCA-1 is connected to WCA-2A by S10A, S10C, S10D and other structures. Water flow and TP loads at these three stations are depicted in Figures 7-86, 7-87 and 7-88. TP loads for these three stations were either lower or about the same as seen in previous years in spite of very high volumes of water recorded in 1995.

Phosphorus levels for the interior of WCA-1 are presented as the geometric mean of TP concentration for 14 interior sites in Figure 7-89. The interim and long-term concentrations of TP are calculated from equations prescribed in the Settlement Agreement and are corrected for water or stage levels in WCA 1. Declining TP concentrations wre associated with increased rainfall in the later part of 1994 and 1995. The uncorrected, geometric mean of TP data for each month show little definitive change during the 1994 and 1995 period.



.

FIGURE 7-77. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S5A.



FIGURE 7-78. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S5A.



**FIGURE 7-79.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S5A.



FIGURE 7-80. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S5AE.



**FIGURE 7-81.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S5AE.



**FIGURE 7-82.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S5AE.



FIGURE 7-83. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S6.



FIGURE 7-84. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S6.

228



FIGURE 7-85. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S6.



FIGURE 7-86. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S10A.



S10CTPC.mth

FIGURE 7-87. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S10C.



FIGURE 7-88. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S10D.



FIGURE 7-89. Geometric Means of Total Phosphorus Concentrations for WCA 1.



FIGURE 7-90. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S7.



FIGURE 7-91. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S7.



**FIGURE 7-92.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S7.

## WCA 2

Discharge from the EAA into WCA-2A comes through S6 and S7. Water quality at S7 is plotted in Figures 7-90, 7-91 and 7-92. Extensive Best Management Practices (BMP) have been implemented in the last few years. The loads through S7 were somewhat lower compared to historical loads discharged from the EAA due to lower material concentrations and moderate flow levels for 1995. These changes may be associated with the implementation of BMPs.

The water quality of WCA-2A outflow to the east through S38 is depicted in Figures 7-93, 7-94 and 7-95. A notably large flux of TN and TP, which moved through S38 at the end of 1994 and the beginning of 1995, was associated with relatively large volumes of water moving through the structure and a brief increase in TP concentration. These loads were the highest recorded at S38 since the 1980s. Flow volume for the 1994/1995 period was within normal range for these locations, although total volume was slightly greater than was recorded in recent years.

The flows and TP loads from S11A, S11B, and S11C (located between WCA-2A and WCA-3A) are shown in Figures 7-96, 7-97 and 7-98. TP loads recorded at these three stations in 1995 were typical of those seen over the last five years, and somewhat lower than those documented during the 1980s.

### WCA 3

Surface waters primarily flow into WCA-3 from the north and west. Data records are kept for monitoring stations S150 and S8 at the northern end where water moves from the EAA into WCA-3A. There are no on the western side of the WCA. Water discharges from WCA-3 to the east and south through S9. At the southern end of WCA-3, S333 directs water to south Dade County. The four structures (S12A, S12B, S12C and S12D, located on the northern boundary of Everglades National Park) convey water from WCA-3 into the Park (see below).

Remarkable reductions in nutrient concentration occur as the water flows across WCA-3 from the inflow to the outflow points. The quality of water flowing in through S8 and S150 from the north is plotted in Figures 7-99 through 7-104. In 1995, flow through S150 was small andhad lower material concentrations than in previous years. S8 discharged proportionally higher volumes of water in 1995, but with slightly lower TP concentrations than previous years. The net result was TP loading typical of rates seen in recent years. The concentration of TN at this structure was similar to that seen over the last five years, but the large volume of water in 1995 increased the TN load into WCA-3.

Outflow and TP loading through S333 (Figure 7-105) were relatively low for 1995. The historical TP load and flow data for S9 (Figure 7-106) shows no outstanding feature in 1995.



FIGURE 7-93. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S38.



FIGURE 7-94. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S38.



**FIGURE 7-95.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S38.



FIGURE 7-96. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S11A.





FIGURE 7-97. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S11B.



FIGURE 7-98. Historical monthly total phosphorus load and flow at S11C.



FIGURE 7-99. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S150.



**FIGURE 7-100.** Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S150.



FIGURE 7-101. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S150.



FIGURE 7-102. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S8.



FIGURE 7-103. Historical Monthly Total Nitrogen and Total Suspended Solids at S8.


FIGURE 7-104. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S8.



FIGURE 7-105. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S333.



FIGURE 7-106. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S9.

### Inflow to the Everglades National Park

Water flows to Everglades National Park (ENP) from WCA-3 through the S12 structures. In 1995, the total flow through those structures was the highest recorded for the period of record, as depicted on Figures 7-107, 7-109, 7-111 and 7-113. This large volume of water carried relatively low nutrient concentrations, as depicted in Figures 7-108, 7-110, 7-112, and 7-114. At S12A, S12B, and S12D total phosphorus and nitrogen loads were less than in 1994, while the TP loads at S12C were slightly higher than in 1994. Overall, concentrations of both TP and TN continued a three-year downward trend at the S12 structures.

Agricultural return flow in South Dade County is collected at S332 and S18C. Flow volumes through these structures was similar to those seen over the last five years (Figures 7-115 and 7-116). The TP loads documented at S18c were within the range of values recorded during the last three years.

Reports reviewing the impacts of high water on the southern Everglades are summarized in the final section of Chapter 4, however these reports do not evaluate water quality ipacts, which are typically subtle and long term.



FIGURE 7-107. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S12A.



FIGURE 7-108. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S12A.

245



**FIGURE 7-109.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S12B.



FIGURE 7-110. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S12B.



FIGURE 7-111. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S12C.



FIGURE 7-112. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S12C.



FIGURE 7-113. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S12D.



FIGURE 7-114. Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus and Total Nitrogen Concentrations at S12D.

S332TPC.mth



FIGURE 7-115. Historical monthly total phosphorus load and flow at S332.



S18CTPC.mth

**FIGURE 7-116.** Historical Monthly Total Phosphorus Load and Water Flow at S18C.

(This page intentionally left blank.)

.

# APPENDIX A

-

### APPENDIX A

STATIONS	МАҮ	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
COLEY	0.52	7.80	12.50	10.61	8.04	3.25	42.72	1.47	0.27	44.46
KISSIMMEE FS	2.85	6.98	10.17	9.98	7.08	4.37	41.43	2.12	0.29	43.84
KISSIMMEE SP	2.40	10.90	8.01	7.80	6.33	6.37	41.81	1.85	0.90	44.56
	-	5.02	6.25	-	_		-	1.29	-	
MC COY	4.24	8.23	5.13	9.20	3.59	4.33	34.72	1.74	0.59	37.05
S-61	4.40	6.84	14.12	13.13	7.78	6.72	52.99	0.70	0.31	54.00
S-65	2.12	9.65	4.27	9.60	5.41	5.57	36.62	2.81	0.26	39.69
S-65A	1.58	6.68	7.03	13.13	3.42	5.48	37.32	1.67	0.23	39.22
ST CLOUD	3.46	6.79	9.76	16.24	6.43	5.75	48.43	1.71	0.30	50.44
1995 Basin Average.	2.70	7.65	8.58	11,21	6.01	5.23	42.01	1.71	0.39	44.16
LONG TERM AVG.	4.29	7.37	6.29	6.90	6.38	3.20	34.43	1.80	2.04	38.27
% of Normal	63%	104%	138%	162%	94%	163%	122%	95%	19%	115%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)			5	25		5				

**TABLE A-1.** Monthly Rainfall (Inches) for the UPPER KISSIMMEE Subbasin.

STATIONS	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
ARCHBOLD	2.05	8.35	8.42	8.15	6.92	7.10	40.99	1.20	0.68	42.87
AVON PARK	1.66	9.39	7.04	8.49	6.33	5.69	38.60	3.26	0.12	41.98
COLEY	0.52	7.80	12.50	10.61	8.04	3.25	42.72	1.47	0.27	44.46
CV-5	3.20	5.13	5.84	5.62	7.93	6.87	34.59	0.19	0.25	35.03
OKEECHOBEE FS	3.89	8.92	6.28	6.34	5.78	10.83	42.04	0.46	0.14	42.64
	1.94	7.69	6.19	7.51	12.32	10.97	46.62	0.45	0.39	47.46
S-129	2.64	5.47	3.18	5.73	7.28	8.37	32.67	0.58	0.39	33.64
<u>S-1</u> 31	0.78	6.54	4.68	8.82	5.31	9.35	35.48	0.74	0.40	36.62
_S-133	3.47	10.25	5.22	6.29	8.59	12.70	46.52	0.40	0.27	47.19
<u>S-65</u>	2.12	9.65	4.27	9.60	5.41	5.57	36.62	2.81	0.26	39.69
S-65A	1.58	6.68	7.03	13.13	3.42	5.48	37.32	1.67	0.23	39.22
_S-65B	2.63	6.57	7.66	18.19	2.96	5.01	43.02	0.95	0.18	44.15
S-65C	2.10	6.01	7.54	8.26	3.74	4.62	32.27	1.39	0.21	33.87
\$-65D	3.26	9.18	5.51	<u>6.5</u> 4	5.90	9.72	40.11	0.85	0.12	41.08
S-65E	5.06	9.07	3.33	8.11	4.83	11.07	41 47	0.64	0.44	42.55
S-68	2.40	6.65	<u>5.95</u>	6.20	5.81	6.35	33.36	1.12	0.18	34.66
S-70	2.30	5. <del>9</del> 9	4,34	5.47	2.74	9.70	<u>30.54</u>	1.07	0.31	31.92
S-71	1.85	12.61	8.62	10.50	8.86	14.33	56.77	0.83	0.91	<u>58.</u> 51
\$-72	2.03	5.89	5.95	6.92	7.73	11.08	39.60	0.82	0.27	40.69
S-75	3.65	9.63	8.99	11.20	10.45	21.86	65.78	1.32	0.96	68.06
S-82	0.94	8.52	6.07	5.14	5.02	6.36	32.05	0.81	0.17	33.03
S-83	1.73	8.01	8.32	10.54	8.31	13.42	50.33	1.68	0.89	52.90
S-84	1.43	11.06	4.68	14.84	<u>1</u> 1. <b>17</b>	13.32	56.50	1.27	1.01	58.78
1995 Basin Average.	2.31	8.00	6.42	8.79	6.73	9.26	41.56	1.13	0.39	43.09
LONG TERM AVG.	4.28	7.48	7.70	6.98	6.91	<u>3.6</u> 5	37.00	1.64	1.55	40.19
% of Normal	54%	107%	83%	<u>1</u> 26%	97%	254%	112%	69%	25%	107%
Арргох. Return Frequency (yrs)				5		30				

### TABLE A-2. Monthly Rainfall (Inches) for the LOWER KISSIMMEE Subbasin.

·

TABLE A-3. Monthly R	Rainfall in LAKE OKEECHC	)BEE.
----------------------	--------------------------	-------

STATIONS	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
ARCHBOLD	2.05	8.35	8.42	8.15	6.92	7.10	40.99	1.20	0.68	42.87
AVON PARK	1.66	9.39	7.04	8.49	6.33	5.69	38.60	3.26	0.12	41.98
CANAL POINT	5.29	4.83	13.38	8.67		9.82	41.99	1.59		43.58
CLEWISTON	4.17	9.61	8.83	7.59	4.66	10.67	45.53		-	45.53
CLEWISTON FS	2.68	8.06	9.08	9.33	4.16	12.53	45.84	0.72	0.48	47.04
_CV-5	3.20	5.13	5.84	5.62	7,93	6.87	34.59	0.19	0.25	35.03
FT PIERCE ES	1.72	5.29	8.60	17.05	4.74	15.67	53.07	0.74	0.44	54.25
L005	3.60	4.98	6.73	· .	6.84	-		. <u> </u>	<u> </u>	
L006	3.66	5.12	5.74		5.34		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>.</u>	
LZ40	2.55	5.12	3.54		3.69					
OKEECHOBEE FS	3.89	8.92	6.28	6.34	<u>5.78</u>	10.83	42.04	0.46	0.14	42.64
<u>S-127</u>	1.94	7.69	6.19	7.51	12.32	10.97	46.62	0.45	0.39	47.46
S-129	2.64	5.47	3.18	5.73	7.28	8.37	32.67	0.58	0.39	33.64
S-131	0.78	6.54	4.68	8.82	5.31	9.35	35.48	. 0.74	0.40	36.62
<u>S-133</u>	.3.47	10.25	5.22	6.29		12.70	46.52	0.40	0.27	47.19
<u>S-135</u>	6.00	6.31	5.53	11.39	7.95	9.21	46.39	0.58	0.33	47.30
S-153	2.72	1.74		13.56	2.70	11.10	31.82	0.54	0.40	32.76
_S-191	1.09	10.06	4.30	3.67	5.26	8.94	33.32	0.29	0.33	33,94
S-2	4.37	8.87	9.05	7.82	4.72	8.22	43.05	0.97	0.63	44.65
S-3	2.51	7.62	7.41	6.63	3.28	10.53	37.98	0.33	0.65	38.96
S-308	3.83	5.67	8.07	<u>8.58</u>	2.99	11.79	40.93	0.86	0.37	42.16
\$-35 <u>2</u>	4.15	4.12	12.22	7.25	2.78	12.64	43.16	1.53	0.37	45.06
<u>S-4</u>	1.85	8.77	7.60	5.94	4.45	10.39	39.00	0.69	0.71	40.40
<u>S-65D</u>	3.26	9.18	5.51	6.54	5.90	9.72	40.11	0.85	0.12	41.08
_S-70	2.30	5.99	4.34	5.47	2.74	9.70	30,54	1.07	0.31	31.92
S-71	1.85	12.61	8.62	10.50	8.86	14.33	5 <u>6.77</u>	0.83	0.91	58.51
_S-72	2.03	5.89	5.95	6.92	7.73	11.08	39.60	0.82	0,27	40.69
S-77	3.23	6.77	14.31	7.34	4.72	10.69	47.06	0.24	0.36	47.66
S-78	2.42	. 9.11	11.59	7.61	8.59	9.47	48.79	0.46	0.39	49.64
S-79.	2.68	12.46	9 4 9	10.88	7.58	. 910		1 29	0.58	64.06
1995 Basin Average.	2.92	7.33	7.47	8.14	5.87	10.28	41. <del>9</del> 9	0.83	0.41	43.58
LONG TERM AVG.	4.82	7.26	6.59	6.22	6.25	3.96	35.10	1.43	1.66_	38.19
% of Normal	61%	101%	113%	131%	94%	260%	120%	58%	<u>25%</u>	114%
Approx. return Frequency (yrs)			5	10		50				

STATIONS	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
BELLE GLADE	2.03	9.71	5.52	7.94	6.30	9.06	40.56	0.60	0.16	41.32
C-18W	0.84	7.91	7.78	14.78	7.00	15.71	54.02	0.55	0.71	55.28
CANAL POINT	5.29	4.83	13.38	8.67		9.82	41.99	1.59	_	43.58
CLEWISTON	4.17	9.61	8.83	7.59	4.66	10.67	45.53	-	-	45.53
CLEWISTON FS	2.68	8.06	9.08	9.33	4.16	12.53	45.84	0.72	0.48	47.04
G-136	3.06	10.61	8.95	9.56	4.53	10.63	47.34	0.18	0.57	48.09
G-155	3.17	5.28	3.61	8.99	5.41	10.50	36.96	0.15	0.53	37.64
G-201	3.98	6.11	14.80	9.41	4.06	8.22	46.58	0.19	0.77	47.54
L006	3.66	5.12	5.74	•	5.34	<u> </u>	·	-	-	-
S-153	2.72	1.74	-	13.56	2.70	11.10	31.82	0,54	0.40	32.76
_S-2	4.37	8.87	9.05	7.82	4.72	8.22	43.05	0.97	0.63	44.65
S-3	2.51	7.62	7.41	6.63	3.28	10.53	37.98	0.33	0.65	38.96
S-352	4.15	4.12	12.22	7.25	2.78	12.64	43.16	1.53	0.37	45.06
S-4	1.85	8.77	7.60	5.94	4.45	10.39	39.00	0.69	0.71	40.40
S-5A	2.18	6.79	7.79	12.79	5.94	13.12	48.61	2.08	0.83	51.52
S-5AX	1.36	5.91	-	9.69	3.50	7.95	28.41	1.83	0.61	30.85
S-5AY	1.54	6.44	5.08	5.81	5.00	6.95	30.82	1.46	0.34	32.62
S-6	2.83	7.73	6.80	_13.75	6.02	8.90	46.03	0.54	1,32	47.89
S-6Z	1.37	6.67	4.41	9.82	3.75	6.44	32.46	1.05	1.14	34.65
S-7	6.18	10.82	13.21	13.31	7.17	7.90	58.59	0.37	1.14	60.10
S-7Z	2.45	7.93	7.68	8.62	6.12	8.94	41.74	0.31	0.41	42.46
<u>S-8</u>	5.05	8.18	6.53	9.53	5.44	9.71	44.44	0.24	0.62	45.30
S-8Z	3.56	5.58	13.54	11.23	3.98	4.89	42.78	0.25	0.82	43.85
1995 Basin Average.	3.09	7.15	8.57	9.64	4.83	9.76	42.17	0.77	0.66	43.50
LONG TERM AVG.	5.05	8.64	7.35	7.26	7.74	4.24	40.28	1.85	1.72	43.85
% of Normal	61%	83%	117%	133%	62%	230%	105%	42%	38%	99%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)			3	5		30				

TABLE A-4. Monthly Rainfall (Inches) in EAA (EAST) Subbasin.

STATIONS	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
CLEWISTON	4.17	9.61	8.83	7.59	4.66	10.67	45.53	-	-	45.53
CLEWISTON FS	2.68	8.06	9.08	9.33	4.16	12.53	45.84	0.72	0.48	47.04
G-136	3.06	10.61	8.95	9.56	4.53	10.63	47.34	0.18	0.57	48.09
G-155	3.17	5.28	3.61	8.99	5.41	10.50	36.96	0.15	0.53	37.64
IMMOKALEE	-	-	•	_10.22	8.36	10.42	-	1.07	0.72	-
	2.35	11.70	10.90	11.19	8.81	13.14	58.09	0.55	1.02	60.18
S-4	1.85	8.77	7.60	5.94	4.45	10.39	39.00	0.69	0.71	40.40
<u>\$-77</u>	3.23	6.77	14.31	7.34	4.72	10.69	47.06	0.24	0.36	47.66
S-8Z	3.56	5.58	13.54	11.23	3.98	4.89	42.78	0.25	0.82	43.85
1995 Basin Average.	3.01	8.30	9.60	9.04	5.45	10.43	45.33	0.48	0.65	46.30
LONG TERM AVG.	5.05	8.64	7.35	7.26	7.74	4.24	40.28	1.85	1.72	43.85
% of Normal	60%	96%	131%	125%	70%	246%	113%	26%	38%	106%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)			5	5		50				

TABLE A-5. Monthly Rainfall (Inches) in EAA (WEST) Subbasin.

STATIONS	ΜΑΥ	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
ANDYTOWN 5W	1.95	9.00	8.27	12.90	2.41	8.70	43.23	0.91	0.44	44.58
BONAVENTURE						L	<u> </u>	1.67	0.54	<u> </u>
CHEKIKA EVER	1.55	14.29	9.74	5.74	· · ·	7.68		1.76	0.36	
COOPERTOWN	1.40	6.08	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	5.29	6.00		0.29	0.55	<u> </u>
CORAL SPR 11W	0.43	12.24			6.30		<u> </u>	1.14	1.14	-
CORAL SPRING	<u> </u>	13.47	8.93	13.89	4.83	6.61	49.84	0.82	1.01	51.67
DELRAY BEACH W	2.86	6.16	<u> </u>		3.59	- <u> </u>		1.53	0.52	
G-155	3.17	5.28	3.61	8.99	5.41	10.50	36.96	0.15	0.53	37.64
G-201	3.98	6.11	14.80	9.41	4.06	8.22	46.58	0.19	.0.77	47.54
HÉALEAH W	3.93	21.61	4.42	10.26	6.09	14.67	60.98	0.49	1.06	62.53
HILLSBORO CNL	3.72	10.08	4,16	16.97	6.74	7.14	48.81	0.68	1.11	50.60
S-124	1.7.7	10.91	3.84	13.83	1.84	7.42	39.61	0.57		40.18
S-140	6.75	9.13	6.09	11.19	5.36	7.92	46.44	1.02	0.44	47.90
S-30	3.56	12.21	6.58		4.90	8.46	46.62	3.11	0.46	50.19
S-338	3.20	15.68	4.29	8.43	5.38	9.68	46.66	1.41	0.87	
<u>\$-34</u>	4.24	9.51	5.84	11.88	4.03	10.44	45.94	1.75	0.39	48.08
S-38	3.52	15.14	11.27	16.09	6.39	9.33	61.74	1.25	1.10	64.09
. S-39	2.54	12.24	8.97	16.50	4.12	5.91	50.28	0.98	2.01	53.27
S-5A	2.18	6.79	7.79	12.79	5.94	13,12	48.61	2.08	0.83	51.52
S-6	2.83	7.73	6.80	13.75		8.90	46.03	0.54	1.32	47.89
S-7	. 6.18	10.82	13.21	13.31	7.17	7.90	58.59	.0.37	1.14	60.10
S-8		8.18	6.53	9.53	5.44	9.71	44.44	0.24	0.62	45.30
S-9	2.00	12.46	4.22	11.36	_ 4.70	10.81	45.55	1.55	1.00	48.10
SWEETWATER	2.03	6.67	7.30	9.17	7.73	7.46	40.36	0.36	0.71	41.43
TAMIAMI CANAL	3.61	18.65	6.64	10.30	6.49	9.93	55,62	1.45	0.59	57.66
WEST MIBAMAR	0 4 4	10.84	5.64	10.86	2 76		30.48	1.56	1 18	33.22
1995 Basin Average.	3.00	10.85	7.22	11.73	5.12	8.96	47.30	1.07	0.83	49.16
LONG TERM AVG.	50.2	8.45	6.23	6.38	6.13	3.81	36.02	2.00	1.60	39.62
% of Normal	6%	128%	116%	184%	84%	235%	131%	54%	52%	124%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)				-						

**TABLE A-6.** Monthly Rainfall (Inches) in the WATER CONSERVATION AREA's (1, 2 and 3) Subbasin.

STATIONS	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
C-18W	0.84	7.91	7.78	14.78	7.00	15.71	54.02	0.55	0.71	55.28
FT PIERCE FS	1.72	5.29	8.60	17.05	4.74	15.67	53.07	0.74	0.44	54.25
OKEECHOBEE FS	3.89	8.92	6.28	6.34	5.78	10.83	42.04	0.46	0.14	42.64
S-135	6.00	6.31	5.53	11.39	7.95	9.21	46.39	0.58	0.33	47.30
S-153	2.72	1.74	-	13.56	2.70	11.10	31.82	0.54	0.40	32.76
<u>\$-191</u>	1.09	10.06	4.30	3.67	5.26	8.94	33.32	0.29	0.33	33.94
\$-308	3.83	5.67	8.07	8.58	2.99	11.79	40.93	0.86	0.37	42.16
\$-46	0.50	7.71	9.32	13.00	4.87	22.15	<u>57.5</u> 5	1.58	1.68	60.81
S-49	1.39	4.86	7.90	17.69	6.14	15.62	53.60	0.14	0.69	54.43
S-80	2.65	10.11	5,66	22.86	6.75	19.55	67.58	0.73	1.20	69.51
S-97	0.56	4.24	6.64	17.20	4.68	19.06	52.38	0.10	1.00	53.48
S-99	2.58	3.44	4.41	15.91	9.37	11.64	47.35	0.92	0.65	48.92
VERO BEACH	1.30	4.80	5.68	10,54	7.78	6.60	36.70	0.80	0.35	37.85
VERO-BEACH W	0.92	3.40	5.07	9.64	5.47			0.50	-	
1995 Basin Average.	2.14	6.03	6.56	13.02	5.82	13.68	47.44	0.63	0.64	48.72
LONG TERM AVG.	4.46	6.31	6.22	5.73	7.50	6.37	36.59	2.48	1.87	40.94
% of Normal	48%	96%	105%	227%	78%	215%	130%	25%	34%	119%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)										

### **TABLE A-7.** Monthly Rainfall (Inches) in the MARTIN - ST. LUCIE COUNTY Subbasin.

STATIONS	MAY	J UN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
C-18W	0.84	7,91	7.78	14.78	7.00	15.71	54.02	0.55	0.71	55.28
DELRAY BEACH W	2.86	6.16		-	3.59	-	-	1.53	_	
G-56	1.64	<u>1</u> 1.18	8.73	14.70	4.91	12.87	54.03	1.26	2.13	57.42
PBIA	0.91	8.23	5.95	19.07	6.41	11,43	52.00	2.06	1.66	55.72
S-155	0.84	9.67	7.35	16.48	7.12	12.54	54.00	1.45	2 33	57.78
S-39	2.54	12.24	8.97	16.50	4.12	5.91	50.28	0.98	2.01	53,27
S-40	1.76	8.97	10.04	18.72	4.46	20.48	64.43	0.82	2.53	67.78
S-41	4.01	6.04	7.33	17.37	3.09	12.05	49.89	1.16	1.73	52.78
S-44	1.14	6.83	6.77	15.33	4.42	21.91	56.40	1.66	1.34	59.40
S-46	0.50	7.71	9.32	13.00	4.87	22.15	57.55	1.58	1.68	60.81
S-5A	2.18	6.79	7.79	12.79	5.94	13.12	48.61	2.08	0.83	51.52
S-5AY	1.54	6.44	5.08	5.81	5.00	6.95	30.82	1.46	0.34	32.62
WESTPORT	1.65	5.68	8.69	12.09	8.58	13.92	50.61	2.83	2.48	55.92
1995 Basin Average.	1.72	7.99	7.82	14.72	5.35	14.09	51.89	1.49	1.65	55.03
LONG TERM AVG.	5.87	8.10	6.41	8.83	8.52	7.84	43.57	2.94	2.02	48.53
% of Normal	29%	99%	122%	167%	63%	180%	119%	51%	82%	113%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)										

TABLE A-8. Monthly Rainfall (Inches) in the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin.

STATIONS	МАҮ	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
BONAVENTURE	-		-		-	-		1.67	0.54	-
CORAL SPRINGS	2.11	13.47	8.93	13.89	4.83	6.61	49.84	0.82	1.01	51.67
FT LAUD FS	1.95	18.87	7.44	12.15	6.74	8.95	56.10	1.46	0.80	58.36
FTL	1.91	14.67	10.20	16.08	14.47	9.52	66.85	1.37		68.22
G-56	1.64	11.18	8.73	14.70	4.91	12.87	54.03	1.26	2.13	57.42
HOLLYWOOD	2.08	22.05		21.67	9.48	11.27	66.55	3.43	1.28	71.26
S-124	1.77	10.91	3.84	13.83	1.84	7.42	39.61	0.57	-	40.18
S-13	1.88	15.91	8.11	12.29	13.19	11.82	63.20	1.56	0.49	65.25
	2.73	15.09	5.61	9.13	6.29	5.23	44.08	1.15	0.53	45.76
S-29	-	28.11		15.19	7.31	9.50	60.11	2.02	1.35	63.48
S-29Z	3.15	15.37	6.24	9.24	9.65	10.30	53.95	2.26	0.32	56.53
S-30	3.56	12.21	6.58	10.91	4.90	8.46	46.62	3.11	0.46	50.19
S-33		13.50	10.06	16.19	13.75	8.55	62.80	0.99	0.75	63.79
S-34	4.24	9.51	5.84	11.88	4.03	10.44	45.94	1.75	0.39	48.08
S-36	2.50	14.75	12.02	14.79	8.75	12.64	65.45	1.47	1.30	68.22
S-37A	1.36	9.01	10.91	11.36	6.53	12.14	51.31	1.98	1.98	55.27
S-37B	3.05	11.59	11.25	14.27	6.17	14.24	60.57	-	<del>.</del>	60.57
S-38	3.52	15.14	11.27	16.09	6.39	9.33	61.74	1.25	1.10	64.09
S-39	2.54	12.24	8.97	16.50	4.12	5.91	50.28	0.98	2.01	53.27
_S-9	2.00	12.46	4.22	11.36	4.70	10.81	45.55	1.55	1.00	48.10
1995 Basin Average.	2.47	14.53	8.25	13.76	7.27	9.79	54.98	1.61	1.03	57.35
LONG TERM AVG.	5.87	8.10	6.41	6.83	8.52	7.84	43.57	2.94	2.02	48.53
% of Normal	42%	179%	129%	201%	85%	125%	126%	55%	51%	118%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)		15	5	50		3				

### **TABLE A-9.** Monthly Rainfall (Inches) in the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin.

a de la companya de la

STATIONS	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
CHEKIKA EVER	1.55	14.29	9.74	5.74		7.68		1.76	0.36	-
HIALEAH W	3.93	21.61	4.42	10.26	6.09	14.67	60.98	0.49	1.06	62.53
HOMESTEAD AFB	7.42	15.08	7.08	12.63		8.33	61.73	0.77	1.16	63.66
HOMESTEAD FS	6.36	12.71	12.44	9.95	11.00	11.55	64.01	0.80	0.83	65.64
MIAMI BEACH	2.51	14.76	3.48	8.38	4.25	6.29	.39.67	0.83	-	40.50
MIAMI FS	3.21	26.19	9.97	15.80	12.44	9.36	76.97	2.52	0.94	80.73
	2.94	18.74	. 6.08	13.02	10.82	10.09	61.69	2.52	0.68	64.89
N DADE	2.03	17.90	6.63	15.99		12.84	61.65	2.86	0.73	65.24
PERRINE	0.84	20.06	5.57	1.3.14	6.67	13.56	59.84	0.85	.0.46	61.15
S-123	3,39	14.80		9.22	10.55	20.53	58.49	0.49	1.20	60.18
S-174	2.78	16.69	7.99	7.52	8.34	11.16	54.48	0.98	1.54	57,00
<u>S-177</u>	5.40	13.12	4.59	9.61	7.95	11.08	51.75	0.45	0.46	52,66
<u>S-18C</u>	4.96	11.82	. 4.27	9.49	7.88	12.47	50.89	0.32	0.62	51.83
S-20F	5.54	18.19		10.23	14.48	9.6 <u>1</u>	65.46	1.17	0.52	67.15
_S-20G	4.35	15.23	8.21	12.04	12.05	. 8.89	60.77	0.54		61.31
S-21	4.93	13.62	6.52	10.15	10.76	8.87	54.85	1.63	0.63	57.11
_S-21A	4.42	14.17	8.31	10.03	8.13	10.26	55.32	1.29	0.85	57.46
S-26	2.54	15.20	6.53	11.96		10.02	54.96	3.75	0.43	59.14
S-27	5,55	19.95	7.06	18.37	9.69	8.88	69.50	2.17	0.61	72.28
S-28Z	2.73	15.09	5.61	9.13	6.29	5.23	44.08	1.15	0.53	45.76
S-29		28.11		15.19	7.31	9.50	60.11	2.02	1.35	63.66
S-29Z	3.15	15.37	6.24	9.24	9.65	10.30	53.95_	2,26	0.32	56.53
S-30	3,56	12.21	6.58	10.91	4.90	8.46	46.62	3.11	0.46	50.19
S-331	3.62	16.04	6.05	8.85	7.69	11.09.	53.34	1.43	0.72	55.49
S-332	3.33	15.72	6.14	8.42	13.37	10.62	57.60	1.22	0.86	59.68
S-338	3.20	<u>15.68</u>	4.29	8.43	5.38	9.68	46.66	1.41	0.87	48.94
TAMIAMI	6.67	19.37	6.03	11.08	7.74	13.72	64.61	0.65	0.84	66.10
TAMIAMI CANAI	3.61	18 65	6.64	10.30	6 4 9	9.93	55.62	1.45	0.59	57.66
1995 Basin Average.	3.87	16.80	6.69	10.90	8.82	10.61	57.48	1.46	0.75	59.67
LONG TERM AVG.	5.87	8.10	6.41	6.83	8.52	7.84	43.57	2.94	2.02	48.53
% of Normal	66%	207%	104%	160%	104%	135%	132%	50%	37%	123%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)										

### TABLE A-10. Monthly Rainfall (Inches) for the DADE COUNTY Subbasin.

			·							
STATIONS	МАҮ	JUN	JŲL	AUG	SEP	ОСТ	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
ARCHBOLD	2.05	8.35	8.42	8.15	6.92	7,10	40.99	1.20	0.68	42.87
BONITA SPRINGS	5.09	13.31	14.00	14.48	9.18	17.25	73.31	0.75	0.88	74.94
CORKSCREW HQ	4.97	13.87	9.02	13.71	8.52	12.57	62.66	0.53	1.15	64.34
CV-5	3.20	5.13	5.84	5.62	7.93	6.87	34.59	0.19	0.25	35.03
FT MYERS	1.20	14.65	12.14	13.87	10.27	-	52.13	0.80	1.16	54.09
G-136	3.06	10.61	8.95	9.56	4.53	10.63	47.34	0.18	0.57	48.09
IMMOKALEE		-	•	10.22	8.36	10.42		0.78	0.72	-
S-77	3.23	6.77	14.31	7.34	4.72	10.69	47.06	0.24	0.36	47.66
<u>S-78</u>	2.42	9.11	11.59	7.61	8.59	9.47	48.79	0.46	0.39	49.64
S-79	2.68	12.46	9.49	10.88	7.58	9.10	52.19	1.29	0.58	54.06
1995 Basin Average.	3.10	10.47	10.42	10.14	7.66	10.46	51.01	0.64	0.67	52.30
LONG TERM AVG.	4.50	9.17	8.38	8.07	8.23	3.98	42.33	1.54	1.66	45.83
% of Normal	69%	114%	124%	126%	93%	263%	121%	42%	40%	114%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)										

### TABLE A-11. Monthly Rainfall (Inches) for the CALOOSAHATCHEE Subbasin.

STATIONS	МАҮ	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
BONITA SPRINGS	5.09	13.31	14.00	14.48	9.18	17.25	73.31	0.75	0.88	74.94
COOPERTOWN		-	-	!		•	-	0.29	0.55	-
CORKSCREW HQ	4.97	13.87	9.02	13.71	8.52	12.57	62.66	0.53	1.15	64.34
EVERGLADES NP	10.08	21.47	6.26	14.64	7.61	10.83	70.89	0.20	0.35	71.44
G-155	3.17	5.28	3.61	8.99	5.41	10.50	36.96	0.15	0.53	37.64
IMMOKALEE	-		-	10.22	8.36	10.42	_	0.78	_0.72	2
	2.35	11.70	10.90	11.19	8.81	13.14	58.09	1.07	1.02	
MARCO ISLAND	5.48	19.78	14.41	13.67	8.76	13.67	75.77	0.55	0.54	76.86
NAPLES FS	1.80	10.65	7.82	14.79	11.32	14.47	60.85	0.70	0.91	62.46
RACCOON POINT	8.18	12.75	11.05	11.17	5.14	6.41	Season         0.75         0.88           73.31         0.75         0.88           -         0.29         0.55           62.66         0.53         1.15           70.89         0.20         0.35           36.96         0.15         0.53           -         0.78         0.72           58.09         1.07         1.02           75.77         0.55         0.54           60.85         0.70         0.91           54.70         0.43         0.41           46.44         1.02         0.44           59.96         0.59         0.68           40.09         1.65         1.50           150%         36%         45%		0.41	55.54
S-140	6.75	9.13	6.09	11.19	5.36	7.92	46.44	1.02	0.44	47.90
1995 Basin Average.	5.32	13.10	9.24	12.41	7.85	11.72	59.96	0.59	0.68	61.26
LONG TERM AVG.	4.95	6.10	8.66	7.59	8.64	4.15	40.09	1.65	1.50	43.24
% of Normal	107%	215%	107%	164%	91%	282%	150%	36%	45%	142%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)										

### TABLE A-12. Monthly Rainfall (Inches) for the COLLIER COUNTY Subbasin.

STATIONS	ΜΑΥ	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	ост	Total Wet Season	NOV	DEC	TOTAL
BONITA SPRINGS	5.09	13.31	14.00	14.48	9.18	17.25	73.31	0.75	0.88	74.94
CORKSCREW HQ	4.97	13.87	9.02	13.71	8.52	12.57	62.66	0.53	1.15	64.34
FT MYERS	1.20	14.65	12.14	13.87	10.27	-	52.13	0.80	1.16	54.89
IMMOKALEE	-		-	10.22	8.36	10.42		0.78	0.72	-
MARCO ISLAND	5.48	19.78	14.41	<u>13.67</u>	8.76	13.67	75.77	0.55	0.54	76.86
NAPLES FS	1.80	10.65	7.82	14.79	11.32	14.47	60.85	0.70	0.91	62.46
S-79	2.68	12.46	9.49	10.88	7.58	9.10	52.19	1.29	0.58	54.06
1995 Basin Average.	3.54	14.12	11.15	13.09	9.14	12.91	62. <del>8</del> 2	0.77	0.85	64.59
LONG TERM AVG.	4.48	9.38	8.54	8.60	8.20	3.20	42.40	1.76	1.58	45.74
% of Normal	79%	151%	130%	152%	111%	403%	148%	44%	54%	141%
Approx. Return Frequency (yrs)										

### **TABLE A-13.** Monthly Rainfall (Inches) for the SOUTH WEST COAST Subbasin.

. .

## APPENDIX B

-

ю	
Ľ	
Q	
B	
P	
R	

TABLE B1.1	sing Lucky Kussinener Kussinener Kussinener Kussinener Kussinener Kussi Ses Ses Ses Ses Ses	TABLE B1.2	ытта Аклиест Аклиест Аклиест Аклиест Солов Соло	TABLE B1.3 STT E STT E AND E A
t. Mo	. DEEXELEE	. Mo	, III-IIXXIIIIIIII-++++++	C & TTTTTHETTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT
wthly	\$: ~!~~~~~~	nthly		
/ Rai:		Raiı	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	
nfall	N : 2000000000	nfall	A 1 400 00000000000000000000000000000000	
Rep(		Repc		
žit fo		xt fo		CL
ыr the	→ 000000000000000000000000000000000000	'r the		H
IUPI		LOV		L # \$655555555555555555555555555555555555
ER J	3 56566666	VER		0 - 4 - 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
KISSI	5 22222222	KISG	3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
IMM	3 ; 686666667ê	MM		
EE Si	1,0000000000	IEE S		₩ ₩ Ξ.88%2%\$\$\$\$\$\$ ₩ Ξ.88%2%\$\$\$
ubba	3 858866888 -	iubbe		ស មាន នេះ និន្នមាននេះ នៅនឹងខ្លួនខ្លួនខ្លួនខ្លួនខ្លួនខ្លួនខ្លួនខ្លួន
sin ()	* : 00000000000000000000000000000000000	asin (	- 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	<b>9:</b> - 2 88888888888888888888888888888888888
ИΑΥ		MAN		
1995		Y 199		<b>11</b> <b>1</b>
Ġ		5).		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
			1126878888888888888888888888888888888888	
			A 68865666666666666666666666666666666666	4 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
			<ul> <li>→ □ = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 = 0 =</li></ul>	
	0000 0000 0000 0000 000 000 000 000 00			
			N 48464549584858555645738	A BBBBSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
	1 0000000000 1 000000000		20000000000000000000000000000000000000	
	- 302387303 N 800330020		,	· \$\$\$\$\$B3233333338888888888888888888888888
	7 2/22/202- 7 2222202-			A 625555555555555555888888888888888888888
	N 9989999998			0. 0 4 2 2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
	- 4 286868888			* 22222211214112250220020000
	1 350388921 			
	* 3555555236		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	4 55655560000000000000000000000000000000
	- - - -			
	* 556515688		- 30001000000000000000000000000000000000	# 2200000000000000000000000000000000000
	20 11 11 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10		E มีมากราคม กล่างสุดภัณนานกร้าง     E	868. 1997 - Angland Angland, ang
	A 442 323348288		1111 - 588 - 588 - 598 -	
	ж ж ж ж с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с с			AA A 200 - 2
	2 x 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		л ОТ - лоонионочомнийлэнсононо СС - ислиюсылурийстовенийства ХК - Адинистовелирострейства ХК - Адинистовелирострейства	A C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
				2
	2 x x 0000000000000000000000000000000000		Здайцайцай аборонононороно ВД (промостонононороно) - сомостононононороно - 22	
	> 4 1 x · Neor - nere		ਸ਼ਫ਼੶੶ゅ <del>ੵ</del> ਲ਼ੑੑੑੑੑੑੑੑੑੑੑੑਲ਼ੑੑੑੑੑਲ਼ੑੑੑੑੑੑੑਲ਼ੑੑੑੑੑੑੑੑੑਫ਼ੑੑੑੑੑੑ	

	、 「今日でする」」」」」」であった。 つか。 うらできてん」」」」」のようできることであった。 人は、 つってん」できょうからのかかではおいちのもます。 というないであった。		2000-000-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-0	97 - 9808999445566556555555555555555555555555555
	ΤΣ ΧΧ. ΑΓζέροφαφολογραφικού στο Κ.Κ. Βοηχημές Μηλιάτριο Φιλάνταιο Σ.Σ. Ο Ο Μαιανιστιστιστόρο Ο μολάλαι			
	「「「」」」である。「」」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」		2000 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010	22 5806884 more a file a substance a subst
	1991 1992 1993 - 1993 - 1993 1993 - 1993 - 1993 1993 - 1993 - 1993 1994 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 1995 - 1905 -		Vultipa Exception of the second	・ 「「「「「「」」」、「」」、「「」」、「」、「」、「」、」、「」、」、「」、
	- <b>1999</b> 106 29 2900 986 9398 99		- 393698598	<pre>f</pre>
	- 000000000000000000000000000000000000			
	5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 -		N 000000000	<ul> <li>C 2 2 2 6 6 6 4 4 8 2 4 2 2 9 9 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2</li></ul>
	X 3000000000000000000000000000000000000		N 225237855	
				·
			4 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	
	2 . 20 - 20 4 V - 0 - 19 5 - 70 0 0 2 - 0 - 44 7 . 20 4 2 2 4 2 - 0 - 19 5 - 70 0 0 2 - 0 - 44		4.554287284	V 064888887284985344497498533
	NC 0 7 C 0 1 C 0 C 0 C 0 C 1 2 C 0 0 C 0 C 0 C 0 C 0 C 0 C 0 C 0 C 0		* 10000000000 * 1000000000	7 - <b>200000000000000000000000000000000000</b>
	1 000000000000000000000000000000000000			
	N 50805043706840683704730		. 556556653	9 - 989988898478555558665526588 
			7 842383463	
			0007000000 0007000000 -	
	* 5050564000000056056056		> 300-3000000 → 300-300000000	<b>6</b> - 333888888888888888888888888888888888
	- 200 1200000 h 8 / 00000 a 4 8 5 0		× 000001222	Y
			1 19999999999	
				m m F F
				a 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
95).		95).		As (
Y 19		7 J9		
(MA		M)		
asin		asin	1 200000000	
Subb		Subt		CE 2888888888888888888888888888888888888
ST):		IST)	5 90000000000	
(EA	1 48608080808080808080808080	(WI	a 000000000000000000000000000000000000	
EAA	6 999999999999999999999999999999999999	EAA	5000	
the	9 . 00000000000000000000000000000000000	the	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	6 6667566666666666666666666666666666666
at for	АЧЦ Ч – Ч – А 2 - ЭЧЧ/АФАРСФРОЙФСИДОООСУУРА 9 - 2889094405405400406405290906 9 - 288909410540040405500906	t for	6.3000000000000000000000000000000000000	t
epoi	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	epor	<b>6 66666 6 6 6 6 6 6 6</b>	to 4 = 2 = 2 = 2 = 2 = 2 = 2 = 2 = 2 = 2 =
fall R		all R	5 800 V0 2000	L 8889925 20582638885273848888888
Rain		Zainf	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	
hly F		hly F		HY 1 2000000000000000000000000000000000000
Mont	, KFETEH <del>(</del> #EFEE#EE#FEFEE#EF	Mont	a statessa	
TABLE B1.4.	01118 88.2.18 C. Mail C. Mail C. Mail C. Mail C. Mail Kata Mail Mail Mail Mail Mail Mail Mail Mai	TABLE B1.5.	2177 	ТАВЕЕ В1.6. вля молтили ун br>и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и

- 74	2
ੁਪੁ	١
σ	١
-	
∽	4
۰.	,
⊲	
	3
- 5	ì
~	ŝ
~	-
ç	÷
	í
<u>u</u>	9
- 65	ŝ
- r	Ś
- 72	ŝ
_ <u>+</u>	2
- ÷	3
.,7	ζ
0	2
-	
- 7	Ĵ
<u>ح</u>	١
ď	1
~	í
_ <b>Q</b>	
1.7	i
- <del>  H</del>	l
~	-
⊲	
- 2	1
⊲	Ì
- 22	:
ш	l
	1
୍	ł
ē	•
二字	1
-	1
- 1-	•
5	5
Ę,	5
for	
tfor	
nt for	
ort for	
ort for	
port for	
eport for	
Report for	
Report for	
l Report for	
Il Report for	
all Report for	
fall Report for	
nfall Report for	
infall Report for	
ainfall Report for	
ainfall Report for	
Rainfall Report for	
Rainfall Report for	
v Rainfall Report for	
lv Rainfall Report for	
hlv Rainfall Report for	
thly Rainfall Report for	
uthly Rainfall Report for	
uthly Rainfall Report for	
onthly Rainfall Report for	
tonthly Rainfall Report for	
Monthly Rainfall Report for	
<ol> <li>Monthly Rainfall Report for</li> </ol>	
4. Monthly Rainfall Report for	
L4. Monthly Rainfall Report for	
1.4. Monthly Rainfall Report for	
B1.4. Monthly Rainfall Report for	
B14. Monthly Rainfall Report for	
E B1.4. Monthly Rainfall Report for	

TABLE B1.7. Monthly Rainfall Report for the MARTIN-57. LUCIE Subbasin (MAY 1995.)

242		а а а а а а а а а а а а а а	201010040040040040404040 21404080040040040404 21404080080808080808080 215040880808080808080808080808080808080808
TWO-	2022111001000000000 2. 489.489.497.494.4 2. 6.3482300000000000000000000000000000000000	2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014	
УМУ	មើរផ្លំសំសំណូកក្មេងសមារថាងាំង ស៊ី សមាចារសេសមានស្ថាស់ សំអី ស៊ី សមាចារសេសមានស្ថាស់ សំអី	Z     Z	2.054044460000000000000000000000000000000
7 ,	— 990нн922000000 Т Х'стасовсачалат	ν γ Σ Σ	
41	1 2 48990893472424	44	3 22499999999999999999999999999999999999
A THUR	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	11111 11111 11111 11111 11111 11111 1111	5 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Ŧ		1 9899999999999999 1 98999999999999999	- 399883988399999999333333
	a occessesse=-	2 22022222222222 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	<pre>&gt; 3033035688308832525555</pre>
		200202020090955 22235555900555	HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOSO     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOSO     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOSO     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOS     HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCO      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCOS      HOSOBOSCO      HOSOBOSCO
	·		• 000000000000000000000000000000000000
		, 99833600000325 , 9933970000000000	, <u>secosascoco-ss</u> : , <u>secosscocoss</u> :
	, 9994999999999999 9 88849999999999	, ************************************	<ul> <li>200074040202020202020</li> <li>50000140403202020200</li> </ul>
	A 9000-040000000000 5 50000-0400000000	, 99×0040000 5 00505-455-050	9 De de poet de la composisión de ses 9 De de poet de la composisión de ses
		, <u>9949666666666</u>	
	A 2000000000000000000000000000000000000		<pre>% 2000000000000000000000000000000000000</pre>
	<pre>* 4000000000000000000000000000000000000</pre>	N 5375090000000000000000000000000000000000	
			- 00-000000000000000000 N 00-0-0000000000
•			2 88%8%799889488585353783
	·	5 000000000000000000000000000000000000	A . 888688688888888888888888888888888888
-			⇒ :
:	95). 95).		
	<b>1</b>	4 88888888888888888	
	NA A	1 000000000000000000000000000000000000	
		- 000000000000000000000000000000000000	E → 855555555555555555555555555555555555
-			Sec. 2.23222222222222222222222222222222222
-			N - 200000000000000000000000000000000000
			Z = ==================================
	Secondo 2000000000000000000000000000000000000	8 9-2409-00000000 8 9-2409-000000000	
		5. Millio - 664666666666666666666666666666666666	M         ⇒
	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	\$     \$	
2			<ul> <li>4.000000000000000000000000000000000000</li></ul>
- 8	<b>Kep</b>		
02		1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
N 8	V Rai	518244888468888	
ř	th the second seco		
КI	HEXXHHEFEFEERX O	Торананананарходо Соранананара	Ž TIXXX PEPEPEPEPEPEPE
	್ಜಿಷಿ ತಿ	3 	B1.9
	и в в в в в в в в в в в в в в в в в в в	A BEAK	BLE SPATE
31.1E	្មាំដែលចំណត់សត្ថសត្ថិនីដែនដឹង។ <b>ក្</b>	2	

	EAY HAX	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		N 41	4 - 7 - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9				DAY KAX	6487204 80652204 1222					
		10		ر ب	5		22.0004000		5 X X						
	- XX	$\begin{array}{c} c_{-} & z_{-} \\ c_{-} & z_{-} \\					3			`#Nodud⊣ 					
	י י	Λμπ, «Πουβονα κτάλλησα αθα μάτος ομφ π.π. Ε Σ Σεχ		1	2		E E E E		3.2	- 1997 -					
	T UAY	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1 DAY	·				1941 - 1946 -	94%7483 - Y					
	MTHLY TV/TAL	·王王帝帝王王后,王王子帝还是帝帝帝之之子,王王子帝王子子。 9999年9月19日9月9日9999月1999年9月19日9月19日		a DICY	1		NE 2022222222222222222222222222222222222		NURLA PORT	542 564 572 555 572 555					
	¥	600000000000000000000000000000000000000		ř.			1 000000000000000000000000000000000000		ŕ.	3 7 6 8 8 9 9 8 9 8 8 9 8 9 9 9					
	ă	888888888888888888888888888888888888888			7 6 6 7 6 5 5 5 5 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7		38683322899		ą	31251265					
	62	36666666666565655555666656645			7 30404489333 7 30404489333		- 1 - 35346888844883		ŝ	5.1551759 					
	50				9 89418888888888888888888888888888888888		1 9253292929329			07035F3					
	5	99695695695696695976966959 99695695695566959555569569595					N 200215999999		17	1242203					
	ę,	- 5942-4452625552525252566595654					8 . 98849983143		ŝ	*8533378					
					4 4352049348		4 88599374598	•	:	2000 P 1 0					
	5	2 4 2 3 2 0 0 - 1 - 2 2 3 3 2 0 - 2 3 0 0 - 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			1 1187572783				7						
	:	994 5933 699 599 599 598 588 588 588 588 588 588 5			-		N . 898655568358		5	30333585					
	3				9 03030308833 9 88883030300 9				4	3633635					
	N	— ОФОИЧНИК АЧКОЙЙЙИНИН АНООФЯСНЯК ИЛОЙЦОЙХОСК ЛАВЕХ ВОКИСОВИФХ444			- *-#100004		200000000000000000000000000000000000000		5						
	2	88888888888888888888888888888888888888			9 99923775330 9 99923775330 -		2 000 4 × 300		97	8888888 888888 88888 88888 88888 88888 8888					
	5.				*	* 0000000000000		A 886884388683 → 866843886883		÷-1	20003333				
	2	998 - 9249999999999999999999999999999999999			2020000040				<b>R</b> 1	38888883					
	2							_	5	20039688					
	÷	Nabaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa	995).	AY 1995).	1995). ,	1995)	1995).	1995).	1995).	* 222332226698	95)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1995	\$	000000000
(395)	<u> </u>		ΑΥ 1		1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Y 19	4 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	IAΥ	5	100001 100000 100000					
AΥΊ	14		n(M.			(MA			14	8188888					
M)	5		basi			asin	1	obasi	2	8888888					
basi	ဌ :		Sut		4 8888888888888888888888888888888888888	dduð	1 00000000000000000	T Sul	11	2222222					
( Sub	북 : : :		HEI		3 88888883348	ξŢ		DAS	Ħ	88888888					
(LNI)	9   I	0,0000	IATC	;	3 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	- No	- N -	ŭ	10	12228448					
g	60		SAH	:		С С		WE	60	8888888					
<b>NDE</b>	β.		20			ורוו	8 43999888888 H	HIU	*	555555 					
e D/	<u> </u>	2488233320000000000000000000000000000000	CA.	į		С С		Ŝ	2	33838882					
or th	\$	A AGHAARSESAMAAAAASSSSSSSSSSSSSSS AGHAARSESAMAAAAAAASSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS	or the	è	8.8885898596	or th	6 909999988855 F	ar th	ŝ.	÷3666626.					
ort f	5:3	амыналоораалын талкылулар ноллон . Алыналын 400 бир - Эрен бирон 20 марын . Алыналын 400 бир - Эрен бирон 20 марын . Алан 20 марын	ort fe	ţ		ortfe		ort fe	<b>50</b>	81258880 1					
l Rep	9D : 0		Repi	č		Rep	4 9999999999999	Rep	8						
infal	5 5		nfall	č	9999999999999	nfall	2 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	nfall	8						
y Ra	9 ; 8		' Raiı	50	; 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	v Rai	5 : 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	/ Rai	3:	88888888					
with]	5.6	4.4 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	nthly	5		nthly	000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00	ուհլչ	1	1222 1222 1222 1222 1222 1222 1222 122					
ЮW	Ę.,	· 林林市市村村村村村市小市小市小市小市市市村市村村村村村	Mor	17710	TTTHTHTHTTT.	Mo	L L L EEEEHEEEEEEE	Mo:	4X1X	FXXXXXX					
31.10.		<b>ب</b>	1.11.		<u>د</u>	1.12	4 <u>1</u> 1	1.13.		3					
ABLEE	TE  Reter ence	entropy and an an and an an and an an and an an and an an	ABLEB	ř	NUTA SHALA NUTA SHALA SHALA NUSHEW HU 5 NUSHLEE 75 79	ABLEB	TE A SPARINA A STATE SPARINA A STATE SPARINA A STATE SPARINA A STATE SPARINE A STATE SPARINE A STATE SPARINE A STATE SPARINA A STATE	ABLEB	بو	417A SPRING KKSCHEM HU MYERS MYERS MYERS MYERS CONALZE CO ISLAND LLES FS LLES FS					
Ē	M : C	នេះ ភ្នេះទីទី១៥ ដែលពណដល់ពណ៌ពណ៌ពណ៌ពណ៌ពណ៍ ដីដី	H	2	- <b>22</b> 2002 <b>1</b> 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	H	6:20020222222	Ŧ	17 :						

.

	AY KAX	- ひゅうりょうううう - こうのうろうかう - 日のこのであって - 日のこのであると - 日のこのであると		XVX		ัสหมักกับกับการรัก เหตุการที่มัดกรุกษต เหตุการที่มัดกรุกษต	¢.	740- C	5-16 6-978 8-978 8-698 8-118			5 7 5 5 6 F	
		2 22 200700000 30020000 30020000		MA.X	2333 2400 2400 2400 2333 2333 2333 2333	8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	5	YAU -		8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5			
	k laky J tu MAX	2000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100		ж <del>у</del> к	NET 2010/00/2010/2010/2010/2010/2010/2010/2	× • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ж. Т	2 1942 1	2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 200	x 4 - 4 - 6 9 - 7 9 - 7	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	001-00-	19788853 19788853 1999
	UNT MAX	や M M H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H		ian' N DAY MAX	454)2234878 Xex Xee Ye		- 	L DAY	10 41 41 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	17723 	- 12 12	936288 936288	
	1.1 L	3888 45972355 187334147 2934147 2945		1 - 120 11 - 120	이 있는 것 같은 것 같		:	n defenir Trafferi	2233 > 245	871797 • Arrai		9 × 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	1831:54 Pogradj
	11124-11 111	329970460		•	3383437558	672958594253 	, 	ž	3825	\$83:*	2-3-3-8-8-8 -	354628:	571338
	2	848884888		. 7	0203103948		3	ar i	3966	68350	31 3 3 3 3 3 4 3	7882388	3988888
	ţ	000000000000000000000000000000000000000		÷.	33633353696 3363333535866	99039000000000000000000000000000000000	3	đ	2988	388233	383383868	8383888	333585.
	3	8-8999933		- 24118 - 25	20225222222	43556686533333	5	i,	3889	89624	2:2222222	3885388	6555555
	4			ž.	52\$38327 <b>2</b> x	240032635100		5	8183.	32983	823228888	123212	40 x 380
	ç	\$919391449		¢	3234233322	4886888558885	- -	G	2087:	- 1221-	42348355	2663334	
	5	40 40 8 8 7 8 8 4 		7	4423448498	3454355555555	5	"	4288;	59222	ㅋ- 신슈워라더라면	- 1935555	1112 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1
	5.	438534234		ĩ	39854999595	202023626363		-	39328	5961	04883853	8186665 -	1878238
	2 2	94939972 94939972	3	3	- 92925435485	222222222222222	2	3	20203	17837	<< 4.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2	242443	199731 958756
	Ξ.	101001200		7	30000000000	863858585852 -	2	Ţ	ក្នុងខេត្ត ស្ថានខ្មែរ	- Racce	52222286	2464293	 8883333
	07	99999999999	5	0		86868888333333	5	₹	- 38866		35834888	882888 <b>6</b> 8	896393
	2	141667613		f,	54799-00-348 54799-00-348	ңараарараадаа.	È	ň	8255	9999	지도입국지되었음	911911919	0000000
	5	855053	5	198988999488	888288888888888888888888888888888888888	•	2	128888	85586	1010240880	888888888 98988888	44444	
	1	88888888		5	- 29828888888888888888888888888888888888		:	518	: 77   88888	62855		868889898	1000000
Ŕ	9	8888888888888		** ۱	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	55555555555555555555555555555555555555		<u> </u>	77 88888	88888	8888888	2222233	888888
199	1	8888888888		5		888888888888888888888888888888888888888	1995	نة 1995	88889		86888888888888888888888888888888888888	22222228	8889988
- NE	2 :	200000000000000000000000000000000000000		8888555555688888	8883 <i>86233333</i> 33	n n n n	n n UNE	88.83 88.83 88.83	2113	P초대성홍영영도	853535X	455441	
in (J	<u>.</u>	*****	Юч	ŝ	. 400 - 400 - 600 - 700	augasasasa.	E ERREGERE	10 11	69182	18 <u>-</u> 2 2 2	97533588	20205565	- 
bbas	4	004040000 0000040000	basi	2	49595959998 99595959595	8388888888888	: obasi	3	55555	2883	22222228	8823988	536888
ESu	11	00000000000	E Sul	1	33588888833	864428468685	ESul	1	38888	8888	838388888	3889289	10000000
1ME	8	888581888	IMEI	3	22623666666	-	OBEI	3	88888	2888	222222222	8883888	358%28
SSIN	<del>1</del> 0	888888888	SSIN	5	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	B88866666656565	÷ Ĕ	5	53888	8888	33333333	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	2222883
R KI	ŧ,	555555555	RK	r D	38578938888	666688888888888888888888888888888888888	KEE	98	00000	3888	2688888888	8888888	888888
IPPE	<b>S</b> [	8888888886	WE	7.0		888888888888888888888888888888888888888	KEO	10	8 0 0 8 4	3088	82888848	6999988	8888888
heL	8 :	882835488	БĽ	š	000000000000000000000000000000000000000		. Ta	ŋę	22728	8243	8822£8331	2483454	464467 444465
<u>for</u>	05 	อันษณ์ตั้งของว่า	or th	5		24420000000aaaa	r the	5	66556 66556	55823		3948388	685256
port	3	8998888886	ort f	2	4666699668	 1988835688749	tte	7	38858	5222		3246388 	: 268628:
ll Re	: :	284885555	Rep	5	19993935N888	2868231538435	Repo	- 10	128888	8888			193845
linfa	8 ;	8888888888	nfall	21	222222222222222222222222222222222222222	388888888888888888888888888888888888888		2 2	88888	88888	388888888		
ly R	1	888823883	/ Rai	3 :	2222223222222		Rair	1	88888	88888	888888888	888888	88888991
Month	4 YTA P		Monthly	4/шн	аланалана ал		fonthly	1	×××××	÷εεε ι	*******	• X X + X X	z
TABLE B2.1.		utural Russiners: Ps Russiners: Ps Ps Curiners: D S b5 S b5 S curini S curini	TABLE B2.2.	341S	AMCHBOLD ANCH FARK COURT COURT COURT COURT SUS SUS SUS SUS SUS SUS SUS SUS	1999 - 19	TABLE B2.3 N	91. T.	ARCHAULL AVON PARK CANAL POINT CLEMISTUM FS CLEMISTUM FS	COVAN PT PIERCE PS LOOS LAUD	0.000 0.0000 0		0 

# TABLE B2.4. Monthly Rainfall Report for the EAA (EAST) Subbasin (JUNE 1995).

2 May	1 0.61 + 1.61 2.61 + 1.61 2.61 + 1.61		UAY 5 LAY	
х тх 23 харалараар санананана 23 харарарара 24 харарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарарар	ANU 1 YANU 1 YANU 2	т 1946 — Чара 1946 — Чара 1949 — Чара 1940 — Чара 194	1 XV0-7	
, минини – ліці — миніті 1951, мани хорару-таруулара 292, мари хорару-тарууларары мината 292, мари хораруулараары уурасарар	1 DAY 7001		1 DAY	
	TPLAN, ATHLAN,	8 2 7 7 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	A THEIN	
	0 I	*****	£	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	n 5	56633328 5	;	
1 99995955500000000000000000000000000000	1 0 7 2 1	695555555	7	
	1 1 1		2	-
	4 5	86888333	<del>:</del>	
<ul> <li>A BRARESSERTARESSERTARES</li> <li>A BRARESSERTARESSERTARESSERTARES</li> <li>A BRARESSERTAR SERTIFICARESSERT</li></ul>	5.2	92988435	f	
1 - 2555145514850488318548888 	1 B -	34884443	7	
	4 ≤	50284605	;	- 285922445123422824354 (3458) 
	3 5	22422535 - 1 -	4	
의 · 전 11년 20년 20년 20년 20년 20년 20년 20년 20년 20년 20	7, 4	26.23.01.12 26.23.01.12	5	
9 000000000000000000000000000000000000	2.5	2003-372 -	D N	
	5 C	\$\$ <b>7</b> 46813	995) 1	
1 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0	×1 00	96556556	й Н 7	
	21 g	333332229	nn -	- 2848494948844458888888888888888888888888
4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	9 8	8888888888	id 3)	
	1	666666666	,2 ar	
4 9 4 9 9 8 8 7 9 4 9 1 1 6 9 6 6 8 4 5 9 9 1 1 6 9 9 8 9 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	95).	ő <b>v 18</b> 85 <b>3</b> 89	4's (1	
886666666666666666666666666666666666666	1E 15	000303000	ARE)	888848384888888888888888888888888888888
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		86966387	Z a	
1	urse		ATK	10000000000000000000000000000000000000
	qqno	00000000	ERV 10	668486666556658666666666666666666666666
666666666666666666666666666666666666666	ST) S	0000000000	SNC **	
8 . 896 9 6 8 9 4 9 6 8 9 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	(NE	882889354	Å,	
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	AA.		'ATE "'	
<ol> <li>Alexandra and a state of the st</li></ol>	the E	10 30 0 20 - 4 0 0 2 0 0 2 - 4 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 - 4 1	he W %	25049339393454044458354898666 2504933939395499854898686
9. ఇత్రద్ధిక్షిక్షినిని సినిదిని చినిశిశాళ్లికి -	for size		for tl °5	
2 . 0	eport	20100000000000000000000000000000000000	port	
2 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	all Re	6995799	ll Re 	
2 0 4 0 4 0 6 0 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	ainfa		iinfal 22	88400000000000000000000000000000000000
	lly R		ly Ra ∘'	
<u>.</u> F Y · X · X · X · X · · · · · · · · · · ·	5. Month	2	6. Monthl "IN"	
1177 1177	TABLE B2.	G 116 G 115 G 115 DROOMALLEE S'-07 B 2 B 2 B 2 B 2 B 2 B 2 B 2 B 2 B 2 B 2	TABLE B2.1 stree	Additra, N. S. Researcher Construction Construction Construction Construction Construction Construction History Histor

# TABLE B2.7. Monthly Rainfall Report for the MARTIN-ST. LUCIE Subbasin (JUNE 1995).

2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2				ис Фодолонорсоновано КС опостаютеризацие СС опостаютеризацие ПЕ Е Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Состаютеризацие ПЕ Е Состаютеризацие ПЕ Состаютери
22 404400404900-4004 22 040240400-4000 22 04024024000-40000-400 22 04024024000-4000-400		₩ XX 0000-2000-000-20 XX 0000-2000-00 XX 0000-00 XX 00000-00 XX 0000-00 XX 0000000000		
ан 1912 — Элайражийн үнээ 1913 — Элайражийн үнээ 2913 — Элайражийн үнээ 2914 — Элайражийн үнээ 2915 — Элайраан улсан улс		។ មុស្តី ភ្នាំមុសស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកសំរំ សុស្តី ភ្នាំមុសស្រុកសំរំសុកក្រុម សុស្តី ភ្នាំមុសស្រុកសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុម សំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុកក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុំសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុំរំសុក្រុមសំរំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសាស់រំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសាស់រំសុក្រសួងសំរំសុក្រសួងសាស់សុក្រសួងសាំងសុក្រសួងសាស់សុក្រសួងសាស់សុក្រសួងសាក្រសួងសាស់សុក្រសួងសាស់សុក្រសួងសាក្រសួងសាស្រុកសំរំសុកក្រសួងសាស្រុងសាំងសាំងសាស់សំរាំងសាំងសាំងសាំងសាំងសាំងសាំងសាំងសាំងសាំងស		22
τ		r		1 2 E E E E E 
22 - 22 - 24 - 24 - 22 - 2 22 - 22 - 24 - 24		22 - 1074222 1222222222 23 - 1074222 1222222222 24 - 1074222 1222222222222222222222222222222222		11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.11.
- 슻녎 - 국왕의의정원일의국왕극정경우성		-		
222				중철 - 여유표정법역원수의 학습 내용기정기능을 받았다. 후
* 000000000000000000000000000000000000		<pre>&gt;</pre>		
1 202020000000000		4 546686888849		·
1 202222222233		· 52539522665353		- 3883888888888888888888888888888888888
. 202222000000000		- 		
9 37793204204677333 				- - - - - - - 
		1 33284333388333 1		4 399363484888599999999999999999999999999999999
и тимориченовски в троичеровски в троичеровски		n 95928899389955		4
и ториомен-илион И тородуатойиле		1 9785388539399 -		A Sector Notes - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -
, <u>9000000000000000000000000000000000000</u>				- 2995628282828282828282828282828282828282828
N 000000000000000000000000000000000000		2 22702-2288088 2		- 2 86999444966666699447 2 869984496666699447 2 8697844969666997447 2 86978449696
		9.5350849954355 9.53508499555		- 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -				
	95).			
* 2003*05000000 - 0003*050000000	5 1	- 000000000000000000000000000000000000	995).	
	)UN	· 000003.890000000	ЦЦ 1-	
н мналенийн төнооо Н мналенийн төнооо	sin (	- 신뢰 국·영양권리국 영양국 66년 중요 정부가 2월 4월 4월 2월	10	
	ubba	- 900-100004400 - 0040400004400 - 004040400000000	asin	
	ΓΥS	4 4000000000000000000000000000000000000	dduó	3 33388888668588888888888888
	Ŋ	- 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	Ě	
- 000000000000000000000000000000000000	S S		- So	
5 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	AC	2.00000400000000	Ŭ	-
0 000000000000000000000000000000000000	M BE	5 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 -	VAR	
6 . <u>900</u> 900 900 900 900 900 900 900 900 900	ALN	0 11405646484848484848484848484848484848484848	ROV	
0,00,0%14001490440 8,00%490544054444 8,00%4954408044445	the I		the B	0 0 9 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0
0 - 0 - 3 - 3 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4	t for	0 000000000000000000000000000000000000	fort	
1 500 1 550 1 550	epor	0 - 0000-00000000000000000000000000000	port	9 9 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
000000000000000000000000000000000000000	all R	2 - 6666666666666	all Re	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
658686666666666666	ainfi	3 854555666666666	ainfa	851999999999999999999999999999999999999
<b>1</b> ,66228666666666666666666666666666666666	hly R		۶ ylr	
A I H I A I ATTENHESESSES A I A TEESHESESSES I A TEESHESESSESSES I A TEESHESESSESSESSESSESSESSESSESSESSESSESSE	. Mont	7 42474444445 7 7	. Mont	7 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
<ul> <li>3.17K</li> <li>1.193</li> <li>4.202 DERVER PS</li> </ul>	TABLE B2.8	arite C. Davi C. Davi	TABLE B2.9	117 Construction C

	YAU'S KOX	៴៹៹៓៵៴៹៓៓៹៴៸៓៰៴៸៰៴៴៹៹៰៰៹៸៰៰៹៹៹៴៹៴៰៹៶៸ ៹៰៶៹៹៹៰៰៹៸៹៹៹៰៹៰៹៰៹៰៹៹៰៹៹៰៹៹៰៹៹៰៹៹៰៹៹៹		хи, технологичий хи, технологичий хи, технологичий хи, технологичий	21			2 0000000 2 0000000 2 000000000 2 00000000	
	1147	$ \begin{array}{c} & \nabla \mathcal{L} \left( \left\{ $		т Ам өтс бандтра Ам бластана Ам бластана Эм попистика	(AU 2 ) MAX				
	NAU MAC			ма 1969 - 20 1969 - 20 1960 - 20 19	(ACL L	*************		141 X 8 8 8 9 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
	8	ΣΕΥ		E E	2 DAY	<u>х</u> хихв-чалоч		аленент 2 р -	
	L DAY	»>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>		22 24 25 24 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25	AY MAX	1999792223333 Note - 19998		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
	NTKLY	れたションター・スペードーンショントックションシーン・インシント・シーンション・シーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーンシーン			i 1 Mikt			а — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	
	2 : 2	⋣⋳⋠⋞⋩⋊⋉⋦⋳⋵⋳⋵⊁⋳⋵⋳⋳⋳⋳⋳⋍⋶⋳⋡⋳⋹⋺⋧			UNTRL:	N102220222222			
	62	- 		, 555555555555555555555555555555555555	ू इ			1 8888522	
	5	905360808011133355005503536 <b>1</b> 556			л 1	202003300330			
	5.6	5555728225523355555555556653 555555555555555555		7 9588555588	5	222223333555		1 1558523	
	5 8	5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 1 1 1 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		4 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	÷			- 3853335	
	<. <	91999999999999999999999999999999999999		 	Ş			- 1 11222222	
	3 3	z 2888 2 # 072 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 8 8 7 2 2 2 4 4 8 7 5 7 7 2 3 3 2 2 3 2 4 4 8 7 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7		가 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이	7	는 같은 다 한 한 한 한 한 한 한 한 한 한 한		7 22823577	
	a :			9999 9 - 9 5 292555978	е. Ч			аланына 1 3 <b>3</b> 480086	
	4.7	ономиление на пробиване сели с предержа и порания разливана (собрудать с предержа и инно инности предержание с предержание с предержание с предержание с		2、白喉道2000年1月2日 2、万峡市204日2月2日	3				
	- ; :	5년년(1)2년第七년(1)2년년(1)2년(2)2년(2)2년(2)2년(2)2년(2) 19년 18월 21일(1)2년(1)2년(1)2년(2)2년(2)2년(2) 19년 18월 21일(1)2년(1)2년(1)2년(1)2년(2)2년(2)2년(2)2년(2)2년		- 59615023000	1			4 8558884	
	9.8			3 · 이동물륨드용응고영상 ·	G			3 5953493	
	61 tõ	\$0000000000000000000000000000000000000		- - 	5			2 0054988	
	14 14	1 3969898588668866666666666666		8 - B	a L	 		5.5288588	
	5 X			2 8186288864	5			5 3858390	
	91 00		5).	<b>Č</b> = 88888888888888888888888888888888888	<del>3</del> 5).	e.2222220			
D	1.5		E 195	n · 22222222222			Ш 19 19	* 00000000	
199!	1 8		1.0040-000245- 	<u>Z</u>					
ENER C	: : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :		in (J	sin (JI		<u>ร</u> ุ่		sin (	1 4 2000 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400
in (J	1.8		bbas	4 • 0 = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	asin 2 I		bbas	- 646.6666	
obas:			ESu		Subb	7	ST Su	1 2082888	
í Sul			CHE		Ţ		OAS		
Ľ.			4AT			82728888588	ST C	1 8788888	
ğ	• • • •		SAF	6 6262888666	Ŭ ª ·		IWE	2 2000000	
DE	2 D	≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈≈	б			-	5		
e DA	9 - 0 	에이오프 역한 프로이언 국가 전 가방 가방은 영감 위험을 통하였다. 에는 국가 가장	e CA	5 100000051888	ပ္ခ		e S	2.26654025	
or th	6:5 	e de la contra contra de la contr La contra de la contr	r the		r the		x th		
ortfo	6 6	<u> </u>	ort fe	14 044 13 0 046 00 00 00 00 0 046 0 00 00 00 00 00 0 046 0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	rt fo ∘∘		ort fe		
Repo	0	as	Repc	9 36 36 36 36 30 3 9 36 36 36 36 30 3 1 3	Repo	110000 11000000	Repc	2 001 2 000 2 000 2 000 2 000 2 000 2 000 0 000 0 000 0 000 0 000 0 000 0 000 0 0000 0 000000	
ıfall	* B	ਜ਼ੑੑਫ਼ਫ਼ਖ਼ਸ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਗ਼ੑੑਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਖ਼ੑੑਗ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਗ਼ਖ਼ੑੑਗ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਗ਼ਖ਼ ਗ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼	l llalı		fall I	919 949 960 960 960 960 960 960 960 960 960 96	llei	11.15 11.15	
Rair	70	877888888888888888888888888888888888888	Rain	0 000000000000000000000000000000000000	Rain	1999999999999999	Rair	000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00	
thly	10 00		thly	1 32832223222	thly	83838888488	thly	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	
10. Mon	тх: • х :	*************************	1. Mont		2. Monl	EEEEHXREEEE	3. Mont	XXXEEET	
TABLE B2.1	SITE CHEKIKA EVER	Matchin R Marchin R Marchi	TABLE B2.1	JITE ARCHINUL ARCHINUL ARCHINUS CURTY JANIWS CURTY JANIWS CURTY JANIWS CURTY JANI CURTY JANIMS CURTY JANIMS C	TABLE B2.1	BONTLA SPELMUS COORERTAM HU COORESTAM HU COORESTAM HU COORESTAM HU COORESTAM HU COORESTAM HU COORESTAM HULLS FS MARLES FS MARLES FS MARLES FS	TABLE B2.1	SLTE SONTA SPAINGS CORRECEN NQ TTMONGLEE MARCO TSLAND MARCO TSLAND MARCO TSLAND MARCO TSLAND MARCO TSLAND	

.

2 - 90 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10	24 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25	ङ्ग. हुब्द्र <u>्</u> च्द्रत् <u>च्</u> ड्र्ल्ट्र्ड्र्ड्र्ड्र्ड्र्ट्र्ट्र्ट्र्ट्ट्र्ट्र
	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	៴ឨ៓៓៓៳៳ៜ៹៴ឣ៝៶៸៹៶៳៹៰៹៰៹៶៸៶៸៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹៹
	12 8000000000000000000000000000000000000	4. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2.
	5 NORTHERE NO	T THERE IS A CONTRACTOR OF THE STATE
25	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ತೆ ಗಾಗಾರಿಗಳಲ್ಲಿಗೊಳಿಸಲು ಇತ್ಯಾಗಿಗಳಲ್ಲಿ ಶಾಗಾರಿಗಳು ಇತ್ಯಾಗಳಲ್ಲಿಗಳು ತ
3,300000000 20,3000000000000000000000000	· 2011年1月1日日日(1993年1月)(1993年1月)) - 2012年1月1日日日(1993年1月)(1993年1月)) - 2012年1月1日日日日(1993年1月)(1993年1月))	「「」「「「「「「」」」を見ているという。」、「「「」」「」」、「」」をしている」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」、「」、「」、「」、「」、「」、「」、「
	文 文 ()、「」」「「」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」	
 	0 000000000000000000000000000000000000	
N SANSSINI'	2 84873989964489993888834 2	5 874888352825555555555555555555555555555555
		↓ ★5134048448661444866144486614448661444866144848444484844484844844848448484848
3 863888843	は、1996年に次の時代の中国になる時代である。	2.2556555555555555555555555555555555555
- NA- 4 1 9 4000544945 9 4000544945 9 4000544945	а париялоново на робово се р а париялоново на робово во се р а париялоново на робово во се ро	<ul> <li>4 443634453746884554454445445</li> <li>4 44</li> /ul>
1,24846949X N NN	<ol> <li>4.11399895443448878685346534</li> </ol>	4 448555855555555752432453555343
		7 - 39848999889 - 523938938888888888 
N 939388882		283883848883333333333388338888888888888
4 40000000000		1.286688655555555555555555555555555555555
9 000000000 	<ul> <li>No bege a grad a set to ge /li> <li>No bege a set to ge a set</li></ul>	
	». «««««»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		<ul> <li>A - D - D - D - D - D - D - D - D - D -</li></ul>
		는 정말을 알려갈 것 것으로 가지 가지 가슴을 알려가 있었다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 가지 않는 것 같이 있었다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 있다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 있다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 있다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 있다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 있다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 가지 않는 것 같이 없다. 이 것 같이 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는 것 않 것 같은 것 같이 않는 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 않는 것 같이 않는 것 않는
= 000000000000000000000000000000000000	4 36887.58888888888888888888888888888888888	
9 <b>95).</b>	<b>11</b> - 0001000000000000000000000000000000	669 
	☐ 7:8825888458653888888888888888888888888888888	
	ni 1)	
basii 	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	
	Q - 949564696666666666666666666666666666666	⊞୍⊟ାର୍ଜନିଶ୍ମାପ୍ରମୂଳରେମେମ୍ମେର୍ଜ୍ୟାରେମ୍ମେର୍ଜ୍ୟରେମ୍ମର ୧୦
SSIN		
X 3 378328888 :		
H. 6 888888888		AKI = 6556688888888888888888888888888888888
the L 9898888888 98988888888888888888888888	the the second	
	La Laggering Leggering Leggering ageneration	
		Rain 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2
<b>V</b> = ==================================	<b>H</b> <b>Y</b> = 25222228866558459486666866866666666	<b>V</b> 2. 98612826628986688693888888888898888
		С <u>х</u> лакинскалаланиско-разандара. 2 :
62.1 2.1	<b>B3.2</b>	<b>6</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b>
		BLE BLE
C 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	L 244552220000000000000000000000000000000	

			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		2000																																							
			200 - 100 -																																									
	22 23 24 24 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25			CAY >- C MAX																																								
			3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	4 . TAU	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2																																							
	ника на правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление и правление br>и правление и правлени и правление и правлени и правление и п		* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	L RAF																																								
			ž																																									
						20																																						
	и риманионицароворни и риманионицароворни р нафоковории нолосории					1 338888223	:																																					
	ー・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・			1 1991185283 1 19911853853 1	!																																							
	う おびがかれていないがった。 しょう ううしょう しょうしょう				) %EC402405																																							
					;																																							
	- 		4 803248668	:																																								
	2 2011000000000000000000000000000000000		7 182837883 -	•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·																																							
				5																																								
			3 8538882233	3																																								
			- 1-69557 - 1-695905	1																																								
	- ตร้อยร้างพรุกธรรมข้ายคือพรรมหรือ 8 ตร้อยร้างพรายราชกรี่ต่อพรรมหรือ		и ораноа́нце о прайозака	5	- 																																							
			1 4416586666 1	995). **																																								
	La A HOL 4 A HÉ 4 J HE A MALAGNO PROVESSION AND A MARANA A NACIONO CHAGNE PORTONIA AND A MARANA A NACIONA ANTINA AND A MARANA A NACIONA ANTINA ANTI	EAA (WEST) Subbasin (JULY 1995).		÷ ۲	00000000000000000000000000000000000000																																							
	- 44480888888888888888888888888888888888		1 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00	) (IU																																								
	4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		1 000 000 110 000 1000 110 000 110 000 110 000 110 000 1000 110 000 1000 110 000 1000 1000 110 000 100000 1000	יים יים																																								
			Y 1995).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).	95).													1 9466688999	(1,2 а <sub>1</sub> ,	
95).	a . 9882444456666946655949656																													4 / 14 A FO TO	NS (													
Y 19				- 420000000 - 440000000 - 9400000000	ARE																																							
0nr	ာ အခြင့်ရက်ကရာမှုလုပ်ကမ္ဘာဆံများမှုတွင်တို့ရှိရှိရှိရှိနှင့် အခြင့်ရက်ကရာမှုလုပ်ကမ္ဘာဆံများမှုတွင်တို့ရှိရှိရှိရှိရှိနှင့်		- 40-00-0454 - 400000000	VATION	. 19 <b>1990669366</b> 443946653545555																																							
asin	x 		- 00010000000 		- 																																							
ŝubb			3ubb.		SER	 																																						
ST) (			8:888883888	O N N																																								
· (EA	0. 49999995599999999999999999999999999999		F 9999999999	ER (																																								
EAA			- 	NAT ۳	-																																							
the	4 2222000000000000000000000000000000000	the I	4 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	the آ پہ																																								
t for	5 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	t for	599555555	t for %																																								
epoi	2 22232 1228 2228 222 223 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	epor	31885588888	ерог	. 6666666666666666666666666666666666666																																							
all R	0 118480022801808266586688	all R	2 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	ıll R€ °'																																								
lainf	99995533335555555555555555555	ainfi	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	ainf.																																								
hly F		hly R	1727 - 57 1727 - 57 1777 -	۱y R "	48999999999999999999999999999999999999																																							
Mont	7 . 2 . 7	Monti	L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L	. Montl	***************************************																																							
TABLE B3.4	- 11 the - 11 the - 11 the - 12 the - 12 the - 21 th	TABLE B3.5	2172 CLEM2576 CLEM25764 CLEM25764 Pr CLEM25764 Pr DM608A1257 CF DM608A1257 CF DM608A12	TABLE B3.6	AND THE AND THE AND THE AND THE AND THE CHRANETTIC ROVER CHRANETTIC ROVERTICAR ECHALSTICK ROVER FORMAL STRUCTURE FORMAL STRUC																																							

<ul> <li>第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第一部第</li></ul>	い しゅうときゅうとうかんのう かいしょうとう ひょうしょう ひゅうしゅう ひょうしょう ひょうしょう ひょうしょう ひょうしょう ひょうしょう ひょうしょう ひょう ひょう ひょう ひょう ひょう ひょう ひょう ひょう ひょう ひ	2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 -	
	사람 사람 2. 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이		
3. 14338.4544.82454.4	13 12182946866668	3 - 35.8444 <b>8.8</b> 228 9.84 128 5.54 13	
аннын аларынан 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	್ ಗಿರ್ಧಾರಿಕಾರಿಗಳುಗಳುಗಳು ತೆ. 3 ತೆ. ಸ. ಸ. ಸ. 2 ತೆ.	townendadouradaeredeu Ktorosoore Internetaere	
5 200 000 200 000 000 000 5 200 000 200 000 000 000	- - 	5 - 78 88 9 4 4 4 4 9 1 1 1 9 4 4 7 4 1 4 4 4 4 7 4 1 4 4 4 4 5 1 1 1 1 4 4 4 5 1 1 1 1 4 4 5 1 5 1	
т Мараларарану Мараларарарарара	相望 「「「「ちゃっ」をつうするをくました。 「「「「「」」できっていた。 「「」」」「「ちゃっ」をついてきるのです。	<ul> <li>              かとりはようでものできた。             からはないできた。             からはないできた。             からないできた。             からないできた。</li></ul>	
1 2022120000000000000000000000000000000	2 - 988382499899999	2 28025225487353531220	
	: ( <u>3</u> 3%275979445	2 - <b>2 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 6 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5</b> - 5 - 5 - 5 -	
- 9 - 9 - 0 - 7 - 7 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2	h 467866777-7775	V - 548 498 59 488 38 38 4 3 4 3 7 3 7 3	
	3 28741742223337	1 54-\$X3X3\$8075\$3758875	
1 - 99545345455399 1 - 99545545455599	1 2097 10 209 10 200 1 2097 10 209 10 200 1 2097 10 209 10 200	N 342779477966446886572	
	1 28288355555555		
4 · 8865	1 200700000000000	 ( 25%88888888888385385385	
	7 ASASASSAAASS		
, <u>669999999</u> 			
1 24*8045*255555 1 24*8045*255555	<pre>/ _910080804040</pre>	- 1 388875488555678386770	
		- 1-38547388459495741111	
	- <u>16-3000-1990-1990</u>	 1 0128128458588884455	
1 000000000000000000000000000000000000		2 38855555555555555555555555555555555555	
⇒ុង់ផុដុស្ខភ្លុងកំនឹងស្តេមកំផុំ 			
5   AEB8888488888888	· 5/66666666666	2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	
4 687663666666888	199322222222222222222222222222222222222	<ul> <li></li></ul>	
199925525555555555555555555555555555555	T - 289628988439838	20 - 860888878668888888888888888888888888888	
		D = 1 Bid\$88544886468844486888     D = 4     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D = 4     D     D     D = 4     D     D     D = 4     D    D	
	o - ***********************************		
dc 	Y Segsssssssss Sul		
m 2 - 35525255556986 -		V 1 34244865466844568648841	
		D 3 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	
T. 5 855554555555555555555555555555555555			
	₩ ÷ 382252555555555555555555555555555555555	✓ 3 88888888888888888888888888888888888	
AR1			
<b>5</b> <b>5</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b> <b>1</b>	P 8:888888888888888888	<ul> <li>➡ \$ \$</li></ul>	
D D D	<b>1</b> 1 1	<b>7</b> • 8888968888888888888888888888888888888	
	C 1 888888888888888	C = 3668888888888888888888888888888888888	
		N 2 8 4 8 4 9 5 9 5 8 8 8 7 8 9 5 4 7 5 9 5 7 8 9 7 8 9 8 9	
11113 2888828182828388 -		<b>11</b> 31 666635868556655655555555555555555555555	
V.::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	∑ 1 4199228428488851 R	N 01855858658685393655288	
onth		tr 4:	
Ž + + * * * + + = + = = * * * * * * * * *	Ž ************************************	, <u>, xxxx+x+x+x+++++</u>	
1917 - 19	ອຸ ຕິ 3 ສິ 1	B3.9	
BLE BLE PLE PLE PLE PLE PLE PLE PLE PLE PLE P	BLE Ser		
	L 8. 9998999998888	<ul> <li>M. 1995</li> /ul>	

	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 200																																		
	・ 「「」」 「」」 「」」 「」」 「」」 「」」 「」」 「」」 「」」 「		10 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20																																		
	252 スカン・シャッシュ ション		2010日 1997 1997																																		
					222 5 2 2 200000000000000000000000000000																																
	5. 2493252222523440-10000000000000000000000000000000000		211년 11월 21일 21일 21일 21일 211년 11월 21일 21일 21일 21일 211년 11월 211일 21일 21일 21일 21일 21일 21일 21일 21일 21		1		2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 3 2																														
			월교 조직금수정 1333명 교교 ····				en dezageg.																														
					R 34888893333		( 28×898)																														
	\$		0 81804782338 		3 <b>39324833</b> 934		1 0938456																														
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1 244754585 		8 800000000000000000000000000000000000		1 23538334																														
	2010-2010-2010-2010-2010-2010-2010-2010		N NO X 2				0 8000000																														
	4 389934483925555555333535488848		5 <b>45</b> 89912348		4 188488888888888																																
	0046039000000000000000000000000000000000		0 48888837833		0 \$8671735356		- 																														
:			1 3458743348		4 #8558557855555 4 #85585555555		· 1=200000																														
:			~ 38868358888 34868358888		7 88885858555		1 9388888																														
5	2885388778888888883888888		1 8588158684 -		4 469889388344		1 4848884																														
•			1 3 4 4 9 9 9 9 4 4 9 9 9 4 4 9 9 9 9 9 9		1 194829-24635		: ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::																														
					9 29849334333		2 28489488																														
ž	: \$4\$				9 909 <b>4</b> 88843966		≏ %938\$883. 																														
-	·		= 400 800 / 400 80				3.8358853																														
1							2020230																														
91		995)		5	a : 988148664486	95).	= 8688348 																														
95). 1		٦.	7 4:28438888888 7	661		·Υ 16	- 846988m																														
- ۲ <sup>۲</sup>	566666666466666668898666885666	1 UD 4		лгу		IN)																															
<u>10</u> 2		riaec	n geweksedte	in (l		nise	្ន ស្ត្រីភីពីស៊ុកីស៊្																														
asin u	- 200 C 20	եղջ	D 1 2888814828	lbba;	4 . 000407900594 . . 000407900594	gqng	- 9382858																														
Subt	· ************************************	HEE	Ŭ Ŭ ⇒ \$88888885488 C	۲S ۲	1.868845888 <i>18</i>	<b>≜ST</b>	- 66656888																														
Ϋ́	- 604 62 60 6 70 70 6 74 7 7 70 8 8 8 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9	ATC!	4 284283888	- IN		õ	2 82888588																														
ۍ م	44 66626647796556666666666666666666666666666666	ΑH		8	3.9634599496955	'EST	9 9266298.																														
Ъ. С	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	ő	8 88848888888	LIER		МНJ	2 22222183 																														
DAI		CAL		JOL 20L	6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	ŋö	- 																														
.the		the (		the (	8:20000007400 -	the S	8.8888884																														
r fo	55555555555555555555555555555555555555	t for	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	t for	5 8888888868888888888888888888888888888	for	0.00000000																														
sepo.		epor		Por	4 8888998888	sport	3 88888888																														
fall F		all R		all R	a 999979999999	ull Re	518888888																														
Raine		tainf	018888888888	tainfi	* 0200000000000000000000000000000000000	ainfe	318388888																														
thly		hly F		hly R		ly R	a 8588888																														
. Moni	**************************************	Mont	T EXCHTHENEN	Montl	T TTTTFTYTTTT	Month	1 6 7 хегеги																														
33.10		3.11.	×.	3.12.	3	3.13.																															
TABLE B	ни и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и	TABLE B.	CUTE ARCHAULD ARCHAULD CORRECTA JOHIN- CORRECTA JOHIN- COV5 KHACHAU CUTS COV5 CUTS CUTS CUTS CUTS CUTS CUTS CUTS CUTS	TABLEB	SITE MANITA STATAN CONFERNAN CONFERNAN CONFERNAN STATAN ST	TABLE B3	LITE BURITA JERING CORKSCREN NU THERS THERS LONGALER MARCO LIJUALU MARCO LIJUALU ANKES VS																														
TABLE B4.1.	Mont	hly Ri "	ainfi	ıll R¢	sport	t for	the L	JPPE	IR KI	SSIN	4ME	E Sul	bbasi	in (A	ncı	JST 1	995).														á	2	-				
--	------------------	-------------	-------------------------	----------	-------	-------------	---------	------	--------	------------	------------	-------------	---------------	---------------	------------	------------	-------	----------	---------	-------	-----------------	------------------	-------	------------	---------	-------------	--------------	--------------	----------------	---------------------------------------	---------------	-----------------	-------	-------------------	----------------	-------------------	---
			Ĭ	: 3		ŝ.	ő.	.0	õ	5	0	3	1	13	9	15	91	5	8	2	D,7	51	7	57	7	÷	ş		:		2 - -	TURNAL TURN	1 DAY	. a .		S DAY	, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
coley Kissimire Ms Kissimure sp	εrr	188	51.52 51.52 51.52	2.15	89.8	1.15 04	888	968	369	388	aa s	189	899 -	855	800	688	688	388	. 5 8 8	: 988	8 J 5 6		2 2 2	200	24	-	64	2.4		مد - د د	20	95		:	- 44 5-22	1 2 2	( <b>.</b>
LAKE AJ,FRED Mr. LUY	Σŕ	2 G 8 G	8.9	18	50	1.00	00 1	30	88	88	28	12	8.5	0.4	888	388	368	388	355	383	3 2 3	33	01.	2 2	î î	- :::	- 66 6	22	00 32	  	7.7	 		н н 8 8 о л	26	8 6 8 6 8 6	02 16M
ីខ្មែរ ភូមិន ខ្មែរ	Έξ.	893	9 6 F	1.12	28	63	82	33	88	78	23	a : -	28	1 99 98	88	523	222	388	333	100	- 289	N 5- 3 0 5- 0	:::	 2 2 2	5 ( )	;13 ;	351	*** :201	9 ) ) 2 2 :	99 k - 12 9 1	1. j.	* <u>*</u>	 	-i	25	35	÷.
ST CLOUD	5 E	- 0	5 6 1 6 6 1	R -	80	88,	88	88	53	8 8 8 8	5 f	38	- 00 00	8 H	88	00	00	000	00	000	200	85	23				 133	. er Szź	2	434 940	5133 - 	7 5 4		aida A a a	- ^ - 2 2 2	 	163
																			:																•	:	;
TABLE B4.2.	Mont	ily Ri	ainfa	ull Re	port	for	the I.	MO.	ER K	ISSU	MME	EE Su	ıbba÷	in (∕	<b>NUG</b>	UST	1995]	_																			
41 Th	нда	10	8	3	3	40	9¢	10	r C	5	ijł	::	q	5	14	15	2	17	21	5	0	.,	3	4	7	-	:			;	213	A.(HIPO)	T LAV	Aver- 7	NAU L	- DA	
ARCHEOLD	Σ	00	Ē	96	60.	3	0.0	00	• 10	ŝ	. 1	л Т	50	00	00		. 6	: , ę		ą	ŝ	;	-	. :				•		:			5	£'	× .		ž.
AVON FARK	E:	8	8.	ų:	80	D.L.	00	00	20	35	1.9	1.4	1.20	8	8	19	20	18	28	39	3 2		8 2	0 0 0 0	- -		33		۰. د		3	<u>,</u>	F	5	95 J	20 5	5
CV-5	E ÷	18	51	6,5	88		00	5	ĕ	5	5	2	50	00	8	90.	5	ŝ	8	8	2.1		33	с с с с	23	 12	13		ວ ວໍ 	5 - 15		9 4 9 6			17M 2	85H 2	MSR.
OKEECHINGSE FS	• <b>x</b> :	15	1	36	87	12	3 8	202	2 0	3 3 3 3	34	<u> </u>	84 8	8.5	8	0,00	88	88	28	8,6	2	202	5	- 63	÷	ž	2	2	, 6 , 7		23			4 Å		- - -	<b>7</b> 9
S-127	2 3	-	00	8 : 1	8	50	80	00	Da.	14	2	Ξ	1	12	0	8	38	ន	38	38	33	a a	0 0	- 33	÷,		33	э і 8 5	o 3 8 3	ਛ - - 4	33			ė.	7 99	ĩ	51.
s 131	é ne	s.i	, e			20	20	6.6	00	200	4 C 7 C	S 2	8	7	8	80	88	8	8	8	10	26.	2	200	5	- 13	2	د د بر	95 22	:5	32				93 97	61 5 19 5	33
5-115 5-65	ε,	1 90	7	9.	61.	8	8	00	00	6	1		28	6	33	88	38	88	88	88	, 28	22	000		- 53	n Sta	2	93 93	38 23	33		ъ.					F
S-65A	. 2	8	55		38	38	20	200	9 9	6 9	38	22.1 90.	00	98.	00	<u>0</u> 2	35	88	22	82	<b>10</b>	8	-	3		2	3		. 5 (9		22	4 A 6 A 7			aia Se	 6 8	22
5 5 5 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	E	33	ŝ	1.10	6	1.15	00	00	00	3	5	0.0	02.	8	8	33	. 8	3 8	33	33	3 5	8 9	83	 2 2	 		-				51: 		4.0	5	5.5.	01 5	3
2 6 5 D	e e	6 8 9 9	6.9	5.2	85	Ф 2 ГН П	000	00	38	0 Q	3	83	÷0	10	8	00.	8	00	8	8	:8	6	2	5				= 5 . 2	4 5 1 8	 	(, 3 	2 A 2 X		~~ ~ ~	й - 2 9	6. 68	33
0.65E 6.64	× :	3	ų:	r.	8	50	00	60	88	88	19	1	ġr.	35	38	38	88	88	8 8	9.6	- 2 5 8 6	004	3 :	-			, 1.	53 61	56 24	<b>8</b> 2	2	5			2	15	Ę
60. P	ε,	82	<b>e</b> :	s,	5	1	30.	00	20	00	57.	00.	8	00,	0.0	.00	8	: 8	B	3 8	; ; ;	[ S	200	3 2		 2	23	> 3 2 3	5 4 8 4	23		•	-			7 77	50
11 2		13	į2	d a	8.7	5 S	8	0 0	8	8	5	£.	2	5	00.	8	00	8	8	3	50	2	9	23	3		33	, e , e	5 3 5 9		33				- 99	- - -	93
5 72	- <del>(</del> -	3		1		3	000	38		200		-	8	23	88	8 S	88	5	8	0	3	10	(1)	 3	ŝ,	1 1 24	1	2	0 0	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i		2				, - , -	e e
12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 -	÷• •	7	3	5	6	ð	99	è	200	33		1	33	9 GL 9 (N	38	38	8.6		18	82	20	52	30 C	- 88	-	- - -		ч÷ 2 :	60 1	5:	л:	÷.			i. e	4.F	7
	- (-	50	15	5 g	ġĘ	32	88	83	33	30	21	30	÷2	ទទ	88	00 E	0.6	88	98	3;	8	3	8			 	13	: 2 . : 2	: ă		e e	-	- 0		e 9 9 2	• 4 9€	g e
61 x	+•	<b>9</b> 8	8	E. 3	6.	35.	10	90	6	a 0 .	10.	41	8	2	g	8	8	:8	B	28	38	52	10	- 36	 ? 4		32	: 0 .17	9 9 2 -	2 6 9 10	33	22				е. Д2	ча с 19 с
						:				:					•	:												,		!			-	г.	-	÷.	÷.

TABLE B4.3. Monthly Rainfall Report for the LAKE OKEECHOBEE Subbasin (AUGUST 1995).

ъ. V.

4 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 4
A 2
2.19월 2.19월 2.19월 2.19월 2.19일 2.19일 2.19일 2.19일 2.19일 2.19월 2.19일 2.19 2.19일 2.19일 2.1
2,4388888999999999999888888888888888
9 - 634 (99 - 99 - 38 - 38 - 38 - 38 - 38 - 38 -
4 348343313443368888888888488847043
3. 2.2.8.8.3.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.8.
1 248822333224379281818288878888383838383838383838383838383838
3. 20235344 19733224442444444444444444444444444444444
1 88183333333888888488888888888888888888
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
A 5868259868888888888888888888888888888888
4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
T - 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 8282228823784378437843788888888888888888
- ##2655300000000000000000000000000000000000
= : 5 2 5 7 7 8 5 8 5 9 6 6 7 8 9 8 6 8 7 9 7 9 7 8 7 8 9 8 6 7 7 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7
3 3823860833343868888888888888888888888888888
<ul> <li>9000000000000000000000000000000000000</li></ul>
536226222225255555555522222222222222222
\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$
6:8238633468833888384884884888888888888888
2 9 9 4 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
8   84   83 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 9
9
a , 88 9 2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
JITE ARCHINEL ARCHINEL ARCHINEL ARCHINEL ARCHINEL FILLER F

#### TABLE B4.4. Monthly Rainfall Report for the EAA (EAST) Subbasin (AUGUST 1995).

XAX	
MAX	1 2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
MAX	E STANASS
- YA	E E 025091020 025091020
th T'N	
:	342288142
3	88883499
ζ,	442828933 -
ų	**************************************
	 9999999995
2	245284384 
1	1335379843 
1	848484777 Tanana
	888844285
1.	888782222
	828384335
	00000000000000000000000000000000000000
•••	0000000000
	282828825
	1826282888
	8828889#8
	2262333140
	14- 4 14-846880
:	2222222222
:	888888888
	99999999999999999999999999999999999999
:	
-	8549888555
1	- W 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
;;	1 1 8888811181 1
	10089070- 10089070-
;	5 S H H X H X H X H
201 101 10 VIII 201	CLEAR STORY A

# TABLE B4.6. Monthly Rainfall Report for the WATER CONSERVATION AREA's (1,2 and 3) (AUGUST 1995).

AY Y-DAY	
0 1 - 	
32 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 4 4 4 4 4 5 4 5 7 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
1 UÁY MAN	
MINITAL MARKEN	B873889564358544255555555555555555555555555555555
12	
02	
	- #999999933555994499499984999555 #9999644955599449559595555
5	48282555432333434343455335
3	9909048394005559999999445 99090483940055599999999445
47	
÷,	\$8882\$88465444454495484344548454 
ų	2.30 00 3 - 0 2 2 4 3 3 4 4 5 5 3 4 4 5 5 4 6 7 4 5 4 5 5 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
-1	 
3	
1	
ă	
-	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
-	
- -	
Ś	
~	
- F	
~	- 000000000000000000000000000000000000
-	
- 5	10000000000000000000000000000000000000
R	
77 6	
36 L	888888668888888888888888888888888888888
05	
3	40400000000000000000000000000000000000
: : : :	승규님은 200 명 20 분석 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
70	19966616824586284685868864 4 44 4
3	
чын	****
31.12	AUTO-NE SA BARAUPATTURE CIERLA 2018 CURAL 2018 CURAL 2018 CURAL 2014 DELIAN 20

### TABLE B4.7. Monthly Rainfall Report for the MARTIN-ST. LUCIE Subbasin (AUGUST 1995).

с 1778 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			22	を でのごろで」またの「かっての」 2010年の一日からの「かっちの 2011年の日本での「かっちの」 2011年の日本での「かっちの」 2011年の日本での「かっちの」 2011年の日本での「かっちの」 2011年の日本での「かっちの」 2011年の日本での「かっちの」 2011年の日本での「かっちの」 2011年の日本での「かっち」 2011年の日本でのの「かっち」 2011年の日本でのののでののの 2011年の日本でのののでのの 2011年の日本でのののでのの 2011年の日本でのののでのの 2011年の日本でのののでののの 2011年の日本でのののでのの 2011年の日本でのののでののの 2011年の日本でのののでののでののののでのののの 2011年の日本でのののでののののでのののでのののでののでののののでのののでのののでののの	ປີ້ ທອບລາຍປາກາງປະຊີດອານຈ ປີ້ຊື່ອງລີ່ມີປະຊີດຊີດອີດສີດ, ເຊີ້ອງຊີດເຊີດອີດອີດສີດ, ເຊີ້ອງຊີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີດອີ
TABLE B4.8.	. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (AUGUST 1995).				
51.15	MTZP 01 02 03 U4 03 U4 03 U4 04 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14	AN I I YOELGAN M	7 1AY	Y DAY	244

ั้ กละอุดองอองรงเห 1981 2021 - มาระเทง และเตเกิด ค.ด. 2021 - มาระเทง และเคย 2021 - มาระเทง และเคย 2021 - มาระเทง และเกิด 2021 - มาระเทง เกิด 2021 - มาระเกิด 2021 - มาระเทง
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
2 240-00-00000 2 200-00-00-000 2 200-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-
1 3381002000000
8 903533897545755 5 83223777570385 - 8 8
A BELE HODODODD
h \$65355225352
1 2 5 # R 2 R 2 R 2 R 2 R 2 R 2 R 2 R 2 R 2 R
0 200000000000000000000000000000000000
4 00010000000000000
9 900000000000000000000000000000000000
- 6968899866866666
4 8888888888888888888888888888888888888
4   55667666666666
1 188888888888888
1 1001919290990
5 4092948904699
5 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
* 0000000000000000000000000000000000000
5 88 188888885888
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
2   38222899969998   
47
343444444434344
n X X
19 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
មុខជួនដូចមូនទទំភូភូភូភូទី សុខធ្វារដូចមូនទំភូភូភូភូភូទី សុខធ្វារដូចមូនទំភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូភូ

### TABLE B4.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (AUGUST 1995).

- 247 MAX	00000000000000000000000000000000000000
, YAX	
10AY 3 MAX	2.0400000000000000000000000000000000000
A KAG	
TOTAL	
Ĩ	554×3793345345737535
?	
ę,	
ę	
à	-
\$	
ŝ	88883333588357832338838 888833358383532333333333333333
7	— 2 x 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 7 7 2 4 4 4 4 5 8 4 0 2 4 4 2 5 4 6 2 7 7 6 6 5 2 5 5 7 1 4 7 9 8 4 0 2 4 4 2 5 4 6 2 7 7 6 6 5 2 5 7 7 1 4 7 9 8 4
3	
3	50000000000000000000000000000000000000
7	5456654066365666365566 9.9666540065555555660
3	
19	
91	
17	- 25888888888888888888888888888888888888
15	
5	
P.	
2	66966248644866688933333
2	88888888888888888888888888888888888888
71	
10	
60	
90	-
60	
£.	
÷0	946848586486996893949
8	
3 : :	1.00 99 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.
50	
10	- 
171 1	234444444444444222
Эц. Т.:	сумыл сументины сумыл сументины сумыл сументины сума сументины су

TABLE B4.10. Monthly Rainfall Report for the DADE COUNTY Subbasin (AUGUST 1995).

	н ком Как са Сак Аг Сак Аг Сак Аг В Сак Аг Как Сак Аг Сак Ал Сак br>Сак Ал Сак Сак Ал Сак Сак С	22		i	:	-		: •	• •	۰ ۲:	:			5	<u>e</u> .	1:	2	<u>T</u>	ī	41 a	٦. ب	4 1	я •	4	9	×,	ŋ	30	T F	TRUD	NAX.	HA.2	×3	ι. M
	LAN AVE EAU AVE BEACH BEACH FS TOTT TOTT	201	3	7. 50	3.68	0	ĐO.	80.	8.	5	0	5. 2.	0. 20	40.	q	07.	ç	00	00	0 00	o o	- 0		- Mil	. 17		44							:
	CAUAYE EAUAS BEACH BEACH A INTE A INTE A			84 L.S	с; ,	ē.	<b>B</b> 0.	8.	00	9	00	3	20,00	°.	00.	90		41				-		3	;:		3:	ŝ	5	2.1	•	11		1
	LALPYS N BELACH FS N TINTE N	10	00	56 1.3	7 1.92	00	00.	B0 .	2 00	-	10	00 - 00	0.1	40	2		• • •	:		22	20			2:	_	5	7	3	2	10. 6	1. <del>1</del> .1	57.2	6 0 4	9.44
	deach 4.5 m 1 NTE m	3	00.	20 1.1	5.5 1 5.5	5	5	5						5	5			:	e	-	r N	ir a	т	5	8	-i0	78.	õ	00	2.63	8 99 7	NG: 1	1. 858	16.9
	HS HS	90	00	2.2		ő	2	5.8			2.5	32	20	£ 2	33	\$ 2	3 1	23	, 2	ی د	4 	1 1.5	2	3	3	ą	ŝ	00	00	27 7	10 4	44		
	INTE. R	49	90			2	3			25			a i a :	3	3	3	00		2	9	- 2		5 2 23		1	90	415 1	00.	7	×1 ×	я 17 г.	ALC 0	4 4 C M	00.7
		\$	02		) = } =	38	ġ	3 8	38		-	23	5 2 2 4	8:	Ę	3	ę:	8	2	200		1.5.	1 /0	8	90.	5 1 3	1.23	¢0.	07	DH 4	14.7	44.4		
	r	7	13			38	32	3 2	3 8	ŝ	33		5 8 8 8	3 8	5 2	34	31	8	3:	2	0 		5	80	8	2.4.5	90° 7	001	100	20 5	2	55		1
	2	<b>f</b> 0	30.	51 1.6	5 1.50	:8	8	e a	3 3	2 2		2 2 2	5 8 9 0	3 \$	3 3	:::	3 3	23	0	2:	а) 20		84 1 4	1	5	20	9	3	16	66 S	1 4 F	4		5
		0	3		6 2 84	8	8	2	38	18	5 8	3 2	55	3 2	3 2	92	33	3 3	2		9 I I	a a	84. P	λ, 	2	-	90	8	: 15	50 61	41 <i>1</i>	115		1
	-	07.		6. -	96	2	19	22	3 2	32			5 F	3 2	3 :	3 3	3 2	5	3	3.		-	9 E-9	23	70	-	2	93	4.	2	¥ 1	40	4 26	96.5
	ę.	11	.06	4.1 - 91	61	10	8	9	90	28	22			32	12	3 8	53	3 1	-	: د ځ	э` с`	< 	1 1 1	:	3	6	4 F.	e e	5	94 A	07 0	67 -	- 96	1.45
	4	90		0H 1.9	1 .49	8	0	8	2	12	12			1	35	2	5 5	33		а ( С ;			17 ·	2	2	3	2	ŝ	4	1 ~ 7	2 63	28.2		5.1
	ć-	Ξ	10,	1.1 0	4 2.65	8	9	90	00				; 5 2 0		i s	3 3	2 2	3,5		5:	9. : 9. :		10	2	3		ē,	6	3	47 D	M 16 C	MON 2	N. 1 Y.H	32
	÷	5	ŝ	30 1.5	9 2.04	8	8	8	0	2	10		; 8 ; 7	88	18	źź	3 3	ē 3	51				Б		8	2	70	00	50	14 21	5 P 2	\$ 79	4 21	• • •
	÷	61.	.10	0.0	6 2.24	00	90.	00	2 00	0.1	00	-	12	10	10	, e				:			2.	-	90	0	3	<b>0</b> 0.	2	20 7	20 1	5 63 E	a 60	4.61
	4	5	. D.4	16 1.1	1 1.94	10.	00	00	10	×.	10		-	ŝ	1	ŝ		1	; ;	**	2	-	1	5	10	16.	7	00.	3	1 12	n 24	4 10	1.50	4.19
	6		1	\$7 1.5	6111 0	00	00	0	8	8	: : ::	: * : #		3 8	ē	30		: 2		55	9 - 9 -	4	F :	5.	5	5	g	90	10	10.05	77 .	11 F	1.6.2	e. 1
	÷	20	- 69	510 315	6 .E6	00	10.	10	00	96	12			ŝā	33		1	. :				÷.	12 - 6	-	5	:	è	10	2	46 1.	1.50	z 63	1.51	1.67
	*	11.	. 10.	72 2.3	0 .70	0	00		8	1			5	3 8	55	3		5.2		5 10	÷:			£	44	õ	- 5 k	00	-	1 5 1	3.46	20.0	5.73	5 78
	1.	. 00	.00 1	5.5 00	6 .45	10	00.	3	98	6	18		: G	3 3	5	9.9	3 5		1	35	÷ : • •		8	÷.	3	:	ā	2	01	. 11 4	n	11.5	88.5	5 8.2
1       1		T:	50	72 2.8	26° 0	00 ·	00.	80.	00	1	5	. 0		2	1	5	ŝ		5	ة د د 2				· ·	7	3	- 6 - 7	ŝ	-	5.19	H 75.7	A 25 M	6 6 M	197
		5		r. 9%	6 , 65	00	00	8	d D					3				5 2		ai ge	2 ·	5) 4-	ມີ. ວ່າ		ā	- 7	3	04	90	. 10.4	1 83	11.1	4.47	5 A 4
T 12 104 124 141 55 01 01 00 00 10 16 05 16 01 16 00 01 16 00 11 15 01 01 10 01 10 10 10 11 10 00 11 100 10 1	F	3	.02	6. 62	7 1.25	8	8	8	8	3	18		;	32	29	38	38	9 8	5 5	2	e e			3	3	2	90	9	. op	141	16 (	5 65	5.67	
	++	7	10	9.7	3 . 67	ē	ē	ç	5	90					2			5	3		÷ >	ř	2	3	69.	2	40.	9	1	н ы. С. А. С.	1 25	1.4.1	1.9.5	
NI M 100 100 161 3.33 1.07 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1	1-	50	10	11		ā	52	3	56	3 8			55	3	1	3	31	2	5	0 0	é	0 1.4	1.02	Ξ	00	2	1.75	00	30	77 7	2	44	7 60	
		80	00	10.0	9 1.07		33	22	32	3 2	3	30	58	3 3	2	2:	2	8	=	- 2	õ	÷ - •		8	2	3	80.	00	5	1.4.7	44	1.1	-	10.1
	S CAVAL N	78.	20	61 · B	36.	0	1	20	38	12	20		3 E 9 e	3 2	₽ :	1	3 5	33	3 -		5) 2	1717 O	0F. 0	2	•	ą	60	0.0	:	1 08	8 67 T	1.5 un	M61 P	41.4
		•	•	:				ļ		;	3			1.	-	3	3	20	, P	:: ::	خ	0.2.0	5 z. 0k	2	2	4	ŧ	3	0	01.10	× 0.5	11.5	14 S	÷ ¢

### TABLE B4.11. Monthly Rainfall Report for the CALOOSAHATCHEE Subbasin (AUGUST 1995).

5

2

3

5

îл.н

3112

×ε	5 5 7 Y
	2
NY DAGAGANANA NY DAGAGANANA 22 DANGAGANANA 22 DANGAGANANA 1	
	22 2 2 2 2 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
MUNIALY NATAL NATA	
f 7 51638786888	
F 3768888888	6
000-000-00 00-000-00 00-000-00	
	8
1 2342553458	<ul> <li>A 2000 A 20000 A 2000 A</li></ul>
	1 1909 90 10 <u>1</u>
	3 - 28488342243 95
4 4 6 9 6 4 4 6 3 8 6	* 00000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
	<b>55).</b>
S 224888688888	C + Geauseastesi,
1.0000000000000000000000000000000000000	11111111111111111111111111111111111111
92228885288 -	<b>ddu</b> 1 8188758886989
	S P RAREARE
÷ • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	U 5:2888888888888888888888888888888888888
2 202220000000000	
8 9 8 8 8 9 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 8	r the
00000000000	ort fc
2 24088820000 4 1008820000	<b>Ç a dastasis</b> eda .
- 	
	7 Rati
0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000	uthty 2.8388888888888888888888888888888888888
, TERPINEER	2 X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
ATTR AMKHBADT BURTTA STATIAL BURTTA STATIAL CORESTEN IN FT NTBL DERINALIE DERINALIE S 70 S 70 S 70 S 70	ТАВЕЕ В4 зате соотестик соотестик соотестик соотестик инстратов и инстратов и инстратов и инстратов и инстратов и инстратов и и инстратов и инстратов и инстратов и инстратов и и инстратов и и инстратов и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и и

### TABLE B4.13. Monthly Rainfall Report for the SOUTHWEST COAST Subbasin (AUGUST 1995)

•	и по
	4 0000000 4 2 5 5 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
	3 00000000
	<b>7</b> 33338888
Ì	5 8888888
Ì	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
2	1 88\$8888'
5	4:8888888
	1 20200000
	* 4800000
	- 94004480 - 94004480
	1 2 2 8 8 8 8 8
	1 1598869
	n 1 1488413
	1 2132215
	< 3688468 - 2- 1
	4 1368852
	1 2020125

 NAM
 TANK
 VAL
 <thVAL</th

	ti R	
	5	
	3	568888888888 86888888888888888888888888
	5	3858555555
	R	8838388 <sub>6</sub> 83
	÷	2285669966
		3688888888
995)	17	¥388888888
JER 1	16	8388888888
EME	51	888888888888
SEPT	Ξ	0014000000
sin (S	13	00004403
ıbba:	2	X 3 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
ES		
MM	10	5348502282
ISSI	۹Ŀ .	200000000
ERK	5	10000000000
UPPI	6.0	- 20160000
the	10	300200346 5202500346
t for	50	
epor	10	
all R	2	
Rainf	02	10000400 10000400 10000
hly I	Ĩ.	
Mont	RTYF	KKKKEEEE .
TABLE B5.1.	1 12	K COLEY K COLEY K CASHARE PS K ASSIMME BS K CASHARE BS K CAS S S S S S S S S S S S COL S T CLOW

XXX X DAY S 
MUTELY MU

2 28826883 - - - - -

1 532366861 1, 31313232333

1 388888323

~	
995	
122	
ABF	2
Т Ц	1
СH СН СН С	j
sin l	
eq4	5
J.	
AEF	
N	
SS	
Ч Х	
WE	
Q	)
the	
for	
ţ	
Rep	
[a]]	
ainl	
V R	,
Ltho	
Moi	
22	
ы Ш	
BLI	
TA	

4	•	. 14	E 93M	06.3	1.4		111	- 80 C	34	1 44 1	1 05	10.5	05 1	1.36	1.85	1 4 1	3.45	1 84	- <b>6</b> F U	- 25	1 6.8	1 09	3
UAY J-		-	- M26.	e e	6	2	44	1	80 80		1	98	9	5.	50	000	\$	85	3	25	, R	60	2
4		4	×	~	4	-	~	N	a	64	-	-	-	~	-	-	ĥ	•	7	**	~		
I DAY MAX		3 1	21.2	с ,	10 <b>n</b>	00 7	2.96	0 I N		12.2	1 4 2	94	5 15	07.1	1.50	9 7	1 20	F1.	5	2	17.7	- 14	2 14
TVLL C	;		b. 33	10 I	16.7	5.Ye	14 35	82.7	77	x 59	17.5	4	2 96		5 90	F8 7	5 11	5 73	46 8	12. 1	10 45	5 G.	2
, S	-	3.	5	ò	9C	ž	3	30	Bo.	:0	5	ñ	6	9	Ş	00	ö	3	2	2	3	3	
2	:	¢ ;	3	ç	ŝ	2	- 55 - 1	ŝ	3	2	ŗ,	3	5	1	ē	3	5	ī	-	=	197		?
:,		3	3	c	ë	5	3	2	ŝ	S	ż	ŝ	30	š	5	3	s,	.;	1	5	• • •	î	•
•		2	2	2	ŝ	ŝ	ŝ	3	ŝ	3	3	3	02	3	3	2 C	ŝ	5	÷	ŝ	6	ť	205
Ŷ,	:	3	3	3	2	5	2	3	č	50	5	2	23	3	ŝ	3	3	ŝ	5	ş	Э	3	20
÷		3 -	2	2	ŗ	3	9D	3	90	90	ñ	ġ	6	ŝ	9	3	8	3	20	ŝ	20	3	g
3	. 14		Ĵ.	ŝ	2	90	3	5	30	ę	ö	5	5	3	3	ā	3	3	00	a	i)	3	117
ŝ,		ł	3	2	2	3	5	20	2	5	2	3	0	2	9	3	ē	an	20	3	ő	3	50
-;	ŝ	3	5	2	5	3	2	3	3	) J	5	3	â	ö	3	ĉ	ő	80		3	50	Z	10
5			2 0	3	2	5.	10.	8	ŝ	3	2	S	5	3	8	3	8	n	Ę	Ş	ŝ	ŝ	an)
5		à	33	3	3	8 :	8	8.	00	3	3.	à.	31	3:	8	ę	ő	3	ë	ē	3	3	1070
ų,	2	52	3	3;	Ģ	<b>;</b> ;	8	8	9	8:	3:	2		3 :	g.	2	å	5	đ	ş	5	2	
81		28	9	3:	3	21	3	8	8	8	<u>-</u>	8	3	5	81	12.	8	5	8	3	9	8	9
5	6	46	;;		5	4	3	B B	8	ļ,	8	B, I	3	3	2	2	8	3	3	3	8	ŝ	8
16	2	1 00	2	2	3 9	5	3	3	3	3 3	88	3	2 2	3 :	3	5	2	8	8	9	8	ŝ	0
4	00.	ę	Š	2	33		3 3	3	3	3	38	3	38	33	ġ	2:	8	8	3 1	31	8	0	20
1	. 0	00	2	3 8	90		3	3	3	ļ	3 8	53	5	1	33	3 :	8	3	3	8	3	5	2
13	70	20		82	5	32	ţ	32	9.5	2:	26	33	2	3	35	1	3 3	33	3	3	5	8	2
2	5	ð			32	35	2 :	3 8	3 3	23	2	5 5	2.5		i i	5 5	3 3	33	3 3	\$1	2	5	g
G	2	~	1	1	è			1	1				9				1			ļ		5.3	Ş
	0 P	01	5	3 0	33	5 5		3 3	3 3	3 4	53		1	27	1	3	38	00. 1 0	33	3 3	ŝ		~
50	5	20.	-	-		140	1	0	50	1.	1							53		3 2	5:	::	-
0	ŝ.	8	4	19	17			2.2		1	3				1	ļ	53	ŝ	3 (				2
<u>, o</u>	0	17	2	5	ā	15	2.5			5.5	200	1	22	32		3 3		1 4	3 2	3.2	3		
40	177	24	1.7	1	0	-					5	ź	-				1			-	20		
50	30	1.00	00	3	18	12	3.5	::		2.5	35	16		5		2	30	3;	3.5	2.5	3 2	3.5	3
3	50.	1.00	36.	0		5			- 3	ŝĉ	52	2	12	15	10	: 5	33	3 8	3	: :	3 3	33	3
ē.	HQ.	8	10.	1	40.	1	ž	2	; <del>-</del>	19	1	18	18	8	1	18			12			2	3
13	C.P.	16.	52	12	1.00	1	5	1	-		19		2			10	2				1	3	1
Ta	1.64	2	1.61	3.08	0	5	98	0	-	9	96	00	5.5	0	1.4	Ē			1	1		5	2
KTV1	ε	Σ	F	Ļ	r	ε	X	ъ	5	. 2		×	E	x	: 2	. 1	: F	e	• •	· f	• +	• •	
					1 1																		

## TABLE B5.3. Monthly Rainfall Report for the LAKE OKEECHOBEE Subbasin (SEPTEMBER 1995).

n ynd i ynd 2 - Ynd i Ylffynna Ynd ynd - Mae Lyffyn yr y'r yw y y y y y Yn yn	UF 00 0F 00 0F 145 77 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 2,17 2,19	7 1 20 1 20 00 00 17 6 23 2.22 M 2.93M	MT810 M86 0 M 661 202 001 M0 401 40 6	M64 *** M64 *** M 64 *** 00 *** 00 **** 10 ***							14 2 46 1 1 44 2 11	2.42 2.82	76 G R. 5 75 75 7	27 2 93 3,49	b 1 82 2.25	0.76 0.97	23.1 61 1	1.92 1.97	1 25 1.55	62.0 62.0			0 32 0 04	2.31 2.39	1.57 1.75	27 1 36 1 67	۲٬۱۰ 4.03 4.05	0/ 2.07 2.07
T AND 2 AND 1 YURDONG XOM XANG LATAN'I DI PLA BA YA AD KA PA XOM XANG LATAN'I DI PLA BA YA AD KA PA		* 1 20 1 df - 00 10 6 5 1 2.22 M 2.93M	- M86 0 M - 66° 207 001 00 0000 000 000 00	2 10 24 100 4.00 2.59 M 2.79							1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	01	2 2 2 2	27 2.93	. NB I 47	0.76	66 1	7 G	5	67.0	1.	2			1.57		- /: 4.03 v	0/ 2.07
A TANKA TANAN NA ANA ANA ANA ANA ANA ANA ANA A	UF 00 0F 00 0L 245 .72 592 154 2	* 1 3 U   3 C 10 00 14 6 51 2.22 M 2	0 ¥ 66° 202 001 00 100 000 000	2 4 2 2 1 20 4 60 2 59 K 2								0	2	21 A.C.	-	•	-	7		<u>م</u> .				~	ĥ	-	P P	۵ <i>۲</i>
AMAN LANDONS AMAN LANDONS	ur où ar ac n. 145 .''z 692 164	5 2 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1						20		0	2	24														
אס האבוער הי הי הי אס עב אין. אא האבוער הי הי הי הי אס ארי אין	ur où ar oc u 145 .'t by 16	14 1 3 U 1 3 C 10 3 0 14 6 5 1 2.2		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1										C 4	_	14	~	-	<i>,</i> .	,	4 7	~ ~	, ,	э	×.	- 4	2	->
TRUND OF NO GO LO GO CO DO	UF 00 0F 0C 0L 145 .72 5 92	14 1 3 U 1 3 U 1 4 U 1 4 4 5 9	0 1 50 1 50 1 50 2 01						4	5	2			9	-	ſ.	-	~	~	7.				1	*	-		2
190 191 191 191 191 191 191 191	97 00 97 00 07 142 1/2		0 1 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5			33	31	1			2	1	2 11	12.24	5.7	5			2 • .			06.7		97. D	1.13		л Г	1
10 11 11 11 11 11	nr od ar oc t⊾ 2.45	* * 20 I 45 85 94	50 510 510 510 510 510 510 510 510 510 5			; ;			1	ž	7	20	ť	-;	۶.	11	2	ç	3	ž.		7	G	9 2	3	3	5	ن د
42 12 14 14 14	nr 00 ar 30 br	5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	a: 20 0	5				100	3	÷		5	2	2	2	3	;;;	8	3 :	1	1	Ģ	10	÷	=	-		3
14 - 25 - 26 - 27	ur oo ur oo	4 1 30 1 30 1 1 1 30				::	; ;	ŝ	20	÷,	·,	1	20	ć	ŝ	5	5	ŝ	ž ;		1	÷P	7	104	6	3	÷	ł,
47 CZ 17	0. 00 JU	21 	0	6		2 3	1	5	2	2	.0 2	3	20	2	2	3	ē.	3 :	2	3 3	3	-0p-	30	9	S.	3	20	ž
6 P.	0.0 0.0	41	а.	3	Ì	i	÷÷	5	5		5	5	ŝ	5		3	2	2	<b>n</b> 1	i i		3	90	9	ė.	8	3	2
5.	5.0	-	2	4.5	3 3	2 2	3 3	93	3	60	3	96	ŝ	QD	2	9	5	3	3	3 8	ŝŝ	8	00	2	5	2	2	2
		3	: :	2	1.	i e	i	45	90	30	ŝ	3	3	20	7	¢ ;	3	3 3	33	::	3	9	00	20	20	61	8	ð
Ş	9	3	3	3 3	3 :	1		10	3	3	ŝ	3	3	\$	3	9 :	6	3	66	5 8	20	8	20	8	30	2	8	5
3	3	3	3 '	53	5.5	22	1	15	Ē	3	00	10	0.0	ŝ	3	8	2	33	gş	3 3	3	5	0Q	5	3	2	3	6
7	3	3	93	3	2	3 7	Ş	3	3	60	8	3	80	n	ŝ	31	3	8	3 8	3 3	3	40	.00	0	8	8	3	B
2	3	33	3	3	3 8	5	3.3	3	5	07	9	90	6	ŝ	9	3	8	3	82	3 9	3	00	001	8	3	33	3	1
61	1.9	8.	2	22	3 5	; ÷	00 7	00	10	£	0	8	8	8	E.	3:	ŝ	2.0	88		3	00.	5	5	83	8 8	8	B
¥1 :	9 (	8	3.		15	5	8	00.1	00 1	00,	8	0 <u>0</u> .	bg.	8	2	9	33	3 8	3 2	22	8	00.	9	3	8	8	1	. 00
= ;	<b>S</b>	58		10.1	20	38	8	00.1.	1.00	.16	8	8	00.	1	5	21	9.2	33	3.2	2	8	1.50	.01	02	10	200	3	3
31	5	38		38	20		5	-1 00	00 1- 1	00	8	2	8	8.	8		35	2 2		10	18	8.	8.	8	3.2	52	3	3
्र ज	83 0 1	5 8 5 4		5 8 9 8		5	3	ĕ	8 8	а а	ĕ	ĕ	ĕ	8.							8	8	š	8	82	32	3	3
	5 i	53	5 6 • -	5 2		0 0	÷ o	-	- - 0	9. 9.	ĕ	ð Þ	ö			5.			;		0	;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;	Š.	ă i	Š,	5 k		5
-	٩. •		, e	- 4 		. e	э э	ې د	0 0	₽. 	с п	۰ ۵			5 • 	ас У 4	52	i i i	şz			a	5		5			
-	۰۰ ۵۰	9 C	10	• <b>•</b>	. >		•	0 7	о. Р	÷	م م	о 	• •:	۰ م ۰ - :	۰ د م	•••		) •					о •	0	5 6 4 8		? - 	,
- 		9 - 9 -	29	9 9 9 9	2		101 E	2	-		0	-	9 : 9 :		•	9 6 9 6	• •	. e			0 0	- -	0			• •		
t i	۲. ۲.	1		2		2	0	е е	9 2	۵ ۲	2 2	9 7	۰ •			9 0 9 0				0	2	~ 0	-	•				2
1 80	1. 00				ů,	а. С	4 6		2	51 25	20 20 89	2	5			30	, 4 , 4		: ; ::		5 5	ۍ د	2					
2	35				10	19	0.0	́ ЭО	50	01	2	0		3	3 5	: *	3 2			00	00	5	=	8	3 2			
8	52	10	5	18	1	۲. ۲	ج	5	í,	3		2	<b>.</b>		3 2		: :		23	.0	60			; ;		1		
s		20	:3	1	60 1	10	.0. 2.	20	50	2	00	м Ц	3		3	33	3 8		8	00	66	9	0		- 55		5 5	
5	9.2	38	2	8	00.	00	\$9	10	2	f,	8	3:	۲ 5 5	22	12				8	00		8	8	;;	-	3 5	18	;
5	8 9	10	00.	12	2	01.	10	8	5	8	9 . E	<u>a</u> :	<u>.</u>	2.0	10		ų	00	10	RO	8	8		93			:=	
8 <u> </u>	ĢF	100.	8	8	51	51.	.76	ą	5	8:		<u>.</u>	e ;	29	, e	ŝ		3	13	50	49 49	ç	8,5	<b>B</b> 6	1		2	
3	25	8	200	100.	1.08	.67	Ŗ	9	5	93	22	Ŗ	3 3	5		15	10	05 1	8	-12	8	3			1	1	2	
NTYP'			F	£	Ē	r	£	E	2:	<b>e</b> :	c ;	-	.,		:+	• + •	E	E	20	H	×	< (		• •	. 1	е ж	. 10	
	100	FUINT	True	DOM PS		Hole PS				0466 F15																		:

	<ul> <li>・ 本市の山市 20 名 名 中 3 日 - 4 20 日 - 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2</li></ul>	2000 - 2000 - 2000 - 2000 2001 - 666 - 2000 - 2000 2001	10000000000000000000000000000000000000
	<ul> <li>● 1000000000000000000000000000000000000</li></ul>	5. 1971年 - 1971年19月1日 - 1971年19月1日 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年19月1日 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年19月1日 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年19月1日 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年19月1日 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971年 1971年 - 1971年 - 1971800000000000000000000000000000000000	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	х хх х 23 - 4 мо чама - 20 мааа - 2 аана 19 м 23 - 2 аана - 20 мааа - 2 аана 19 м 23 - 2 аана - 2 аана - 2 аана - 2 аана 19 м 2 - 2 - 2 аана - 2 а	и Ма 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	
			특별 슈핑포포함이 3년까 78년 40년 428 202 4 
	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1992 - XAZGARY443 1992 - XAZGARY443 1993 - MANINAN	ិស្ត្រាស់អ្នកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុក ស្ត្រីមិនមិនមានស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុក ស្ត្រីសំរាក មានសាកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុ
	P X 73688375375375388251882583	1 000000000000000000000000000000000000	-
	9 5 5 9 9 9 9 8 8 5 8 5 9 8 9 6 9 6 5 7 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5	5 <b>44</b> 0 1 0 2 2 4 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4 = 0	1 2004-1102525471245500 1 2004-110255472254725555 
	<pre>% 668899934999298899999999999999999999999999</pre>		1 E818286622855270355888888888
	<ul> <li>A. J. /li></ul>	N 855566699	<pre>&gt; 282888888888888888888888888888888888</pre>
	\$ \$56085326832 <b>\$</b> 49298888	222222222	- -
	0.32849239835353535558835	9 <b>285</b> 888888	1 5000000000000000000000000000000000000
	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7		" 535756333333333333333333333333333333333
	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	N 8888888%4	1 <b>99</b> %49999495892299933
		1 <b>96</b> 5558889	1 -2234865285658565855385538
		<b>3)</b> 3666888888	 1:8222552532535666665555555555555555555555
	0 B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B		- Recently contracts and a contract of the second
		<b>BER</b>	
		ajanaantess: 🗍	a 6866860 ,3665666666666866 
		SEP	
		q 3) c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c	+ 000000000000000000000000000000000000
(395)	4 44	2 1995	
JER J	4:1866616686686666666666666666	SER 1	
EMB		REA REA	1 - 2998 592 5292 5298 598 598 59 2 - 2998 592 55 599 55 598 598 598 598 598 598 598 5
EPT	는 - 46,66,62,62,63,62,63,63,63,63,63,63, -		
in (S			
bbas			3.8887538235552352324
) Su	2 488844034935555556668558		8.29999797777777777777777777777777777777
ISAST	8.9094444820000000000000000000000000000000		<ul> <li>BOOODUAAAASHMAASHMAANNAGABA</li> <li>DAAA</li> <li>DAAA</li> <li>DAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA</li></ul>
A (E			
e EA			
orth	2:353575566666666666666666666666666666666		
ortfe	•	ort for the second seco	
Rep		Repo	
ufall		fall	. 1
Rair		Rair Rain	444 0.2000000000000000000000000000000000
thly		viti	
4. Mon		Mon Mon	T TETTATATATATATATATATAT
TABLE B5.	<ul> <li>Market Market Mar</li></ul>	TABLE B5., arra control of the control of the contr	5,172 ANDTRAK "NE ANDTRAK" NE ANDTRAKT (INDAKATTUR, (INDA

월문 후석년 우리고 주려는 성수의 전월문 이 이 이 가는 는 가 가 는 사가가 가 가 가 가 다. r r κεπ 2488-225528882898 JSR422332888888888 ----z+=++++++z=ggggggzz 5 8 5 9 Sviettatien Tamlani canal Mest Miranah

## TABLE B5.7. Monthly Rainfall Report for the MARTIN-ST. LUCIE Subbasin (SEPTEMBER 1995).

	2.2. 6.0.0.0.2.1.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0
22. 546996259954452 23. 5469962599554455 2	ម្មីភ្នំ ទំពស់ក្នុងកំណើតទាំ។ ភ្លើំ - ក្នុងសុខភាពទាំងកំណើតទាំ។ ភ
4.2 Control -	2. 200422404400334 25. 26. 25. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26. 26.
ц танососочники ц танососочники 2	5 siajaj∞najajajaj j <sup>®</sup> siajaj∞najajajaj
222	Ης ΟΣΤΟΝΙΑΣΝΥΝΟΣ 25 ΟΣΣΦΙ-ΦΟΦΧΣΟΣ 25 ΟΣΣΦΙ-ΦΟΦΧΣΟΣ 25 ΟΣΣΦΙ-ΦΟΦΧΣΟΣ
<ul> <li>⇒ 4865245369964446</li> <li>₹</li> </ul>	5 - 1928//6454980525 5 54
್ ಕೆಚ್ಚಾರುವಂದ ಕ್ರಾಂಗ್ರೆಗಳು ೨೦೭೯ ಕಾರ್ಯವರ್ಷದ ಕ್ರಾಂಗ್ರೆಗಳು 	4
7	1 -2000-1-1-3033
, nonucacoscosco	· 000000000000000000000000000000000000
A MAGMAGAMAGAGAGA A MAGMAGAGAGAGAGA A MAGMAGAGAGAGAGAGAGA	4 200 <b>7</b> 0000000000000000000000000000000000
4 900 915 255 255 268 26 1 9 00 0 1 9 1 9 1 9 2 9 2 9 2 9 2 9 2 9 2 9 2 9	
7 32334258289328	
\ 80000955575888383 -	1 00407NOTE: 1
1 9999999999999	1 92933333555595
- 200233022233900 - 200233022233900	- 318080-030303 - 318080-030303
1 A000000000000000000000000000000000000	2
1 886435388834849	· 99885-888938
	1995, 1988, 1988, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 19 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995, 1995
- 9000000000000000000000000000000000000	E → 88888888888888888888888888888888888
	С - 888888888888 С - 8888888888888888888
4 804453488864588	<b>112</b>
	ubba 19888888888888888888888888888888888888
	TX 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
– – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –	
9 : 88888888888888888888888888888888888	
9 #93%%%%%#2%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%	M A A A B<0.0 B<0.0 C B<0.0 C
5 N → A 5 N 5 N 5 N 5 N 5 N 5 N 5 N 5 N 5 N 5	E ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::
	1) = 2007+2004200 
2 · 6 5 · 4 6 * 5 6 5 6 5 6 6 6	
0.000000000000000000000000000000000000	₩ <sup>-</sup>
0.00000000000000000000000000000000000	
	С
7 7 7	thly
T PATAPHEREEEE	М. Б. нхнхниенентит
2 <sup>2</sup> -	
ан уулагаа алаа алаа алаа алаа алаа алаа алаа а алаа алаа а алаа алаа а алаа алаа а алаа алаа а алаа алаа	BLE BLE BLE
ភ្នំស្ត្រីឲ្យសហក្តាភាពក្នុង ភ្នំស្ត្រីឲ្យសហក្តាភាពក្នុង ភ្នំស្ត្រីពី៣៩សុខភ្លៃស្ត្រីស្ត្រីស្ត្	▼ 2::-00200000000000000000000000000000000

.

TABLE B5.10. Monthly Rainfall Report for the DADE COUNTY Subbasin (SEPTEMBER 1995).

NAU MAU			28338 28338		
bay Max	200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200	50055			
n va	N00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	že, 5;	12:22	442844884488843	
4	EEE	E E	N - € /N + <del>1</del> 9	i do do diciel X - Ny - My S	
ŝš	2 7 4 9 k 5 7 6 9 0		942 <b>3</b> 2	222223232323232	
-		dina di s	·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
LINEW M	33⊒≣3 23438	33893 33893	39 84 177 <u>4</u>	175) 1940 040 540 5 175) 1940 040 540 5 1757 1957 1957 1957 1957 1957 1957 1957	
÷	34928	25358	2333	125525555555555 1	
57	81233	\$ 5 8 7 3	3879	292232323448234 29223238448234	
ţ	\$3,23	322.22 1-	8343 -		
2	12438	31313	11195	32022582846928	
4	53953	34265	8523	200000000000000000000000000000000000000	
ŝ	58539	86888	8535	1999285858558666	
4	3233¢ -	25555	3285.	33222282328232823	
5		38033	월 2 <b>3</b> 종) 	823/18399111233	
4	88833	593344		5	
	88448.	98843 98843	22851	**************************************	
л У	896553	39934 39934	3835: 300	**************************************	
	5-1685 	58358 - 90699	55555 55555	34333333888888888888 	
- <b>*</b>	- - -	- - -	50×0-		
	1000A-0	- - -	99-99 999-99		
- -	388888				
	-		- ono-	1932C222934999	
\$ T	- - 	87365	33658		
4		(4633)	30248	148293383563888 	
S . :	. '_' 8≓\$8\$\$	- Conses	18323		
а 1	 568538	-	 85858	44622633328288; 	
3	 8339 <b>8</b> 0	91585	8-1-1-2 8-1-1-2 8-1-1-2		
5 2	 87,2762	- 33721	10075	.45468999595958. 	
54 S	9852863 -		199 <b>28</b>		
4		4485 -	19 <b>1</b> 9	5.4.4.8.5.5.8.4. <b>4</b> .8.5.3.	
5 . 5		85385	11285		
8 19		88858	5698		
6	18835	88183	1828	8,168,185,858,9,12,38	
8   8	88448	19848	arar	28485465465554	
10	88288	4999F	5885		
4 : 4 : 4 :	****	+ 5 2 3 4	۰. <del>۱.</del> ۲ <b></b> .	***********	
SVER .	я и Вар Аре Вар Аре Ведан С	. 1021		, Minut	
CTTE CHEKIKS	NI ALEA ROMENT ROMENTS ROMENTS REAM	MLANS N DADE PERHENI S U.P.4	2月19日 2月19日 2月19日		

## TABLE B5.11. Monthly Rainfall Report for the CALOOSAHATCHEE Subbasin (SEPTEMBER 1995).

<ul> <li>A Jaw 1 (Mr S (Mr)</li> <li>MAX MAA</li> <li>MAX MA</li></ul>	Live         S. MA         S. MA           MAX         MAX         MAX           MAX         2.014         2.014           D.1.05         2.817         2.812           MAX         2.817         2.84           MAX         2.814         4.77           MAX         1.916         4.74           MAX         1.912         1.914           MAX         1.914         1.914	1 107 5 137 5 137 163 104 105 163 104 105 1.04 2.9 1.04 2.09 1.27 1.20 2.20 1.27 1.20 2.20 1.21 2.20 1.2
		fail Report for the SOUTHWEST COAST Subbasin (SEPTEMBER 1995).         0       04       05       06       07       05       05       05       06       10
20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	12. Monthly Rai	13. Monthly Rait **** 01 03 **** 01 03 **** 01 03 **** 01 03 ************************************
JITE Ano Hendula Martine Shendula Condens Ng. Condens Ng. F. Thick Hendula Hendula Ji Ji Ji Ji Ji Ji	TABLE 85. SITHS MINITA, JUNITA, JUNITA, JUNITA, MINITA, MINI	TABLE B5. SITE BENUTA SHATHOFT REALE AND REALE AND ALLE FOR MORT LEAN NAME FOR MORT FOR MORT FOR MORT LEAN STATE FOR MORT FOR MOR

(OCTOBER 1995).
KISSIMMEE Subbasin
for the UPPER
' Rainfall Report
6.1. Monthly
TABLE B

100	8
	<ul> <li>         × 1953 × 1953 × 285 × 285 × 2000 × 2000</li></ul>
	· 홍환왕 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2	2 2 2 3 - 6 2 4 6 6 6 8 6 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
	1 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
	212 - 2233년 886년 23년 2389년 23년 2389년 23년 2123년 2389년 239년 2389년 2312년 2312
- 00000000000 - 0000000000000	CTAL MARK
2 0000000000	
* • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	<ol> <li>O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O</li></ol>
- 562682222	<ul> <li>&gt; 3 = 0 + 0 + 0 + 0 + 0 + 0 + 0 + 0 + 0 + 0</li></ul>
8 - 22222323333 8 - 222232333333	, 000000000000000000000000000000000000
. 858865555	, 5999999999999999999999999999999999999
·	1 555555555555555555555555555555555555
* 00000000000	
- 030220220	
- - - - 	
- 	1 36000000000000000000000000000000000000
а, маррорица а. маррорица а. форморица	2
9 000000000000000000000000000000000000	66 66 67 68 69 69 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60
7	
11288888888	0
3 3783626339	Z - 2546555555644644448554665555555
3 332835249 (	
E 38388.2779	✔ _ 옷 : 한 옷옷 (2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
	★ 7.7554.000×204800000×24800000000000000000000000
	$ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{$
	A D P B AD D P D D P D D P D P D P D P D P D P
2.0000000000 	н
	χ ີ ທີ່ດທ⊗ ຄີພວດຂອ≜ນອດອອດມອອອອ∞∞ 0. Σ ແ ວນວັດດວດດີດອອດດີດວ່າອຸດຸຍິຣະຂີ່ຂູ່ນຶ່ງ
N BONDONCHO	
0.0000000000,	Z • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
- F - **FCREELEE	
	N .
9888 9888 9888 9988 998 998 998 998 998	
NUTE NUTE NUTE NUTE NUTE NUTE NUTE NUTE	

TABLE B6.3. Monthly Rainfall Report for the LAKE OKEECHOBEE Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).

		ΨV.	:	4.1.1 H	3.13M	M9C -	H48.9	7.03	5 5 E	1.0.1	2.56M	HBO 1	1 1.6M	4.61	5.52	5 38	5.50	0.53	4 90	6. 3I	1.0	4.22	6.61	7.47	7,02	5,04	14.5	5.5	619	7 24	19-5	 	::
		MAX		243 1143	N00 .	5 35M	21.1	57	10	. 6.7	M24 3	M8 2 (	M.9.0	2	F - 1		5 F 2	10.	76	12.1	1	141	. 17	12	. 09	. 10	=	2	5	.85	3	8 	
		MAX	•	UEM.	WL8	M28.	14M	5		5 R. P.	L M28.	. 82M C	6 J.M. C	5	5	ą	£.	4	.9	4	ĉ	7 70	.61	9 68	4. 1	67.	12	2	ې ۲	s 59	37.		
		X		۳ 83	E M 19	Π E 08	С на ст	90 4	2 [3	44	1997	о ж 25	49 M 0	7 73	88	2	5	4	F 06	5	e"	07	5	ç	۲ ۲	22	2	7 F	ž.	\$ \$	с :		
	5	¥.		•	-		7	•	1	-	-		-	-	-	~	-		à		~	-	2	~	4		~	-	-	•	~		
	10	INTAL	: '	5	5 5	3	10 61	12 53	2	0.67	2, 2	60 1	-	10.85	6 01	- F	\$F 6	20	5	1.1.1	7	7	FS 01	5/ 11	1. 64	10.59			14 5	11 08	60 C		
	4G 5 .	Ξ		ž	90	3	6	3	i e	99	00 1	20 1	5	3	3	8	20.	3	60	3	8	96	3	00	3	8.	3	3	DO.	3	83	33	
	< 0a)	Ş	ļ	3	2	3	20	3	NO.	. 00	1 30	1 30	3	3	8	8	8	8	3	8	8	3	20	0	3.	<b>ή</b> β.	20	36	90	<b>9</b> 7.	3 8	3 8	
	1 LAN	67		3	3	20.	3	3	20	3	1 00	3.6	ср 	3	8	8	8	8	20	ĉ	00	8	00.	3	5	3	3.5	10.	90.	5	3	33	
	110.1	5	1.14	3	ő	3	2	3	8	3	4	1 00		8	83	3 1	g	20	2	2	3	3	20	2	33	2	33	2	2	83	83	33	
	ENT IN	2	- 1	3.	3		5	5	3	ŝ.	3	З. -	÷;	3	33	3	2	3	<b>9</b> 0.	10	٦	13	3	£.	3.	3	33		3	3 :	33	53	
		5	ē	5	5	<u>-</u>	5	ŝ.	÷.	3	á 		5	34	3 :	8	3	99 ·	6	6	8	5	3	è	5.	2		2	8	61	33	38	
		ن. ج		5	ð.	-	5	5	•		đ -	=	-	7 4 a 1	58	5 :	5 ·	≝: •	-	s	2	3	5	2	5	3:		2		33	33		
				5.	5 0.	5	5	а 	•	ar ar	1	 a :		56	53	5 4	5	3	ő a		2	3	5 0	5 ) 5 )	3 ( 	ä 	53	, ,	ă i	8 8 0 4	52	55	
		4	-	5 : 	э: ь:		5 - -	5	5	5 	3	5 -  2 -	3 4 	53	5 8	5.0	5 i 5 i	5. 5.	5	5	0 0	õ	ŏ ə	5 i	ă i	5.	52	5	-	83	56		
		-,	-		2		0  2	2	2	2 . 2 .	2 · · 2 ·				> • > •		: د د د		, ,	۵ ۵	٥ •	0	5 . 0 .	9 1 9 1	5 i	9 4 9 4	5 < 5 <	: : : :		5 ( 5 (		, .	
		e e	۔ ج		2	-	- - -			<u>.</u>		22	-			9 9 9 9	29	2:	2	۰.	9. 	。 。	<u> </u>		2 : 2 :								
			:		22	2		= :	5	2	2	22	-			29	25	23		2:	-		ž.		21	2 :		•	2	20			:
	ł	1	: 3			2 3	2.	c ;	e :	2			3 2 2	3 8		23	0.2		2	31		2. 2.1	<u>e</u>				20			0 0 0 3	04		
ż	Ę	4			58	55		2 2	3:	2.0	88				4 C	15		;; ;;			- -			19					5			12	-
	:	9			32							; - 3 8	38			32	3 9			- 5 a	3 (	2	2) 2)			32	3 5				38	8	:
5	;	ç	86		1	3 4	- 3 8	2		- 	35		38	3 =	15	. g				c s	5	₹ :	Q (		: ;	2	2	::	1		: 2		i.
Ś		1	8	ŗ		3 :	i.	3 8				3 8	3 3	12		55	; ; ;	2		3.4	5 5	3			5	59		2	3		98	1 16	:
		1	8	2	3 8	S S	ş	3	3	2 8	9.6	200	, ; ;		16	10	2	2	3	51	3	3	3		Š	3	20	2	ş	3 5	98	02	
	1	1	1. 00.	2	3	2	ţ	92	į	58	38	3 5	ĩ	۱Ę	18	8	15		::	-	0 U	2 2	3 5	20	ġ	3 8	8	Ş	33	g e	8	15.	1
	-	:	60	00	3	: =	2,4	19	2	Ç e		30	ĩ	100	2	1	2	ġ a		:5	şs	2	Ģ	2	1	22	5	ŝ	• 9	2:	2	14.	•
	9	2	80.	90	00	1		3		10	38	2	9	8	8	-	9	22		ŝ		5 5	ļ	1		ŝ	9	2	2	20	13	٤ć	:
1		; .	5	00	3	1					55	1	9	1	9	0	2	2.7								9	5	20		18	2	50	
5	ž	; .	21	00 1	1 40	1		1	; ;	12	; ]	3	00		3	no.	-	-		3 5		88	32		a de	ą	00	0	2	00	50,	D'n	1
;			3	00	1.00	0.0		1		17	5	: =	10	0.0	0.4	5	-	G	13		; :	2 5	3	0.0	0	9	Ş	4	đ	1	8	0	
	94		1.54	2 B	1.67	-		1	1		12	-	1 4 1	2.34	1.01		6	1	2	3	-	2	33	5	ř	1	1.53	1 44	; ;		10.2	140	:
	4		.30	ίς.	90	50	6		2	32	2	8	00.	-	01.	87.	5	Da	8	8 8	33	ŝ	36	9	5	9	81	ŝ	-	19	1.02	.44	4
-	70		90	55	H	Q	2	12	5	18	17	0	80	0	Do '	8	60	0	5	8	36	5	20	0	8	3	60	00	6	8	8	1	
	10	:	2.0	00.	00.		1		-	10	ō	00	96	51.	90	60.	1.06	3	90	3	2	5	22	8	E.	02.	€0.	8	8	2.09	1.67	51	
	07		8.	- 1	8	+1.00	8	8	ň	8	8	90	80.	00	8	11.	90.	38	¥.		8	8	8	8	8	3	1.18	52 F	1.01	â	98.	00	-
`	10	1	0.0	98 ·	-1.90	1.00	00	1	9	3	00	00	51.	00,	00.	00.	60	12.	5	7	8	8	1	00	8	20	51	10	ä	8	00	r.	
	RTYP		¥	Σ	E	E	E	÷	×	×:	Σ	r	x	F	x	z	r	x	۲	+	-	35	Ŧ	÷	E	×	۴	ę-	6-	×	E	<b>z</b> -	
													z																				
			2	ARK	FUINT	HAL.	SH NOT		RUE FA				CHEEK PL																				
	3112	1	ARCHBC	A NON4	CANAL	CLEM18	SIMATO	ŝ	FT PIE	1.005	1006	1.240	HUBBRCH	5	0-1-0	111.0	21-6 C	361-5	c-153	191 2	сі М	5S	906-5	8-352	4.0	S-65D	01-30	11.5	51 ÷	5.1	2 i i	2	

•,

ÿ

#### TABLE B6.4. . Monthly Rainfall Report for the EAA (EAST) Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995)

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1966699999 2005699999999999999999999999999999999999
2	
	2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 1 3 1 3 1 5 5 5 3 4 7 5 5 1 1 1 5 5 5 5 2 4 1 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
z 333882933888638983888	- 333344468
	> esessiste
144 9622295959595959595959595959595959595959	7 000000000000000000000000000000000000
2. 	N 889593525
	1 33835888353 1
	0 3355555555
78	1 223823338
	7 700000001
	1 0000000000000000000000000000000000000
<b>1</b> 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	
4 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 -	3 1999-93%5
	5   9   0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 -   9 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 -   9 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0
	10 · F. do the state 
	20153626262822 201738866268822
	1
	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
	j_:000000000000000000000000000000000000
	A 1400
11.66664 21.6666464 21.6666464 21.66666464 21.6666464 21.66666464 21.66666464 21.66666464 21.66666464646464646464 21.6666646666666466666666666666666666666	z
5 949298823546458853546888866	2 2888884885
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	2.000000000000000000000000000000000000
8 1999 899 899 899 899 899 899 899 899 8	2 0 4 0 2 5 5 5 5 4
9:099999999999999999999999999999999999	90,4 1 2 2,4 2 2,5 2,5 2 2,5 2,5 2 2,5 2,5 2 2,5 2,5 2,5 2,5 2,5 2,5 2,5 2,5 2,5 2,5
the second	
tt lot	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
	00000000000000000000000000000000000000
fall <b>f</b>	0 - n- 1 9 - 1 - n- 1 9 - 1 - 1 - 1
Rain : 5385888888888888888888888888888888888	
	5;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;
х хнхехнинхнихненкихн 2 2	A B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B
TABLE 86.	JJDE CLARLSTWE CLARLSTWE CLARLSTWE CLARLSTWE CLARLSWE CLAS CLAS CLAS CLAS CLAS CLAS CLAS CLAS

TABLE B6.6. Monthly Rainfall Report for the WATER CONSERVATION AREA's (1,2 and 3) (OCTOBER 1995).

- 「あるようなできる」のでは、4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.4.
XAX XAX XAX XAX XAX XAX XAX XAX XAX XAX
Image: 100 million         Image:
21世 - 泉久を見みてらえ 10月48年1月1日にままではまた。 11世 - ホイムカレーユ・サード・テステ・サレ・テユー・ 1
4 88333644338368683332945433328888
<ul> <li>6986698533595885355555555555555555555555</li></ul>
1 888888888888888888888888888888888888
# 82899999999999999999999999999999999999
2 8868878788488888873818378345 -
* 5363668366623266653888888888888888888888
1 - <b>28 2</b> 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
* 282492843866488333383848
1 8873883338788897355388888888
3 888888888888888888888888888888888888
1 - <b>6698685</b> 85555555555555555555555555555555
3 · 843847346473656554743466176
1 8248428534468435469382324853
4 84534332538444983443434343353
표 : 현실육 출옥입관업원 분수은 김성원 전용 김희원을 해외로 붙다
500056688666666666666666666666666666666
4. 14888825863389318838468832325 1444
2 : 68% 683948832985393988829 2 : 68% 683948832988393988833
8. 103476747888678867867467839887 8. 1034767478886788867886748399887
2 . 2989 999 999 999 999 999 999 999 999 99
9
5 <b>5 6 6 6 6 7 6 8 6 8 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6</b>
00000000000000000000000000000000000000
5 8883883656688588668848888688 4 4 4
44
, 257772849525120000000000000000000000000000000000
4175 ARLPTOAR 14 ARLPTOAR 14 CHRANE-ATTAC CHRANE-ATTAC CHRANE-ATTAC CHRANE-ATTAC CHRANE-ATTAC CHRANE CHRANE CHRANE CHRANE CHRANE CHRANE CHRANE CHRANE CHRANE CHAN CHRANE CHAN CHAN CHAN CHAN CHAN CHAN CHAN CHAN

### TABLE B6.7. Monthly Rainfall Report for the MARTIN-ST. LUCIE Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).

								arı:	4VTX	70 T 6	2 03	3	50	ŝ	6	ş	40	9	Ξ	đ	13	14	ž	1¢	2	ŝ	2	Ē	5	3	ĩ			2	-	1	?	5	THURN	33  	N 22	4 A M	10	4	
TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         TABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995). <th colsp<="" th=""><td></td><td>Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table Palma P</td><td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         The line line line line line line line lin</td><td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Image: State in the sta</td><td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).</td><td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Image: State in the sta</td><td>Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         178       mm       mm&lt;</td><td>- 1842 - 1842 MEDINERSE FS MEDINERSE FS MEDINERSE FS - 1351 - 135</td><td></td><td>· • 4 5 6 6 6 6 8 9 8 9 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9</td><td></td><td>24956666699999999994</td><td>N8898888888888888888888888888888888888</td><td></td><td>883888888313838</td><td>5792929294479996 - </td><td></td><td>1866666688888889898</td><td>5 4 5 4 1 6 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5</td><td>. 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0</td><td></td><td>4044004400 4044004400800400</td><td></td><td>- <u>e</u>: 2020/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06</td><td>194455662446865686 9445566244686568 44404600266954</td><td>\$\$3853535354853</td><td></td><td>2633400258555555</td><td>23228462854444</td><td>1 3388888888888888888888888888888888888</td><td>83232222222222</td><td></td><td></td><td>· &gt;930973&gt;&gt;&gt;5442</td><td></td><td></td><td>22222632823232</td><td>- 99929999999999999</td><td></td><td></td><td>2 : # 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5</td><td>2 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 4 5</td><td>5</td><td></td></th>	<td></td> <td>Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table Palma P</td> <td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         The line line line line line line line lin</td> <td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Image: State in the sta</td> <td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).</td> <td>ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Image: State in the sta</td> <td>Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         178       mm       mm&lt;</td> <td>- 1842 - 1842 MEDINERSE FS MEDINERSE FS MEDINERSE FS - 1351 - 135</td> <td></td> <td>· • 4 5 6 6 6 6 8 9 8 9 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9</td> <td></td> <td>24956666699999999994</td> <td>N8898888888888888888888888888888888888</td> <td></td> <td>883888888313838</td> <td>5792929294479996 - </td> <td></td> <td>1866666688888889898</td> <td>5 4 5 4 1 6 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5</td> <td>. 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0</td> <td></td> <td>4044004400 4044004400800400</td> <td></td> <td>- <u>e</u>: 2020/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06</td> <td>194455662446865686 9445566244686568 44404600266954</td> <td>\$\$3853535354853</td> <td></td> <td>2633400258555555</td> <td>23228462854444</td> <td>1 3388888888888888888888888888888888888</td> <td>83232222222222</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>· &gt;930973&gt;&gt;&gt;5442</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>22222632823232</td> <td>- 99929999999999999</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2 : # 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5</td> <td>2 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 4 5</td> <td>5</td> <td></td>		Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Table Palma P	ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         The line line line line line line line lin	ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Image: State in the sta	ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	ABLE B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         Image: State in the sta	Table B6.8. Monthly Rainfall Report for the PALM BEACH COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).         178       mm       mm<	- 1842 - 1842 MEDINERSE FS MEDINERSE FS MEDINERSE FS - 1351 - 135		· • 4 5 6 6 6 6 8 9 8 9 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9		24956666699999999994	N8898888888888888888888888888888888888		883888888313838	5792929294479996 - 		1866666688888889898	5 4 5 4 1 6 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	. 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0		4044004400 4044004400800400		- <u>e</u> : 2020/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06/06	194455662446865686 9445566244686568 44404600266954	\$\$3853535354853		2633400258555555	23228462854444	1 3388888888888888888888888888888888888	83232222222222			· >930973>>>5442			22222632823232	- 99929999999999999			2 : # 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5	2 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 4 5	5	
RTUR       RTUR       RTUR       RTUR       RTUR       RTUR       RTUR       RTUR         RTUR	RTT       R		The       I <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""> <thi< th=""></thi<></thi<></thi<>		The line line of the line of the line of the line line line line line line line lin	The bit is in		LABLE B6	.8. Monthly	Rain	fall R	eport	t for t	the F	'ALN	1 BE.	АСН	<u>S</u>	UNT	Y Su	bbasi	<u>и</u> (О	CTO	BER	1995	<i></i>																			
					ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       000000000000000000000000000000000000	ABLE B69. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       0       <		ITE	RTYP 0	11 02	в) 0	6	50	90	5	5	60	10	1	з	13	2	a	9	1	5	2		-	2					2	-	÷		CISTINUM CISTINUM	3; - -	1. 1. 2.	1.4 1	AYA		
					ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	ABLE B69. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	The state	-184		10 . 05		÷đ	្ព	13	Do		۰ĝ	1	. 8	: 8	: 8	14		- 6	. 5	. 66			 				· ·		. 3	5 . 8 -				2 : : 	- 	š	3		
					38. T       10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ABLE B69. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).		-56	1.6	29. C	88	68	93	I 2.	58	a s	ន	8.4	8:1	58	1,00	57. 20	3 	81	88	44 44	8:	22	9 : 2 :	200	9	12	2 : 2 :		: 3:	; 8 :	5 2 3	33	1		2 2 2 2 2	444	1		
					3       1	ABLE B69. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).		81A -155	2 4 X (-	5 <b>5</b>	190	18	88	ą.	83	22	<b>3</b> 3	% S	8,8	88	33	=	8	5	2			1	 	29	2	18	: •		38 	38	88	38	12		 	5 X 5 X			
					ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).		-39	⊢ E	36 	83	90.	5	9	3	ŝ,	8	3	1	22	1	;a	- 	19	5	12	26	:-		30.	9 C		20	• •			8 8 9	20	3.9	~ -	vi-	6 4 6 4	<b>1</b> 3		
					A T 00 6 17 00 6 17 00 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	<b>ABLE B6.9.</b> Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).		1.			93	99	88	n a	88	£ 2	5	82	22	a t A T	89	53	9 - C	4	2 S	8		5	5	0 00	, G	3 11	а ;;	4 D.		5	2	20.	4				3		
					A H W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W	ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).       3		- 4.2	6 i	9 : 9 :	5	5	3	Ð,	1	1.14	12	1	ġ.	18	18	82	- - 	18	- 01 PG	, . , .	33	- 0	000	00 89	20	50	а і 1 т	53 75	8:	20	33	82	21		ة : مد	ੇ : ਜ :	33		
										9 9 9 9 9	đ.	5	8	2	3	3	3	90	8	5	. 15	. 26	ą	72 3	11 13.	50	- 25	0		0		3	 	• 3 • 7	:3	:8	5 8	33	10		22 8 C	90 20	\$ F		
					ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).		-542	9 0 8 F	20	18	6 8	88	95	82	2	g s	<u>.</u>	99	88	88	e e	8.5	8	0.6	ан С	56	3	0	00	0 D	20 0			3	8	8	33	(2		 	: ^ : 7	13		
					ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	ABLE B6.9. Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	<b>FABLE B6.9.</b> Monthly Rainfall Report for the BROWARD COUNTY Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).	ESTRURT	1 1	10	9	2	25	3	8	12	99	10	18	38	85	59	0	- ^ 	2 3 7 7	101	18	3 = 3 f	20	0 ē 9 2	20	 4		e F	81	96 96	83	22	÷.	5.0	~.	3:	÷.		

÷.	
C.	
5	
-	
¥.	
<u>ц</u>	
Ξ.	
Ľ.	
j.	
5	
2	
Ξ.	
2	
Ď.	
5	
2	
<u> </u>	
_	
2	
3	
۲.	
٢.	
2	
÷.	
5	
Ç,	
5	
2	
٥.	
ч	
2	
2	
2	
-	
5	
÷.	
2	
-	
3	
3	
ž	
5	
2	
5	
5	
2	
2	
2	
1	
•	

`

S UAY	
1 UAY	
Yet z Max	8-80-9-9-00-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-
L DAY KAX	, EEEE X 2002:00:00:00:00:00:00:00:00:00:00:00:00
VURAL Y	,
	10030000000000000000000000000000000000
5	
57	
4	
5	85355355753355355535
Ť,	. 2828335344635555555555
¢	888888888888888888888888888888888888888
2	01000000000000000000000000000000000000
ŝ	000000000000000000000000000000000000000
7	56356668744555555666833 66356668744555555666833
5	000000000000000000000000000000000000000
07	2222922222222 222292222222222222222222
2	- 490448669946484488438
87	, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
5	
16	
ž	·
2	
-	
	00000440000000000000000000000000000000
-	· 30 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9 7 9
è	
5	8.28832355838232383838 
6-2	- 50960966665668646969585
64	
FD	64466996684455999646666
70	07000000000000000000000000000000000000
3	
ž.	
x	* 24444444444444
517E	CORAL STATESTING FT LIAID FT CORAL STATESTING FT LIAID FT

288

÷
1995
BER
DTO OTO
<u>0</u>
ubbasi
YS
-N
g
DE
DA
the
tfor
epor
all R
Rainfa
thly
Mon
10. 1
B6.
3LE
TAL

e The second s Second second br>Second second br>Second second br>Second second br>Second second
- 38839998283539333333335383883838383838383
5 96969866996999999999999888888888888888
* 2000000000000000000000000000000000000
2 -200000000000000000000000000000000000
4 93956886835598998833863888888
N 86856846837685523568557388685868
3 3494588344888448888888888888888888888888
1 888899988555555577777775688874889
4 9888988888888888888888888888888888888
「「「」」(「」」」」」」」(「」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」
<ol> <li>a</li> /ol>
ዿ - 프콜레레그램을 #일부산은 실망하여 일착한 다이하여 특별가 한 후
* \$955569999665477766556665869 <b>5</b> 569
, 999888910899998888999999999999999999999
2   44 8 40 8 8 2 8 6 2 4 6 8 4 4 4 6 4 2 8 8 1 4 4 6 6 8 1 6 8 1 6 8 1 6 8 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6
a
- 
8 89939449393999999910869910889494949 8 89939449393999999910869910889949494949
8 . 38 2 4 8 2 8 6 6 6 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
a : 989889999999999999999999999999999999
* • (• * • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
2. 8222222222200000000000000000000000000
CHPE LUNE EVEN CHEFINE EVEN HURSTERIC FF HURSTERIC FF HURSTERIC FF HURSTERIC FF HURSTERIC FF HURSTERIC FF HURSTERIC FF HURSTERIC FF LUNC FF HURSTERIC FF HURSTERI

## TABLE B6.11. Monthly Rainfall Report for the CALOOSAHATCHEE Subbasin (OCTOBER 1995).

I I E	2 7 7 7	
2	사 (1997년 - 1998년 - 1997년 - 19 (1997년 - 1997년 br>(1997년 - 1997년 br>(1997년 - 1997년 -	う 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.
	2 942-2042 92 962-2042 23 962-2042 24 962-2042 24 962-2042 24 962-2042 24 962-2042 24 962-2042 24 962-2042 24 962-2014 24 962-200000000000000000000000000000000000	247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012	А. Маралария Марала	: 2012년 2012년 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120 - 20120000000000
22 22 22 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 2	2020 2020 2020 - 2020 2020	E E S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
1996 - 2014 - 5000 - 4 1997 - 5000 - 4 1997 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000 - 5000		
× - 32237033935	» 5000000000000000000000000000000000000	÷ 
222002222222	0 300333333000 7 2003333330000000	. 5009990 9 2209999
* 3000110330 N 8923966996	1 000000000000	· 3930033
	N 699083883883	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
7 330033333300 7 30003333300	7 86847886888 -	2000-00
	4 30333000533 1 305330005333	4 2303000
1 33222222222	1 19200000000000000000000000000000000000	1 8995596
1 20833965888	1 B22 2 2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	4 900-909
N 3584908000 N 35849080000	1 010000000000000000000000000000000000	
1 39933899999		
1 2223222222		1 1000000
3 48838884833	8 X8878481933	3 × 3851281
100000000000000000000000000000000000000	3 9845498478 	2 2282255
2 - MONGO 00000000000000000000000000000000000	95) <b>.</b>	1662 1888 1888 1962
	E 212222222222	BER 555555555555555555555555555555555555
447444444 2.8684392926254 2.8664392926249		
1 000 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0		
1 000001000000000000000000000000000000	<b>UISE</b>	basir 28882588
	<b>ddu</b> 1951 1952 1953 1953 1953 1953 1953 1953 1953 1953	Sub Sub
1 96 96 96 97 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17	TY 555555555555555555555555555555555555	
9 8889888878 ·		
9 2 7 7 9 2 2 2 2 3 1 4 5 5 7 3 1 4 5 7 3 1 1 4 5 7 3 1 1 4 5 7 3 1 1 4 5 7 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		N 81448848
6363671667716 63636776677716		11H 3 1995 900
9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		SOL E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E
9 1491910001100 9 9991000014004 9 9991000014004 9 9991000014001400	r the	
	or fo	rt f0
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Rep. 282.282	Zepo
8188888888841 7-00- (	1fall	[[a]] [ [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2] [2]
00000000000000000000000000000000000000	Rair 2000000000000000000000000000000000000	Rain
333688336	ithly seeseeseeseeseeseeseeseeseeseeseeseesee	thly sssssss
X EILHRHREIZ 7 7	12. Mor Weight Weight W	13. Mon
altre Ann Haugh Ann Haugh Chanaltra Schumit Chanaltra Schumit Chanaltra FT Mate Bronaltra Bronaltra S 79 S 79 S 79	TABLE B6. 3178 3178 3178 200465/10-80 CooleFload 10 200462/15 20040425 20040425 20045 20000000000	TABLE B6. site site swith springs ewith springs transcentule motor frame s'y

	2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 -		0.000000000000000000000000000000000000			29
					4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	,
	ដ កាត់ដែលចេះ ដ ភ្លាស់ដែលចេះ				>ス るびごうちょうできた。	
	2 - Contanan Bandanan B		Σ 1. 0-00000094-0009209056.0 35 ππν		£X.K . F.E 	s
	2					
			1964		2011 	5
			2 A65036888888835858885			7
			,		v - 8885555668888888888885556658888888888	00
	* 00000000000		1 8363200000000000000000000000000000000000		<pre>% 8399366238889888888888888888888888888888</pre>	8
	20000000000				8 4 9 2 2 2 3 2 9 2 8 2 8 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 5 5 5 5 5 8 3 8 3 8 3 8 5 5 7 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 5	0
					4 - ###################################	3.
	- 20300000000000000000000000000000000000		·		1 3 4 9 5 7 5 7 5 3 2 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	3
	. 1995955555		* 3+8632823222888466433833		4 94 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	9
			,		X \$\$\$23333333333\$\$\$8888888888888888888888	8
			1 89968888888888888888888888888888888888		4 99002539339393939393939393939393939393939393	â
	- 6686966666		. <u>999999956990960900000000000</u>			3
	1 00000000000 1 000000000000		<pre>3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2</pre>		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	5
	4 000000000000000000000000000000000000		5555555555666666555555555555555555555		* 9999595259 <b>9999999999999</b> 888888	0
	- 2888888888888888888888888888888888888		» 000000000000000000000000000000000000			8
995).	: 8≡°738888.	195).		995)	······································	8
ER 1	9 6888888889 9	IR 19	4 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	ER 1	1.66665668888888888888888888888888888888	e .
BMB		MBE	4 888888888888888888888888888888	[MB]	4 : \$ \$ \$ 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	а.
Ŋ	4 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	OVE	4 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	OVE	¥ : 88 88 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	8
L) Li		Ž		Ц Ц	1:2222222222222222222222222222222222222	- ; g :
obas	N 9999949999	basi	4 0555555555555555555555555555555555555	obasi	444	2
E Sul		Sub		ESut		 2
IME	0.0000000000	MEE		OBEI	9:92999993899999999999999999999999999999	
SSIN	*	SIM	5 deaterseessandarsees	GH	5:3808955555588555588555555555555555555555	
R KI	వ లాసినిమర్పడుకిం ఈ అందుర్పురిశాష్	KIS	+ +33288888884#8888835388889	KEE	* 3/8588888555588888888888888888888888888	• •
PPE	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	WER	***************************************	KEO		• •
he U	- 0000000000 - 00000000000	01	*	(LA)	4 928892822239999999999999999999999999999	, ,
for t	5 666666666	ir the		r the	3 000000000000000000000000000000000000	:.
port	7 888888888	ort fo	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	nt fo	000000000000000000000000000000000000	? ; 
l Re	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Repc	2 200000000000000000000000000000000000	Repc		
infal		fall	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	fall I		
y Ra		Rain		Rain		:
nthl	7. 	thly		thly	2 · 3 · 4 · 6 · 6 · 6 · 6 · 6 · 6 · 6 · 6 · 6	,
. Mc	H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H	Mon	, ETEHSSEXKKERESEPHHHH J.	Mon	- - - - -	
B7.1		7.2.1		7.3. ĥ		:
3LE	່ ຈະເວັ ມີມາຍ ມີມາຍ	ЕB	2 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	EB	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	:
TAI	1716 1127 25512001 25512001 25512001 125512001 1255 12512011 1255 12512011 1252 1252	(ABI	1111 1112 1112 1112 1112 1112 1112 111	ABL	2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.	•
	ം പെടുപ്പോയെയ്ത്ം പെടുപ്പുന്നതായ്ക്	1	ທ ₹≷ເປັນວິທະຍາຫ່ວນຫຍ່ວນກາຍເຫຼົ່າວ່າ.	H	ที่เสี≹ชีชีชีชีชีชีชีติดต่องต่องต่องต่องต่องต่องต่อง	Č.

۰.

#### TABLE B7.4. Monthly Rainfall Report for the EAA (EAST) Subbasin (NOVEMBER 1995).

<ul> <li>○○</li> <li></li></ul>		
	ACA ACA ACA ACA ACA ACA ACA ACA ACA ACA	22 - 9872996984998499848897388456889
EE X	A E X	4 :
>X, ∽≈≈≈aanacororaranounover-a-a.		
a 28. addooreeseddergegegegegegegegegegegegegegegegegeg	- 	44. 55. 56. 50. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19
142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142	арар 1995 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017	A Constant and a second and a
9 8000000000000000000000000000000000000		
	<ul> <li>A Second a second</li></ul>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1 000000000000000000000000000000000000		
·	- 	- 
4 23222233333252258		4 2 6 2 8 2 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 3 8 2 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
- 365533698823589999998	8 8838333333	1 224328833333333333333333333333333333333
1 33364148398383838383888888888	* <b>3335</b> 36544	2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.
1 383332288833888888888888888		2.9988889559995589855998588
·	1 888888855	1 - 2888 8999 944 958 865 959 969 969 969 969 969 969 969 969 9
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		55555555555555555555555555555555555555
	1 000000000000000000000000000000000000	
2 000000000000000000000000000000000000		
1	* . 220200860	
- 888888888888888888888888888888888888		
1 888888888888888888888888888888888888	1995	2, and a second se
	BE - 888888888	
	E Seesseess	28558888855588888888888888888888888888
7 - 5 6 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		
	11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1	
	qqn	
	C * *********	$\mathbf{S}$ = $\mathbf$
5 25666888888888888888888888888888888888	A PERSONAL A	
6 9899888888888888888888888888888888888	AA (	YATE
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	ਜ ਜ , 2555555555 ਸ	
5 8888888888888888888888888888888888888	for t	<b>.</b>
4 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	port 3 88888888	
	lly R	Jy R.
т. Б. Т. Т.		
•	7.5.1	26.7
30Y0 1111 23 80	<b>ਸ</b> ਸ 	
1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111	ABI 116 1155 1155 1155 1155 1155 1155 1155	
ម គេសេសីទីទីស្ថុំដូនីស្ថុំភ្លាស់ស្ថុំសស្ចុំស្ចុំសំគំនាំ	□     □	

### TABLE B7.7. Monthly Rainfall Report for the MARTIN-ST. LUCIE Subbasin (NOVEMBER 1995).

	12.0000000000444444 12.0000000444444 12.00000000444444 12.00000000444444	
		454
		「 1000日 100
Υ Σ	~	E E
1951 1952 - Stand Stand Stand	22 - 232022288839	68 39916934698191919838
		······································
121 - 224 22 MD 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 12 2 2 2 2 2 2	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	1997 - Eline Green Scholard Green Frank Frank Frank 1997 - Eline Green Frank Green Frank Frank 1997 - Eline Green Frank Green Frank Frank Frank Frank 1997 - Eline Green Frank Green Frank
0 100000000000000000000000000000000000	5 200112940000 5 2001129400000	
	N 54546566483335 	
¥ 58838993336853653 Y 98663396653655	· 5003005333885	I 000000000000000000000000000000000000
	· 55596655888888	
<pre>4 555555555555555555555555555555555555</pre>	<pre>/ 2555555555555555555555555555555555555</pre>	4 6988888855665888888
·	4 39896888839855	
·	1 222222222223	4 36000000000000000000000000000000000000
	> 33635538382223	
1 0000000000000000	N 998685656888888	
	2 299999999999999	2 000000000000000000000000000000000000
× - 00000000000000000000000000000000000	3 3686696696696	0 000000000000000000000000000000000000
		202020 20200 20200 20200 20200 20200 20200 20200 20200 20200 20200 20200 202000 20200 2000 2000000
		<b>5</b> ).
	CH 2:282888888888888888888888888888888888	
- 000000000000000000000000000000000000		
	b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b	
	V N 112888888888888888	
		∑ ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::
3 - 2222222222222222222 - 22222222222222		
9 - 324259999999999949		
	7 888888888888888888888888888888888888	VAR
÷ 2000000000000000000000000000000000000	ALN SSSSSSSSSSSS	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		H
5 · 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	101 1 10000000000000000000000000000000	for 2000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0
4 9999999999999999999999999999999999999		
4444666666666888	<b>n</b> 919988881558888	<b>J</b> 3888888888888888888888888888888888888
2 29020949498999	H A 2.23925555555555555555555555555555555555	X 2.888888888888888888888888888888888888
r vregiúrtererer, P		M a xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
	E B7.8	E B7.9.
2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.		

e ••

•

			00000000000 44 Xumuro07144 44 Xumuro07144 44 Xumuro07144				NAX NAX NAX NAX NAX NAX NAX NAX NAX NAX
	414 - 100000-14400000000-140440000000000		က အဆို အားသက်ကိုက်သိုးရက်လဲ ကြည့် အားသက်ကိုက်သိုးရက်လဲ ကြည့် အားသက်ကိုက်သိုးရက်လဲ		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		рана 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 199
	и к в с х х 25 хабеч-то созданово-то то особо 25 хабеч-то созданово-то со особо 25 хабеч-то созданово-то со особо 25 хабеч-то со				л т т 27 опресососо 27 (16 11 сересосососо 27 (16 11 сересосососососососососососососососососо		л соооооо Станкураал Станкураал Соооооо Сооооооооооооооооооооооооооо
	22 X8X4X3112900470007453148038508 		ため、 マーン ファクナ コッドオイ くち エリューチロン リマナ コ マ		- 98 28 John Olassa 28 John Olassa 28 John Olassa 29 John Olassa 29 John Olassa 20 John Olassa 2		
	「「「「「」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」」		8.888 8.899 8.899 9.999 9.999				
			2 6266782981		- 10000-44015 - 1000-44015 - 1000-44015		- 401-40- 681- -
	86666666666666666666666666666666666666		* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *		¥ 00000000000		0 8988858
	8 0288866666655558844558688888855555		8 0000333390 9 0000333990		A 000000000000000000000000000000000000		1 96655556
	2 88958999999555388999986998999989		/ 000000000000000000000000000000000000		1 1002000000000000000000000000000000000		
	4 70200000000000000000000000000000000000		4 3388888888888		1 0000000000000000000000000000000000000		1 00000000
	A 38888888883588853883883865588				4 20222222336		1 2020833
	4 8888888888888888888888888888888888888		7 000000000000000000000000000000000000		* 92268859995		7 2020223
	·		1 2222233333333333333333333333333333333		- 1 4858858381		, 55959993 , 55969993
			: 2272825.0000		4 382349888888		. 5565688
	1 9289538885588998888888888888888888888888		2 9999919999		- 33200050550 - 35200550550 - 555505505		2 22622423
	3 8528998882222225572588282839393939		3 38883635356 3 38883655556				9 99666635
			. ====================================		* <b>53333</b> 565335		
	* · 856555888855553688856666666666666666666	آ	- 6565565566		a 5655555555555555555555555555555555555	(6	
÷		199		95).	582388888888 5	1995	
1995	\$ \$\$\$\$	BER		CR 19	1 9000000000000000000000000000000000000	BER	4 : 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
BER	- , 800000000000000000000000000000000000	VEM	<pre>{ \$\$\$\$5\$</pre>	MBE	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	/EM	
'EM	<ul> <li>- 2.4895655955955655655665565565</li> <li></li></ul>	0Z		OVE		Ń	
Ŋ N		isin (		Ž	- 65966636888	sin (	
sin ()	4 .888888848888888888888888888888888888	nbba	A 38565668339	basir	3:8888888882	bba	9:8888888
lbba:		EES		Sub	1.888818888888	ST Si	1.8888888
אַ צ	÷ : 5352 23333555555555555555555555555555	Ð	3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	ž	2 888888888888888	OA!	9.99999999
IN	2 - 22888888888888888888888888888888888	HAJ	5 7527752147	Ino	3:58258805350	STC	2 *********
8	ð : 88888888888888888888888888888888888	OSA	8	ERC	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	łwe	5.0000000
ADE	2.8888888888888888888888888888888888888	ALO	5 - 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	סרדו	5-8888888888	Ξ <u>Γ</u>	G. 8866666
he D	5 · 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	e C.	\$:888899999955	ъС	4.638689898989	le SC	5 89999999. 6 9999999
for tl		or th	1,555555555	or th	5 3933999399999 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	or th	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
port	Z 2888848838867828888844888888448	orti	7 2822282828	ort f	2 - 66 m 26 6 6 6 9 9 6 9	01 fo	
li Re	<pre>% * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *</pre>	l Rep	2:222222222	l Rep		Rep	> ≥manooo
infal	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	infal	7.656666885V	nfall	0 000000 = 6 B 00	nfall	0.0000000
y Ra	2.82882%8888888882822268883888888888888888	∕ Raj		r Rai		' Rai	
nthl		راth	- - -	nthly	* • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	athly	9 2000040
.10. Mc	, TERETTITELESESESESESESESESESESESESESESESESESESE	11. Mo		12. Moi		l3. Mor	
TABLE B7.	SITE	TABLE B7.	STITE ANTERIALO ANTERIALO BURNTA SHALINGS CONFILMENTA FT MANAL FT MANALON COLDANALON COLDANALON STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO STO	TABLE B7.	3175 Bool 25 SPRIMES CORRENTING CORRENTING CORRENTING CORRENTING CORRENTING FROM LIPOWALER FROM	TABLE B7.1	STTE BUNTA SPRINGS CCHASSCAM HQ PT NENS PT NENSALEE MARCU ISLAND MARCU ISLAND MARCU ISLAND

13 é 11 **RIFR710** 

1995)
BER
CEM
<u>a</u> 0)
basin
Subl
MEB
SSIM
RK
JPPE
the [
rt for
Sepoi
ıfall f
Rair
nthly
L. Mo
: B8.1
ABLE
Ľ.

			2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		
	- - 	:			- 23. 2466634958396866882828345594 ********
	8 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		40000000000000000000000000000000000000		
			7 888888888		
			9883888388		
	N, 86666566666666666666666666666666666666		2 990894835		4 88000855555555555555555555555555555555
	»		# 9003000005		* 000000000000000000000000000000000000
	> 200000000000000000000000000000000000		N 9090000000		
			4 000000000000000000000000000000000000		4 000000000000000000000000000000000000
			 1 395539852		<pre>4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0</pre>
	4 9000000000000000000000000000000000000				
			N 800050000 T -		
	N 000000000000000000000000000000000000		1 0000000000000000000000000000000000000		
	- 44407000000000000000000000000000000000		2 2252555555	5.	* 000000000000000000000000000000000000
			2 20212322	661 2	a sanadahatatatatatatatatatatatatata
			2 . 20000000000000000000000000000000000	1BEF	> 00000000000000000000000000000000000
				CEN	
				(DE	
<u>.</u>	4   00000000000000000000000000000000000	_	* 2022026885	1d 3)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1995)		1995	1 1000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ON AREA's (1,2 ar	100000000000000000000000000000000000000
3ER	4 9490000000000000000000000000000000000	BER			
EME	4 4	EMI	11986888888		
DEO	94666666666666666666666666666666666666	DEC	N 1000000000000000000000000000000000000		1 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
sin (	- 44	) uisi		ATIC	
ubba		nbba	3 8 8 9 8 9 9 9 9 9	ERV	218884888888888888888888888888888888888
T) S		ST) S		SNO	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$
(EAS	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	WE		" N	233588888888888888888888888888888888888
AA		AA (		ATE	
he E	0 000000000000000000000000000000000000	heE	0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	fir the V #888888888888888888888888888888888888	. 1001000000000000000000000000000000000
for t	5 . 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	fort	A . 00023400004		
port	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	port	0 000000000000000000000000000000000000	s ort	
ll Re	ő : 3326 886 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 8	ll Re		l Rej	
infa		infal	2 88888888	infal "	
ly Re	5.9566666666666666666666666666666666666	y Ra	5.6868888888	y Ra	
ldh		nthly	å.	nth	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
<b>1</b> . M		. Mc	<b>计公理设计计计算</b>	, Mo	
3LE B8.4	d Labe Dates to the stroker of st	ILE B8.5	41 29 T 99 T 90 T	LE B8.6	NA 54 Thurs Thurs Thurs Strain Strain Strain Station Station Strain County County County
TAE		TAB	5178 6196 6196 64196 64196 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000 100000	TAB SITE	ALOTYT BALL 2010 CERTAN

TABLE B8.7. Monthly Rainfall Report for the MARTIN-ST. LUCIE Subbasin (DECEMBER 1995).

2-047		AND-9			00000000000000000000000000000000000000
10-0	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	AND -			1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Å.			00000000000000000000000000000000000000		
242	, 1949994494999999 19				
23		- - -		- 	140821385429342553555555555555555555555555555555
2					
8		5			
28		a 1			
27	188288888888888888888888888888888888888	5	19959585858888		
56		و. ۱۹	188888888888888888888888888888888888888	8	
25	1	ñ	100000000000000000000000000000000000000		
2	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	7	18828488238888		
8	- 	8	1886858838586888	1 A	
5	7	a	132888888888888888888888888888888888888		
11		12	222222222222222222222222222222222222222	1 8	
50	686888888888888888	5	184888888888888888888888888888888888888	2	994293338888559588999 
÷.	88688888484488	<b>6</b> ,1	888888888888888888888888888888888888888		
5		12). 12).	188888888888888888888888888888888888888	1 8	
5	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	ت R 19	88838388833888		
51		MBEI "	888867888888888	R 19	222222222222222222222222222222222222222
: :	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	n ECEI	1 7 7 8 8 8 7 7 8 6 7 8 8 8 1 7 7 8 8 8 8 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	MBE	638888888888888888888888888888888888888
: :	18888888888888	۳ آ	1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	ECE	88288668686666666666
1	1 F   8088888888888888   8088888888888888	basi.		. <u>9</u>	177 7 1888338888888888888888
3		r Sut	   8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	bbas	3959595959555556665556
4		LN #	8 8 6 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	γSu	868888888888888888888888888888888888888
9		r G	, 4 , 4 , 4 , 4 , 4 , 4 , 4 , 4 , 4 , 4	LN a	
\$	1 9999999999999999999	° CH	88888558588888	DO *	: : ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::
8	29222222222222222222222222222222222222	BEA	************	ARD	
61	88558888888888888	alm "	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	MO "	: 7 8588558888858888888
¥8	885888886858888	he P.	88888848888888888	e BR	
5	86588888888888888888888888888888888888	for ti ss	889888888585858	or th	56666666666666666666666666666666666666
8	6886688866888	port •	0200000000000000	sort f	200750000000000000000000000000000000000
8		ll Re	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	l Rep	
8	88888888888888888888888	ainfa	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	infal	***************************************
a		ly R.	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	y Ra	
RTYP		. Month	****	Monthl	**************
2112	FT PERCE FS CT PERCE FS CUERCHOMARE FS CUER	TABLE B8.8	C-184 C-164 C-155 FB1A FB1A FB1A 5-155 5-155 5-41 5-41 5-41 5-41 5-45 8-5A 8-5A MESTPORT	TABLE B8.9	Cooku Sasuka Cooku Sasuka FT. Laub F5 FT.

. 1. - -

TABLE B8.10. Monthly Rainfall Report for the DADE COUNTY Subbasin (DECEMBER 1995).

AND C	
V DAY	222 
i Yan	
7 XYN 1	Assued to the second se
THEND	
1	
2	
r v	
H.	
17	
3 :	880888888888888888888888888888888888888
£ -	000000000000000000000000000000000000000
77	200220000000000000000000000000000000000
57	
9	
17	303332222222222222222222222222222222222
÷.	488999999999999999999998888899999999 488899999999
<u>z</u> .	3335053333970700000000000000000000000000
×.	28888888888888888888888888888888888888
2	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
4	325232288888888888888888888888888888888
£.	81969999991999489599569989999
14	
2	
4	
ц.	
9	888351823858588855888888888888
60	
8 ;	
10	
8	689699688886666666666666666666666666666
5	
3 :	. 888886666666666666666666666666666666
a	
3	
: ::	
4AL-4	-
S112 	HIMEREAN C FER HIMEREAN C FER HIMEREAN C FER HIMEREAN C FER HIMEREAN HIMEREAN HIMEREAN HIMEREAN C FERENCE S 12 S 12 S 12 S 12 S 12 S 12 S 12 S 12

## TABLE B8.11. Monthly Rainfall Report for the CALOOSAHATCHEE Subbasin (DECEMBER 1995).

MAX MAX MAX MAX MAX MAX MAX MAX MAX MAX
<pre>XX</pre>
A 1000000000000000000000000000000000000
Y Y Y Y XX Cornetson XX Cornets
e
÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷ ÷
> 00000000000000000000000000000000000
000000000000000000000000000000000000000
·
2
1 22228888888
- 2283288888
1 232.2323586
20000000000000
1 99999999999
2.0000000000000000000000000000000000000
3233333688866615
000000000000000000000000000000000000000
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
6 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
6 900 H 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
E EREFEEEE
Startaurs Brantaurs Brantaurs
SJTTE ARCHBOLL BRAKTA J BRAKTA J BRAKTA J BRAKTA J CORKSCHJ CORKSC

## TABLE B8.12. Monthly Rainfall Report for the COLLIER COUNTY Subbasin (DECEMBER 1995).

YAG 2 KAG-1 XAM KAM		
ANN 1		
1 LAY HAX	9/12/00/00/4/4/4 60/10/00/00/4/4/2 E I I I I	
MONTHLY	 8233294932444	
5	-	
5	2010,000000000 2010,00000000000000000000	
5	338538577585	
1	23899833833	
9	9999999999999999 9999999999999999	
4	233333888883333	
Q.	22222222222222222222222222222222222222	
4.4	-	
÷.	204548335459	
4	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	
17	99999999999999999999999999999999999999	
67	9	
-1		
1.	8889999999999	ຄີ
:	<u>9-39888888</u>	199
<b>4</b> -	88888888888888888	IBER
<b>1</b> :	200000000000000000000000000000000000000	GEA
1		(DĒ
FT .	848888888888	asin
21		Subb
1		AST :
81	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	ĝ
50	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	/EST
80		THW
0		DO
9	83888888888888888	the S
\$0	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	t for
8	698888888888	epor
5 I I		all R
3	888888888888888888888888888888888888888	ainf
8 1	86688866688	ıly R
KTYP .	EXXXHEEEEEX -	3 Mont <sup>r</sup>
d Thu Martine Statestand	F NITA SFFLACES CURKERAM HU CURKERAM HU GURKERAM HU GURKERAM HU GURKERAM HU GURKERAM HU GURKERAM HU HULLER HULCON FLITH BULCON FLITH	TABLE B8.1

044 044 046 046 046 046 046 046 046 046
202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202
2000000 222 232 232 232 232 232 232 232
N ODODOOO N IVI
-
и 1971-20 197
, 9999448
3 59666683
1 20222000
4 38888888
1 22223232
1 20000000
2 3248484
1 00000000
1 0000000000000000000000000000000000000
9 98 98 198
1 000000000 1 000000000
1.00000000
S 888 888
1 88888888
1 0000000000000000000000000000000000000
10000 1000000
5 00000000
6 . 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
6 0000000
4 : 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
6 5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
8 88888888
88888888
L. H. HLEEEFF
SITR BEALTA SPRINGS CORRECEIRE AQ FT MISTINS MARCO ISLAND MARCO ISLAND MARCO ISLAND MARCO ISLAND MARCO ISLAND SUISS FS

(This page intentionally left blank.)

.

and the second

#### APPENDIX C

·

#### APPENDIX C

	OREECH	obee				
	S-65 (HW@GAT)	S-65 (TW)	S-65 (FLOW)	S-65E (HW)	S-65E (TW)	S-65E (FLOW)
D.) (10)	11408	00187	00186	00240	00243	15631
LATE 100E0E01	50 05 0	16 12	1000 10			
19950501	50.05 2	46.43	1080.00	20.85	15.60	1160.00
19950502	50.00 ?	40.41	1090.00	20.94	15.60	478.00
19950503	20.02 r 19.99	40.43	1080.00	21.21	15.54	1240.00
19950505	50 06 2	40,47	536.00	20.54	10.09	1300.00
19950506	50.08 2	46.42	545 00	21,12	15.61	674.00
19950507	50.05 ?	46.44	541 00	21.10	15.50	478.00
19950508	50.04 ?	46.42	543.00	21 03	15 55	333.00
19950509	49.99	46.42	539.00	20,98	15.65	814.00
19950510	50.04 ?	46.45	540.00	21.03	15.62	445.00
19950511	50.27 ?	46.50	554.00	21.05	15.68	296.00
19950512	50.32 ?	46.42	563.00	21.17	15,56	352.00
19950513	50.32 ?	46.44	561.00	21.21	15.55	635.00
19950514	50.34 ?	46.44	563.00	21.08	15.48	324.00
19950515	50.40 ?	46.37	920.00	21.16	15.48	548.00
19950516	50.37 ?	46.29	1150.00	21.03	15.38	1450.00
19950517	50.29 ?	46.37	1130.00	20.92	15.44	1400.00
10050510	50.27 2	45.45	1110.00	20.96	15.46	903.00
19950519	50.23 :	40.44	1110.00	21.27	15.45	693.00
19950520	50.30.2	40.40	1120.00	21.35	15.44	1250.00
19950522	50.30 2	46.40	1120.00	20.99	15.31	1440.00
19950523	50.24 2	46.49	1100 00	20.90	15.27	1050 00
19950524	50.21 ?	46.46	1100.00	21.24	15.25	926 00
19950525	50.19 ?	46.45	1100.00	20.84	15 25	906.00
19950526	50.18 ?	46,48	791.00	21.16	15.24	694 00
19950527	50.17 ?	46,53	543.00	21.20	15.24	466.00
19950528	50.14 ?	46,41	551.00	21.01	15.23	459.00
19950529	50.13 ?	46.42	549.00	21.02	15.20	460.00
19950530	50.13 ?	46.45	547.00	21.15	15.20	129.00
19950531	50.13 ?	46.43	327.00	21.26	15,19	437.00
19950601	50.11 ?	46.41	183.00	21.13	15.14	99.00
10050602	50.13 ?	46.42	183.00	21.11	15.14	.00
19950604	50.14 /	46.42	183.00	21.23	15.16	546.00
19950605	50.08.2	40.45	103.00	20.95	15.20	214.00
19950606	50.08 2	40.44	181.00	20.99	15.37	.00
19950607	50.19 2	46.41	185 00	21.07	15 11	241.00
19950608	50.16 ?	46.42	184.00	21.20	15 12	78.00
19950609	50.13 ?	46.42	183.00	21.12	15.12	232 00
19950610	50.14 ?	46.39	184.00	21.13	15.09	35.00
19950611	50.13 ?	46.38	184.00	21.08	15.12	70.00
19950612	50.12 ?	46.43	183.00	21.10	15.11	272.00
19950613	50.20 ?	46.42	185.00	20.79	15.07	115.00
19950614	50.15 ?	46.40	184.00	20.92	15.00	.00
19950615	50.13 ?	46.41	183.00	21.15	14.98	. 00
19950617	50.07 ?	46.41	182.00	21.09	14.91	.00
19950619	50.09 ?	46.39	183.00	20.97	14.88	,00
19950619	50.07 2	46.42	181 00	21.08	14.89	19.00
19950620	55.04 ·	40,40 M	178 00	21.11	14.99	287.00
19950621	M	M	180.00	21.00	15.00	90.00
19950622	м	м	181.00	21.12	15 20	124 00
19950623	м	М	414.00	21.15	15.17	396 00
19950624	М	м	563.00	20.82	15.11	933.00
19950625	м	м	561.00	20.90	15.22	323.00
19950626	М	М	916.00	21.16	15.26	1400.00
19950627	м	М	1510.00	20.95	15.26	1870.00
19950628	М	М	1730.00	21.13	15.23	2040.00
19950629	M	М	1740.00	21.15	15.22	1880.00
10050701	M	M	2050.00	21.03	15.32	1940.00
19930/01	M	M	2240.00	21.18	15.35	1860.00
1990/02	м	M	2230.00	21.23	15.36	2590.00

#### TABLE C-1. Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows(cfs) to the Kissimmee River and to Lake Okeechobee

	S-65 (HW@GAT) 11408	S-65 (TW) 00187	S-65 (FLOW) 00186	S-65E (HW) 00240	S-65E (TW) 00243	S~65E (FLOW) 15631
DATE			• • • • •		00015	19691
19950703	м	м	2220.00	20.95	15.43	2390.00
19950704	М	м	2190.00	21.17	15.38	2090.00
19950705	M	М	1880.00	21.10	15, 41	2110.00
19950706	M	м	1330.00	21.07	15.35	1240.00
19950707	M M	M	1080.00	21.01	15.36	814.00
19950709	M	M	1070 00	21.13	15.37	1020.00
19950710	M	· M	1070.00	21.01	15.40	
19950711	М	M	762.00	21.23	15 44	823 00
19950712	м	М	526.00	20.89	15.40	296.00
19950713	М	М	534.90	21.08	15.44	686.00
19950714	м	М	532.00	20.95	15.39	640.00
19950715	М	М	535.00	21.19	15,39	460.00
19950716	м	М	533.00	21.34	15.42	464.00
19950717	M	M	533.00	21.32	15.43	688.00
19950719	 M	m M	537.99	21.21	15.59	333.00
19950720	M	M	549.00	21.11	15.55	867.00
19950721	м	м	922 00	20.04	15.30	979 00
19950722	м	м	1120.00	21.03	15.42	1320 00
19950723	М	М	1120.00	20.96	15.53	1120.00
19950724	М	М	1110.00	20.99	15.49	839.00
19950725	М	м	1110.00	21.28	15.50	921.00
19950726	М	М	1820.00	21.27	15.67	1730.00
19950727	М	46.56	2850.00	21.05	15.74	2700.00
19950728	м	46.56	3210.00	21.27	15.77	2900.00
19950729	M	46.56	3200.00	21.15	15.76	3800.00
19950730	м	40.00	3160 00	21,10	15.74	2900.00
19950801	M	46.47	3720 00	21.20	15.74	3940.00
19950802	M	46.89	3900.00	21.28	16 19	4210 00
19950803	М	46.79	4600.00	21.20	16.10	8340.00
19950804	М	47.04	4830.00	21.14	16.10	8620,00
19950805	М	47.03	4860.00	21.03	16.11	8610.00
19950806	M	46.89	4960.00	21.29	16,12	8960.00
10050007	M	46.76	5060.00	21.02	16.16	7410.00
19950809	I'l M	40.09	5080.00	21,16	16.19	8060.00
19950810	M	46.73	5040.00	20.95	16.17	5930.00
19950811	M	46.69	5020.00	21.11	16.25	6840.00
19950812	М	46.68	5030.00	21.19	16.27	7210 00
19950813	м	46.68	5020.00	21.05	16.29	6930.00
19950814	М	46.67	5000.00	21.26	16,28	6900.00
19950815	М	46.63	4990.00	21.20	16,25	6960.00
19950816	M	46.61	4940.00	21.14	16.26	6220.00
19950817	M	46.63	4880.00	21.27	16.30	6420.00
19950819	M	40.04	4460.00	20.95	16.25	5740.00
19950820	M	46.50	4070.00	21,17	16.20	5130.00
19950821	M	46 60	4030.00	21.22	16.21	5220.00
19950822	M	46.61	4040.00	21.24	16 12	4660 00
19950823	М	46.55	4070.00	21.33	16.12	4690.00
19950824	М	46.68	3820.00	21.32	17.08	4830.00
19950825	М	46.83	3800.00	21.17	16.75	5500.00
19950826	м	46.69	3970.00	21.32	16.74	6850.00
19950827	M	46.64	4060.00	21.08	16.75	6880.00
10020028	м	46.62	4100.00	21.10	16.76	7220.00
19950830	M M	40.59 46 69	4180.00	21.04	16.72	6870.00
19950831	гл М	40.02	4590.00	21.23	16.79	6530.00
19950901	M	47.10	5450.00	21.17 21.12	16 90	7220.00
19950902	M	47.26	5410.00	21.32	16.95	8540 00
19950903	м	47.30	5410.00	21.19	16,91	8650 00
19950904	М	47.25	5490.00	21.12	16,96	8170.00
19950905	М	47.21	5540.00	21,23	17.06	8030.00

#### **TABLE C-1.**Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows(cfs) to the Kissimmee River and to Lake<br/>Okeechobee (continued).

#### TABLE C-1.Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows (cfs) to the Kissimmee River and to Lake<br/>Okeechobee (continued).

	5-65 (HW@GAT) 11408	S-65 (TW) 00187	S-65 (FLOW) 00186	S-65E (HW) 00240	S-65E (TW) 00243	S-65E (FLOW) 15631
DATE						
19950906	М	47.14	5580.00	21.21	17.16	8230.00
19950907	М	47.04	5700.00	21.02	17.21	7660.00
19950908	М	47.02	5690.00	21.01	17.23	7360.00
19950909	м	47.15	5560.00	21.21	17.29	7420 00
19950910	м	47.23	5510.00	21.29	17.34	8480.00
19950911	м	47.32	5440.00	21.08	17.40	8680.00
19950912	М	47.33	5440.00	21.17	17.42	8280.00
19950913	М	47.31	5430.00	21.07	17.45	8740.00
19950914	M	47.23	5500.00	21,02	17.46	8350.00
19950915	М	47.13	5520.00	20.96	17,47	8180.00
19950916	М	47.06	5510.00	20.91	17.42	7770.00
19950917	М	46.98	5500.00	21.07	17.45	7570.00
19950918	М	46.82	5310.00	21.05	17.43	7580.00
19950919	М	46.68	5010.00	20.92	17.44	6920.00
19950920	м	46.68	4360.00	20.92	17,39	6270.00
19950921	М	46.59	3940.00	21.04	17.39	5370.00
19950922	М	46.60	3570.00	21.21	17.38	5400.00
19950923	М	46.58	3360.00	21.06	17.38	4040.00
19950924	M	46.55	3360.00	21.24	17.34	4400.00
19950925	M	46.61	3010.00	21.02	17.29	3910.00
19950926	M	46.55	2680.00	21.00	17.29	3480.00
19950927	м	46.50	2460.00	21.29	17.23	3400.00
19950928	M	46.48	2270.00	21.20	17.24	3050.00
10050020	M	46.49	2040.00	20.92	17.16	2700.00
19951001	M	40.45	1650.00	20.96	17.11	2100.00
19951001	M	M	1460 00	21.01	17.10	2080.00
19951002	M	M	1400.00	21.12	17.08	1950 00
19951004	M	M	1430 00	21.05	17.13	1690.00
19951005	M	M	1450.00	21,10	17 28	1880.00
19951006	M	м	1470.00	21.31	17.20	2290 00
19951007	м	м	1490.00	20.93	17.20	2420.00
19951008	м	м	1510.00	21.20	17.24	2450.00
19951009	м	м	1500.00	21.17	17.35	4080.00
19951010	М	М	1540.00	21.06	17.33	3060.00
19951011	М	М	1900.00	21.24	17.36	4020.00
19951012	М	М	2110.00	21.05	17.33	4140.00
19951013	M	M	2460.00	20.98	17.34	3970.00
19951014	м	M	2650.00	21.22	17.46	4210.00
19951015	M	M	2660.00	21.23	17.48	4750.00
19951010	м	M M	3270.00	21.04	17.37	4580.00
19951018	M	M	4410 00	21.32	19 01	5480.00
19951019	M	M	4600.00	21.33	18 14	7570.00
19951020	м	M	4630 00	20.99	18 27	7900.00
19951021	м	м	4630.00	21.01	18.30	7630 00
19951022	м	м	4560.00	20.96	18.32	7270.00
19951023	м	м	4480.00	20.96	18.42	6710.00
19951024	М	М	4470.00	21.02	18.42	6750.00
19951025	м	М	4440.00	20.82	18.45	5900.00
19951026	М	м	4120.00	21.10	18.48	6010.00
19951027	М	М	3740.00	20.82	18.54	5380.00
19951028	м	М	3510.00	20.82	18,48	5180.00
19951029	M	M	3550.00	20.94	18,22	3920.00
19951030	M	M	2880.00	21.21	18.33	4160.00
19951031	M M	M	2710,00	20.90	18.33	4080.00
19951102	т м	M M	2240,00 1750 00	20.88	18.30	3340.00
19951102	M	11 M	1580.00	20.91 20.91	10.2/	2760.00
19951104	M	M	1610 00	20.00 20.79	18 05	2060 00
19951105	м	M	1610 00	20.94	18.02	1840 00
19951106	M	 M	1600.00	20.99	18.05	1840 00
19951107	м	м	1590.00	21.10	18.09	1860.00
19951108	М	м	1610.00	20.93	17.97	1730.00
19951109	М	М	1610.00	21.06	17.70	2160.00
19951110	М	М	1590.00	21.02	17.91	2240.00

#### TABLE C-1.Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows(cfs) to the Kissimmee River and to Lake<br/>Okeechobee (continued).

	S-65	S-65	S-65	S-65E	S-65E	S-65E
	(HW@GAT)	(TW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)
<b>636</b> 5	11408	00187	00186	00240	00243	15631
DATE			1500 00			
19951111	M	M	1590.00	20.89	17.91	1780.00
19951112	M	M	1610.00	21.22	17.63	1940.00
19901113	M	M	1590.00	20.99	17.68	1810.00
19901114	171 M	M	1590.00	20.97	17.55	1620.00
19951115	M	21 M	1350.00	21.10	17.51	1650.00
19951117	M	M N	1330.00 001 AA	21.11	17.40	100,00
19951118	M N	II M	826 10	20.94	17.42	1040.00
19951119	M	 M	652 00	20.91	17 33	720.00
19951120	м	M	306.00	20.94	17 33	421 00
19951121	M	м	172 00	20.94	17 26	184 00
19951122	M	м	174 00	21.02	17 10	105.00
19951123	м	M	173.00	21 23	17 18	283 00
19951124	м	м	174.00	21.12	17.15	382.00
19951125	м	м	176.00	20.97	.6.94	154.00
19951126	М	м	175.00	21.21	16.96	200.00
19951127	М	М	172.00	21.08	17.03	249.00
19951128	м	м	173.00	21.02	17.01	191.00
19951129	М	46.44	174.00	21.00	16.97	138.00
19951130	49.87	46.41	177.00	21.16	16.83	351.00
19951201	49.82	46.42	667.00	21.18	16.86	446.00
19951202	49.78	46.40	1050.00	21.16	16.81	878.00
19951203	49.72	46.41	724.00	20.98	16.77	1080.00
19951204	49.71	46.43	783.00	20.93	16.69	634.00
19951205	49.62	46.45	1630.00	21.26	16.66	980.00
19951206	49.45	46.49	2540.00	21.08	16.65	1920.00
19951207	49.28	46.50	2850.00	20.99	16.64	2400.00
19951208	49.14	46.46	2800.00	21.19	16.58	2560.00
19951209	49.00	46.46	2720.00	20.98	16.62	2940.00
19951210	49.03	46.47	2740.00	20.94	16.33	2410.00
10001010	40.00	46.43	2670.00	21.17	16.28	2550.00
10051713	40.07	40.41	2370.00	21.01	16,41	2440.00
19951213	48.41	40.47	2480.00	21.10	16.43	2620.00
19951215	48 29	46.40	2320 00	20.00	16 43	2020.00
19951216	48.17	46.47	2230.00	21.08	16 39	2100.00
19951217	48.05	46.43	2170.00	21 12	16 40	2100.00
19951218	47.94	46.46	1890.00	21.09	16.42	2040.00
19951219	47.91	46.54	1470.00	21.04	16.48	1600.00
19951220	48.10	46.59	1170.00	20.90	16.23	110.00
19951221	47,95	46.47	1040.00	20.97	16.19	514.00
19951222	47.89	46.40	873.00	21.43	16.13	964.00
19951223	47.93	46.31	726.00	20.65	15.95	939.00
19951224	47.92	46.29	728.00	21.08	15.95	339.00
19951225	47.79	46.20	718.00	20.89	15.97	556.00
19951226	47.76	46.16	719.00	21.06	16.03	298.00
19951227	47.63	46.12	701.00	21.21	16.05	496.00
19951228	47.62	46.08	709.00	21.23	16.01	774.00
19951229	47.56	45.99	916.00	21.16	15.98	728.00
19951230	47.44	45.95	1040.00	21.26	16.06	1130.00
19821531	41.51	45.94	1020.00	20.82	16.08	788.00

je ye

(This page intentionally left blank.)

.

#### APPENDIX D

.

Ω	
APPENDIX	

.

TABLE D-1. Controlled Inflows (cfs) to Lake Okeechobee from T ributaries to the North.

STATIONS	S-131	S-71	S-129	s-72	s-127	S - 84	S-154	s-133	S-191	S135
DBKEY	15643	(FLOW) 15633	(FLOW) 15642	(FLOW) 15634	(FLOW) 1561	(FLOW)	(FLOW) LEEDO	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)
		) ) 	2 7 7 4	4 7 7	T POT T		779C	/ 5 9 5 1	459C1	15638
DATE	•									
	00.	170.46	00.	42.69	00.	260.35	00.	00.	72.28	00.
200000667 20000001	а оо.	3.23 E	а 00:	40.16 E	а oo.	437.27 E	.00 E	.00 E	00.	17.16
5050588T	00.	240.12	00.	Э 00. Э	00.	435.70 E	00	00	00 -	00
19950504	00.	180.61	00.	3 00 J	00.	431.17	00.	00	00	
19950505	.00	300.82	00.	00,	00.	428.66	00.	00	00	00.
19950506	-00 E	177.26	00.	00.	00.	429.70	00.	00.	00	00.
19950507	00.	00.	00.	15.83	00.	427.56	0.0	00		
19950508	00.	252.51	00-	00.	00.	426.15	00.	00.	00	000
19950509	00.	222.03	00.	00.	00.	305.21	00	00.	00	00.
19950510	00.	69.16	00.	00 -	.00	375.72	00 '	00.	00	
19950511	00.	102.58	00.	00.	00.	229.77	00.	00.	55.95	00.
19950512	00.	298.69	00.	00.	00.	187.81	00.	00	00.	00
19950513	00.	183.72	00.	00.	00.	207.73	00	00.	00.	00.
19900014	00.	00.	00.	33.99	00.	201.41	00	00.	00.	00,
19950515	00.	. 00 E	а оо.	17.90 E	ы 00. Э	213.88 E	3 00.	Э 0 <b>0</b> .	00.	00.
14450516	00.	88.79	00-	00.	00.	00.	00	00.	66.26	00,
17505651	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.
19950518	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00,	00.	00.	00
17750519 1001019	00.	00 .	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.
19950520 10050520	а 00. С	00.	Э 00. -	00.	00.	00.	00.	.00 E	69.01	00.
19950521	00.	79.04	00.	.00	107.93	00.	00.	275.44 E	00.	186.00
22505651	00.	56.89	00.	00,	00.	00	00.	00.	78.39	00.
19970523	49.43	83.15	00 -	00.	00.	00	. 00	00.	00.	164.34
19900524	00.	13.31	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	66.14	00.
1200000	00.	137.53	00.	00-	00.	00	00	00.	00 .	00.
19950526	00.	74.24	00,	61.82	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.
1990001	00.	87.91	00.	24.06	00.	00	00.	00.	00.	00.
100E0E28	а 00. Со	156.91 E	Э 00. -	00.	Э 00. Э	- 00 E	.00 E	E 00.	00.	00.
1005052	0.00	81.47	0.00	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.
		1 00 70	2.2	0.0	00.	00.	00.	00.	60.06	00.
19950601	4 6 2 2	4 C	4 I 0 0		00.	3 00 E	00	.00 E	00.	00.
19950602	4 67 66	a 00.	4 00.	а 00.	ы 00. 	.00 E	3 00 E	э 00.	00.	153.60
19950602	/0-0r	00.11 20 11		00.	08.4/	00,	00.	163.20	00.	00.
19950604				20.		00.	00.	00.	00.	00.
		17.50T	00.	00.	00.	00-	00.	00.	274.93	00.
C00000667	25-05	184.4Z	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	65.92	174.64
	00.	97.GTT	00.	00.	00-	00.	00.	00.	00'	112.48
/0000661	00. -	188.18 D2 13 1	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	69.29	00.
10000000	н н ОО -	23.07 E	ы 1 00 г	ы 00.	. OO Е	E 00.	.00 E	а 00 <sup>°</sup>	00.	139.38 E
1000000	ы 00.	24.56	ы 00.	00.	Э 00 <sup>-</sup>	E 00.	00.	.00 E	00.	84.89
0100000	00-	34.84	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00 -	00.	00.
11000710 10050710	00-	37,48	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00-	00.	00 .
ZTONCRT	00.	51.46	00.	00.	85.93	.00	00 -	00.	00.	00.

TABLE D	-1. Contro	lled Inflow	s (cfs) to L	ake Okeecl	nobee from	Tributaries	to the No	rth,(contin	ued).	
STATIONS	S-131 (FT.OW)	S+71 (FLOM)	S-129 (ET 041)	S-72	S-127	S - 84	S-154	S-133	191-S	s135
DBKEY	15643	15633	15642	15634	15641	(FLOW) 15636	(FLOW) 15629	(FLOW) 15637	(FLOW) 15639	(FLOW) 15638
DATE										
19950613	00.	49.92	00.	00.	00,	00 -	. 00	00.	00	00
19950614 1000014	00.	46.76	00.	00.	00.	00-	00.	00.	00.	00.
1000015	ы ОО.	20. 28 E	а 00.	а 00. 20	ы 00,	а 00 <sup>-</sup>	.00 E	3 00 C	00.	00.
19950617	00.	40.75 70 77	00.00	00.	0.00	00.	00.	127.45	00.	00.
19950618	00,	24.85	00.			70. 22 83		00.	00.	00.
19950619	38.30	25.17	00.	00.	. ° °	22.00		00.		00.
19950620	00.	79.75	00-	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	100.42 24.001
19950621	00,00	31.40	00,	00.	00.	00,	00.	00.	76.93	00.
19950622	DD. %/	87.12	00.	00	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	100.64
19950624		6T.TOC	4α. FC	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	80.54	00.	00.	145.71	72.67	85.11
19950625	40.07	551 29	00. C3	00.40 F			. 00	00.	77.11	00.
19950626	00.	592.42	51.04	110 62	153 20	07.015		346.48	295.47	347.91
19950627	42.12	528.48	00.	73.10 E	110.03	90. 201	20,01 10,01		591.12 557 30	4,94,4 0,1,01
19950628	00.	525.43	64.29	00.	78.56	345.82	00.	612.46 146 06	00.200 20 760	
19950629	н Э ОО -	426.06 E	.00 E	37.65 E	а 00°.	152.18 E	29.99 E	00 E	294 37	
19950630	38.24	732.70	34.96 E	53.79	107.88 E	302.12	3.26	213.80 E	236.63	87.82
	ы Э.Э.Э.	450.42 E	а I 00	52.79 E	Э 00 Е	286.84 E	a 00'	.00 E	154.38	00
10050702 10050702		458.79 E	ы 1 00 г.	38.95	а 00°	208.87 E	.00 E	3 00 <sup>°</sup>	165.47	00.
19950204	a 00,	883.51 E	54.20 E	 	143.40 E	289.49 E	ы 00.	262.58	67.76	00.
19950705	93 52 E	10 CYC	600 000	48.43 40 40	00. 1	219.02	00.	00.	70.50	00.
19950706	а 00'	291.08	00 H	1 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	4 G C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	1 77.007 1 00	оо. Эр	140. 1400 100	151.24	00.
19950707	00.	69.62	000	10.18	63.58 c	156 88 156 88	а 200	3 00.	00.47	00.
19950708	00.	00.	00.	00.	00-	231.98	00	DUU -	00.2U	200
19950709	00	00.	00.	00.	00.	56.26	.00	00.	139.48	00
10050711	a	3 00 E	ы 00.	. 00 Е	3 00 ·	262.81 E	.00 E	.00 E	76.70	ы 00-
19950712	- 00 - 00	12.31 201 01 5		. 00	94.44	00.	00.	00	78.02	00-
19950713	200- 20-	414.97	1 TO T .	4 0,0	а 00	200.02X 138.00 E	а 00	152.52 E	151,24	а 00'
19950714	24.42 E	238.92 E	а 00. С	76.37 F	80 21 E	61 56 F	6 00.		548.LY	00.
19950715	. 00 E	00.	.00 E	5.20	ы 00.	179.10 E	00 I E OO	0 G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G	447.04 700 00	4 000
19950716	00.	64.56	а 00. Г	00 -	E 00.	99.68	1 H 00	) ) ) )	3 CY YYC	a 00.
19950717	ы 000-	170.22 E	а 00°	00.	E 00.	225.02 E	3 00	а <u>00</u> .	275.22	ц С С
81/DC281	а 00-	238.38 E	ख 00'	н Э ОО-	71.00 E	128.98 E	.00 E	.00 E	177.58	157.15 E
	. 00	248.54 210.01	- 00 - 9 - 00 -	00.	00.	109.58	00.	.00 E	106.62	00.
	a 00.	210.95 204 04	а ос - сс -	11.28	3 00 J	221.52 E	Э 00.	.00 E	134.86	<b>Ξ 00</b> .
19950722	00.	20.500 20.605 20.605	21.1/	07.YO	27.00	55.02	00.	156.61 22	168.38	124.20
19950723	00	111.00			200		00.	00	101.02	00.
19950724	00.	20.44	00.	00 E	20		200	9,0	135.93	00.
19950725	38.67 E	79.87	- 00 E		73.39 E	UL. VU 188.90 E	. 00	00 00	12.52 252 12	4 0.0
19950726	00.	321.04	68.55	14.91	00.	331.85	00,	156.99	516.10	1 00 ml
19950727	31.77 E	707.96 E	а 00 <sup>.</sup>	63.35 E	58.44 E	739.31 E	.00 E	日 00	717.33	148.62 E

TABLE D-1. Controlled Inflows (cfs) to Lake Okeechobee from Tributaries to the North,(continued).

STATIONS	S-131	S-71	S-129	S-72	C-1.27	2 - 8 A	7 U F " Q	در بر	r c r	L 7 7
	(FLOW)	(MOTA)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(ELOW)	6 - 1 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2	(PICIA)	8135 771013
DBKEY	15643	15633	15642	15634	15641	15636	15629	15637	15639	15638
DATE										
19950728	31.03	1080.30	00,	231.56	00.	540.33	0.0	107.51	797.63	149.11
19950729	. 00 E	599.75 E	. 00 Е	206.01	.00 E	640.02 E	H 00.	.00 E	896.04	00.
19950730	50.85	526.19	63.96	172.96	00.	623.82	00.	00 -	761.99	328,89
19950731	36.90	939.02	44.39	210.32	47.68	587.52	00.	209.32 E	602.57	338.78
19950801	25.49	874.59	27.94 E	173.64	17.58 E	1471.37	00.	9.83	663.06	253.76
19950802	н ЭОО Е	I123.67 E	д 00.	231.09 E	53.22 E	1469.95 E	.00 E	154.63 E	1260 10	с. 1966 б. П.
19950803	00.	1047.33	00.	288.54	8.73	743.04	00.	142.56	2013.84	228.33
19950804	53.54	757.83	64.85	237.08	84.92	685,70	56.96	219.15	2176.34	376 02
19950805	00.	470.85	00-	249.61	107.23	836.55	80.65	159.27	1881.88	301 50
19950806	00.	466.56 E	E 00.	254.36 E	Э 00 <sup>-</sup>	806.60 E	53.98 E	E 00.	1274.93	134.00
19950807	40.31	406.98	00.	116.46	108.56	1036.43	12.32	77.76	973.80	00
19950808	ы 00.	440.53 E	E 00.	117.28 E	<b>Ξ 00</b> .	819.40 E	44.40 E	Э 00 <sup>°</sup>	596.76	138.22
19950809	00.	754.36	61.85	127.30	80.92	1062.34	00.	148.82	499.95	00
19950810	00.	745.44	00.	210.53 E	118.90	1156.46	39.28	00.	404.74	75.94
19950811	27.06	952.07 E	50.84 E	215.23 E	100.31 E	1156.51 E	.00 E	149.62 E	409.72	66.5
19950812	00.	896.20	00.	182.03	147.58	1203.27	00,	00	877.37	94 31
19950813	57.40	1108.10	68.10	157.40	108.94	1308.18	00.	00.	714.89	00
19950814	00.	811.29 E	3 OO.	201.93 E	58.51 E	1237.43 E	3 00 .	166.12 E	587 4D	00.
19950815	68.53 E	891.27	64.62 E	107.52 E	3 OO .	663.79 E	00 E	00 5	548 80	14 00 00
19950816	.00	621.59	00.	109.07	107.91	572.21	00	00	90.000	1 2 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2
19950817	58.65	828.42	00.	175.90	00.	828.75	00.	00	409 36	
19950818	.00 E	549.64	48.55 E	169.62 E	76.68 E	485.21 E	.00 E	127.48	341.30	00
19950819	55.01	754.05	00.	116.62	00.	383.96	00		357 68	20
19950820	00,	563.60	00.	118.18	00.	380.95			370 02	200
19950821	90.03	654.89	60.28	119.74	71.61	272.13	00	00	418 78	200
19950822	32.52 E	555.77 E	Э 00. Э	120.85 E	ы 00.	246.57 E	. 00 E	00 E	670.10	4 00
19950823	E 00.	719.30	ы 00 <sup>.</sup>	121.46	55.14 E	308.21 E	. 00 E	1 日 0 0 0	296.86 E	1 H 000
19950824	126.75 E	647.63	112.84 E	145.63 E	116.27	694.51	00.	297.74 E	776.05 E	430.59
19950825	71.74	1587.32	51.47 E	329.44 E	68.54	1746.55	61 - 27.	187.84	1289.93 E	585.32
19950826	34.88	1993.57	45.54	514.04 E	59.76	2165.10	63.46	142.30	1376.13 E	587.36
19950827	59.01	1568.74	65.56	494.89	93.44	1978.86	38.61	00.	1051.01 E	528.31
19950828	50.99	1169.80	57.45 E	365.93 E	.00 E	1904.15 E	39.73 E	3 OO.	739.78 E	322.42 E
19950829	35.31 E	1130.85	.00 E	357.65	118.34 E	1964.72 E	12.95	187.32 E	643.93 E	213.84 E
19950830	-00 E	791.09	76.67 E	252.21	3 00 C	1322.26 E	.00 E	. 00 E	402.55 E	96.51 F
19950831	67.15 E	730.75	.00 E	250.97 E	99.39 E	1089.16 E	- 00 -	129.59 E	506.91 E	9.06 19.06
19950901	71.43 E	894.07 E	68.14 E	469.77 E	58.92 E	1266.81 E	41.85 E	96.96 E	360.19 E	134.23 F
19950902	51.39	1042.96	00.	382.20	99.05	1235.65	00.	114.50	660.60 E	160.96
19950903	110.88	847.43	100.29	377.50	125.40	1226.81	3.49	164.51	707.77 E	50.24
19950904	68.96	797.16	36.86	356.17	129.60	1139.54	83.96	263.78	762.71 E	00.
19950905	108.41	810.62	117.89 E	256.07 E	107.64	1100.70	43.37	203.60 E	318.99 E	143.77
19950906	92.13 F	851.99 E	190.29 E	347.06	448.29	1178.24 E	68.78 E	194.27	842.82 E	104.40 E
19950907	80.40	735.89	117.58	351.82	263.71	1092.35	58.25	137.27	761.25	62.16
19950908	84.04	795.88	145.94	403.90	384.28	1153.05	48.53	92.76	650.76	82.01

÷

									מרמי.	
STATIONS	S-131	S-71	S-129	5-72	S-127	S-84	s-154	S-133	S-191	S135
	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)
DEKEY	£5643	15633	15642	15634	15641	15636	15629	15637	15639	15638
DATE										
19950909	46.01	841.58	166.27	267.83	397.39	1082.09	114.51	368.75	735.08	204.81
01605661	41.93	718.66	148.94	355.69 E	448.23	1159.73	138.81	535.42	1841.59	426.27
1160ceet	43.39 E	827.51 E	211.69 E	512.82 E	575.84	1261.59 E	190.68 E	723.90 E	3702.69	220.92
21902912	33-88 E	1141.06 E	161.44	384.85 E	515.38	L369.76	150.46 E	592.87	2178,15	219.88
1 4 4 0 0 A L 6	32.43 E	781.11	235.90 E	377.27 E	469.25	L269.84 E	109.66 E	335.74 E	1161.62	299.33
14400414	1 71 77 2 71 77	745.93 E	109.57 E	362.39 E	349.95	768,80	94.51 E	246.13 E	835.61	264.27 E
144004TD	E 67.77	717.41 E	124.71 E	341.51 E	298.53	559.39 E	95.70 E	156.91 E	682.85	101.39
19450916	27.42 E	546.49 E	51.60 E	175.69 E	226.39 E	531.18 E	73.97 E	.00 E	531.50	ы 00 -
/ TANCAAT	TD.69 E	772.96 E	134.31 E	277.69 E	175.61	373.66 E	68.47 E	258.62 E	508.28	172.69 E
81202001	с. 68 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	766.51 E	н 200. 1	207.59 E	192.70 E	579.78 E	82.02 E	.00 E	489.09	ы 00.
97905967	17.10 E	743.79 E	119.59 E	132.95 E	152.52	496.42 E	63.47 E	246.62 E	642.68	162.90 E
02500551	9.07 E	478.26 E	.00 E	190.26 E	146.18	496.85 E	58.35 E	3 00 ·	349.99 E	н 100 г
TZADGAAT	11.37	688.56	00.	216.10	107.30	524.89	51.90	00.	214.67 E	00.
77604661	11.45	482.67	108.50	125.00 E	105.70	284.69	69.55	218.53	235.63 E	147.14
19950923	0.0	637.65	.00	194.10	85.95	512.59	47.16	00.	155.65 E	00
19950924 1005005	11.42	475.50	00.	122.34 E	00.	279,27	44.86	.00	153.13 E	00
2260267	9.98 9.08	567.70	00.	200.65	122.52	560.21	46.11	00.	165.29 E	186.65
19950926	. 00 E	451.66 E	-00 E	103.61 E	. 00 E	411.28 E	43.53 H	200.37 E	231.98 E	. 00 E
12402421	8.56 E	620.84 E	68.18 E	197.01 E	106.72	491.93 E	33.46 E	Э 00 <sup>-</sup>	161.10 E	63.14 E
1 44509 28	00.	875.80	62.08	231.55	74.36	519.58	2.15	00.	431.29 E	225.48
19950929	00.	960.20	26.21	264.05	138.73	585.23	48.57	139.61	457.85 E	146.65
19950930	00.	655.73	.00	193.08	160.00	534.81	00.	00.	442.25 E	189.38
10019661	22.10	860.10	54.28	267.21	150.67	511.67	44.06	00.	323.98 E	144.56
20019661	00.	1004.53	00.	321.69	131.68	598.47	00,	167.97	661.63 E	138.69
20010821	23.43 E	722.32 E	65.13 E	251.40	114.11	631.64 E	.00 E	106.98 E	1284.47 E	153.40
1221004 10014221		179.31	00.	283.76	110.79	464.41	44.53	00.	996.85 E	87.08 E
	16.86 E	993.54	85.55	246.34	146.45	670.05	13.47	198.80	812.08 E	77.63 E
20012661	28.29 E	1564.37	55.05 E	351.80	131.18	657,64	79.58	250.26	7.5.73 E	154.06
10010861	77.95	1209.27	66.28	347.15	236.28	666.92	72.33	260.88	104.38 E	130.31
19911000 19051000	10.07 10.07	1142.63 1604 20 2	58.11 56 25 -	270.74	209.64	733.10	87.73	525.09	522.82 E	287.11
	10.07 E	1004.00 E	30.82 E	360.51 E	163.46	1083.41 E	106.07 E	291.55 E	634.31 E	143.80 E
19951011	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	1962 64	- n . n 1 . n	100.12 21.20 21.20	149.03	1211.53	100.29	220.99	86.10 E	156.86
1010		1100 50	00 · / 0	040.TO	10.48	1944.41	106.49	88.42	416.70 E	176.39
19951012				3U/./8 020 50 -	128.66	1048.23	115.92	245.68	539.18 E	337.23
	1 50,74 F		17.4/ 50	330.51 E	105.21	958.96 E	112.28 E	132.85 E	454.04 E	130.28
		TT'/00T	00.	312.22	102.59	985.89	116.54	00.	614.00 E	86.81
	27.00	1204.41	152.54	395.46	223.23	1059.79	174.59	441.00	686.93 E	305.19
	17.11	59-CTZT	83.77	396.08	201.18	1258.57	176.14	169.27	500.46 E	295.89
	C2.771	1841.63	303.68	753.18	396.37	1679.65	302.16	506.67	975.07 E	393.77 E
070T0A01	N/ . NC7	01.4755	417.91	1343.22	682.02	2512.01	581.49	726.07	1630.56 E	571.84 E
STOTESST OCCUPIESS	1.001 000000	3278.56	417.36	1260.08	668.88	2415.70	490.22	728.13	1893.75 E	576.05 E
19911080	149.77	3265.40	411.75	1314.11	677.80	2249.64	453.97	726.51 E	1073.95 E	573.94 E
12016721	110.69 21 15	2527.78	377.72	1004.36	660.60	1980.62	416.87	725.87 E	162.10 E	570.52 E
22014661	81.17	2002.36	257.93	729.06	449.66	1713.56	378.85	717.98 E	217.83 E	453.14 E

TABLE D-1. Controlled Inflows (cfs) to Lake Okeechobee from Tributaries to the North,(continued).

TABLE D-1. Controlled Inflows (cfs) to Lake Okeechobee from Tributaries to the North, (continued).

STATIONS	S-131	S-71	S-129	S-72	s-127	S - 84	S-154	s-133	S-191	S135
DBKEY	(FLOW) 15643	(FLOW) 15633	(FLOW) 15642	(FLOW) 15634	(FLOW) 15641	(FLOW) 15636	(FLOW) 15629	(FLOW) 15637	(FLOW) 15639	(FLOW) 15638
DATE										
19951023	132.54 E	1783. <b>1</b> 7 E	219.41	598.65 E	404.37	1467.99 E	340.67 E	288.66 E	136.44 E	230.90 E
19951024	132.71 E	1450.32 E	165.86 E	480.30	332.77	1035.63 E	306.33 E	188.62 E	583.05 E	116.03 E
19951025	111.47	1366.44	160.15	434.92	324.39	874.51	265.92	236.14 E	365.23	141.76 E
19951026	119.12	1098.41	106.01	415.35	314.86	913.68	244.84	40.64	364.22	146.26
19951027	109.86	1070.97	99.90	387.57	265.56	766.83	213.13	177.62	344.60	129.66
19951028	66.90	980.66	81.35	267.22	153.92	571.29	186.49	140.81	252.60	98.90
19951029	103.12	869.61	83.45	306.01	312.48	620.39	151.22	00.	319.65	00.
19951030	84.79	798.18	49.70	292.57	178.32	00.	154.76	238./4	202.07	117.88
19951031	75.07	849.19	64.20	286.24	194.68	221.56	124.96	00 .	85.18 E	00.
19951101	65.42	887.78	63.19	122.26	127.22	232.03	117.81	122.07	146.60 E	94.45
19951102	61.25 E	878.31 E	44.88 E	155.84 E	150.09 E	229.19 E	111.76 E	Э 00. Э	80.47	五 00・
19951103	38.05 E	844.93 E	43.50 E	207.18 E	154.91	180.76 E	102.19 E	181.96 E	162.73	101.39 E
19951104	17.63	805.35	00.	173.51	134.98	55.49	77.93	00.	79.54	00.
19951105	00.	641.19	68.86	163.96	123.96	214.11	86.15	00.	77.28	00.
19951106	<b>Э 00</b> .	541.92 E	Э 00. Э	172.48 E	111.38	249.44 E	71.18 E	.00 E	79.55	.00
19951107	41.50	393.30	60.61	86.28	112.39	192.79	54.83	00.	813,33	.00 E
19951108	30.34 E	404.74 E	.00 E	90.20 E	108.28	448.67 E	52.25 E	278.17 E	78.93	202.57 E
19951109	26.62 E	323.95 E	56.74 E	93.56 E	92.75	389.16 E	62.70 E	.00 E	74.07 E	117.35 E
19951110	00.	520.64	.00	92.78	00.	383.08	61.16	00.	79.28	
19951111	29.23	358.95	00.	92.79	163.37	263.45	38.72	00.	00.	00
19951112	00.	325.98	72.40	94.26	106.69	274.00	37.19	00.	73.14 E	00.
19951113	Э 00 -	321.41 E	3 OO.	93.32 E	79.98 E	220.38 E	30.09 E	171.09 E	68.49	
19951114	00-	289.78	00.	95.51	00.	223.50	00	00,	00.	00
19951115	39-38 E	213.85 E	56.76 E	95.74	131.22	167.12 E	55.47 E	.00 E	70.10	116.43 E
19951116	00 '	00.	.00 E	95.28	00-	158.71	00,	84.75 E	00.	00.
19951117	11.55	27.16	35.03 E	94.66	115.10	256.69	00.	173.41	71.94	52.95
19951118	00.	30.06	ы 200- 200-	93.92	00.	00.	49.80	00.	00.	. 00 E
19951119	00.	15.36	ы 00 <sup>-</sup>	93.54	103.36	340.18	1,42	00,	69.13	山 00
19951120	00.	154.34	Э 00 <sup>-</sup>	92.37 E	00.	4.56 E	3 00 °	а <u>0</u> 0.	00.	3 00 ·
19951121	00.	155.75	но - 100 -	69.85	91.32	179.75	00	205.86 E	64.42	3 00 E
19951122	28.16	152.97	45.98 E	19.76	49.04	3.05 E	00.	.00 E	00.	65.41 E
19951123	00 -	78.85	<b>Ξ 00</b> .	54.04	00,	199.68	00.	00.	00.	00.
19951124	00.	00.	н 00°.	58.40	00.	157.33	00.	00 -	13.31	- 00 E
19951125	00.	00.	<b>Ξ 00</b> .	105.67	98.00	174.89	. 0.0	00.	56.91	3 00 .
19951126	00.	00.	.00 E	98.37	00.	203.97	00.	00.	00,	00.
19951127	00.	93.21	а 00.	7.92	00.	23.16	00.	00.	66.11	3 UU
19951128	00.	240.59 E	3 00 ·	51.39	00.	209.84	00.	00.	00.	00.
19951129	00.	00.	59.08 E	20.53	110.02	15.66	00.	237.90	00,	62.74
19951130	00.	00.	.00 E	53.90	00.	230.76	00.	00.	59.80	00
19951201	00.	00.	00.	50.04	63.26	141.41	00	00.	00,	92.48 E
19951202	00.	46.07	00.	00.	00.	17.63	00.	00.	00,	E 00.
19951203	00.	153.95	00-	00.	.00	00.	00.	00,	00,	ы 1 00 -
19951204	-00 E	78.71 E	00,	Э 00. Э	.00	192.49 E	.00 E	.00 E	00.	ы 00.
19951205	00.	78.47	00.	00.	82.40	00.	00.	161.85	121.96	3 00 E

310

and a second 
TABLE D-1. Controlled Inflows (cfs) to Lake Okeechobee from Tributaries to the North, (continued).

								<i>.</i>		
SN	S-131	S-71	S-129	S-72	S-127	S-84	S-154	s-133	S-191	S135
	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOM)	(FL.OW)
	15643	15633	15642	15634	15641	15636	15629	15637	15639	15638
06	59.73	41.18	00,	00.	00.	00	00	00		Ċ
107	00.	00.	00.	00	00	169 74	<u>, 00</u>		3 00.	
808	29.61	00.	56.77	00	19 77		50	00. 00.	00.	118.20 E
603	00.	00.	00.	44.95			20.0			00.
210	00.	00.	00.	54.53	00	50 - 43 6 - 43	00	00,00	00.	00.0
211	E 00.	.00 E	00.	7.45 E	00	220-48 E	а 00	4 00.		
212	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	00		a 0.0		
213	00.	00.	00,	15.14	97.63	00	00.	00	00.	4 0 0
214	00.	00.	00.	55.83	00,	188.94 E	3 00 C	00 5		9 0 0 1
215	54.95	82.25	46.97	6.13	59.35	00.	00.	161.82	53. 53.	
216	00.	111.21	00.	00.	00.	141.56	00	00		
17	00.	107.67	00.	00.	00.	58.40	00.	00	00	
18	44.63	00,	00-	00.	00.	00.	00.		00.	
61.	00.	00.	00.	00.	95.30	183.45	00.			
50	00.	00.	00.	51.56	00.	00,	00	00	000	
77	00.	00-	00.	42.24	00.	162.64	00	00	27 AC	
22	00.	112.79	00.	00.	00.	. 00	00			
23	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	111.18	00.	00.		
24	54.53	00	00,	51.79	108.33	136.88	00,	00	00	) C
25	00.	00.	00.	57.87	00.	00,	00	00	00.	
26	00.	195.45	00.	38,19	00.	105 65 E	3 00 0		200	
27	00.	75.51	00.	00.	00.	80.60	a 00			2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
58	00.	00,	00.	00.	84.79	00	00	02 101	,	
29	32.76	9 .00 6.55	74.5 .00		00 8	00 E 00				
30	00.	00.	00 -	00.	00.	00.	00.	, 00	- - -	Ċ
31 91	00.	00.	00.	00.	00.	.00 E	00-	00.	00	000
								•	>>- -	> ·

311

.

(This page intentionally left blank.)

-

#### APPENDIX E

.
#### **APPENDIX E**

# **TABLE E-1.**Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Controlled Outflows (cfs) from Lake Okeechobee to the<br/>Caloosahatchee and St. Lucie Waterways, and Natural Uncontrolled Inflows (cfs)<br/>from Fisheating Creek to the Lake.

	S-77	S-77	S-308	S-308	S-308	FISHEATING C	REEK
	(HW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	
	00852	15635	00276	00278	15626	15627	
DATE							
19950501	11.18	.00	15.79	14.11	172.00	24.00	
19950502	10.94	58.00	15.84	14.04	345.00	21.00	
19950503	10.86	440.00	15.78	14.04	388,00	19.00	
19950504	11.03	348.00	15.76	14.23	409.00	18.00	
19950505	11.30	.00	15.81	14.56	56.00	23.00	
19950506	11.37	.00	15.80	14.43	.00	35.00	
19950507	11.24	.00	15.73	14.63	. 00	37.00	
19950508	11.28	.00	15.72	14.54	.00	32.00	
19950509	11.05	100.00	15.68	14.47	.00	29.00	
19950510	11.11	559.00	15.71	14.29	.00	30.00	
19950511	11.28	325.00	15.80	14.03	278.00	33.00	
19950512	11.11	. 00	15.80	14.29	317.00	- 31.00	
19950513	10.84	216.00	15,74	14.37	225.00	27.00	
19950514	10.77	478.00	15.71	14.33	171.00	22.00	
19950515	10.96	549.00	15,72	14.18	215.00	18.00	
19950516	11.03	529.00	15.68	14.09	294.00	15.00	
19950517	10.99	719.00	15.63	14.14	314.00	12.00	
19950518	10.96	807.00	15.65	14.10	320.00	9.60	
19950519	10.93	631.00	15.66	14.06	325.00	7.60	
19950520	11.00	789.00	15.65	14.22	215.00	6.20	
19950521	11,10	803.00	15.60	14.43	.00	5.70	
19950522	10.99	726.00	15.56	14.17	.00	4.80	
19950523	11.01	455.00	15,47	14.40	.00	4.80	
19950524	10.86	925.00	15.41	14.26	.00	5.20	
19930323	10.88	1130.00	15.44	14.30	.00	4.60	
10050520	10.96	101 00	15,43	14.45	.00	3.90	
15950527	11.05	522.00	15.40	14.20	.00	3.20	
19950520	11.00	127 00	15 39	14.00	.00	2.40	
19950530	11 02	419 00	15 36	13.05	95.00	1.70	
19950533	11.02	655 00	15 34	13.95	255 00	1.20	
19950601	11.01	615.00	15 26	14 03	341 00	. 52	
19950602	11 08	414 00	15 20	14.03	339.00	.,,	
19950603	11.01	413.00	15.20	14.50	214.00	1 40	
19950604	11.18	116.00	15.19	14.61	31.00	1,60	
19950605	11.22	.00	15.39	14.19	.00	6.50	
19950606	11.22	.00	15,45	14.13	.00	22.00	
19950607	10.94	722.00	15.40	14.25	.00	32.00	
19950608	11.17	1030.00	15.35	14.30	.00	30.00	
19950609	11.14	207.00	15.31	14.34	.00	25.00	
19950610	10.99	225.00	15.28	14.33	.00	21.00	
19950611	11.03	308.00	15.26	14.39	.00	17.00	
19950612	11,18	211.00	15.35	14.32	.00	14.00	
19950613	11.26	.00	15,42	14.31	.00	21.00	
19950614	11.25	.00	15.26	14.43	.00	45.00	
19950615	11.13	.00	15.13	14.46	.00	42.00	
19950616	11.09	.00	15.07	14.12	38.00	35.00	
19950617	11.14	.00	15.10	14.21	161.00	30.00	
19920018	11.15	.00	15.16	14.50	36.00	26.00	
19950619	11.27	.00	15.24	14.24	.00	32.00	
19950620	11.27	.00	15.22	14.30	.00	37.00	
19950621	11.14	.00	15.20	13.98	.00	38.00	
10050622	11.38	.00	15.30	14.10	.00	55.00	
19920023	11.09	.00	15.34	14.33	.00	115.00	
19990024	11.14	.00	15.30	14.32	.00	358.00	
10050625	11 10	.00	15.39	14.37	.00	846.00	
10050607	10 06	.00	15.46	14.52	.00	1950.00	
19950627	10.90 11 10	.00	15.50	14.03	.00	2030.00	
19950629	11 16	.00	15.48	14.24	.00	1020.00	
19950630	11 16	.00	15.50	14.04	.00	1120 00	
			~ ~	T.J. T.S.	.00	1120.00	

# **TABLE E-1.**Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Controlled Outflows (cfs) from Lake Okeechobee to the<br/>Caloosahatchee and St. Lucie Waterways, and Natural Uncontrolled Inflows (cfs)<br/>from Fisheating Creek to the Lake (continued).

	S-77	S-77	S-308	S-308	S-308	FISHEATING CRE	ΞK
	(HW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	
DA THE	00852	15635	00276	00278	15626	15627	
19950701	11 02	00	15 56	14 44	0.0	001 00	
19950702	10.97	00	15.59	14.44	.00	791 00	
19950703	11.08	.00	15.62	14.19	.00	687 00	
19950704	11,22	.00	15.61	14.24	. 00	511 00	
19950705	11.01	.00	15.58	14.04	91.00	556.00	
19950706	10.91	235.00	15.56	14.05	262.00	512.00	
19950707	10.95	326.00	15.56	14.18	402.00	462.00	
19950708	10.92	323.00	15.56	14.33	228.00	408.00	
19950709	11.00	320.00	15.59	14.22	28.00	359.00	
19950710	11.04	318.00	15.61	14.01	233.00	314.00	
19950711	11.09	117.00	15.63	14.06	215.00	290.00	
19950712	11.18	.00	15.63	14.34	78.00	398.00	
19950714	11.14 31.17	.00	15.59	14.56	.00	509.00	
19950715	10 91	.00	15.60	14.30	.00	434.00	
19950716	10.92	.00	15.61	13 98	.00	276 00	
19950717	10.90	.00	15.65	14.10	.00	227 00	
19950718	11.16	.00	15.80	14,30	. 30	212.00	
19950719	11.15	.00	15.77	14.25	.00	248.00	
19950720	11.22	. 00	15.76	14.11	.00	282.00	
19950721	11.00	.00	15.71	14.26	.00	300.00	
19950722	10.94	.00	15.69	14.39	.00	280,00	
19950723	11.06	.00	15.67	14.18	.00	279.00	
19950724	10.98	.00	15.67	14.12	.00	270.00	
19950725	11.05	.00	15.70	14.43	- 00	248.00	
19950727	11 30	.00	15.81	14.45	.00	254.00	
19950728	11.17	.00	15.83	14 36	.00	614 00	
19950729	11.18	.00	15.82	14.55	.00	600 00	
19950730	11.47	.00	15.90	14.18	.00	587.00	
19950731	11.05	1400.00	15.87	14.44	816.00	619.00	
19950801	10.96	2870.00	15.91	14.44	1240.00	678.00	
19950802	11.12	2560.00	16.19	14.49	702.00	782.00	
19950803	11.35	4190.00	16.06	14.83	300.00	894.00	
19950804	11.17	3410.00	16.17	14.82	.00	902.00	
19950805	11.06	2650.00	16.22	14.36	.00	870.00	
19950807	10.95	1950.00	10.20	14.22	.00	854.00	
19950808	11.05	690.00	16 34	14.09	237 00	870.00	
19950809	11.29	3510.00	16.38	14 39	1760 00	800.00	
19950810	11.45	4560,00	16.44	14.55	2400 00	764 00	
19950811	11.49	4620.00	16.45	14.60	2250.00	742.00	
19950812	11.40	4620.00	16.49	14.73	1590.00	639,00	
19950813	11.33	4640.00	16.50	14.36	2070.00	560.00	
19950814	11.29	4660.00	16.47	14.47	2530.00	499.00	
19950815	11.23	4660.00	16.48	14.56	2850.00	463.00	
19950816	11 22	4660.00	16.46	14.69	2740.00	448.00	
19950017	11.35	4640.00	16.48	14./1	2740.00	437.00	
19950819	11 32	4610.00	16.40	14.09	2730,00	415.00	
19950820	11.36	4620.00	16 38	14.00	2650.00	246 00	
19950821	11.44	4690.00	16.34	14.70	2640.00	319 00	
19950822	11.35	4700.00	16.33	14.66	2660.00	263.00	
19950823	11.51	4670.00	16.46	14,51	1850.00	259.00	
19950824	11.46	3610.00	16.63	16.04	.00	281,00	
19950825	11.18	729.00	16.70	15.00	.00	362.00	
19950826	11.32	1450.00	16.80	14.45	.00	488.00	
19950827	11.32	3620.00	16.89	14.23	370.00	742.00	
19950828	11.65	5600.00	16,96	14.56	1400.00	2720.00	
10020037	11.91	5860.00	17.01	14.79	2040.00	3150.00	
19950831	11 03	6330 00 0100.00	16 00	14.04	2190.00	2760.00	
19950901	11.88	4850 00	10.98 17 01	14.74 14 77	2430.00	2570.00	
19950902	11.79	4490.00	17 10	14.79	2500.00	2530.00	
19950903	11.69	4650.00	17.12	14.81	2610.00	2630.00	

#### **TABLE E-1.** Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Controlled Outflows (cfs) from LakeOkeechobee to the Caloosahatchee and St. Lucie Waterways, and Natural Uncontrolled Inflows (cfs) from Fisheating Creek to the Lake (continued).

	S-77	S-77	S-308	S-308	S-308	FISHEATING CREEK
	(HW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)
	00852	15635	00276	00278	15626	15627
DATE						
19950904	11.82	5310.00	17.17	14.74	2720.00	2490.00
19950905	11.90	5220.00	17.22	14.77	2800.00	2400.00
19950906	11.78	5260.00	17.33	14.84	2910.00	2110.00
19950907	11.81	5790.00	17.35	14.80	2870.00	1830,00
19950908	11.79	5570.00	17.38	14.90	2750.00	1600.00
19950909	11.87	6020.00	17,46	14.75	2660.00	1430.00
19950910	11.79	6300.00	17.46	14.84	2820.00	1370.00
19950911	11.82	6420.00	17.52	14,79	2540.00	1330.00
19950912	11.85	5230.00	17.55	14.77	2570.00	1290.00
19950913	11.83	6340.00	17.59	14.77	2040.00	1250.00
19950914	11.78	6320.00	17.61	14.70	2700.00	1170.00
19950915	11,72	6230.00	17,62	14.88	2840.00	. 1120.00
19950916	11.68	6290.00	17.64	14.85	2940.00	1040.00
19950917	11.67	6290.00	17.65	14.85	3010.00	931.00
19950918	11.64	6290.00	17.67	14.85	3020.00	834.00
19950919	11.59	6290.00	17.62	14.90	3140.00	760.00
19950920	11.49	6290.00	17.60	14.91	3170.00	697.00
19950921	11.50	6290.00	17.58	14.86	3340.00	655.00
19950922	11.56	6290.00	17,56	15.03	3420.00	623.00
19950923	11.72	6290.00	17.52	15.35	3400.00	588.00
19950924	11.73	6290.00	17.50	15.48	3250.00	545.00
19950925	11.69	6290.00	17.46	15.36	3270.00	502.00
19950926	11.67	6360.00	17.43	15.33	3310.00	463.00
19950927	11.62	6420.00	17,39	15.40	3230.00	420.00
19950928	11.36	5700.00	17.36	15.40	2810.00	383.00
19950929	11,41	4750.00	17.36	14.98	1600.00	352.00
19950930	11.56	4750.00	17.37	14.75	1940.00	315.00
19951001	11.32	4500.00	17.35	14.68	1960.00	289.00
19951002	11.52	4523.95	17.24	14.76	1890.00	288.00
19951003	11.72	4400.96	17.29	14.79	1510.00	355.00
19951004	11,29	3111.45	17.26	14.53	1620.00	378,00
19951005	11.00	.00	17,32	14.60	1900.00	473.00
19951006	11.40	3226.72	17.39	14.82	763.00	588.00
19951007	11.73	4461.27	17.39	14.47	1330.00	671.00
19951008	11.85	4531.54	17.41	14.47	1470.00	877.00
19951009	11.39	4632.79	17,47	14.54	1440.00	1560.00
19951010	11.40	4491.00	17.49	14.55	1360.00	2000.00
19951011	11.37	4519.47	17.52	14.54	1360.00	1940.00
19951012	11.34	4539.53	17.51	14.45	1630.00	1630.00
19951013	11.36	4543.03	17.49	14.51	1760.00	1420.00
19951014	11.56	4468.92	17,53	14.56	1820.00	1380.00
19951015	11.65	4033.64	17.71	14.85	1140.00	1520,00
19921019	11,44	3793.25	17.64	14.45	1210.00	1610.00
19951017	11.33	3248.80	17.80	15.46	448.00	1680.00
10051018	11.10	3422.51	18.20	15.97	.00	1940.00
19951019	11.40	4337.52	18.33	15.37	.00	2620.00
19951020	11.71	4246.77	18.52	14.77	114.00	3620.00
19951021	11.71	4698.78	18.56	14.71	652.00	3440.00
19951022	11.57	5351.99	18.55	14.86	1550.00	2820.00
19951023	11.68	6154.90	18.62 ?	15.01	1540.00	2300.00
19951024	11.65	6355.11	18,67 ?	15.12	2250.00	1920.00
19951025	11.79	6469.13	18.67 ?	15.37	3070.00	1640.00
19921026	11.70	6467.03	18.70 ?	15.53	3870.00	1420.00
19921055	11.54	6645.51	18.70 ?	16.09	4880.00	1250.00
19951028	11.55	6703.66	18.70 ?	17.10	7330.00	1100.00
19951029	11.46	7044.74	18.56	17.35	6720.00	960.00
19951030	11.49	7023.72	18.49	17.90	7410.00	834.00
19951031	11.54	6968.71	18.47	17.97	7000.00	733.00
19921101	11,53	6953.38	18.48	17.99	6900.00	648.00
19951102	11.50	6910.83	18.43	17.94	6900.00	574.00
19921103	11.45	6564.13	18.42	17.68	7080.00	510.00
19951104	11.44	6225.81	18.35	16.47	5160.00	454.00
19921102	L1.46	6230.37	18.29	15.71	3250.00	405.00

# **TABLE E-1.** Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Controlled Outflows (cfs) from<br/>LakeOkeechobee to the Caloosahatchee and St. Lucie Waterways, and<br/>Natural Uncontrolled Inflows (cfs) from Fisheating Creek to the Lake<br/>(continued).

	S-77	S-77	S-308	S-308	S-308	FISHEATING CREEK
	(HW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)
	00852	15635	00276	00278	15626	15627
DATE				-		10027
19951106	11.45	6191.56	18.29	15 45	3190 00	365 00
19951107	11.37	6180.33	18.29	15 47	3350.00	334 00
19951108	11,42	6117.12	18 28	15 64	3230.00	219 00
19951109	11.33	6242.18	18 13	15.60	3000.00	310.00
19951110	11 64	6139 50	10.10	15.00	3090.00	298.00
19951111	11.48	6194 73	10.12	10.44	3180.00	264.00
19951112	11 56	6112 15	10.12	15.40	3250.00	234.00
19951113	11 57	6000 02	10.00	15.47	3190.00	202.00
19951114	11 47	6114 00	17.98	15.43	3260.00	174.00
19951114	11.42	6114.98	18.07	15.56	3380.00	152.00
19051116	11.31	6124.37	17.90	15.50	3300.00	135.00
10051110	11.41	5080.10	17.77	15.49	3300.00	120.00
19951117	11.22	5585.70	17.71	15.46	2960.00	107.00
19951118	11.36	4580.50	17.70	14.88	2490.00	95.00
19951119	11.25	4614,69	17.64	15.03	2610.00	87.00
19951120	11.23	4603.20	17.60	14.93	2580.00	78.00
19951121	11,30	4467.14	17.57	15.07	2710.00	71,00
19951122	11.31	4394.13	17.48	15.14	2630.00	64.00
19951123	11.18	4428.67	17.45	15.14	2580.00	58.00
19951124	11,23	4383.02	17.43	15.00	2500.00	53.00
19951125	11.20	4376.40	17.36	14.85	2560.00	48.00
19951126	11.16	4378.19	17.30	14.87	2570.00	44.00
19951127	11.19	4395.40	17.26	14.84	2790.00	41.00
19951128	11.27	4412.60	17,22	15,20	2870.00	39 00
19951129	11.43	4314.33	17.20	15.07	2790.00	36 00
19951130	11.12	2680.33	17.16	14.89	2220 00	35,00
19951201	11.45	4356.57	17.13	14.71	2380 00	32.00
9951202	11.61	5709.88	17.07	14 56	2360.00	30.00
19951203	11.40	5401.10	17.02	14 52	1790 00	30.00
19951204	11.22	4439.15	16 98	14 26	1210 00	29.00
19951205	11.29	3399.17	16.94	14.20	1210.00	28.00
19951206	11.18	2442 82	16 92	14 32	729.00	26.00
19951207	11.00	1477 45	16.92	14.55	708.00	25.00
19951208	10 99	1127 28	16 90	14.03	727.00	23.00
19951209	11 14	1109 28	16 29	14.07	528.00	22.00
19951210	11 16	1473 32	16 90	14.09	574.00	21,00
19951211	11 33	3403 35	16.00	14.38	1140.00	20.00
19951212	11.35	J=JJ.JJ A660 A0	16.72	14.4/	2080.00	19.00
19951212	11 34	4009.49	10.71	14.54	2150.00	17.00
19951213	11,34	4100,00	16.72	14.49	1580.00	16.00
10051015	11 13	3312,40	16.70	14.31	1140.00	16.00
19951215	10 00	2497.14	16.67	14.33	856.00	15.00
10051017	10.99	1767.30	16.66	14.30	669.00	15.00
10051010	11.30	1013.87	16.62	14.48	363.00	14.00
19951218	11.25	510.30	16.62	14.17	6830.00	13.00
19951219	11.23	398.98	16.68	14.06	3520.00	12.00
19951220	11.11	905.67	16,78	14.08	972.00	12.00
19951221	11.24	2388,93	16.58	14.30	1940.00	12.00
19951222	11.27	3256.63	16.50	14.52	1790.00	11.00
19951223	11.26	2687.72	16.49	14.45	1090.00	11.00
19951224	11.30	2146.40	16.55	14.36	625.00	11 00
19951225	11.14	1742.19	16.48	14.08	532.00	11 00
19951226	11.15	1362.71	16,45	14.09	751 00	10 00
19951227	11,22	930,11	16.39	14 29	683 00	10.00
19951228	11.23	573.86	16.35	14 27	240.00	0.70
19951229	11.20	497.11	16.31	14 22	124 00	9.70
19951230	11.14	917.78	16.31	14 49	424.00 981 AA	9.50
19951231	11.14	2354 23	16.31	14 40	1350 00	9.40
			10.01	14.40	1330.00	9.70

(This page intentionally left blank.)

.

e que per her

### APPENDIX F

-

**APPENDIX F** 

TABLE F-1. Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from lake Okeechobee to the Everglades Agricultural Subbasin (EAA).

	s-2	S-2	8-2 8	s.'3	с-S	с. С	5-252	1006V) 0.3ED	6 0 0 0
	(MH)	(ML)	(FLOW)	( HM )	( M.L.)	(FLOW)	(HM)	ALCON (MC)	(ELOW)
	00432	00345	00426	00532	00537	00539	00311	31500	
DATE	•••								
10202621	10.89	10.92	00-	15.69	11.23	50.00	15.73	9,92	238.00
20202647	10.85	10.90	00.	15.66	11.00	50,00	15.73	11.08	378.00
19950503 2000503	10.24	10.28	00.	15.71	9.97	50.00	15.72	11.39	364 00
19950504	9.98	10.02	00.	15.68	9.73	50.00	15.68	11.17	266 00
19950505	10.59	10.62	00.	15.71	10.73	50.00	15.74	10.38	00
19950506	10.51	10.54	00-	15.75	11.38	50.00	15.74	10.40	00 010
19950507	10.09	10.13	00.	15.74	10.75	50.00	15.67	10.95	00 082
19950508	10.04	10.08	00.	15.69	L0.33	50.00	15.65	11 02	200.000
19950509	10.18	10.20	387.00	15.52	10.53	50.00		10.94	
19950510	10.32	10.32	518.00	15.51	10.46	201.00	15.50	# + - 	
19950511	10.66	10.67	456.00	15.57	10.76	00 010	10.00	77.77	00.075
19950512	10.74	10.77	534.00	15.61	10.85	00.610	10.00	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	00.276
19950513	11.25	11.28	757.00	15.60	11.33	265 00	12 YY	C 7 . T T	00.016
19950514	11.32	11.36	712.00	15.60	11 36	341 00	) v v v v	50.11 Vr 11	00. 100
19950515	11.11	11.13	679.00	15.58	91.11	00.454	7 V 7 V 7 V	0 T T T T	00.076
19950516	10.83	10.86	1020.00	15 62	70 I I			12.11	00.000
19950517	11.02	11.05	1100 00	10.01	10.01			20.11	375.00
19950518	11.05	11 07	00 000	10.04 12.04				10,88	378.00
19950579					50-TT	4/3,00	20.01	11.26	684.00
19950520	  		1380.UU	25.CT	11.15	535.00	15.54	12.17	962.00
1000001		0/.17	148U.UU	15.34	11.30	521.00	15.59	12,23	962.00
	1/-11	11.74	582.00	15.51	11.46	195.00	15.64	11.79	348.00
77000777	10.94	10.97	00.	15.52	10.87	50.00	15.62	10.73	160.00
19950523	10.85	10.89	219.00	15.54	10.46	226.00	15.54	11.46	354.00
19950524	11.11	11.14	299.00	15.45	10.62	331.00	15.47	11.43	208.00
19950525	11.17	11.19	265.00	15.40	11.23	197.00	15.49	10,88	00.
19950526	11.12	11.14	544.00	15.37	11.12	50.00	15.47	11.16	214.00
19950527	10.98	11.01	647.00	15.31	10.68	50.00	15.43	11.63	342,00
19950528	10.92	10.95	583.00	15.32	10.47	190.00	15.42	11 50	346.00
19950529	10.81	10.84	548.00	15.29	10.80	519.00	15.39	11.36	352.00
19950530	10.94	10.96	1070.00	15.24	10.90	\$19.00	15.38	11.25	356.00
19950531	11.20	11.22	1350.00	15.18	10.77	313.00	15.33	11.33	554.00
TUDUCANT	11.14	11.15	1300.00	15.15	10.57	424.00	15.26	11.46	682.00
109004A1	10.96	10.98	809.00	15.10	10.55	304.00	15.16	11.06	412.00
19950603	10.10	10.13	00 -	15.07	10.18	. 66,00	15.16	10.11	00,
19950604	9.62	9.66	00.	15.04	9.98	· 50.00	15.16	9.87	00
19950605	9,65	9.68	00.	14.95	10.39	40.00	15.28	10.08	00.
19950606	10.04	10.07	00.	15.18	11.05	-1.40	15.43	10.16	00.
10905651	10.52	10.55	00.	15.26	10.69	50.00	15.44	10.48	00,
19950608	10.83	10.86	00.	15.26	10.33	50.00	15.40	10.37	00
19950609	10.35	10.38	00.	15.22	10.27	50.00	15.35	9.75	
19950610	9.80	9.83	00.	15.20	9.64	50.00	15, 33	5	
19950611	9.46	9.49	00.	15.15	9.60	50.00	15.30	5	
19950612	10.65	10.68	00.	15.06	10 11	. 10 05.	יייי מניתו	0 1 V	> C > C -
19950613	11.10	11.12	00	15 10	10.70		ים יים יים דר	1  	50
	, t , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		> .	~~ . ~ .	4	>>-1	CC.CT	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	

S- (TW) 0034	2 S-2 (FLOW) 5 00426	S-3 (HW) 00532	К-3 (ТW) 00537 20 АА	S-3 (FLOW) 00539	S-352 (HG (HW) 00311	\$\$5X) \$-352 (TW) 00315	s-352 (FLOW) 00313
10.43 .00 15.21 10.43 .00 15.17 9.96 00 15.22	15.21 15.17 15.27		10.44 9.78 48	24.00 9.70 9.70	15.32 15.20	9.91 10.04	
9.63 .00 15.23	15.23		9.40	15.00	15.18	9.15	00.
10.85 .00 15.12 15.12	15.12 15.12		9.50 10.53	-21.00	15.23	8.87 9.1	00.
11.39 -324.00 15.07	15.07		11.50	15.00	15.23	10.10	0.0
	14.94		10.99	33.00	15.16	10.92	00
11 74 00 15 03	15.U3		11.43	55.00	15.26	11.08	00.
10.75 .00 15.23	15.23		11.17	16.00	10.10 10.20	10 96	
10.45 .00 15.31	15.31		10.28	35.00	15.42	11.49	
10.68 .00 15.37	15.37		10.14	-17.00	15.50	11.53	00.
10.28 .00 15.40	15.40		11.03	50.00	15.54	10.37	00.
10.52 .00 15.46	15.46		10.28	50.00	15.55	10.23	00.
10 00 CO 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Н Г. 4 Б 2 г.		9.76	50.00	15.56	10.26	00.
27.07 00 00 01 27.07	Πυ. 40			50.00	15.59	99.9	00.
	10.49		71.US	00.02	15.61	10.39	00.
	15.48		11 45		40.CI	12.01	00.
10.94 .00 $15.54$	15.54		11.14	50.00	20.01 29.01	17.01	00.
10.83 ,00 15.52	15.52		11.51	50.00	15.62	10.01	
10.36 .00 15.56	15.56		10.04	50.00	15.62	9.70 07.6	123.00
10.07 ,00 15.53	15.53		10.20	50,00	15.61	10.40	335.00
10.21 .00 15.47	15.47		10.02	50.00	15.60	10.65	390.00
	15.40		10.07	50.00	15,60	10.29	404.00
	15.38 15.38		10.14	50.00	15.58	10.36	250.00
	0 T		6T.UT		10-04 10-04	9.79	00.
	15.50		20.01 50.15		17.60 15.63	ע. עי. רב יי	00.
11.05 .00 15.54	15.54		11.26	50.00	15.65	11.28	200
10.08 .00 15.56	15.56		9.41	50.00	15.66	9.94	00 '
11.04 .00 15.55	15.55		10.47	50.00	15.66	9.72	.00
	15.54		11.14	50.00	15.69	10.05	00,
12 CC . CC 15.39	95.01 97		11.81	50.00	15.73	11.11	00 '
11.0000 15.43	15.43		11.48	50.00	15.73	10.28	00 -
	12.21		11.09	50.00	15.76	10.02	00 '
	τυ. 1		T0.50	50.00	15.75	9.63	00 '
10.57 .00 15.59	15.59		10.27	50.00	15.73	9.89	00.
10.52 .00 15.57	15.57		11.23	50.00	15.70	10.27	00.
10.59 .00 15.59	15.59		10.95	50.00	15.71	10.04	00
10.33 ,00 15.61	15.61		11.49	-67.00	15.75	6.8.9	00
11.35 .00 15.64	15.64		11.33	50.00	15.79	10.00	
11.82 ,00 15.67	15.67		11.99	50.00	15.80	11 43	200
11.98 .00 15.77	15.77		11.68	50.00	15.77	10.82	
11.09 .00 15.83	15.83		11.18	50.00	15.80	9.79	00.
10.56 .00 15.95	15.95		10.46	50.00	15.89	10.66	00.
						· · · ·	;

TABLE F-1. Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from lake Okeechobee to the Everglades Agricultural Subbasin (EAA) (continued).

TABLE F-1	. Mean Dail	y Outflows	(cfs) from lake	Okeechobee	to the Ever <sub>{</sub>	glades Agricul	ltural Subbasi	m (EAA) (con	ıtinued).
	S-2	S-2	S-2	8-3	S-3	<b>S</b> -3	S-352 (HG:	S5X) S-352	S-352
	(HW) 00432	(TW) 00345	(FLOW) 00426	(HW) 00532	(TW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW) 00315	(FLOW)
DATE				; ; ; ;					0T500
19950731	10.68	10.66	00	16.04	10.75	50.00	15.90	10.84	00.
19905901 10000001	11.08	11.05	00.	16.30	11.21	50.00	16.02	10.17	00.
200002661		10.10		79.CT	10.09	50.00	16.01	9.89	00.
19950804	10.40	10.39	00.	16.09	07.70 07.70		16.01	10.81	00.
19950805	10.11	60.01	00.	16.15	6 8 5 6		16 19 16 19	27.01 87 Ot	00,
19950806	10.25	10.23	00.	16.20	11.11	50.00	16.23		
19950807	10.50	10.50	00.	16.23	11.28	50.00	16.27	10.54	00.
19950808	10.13	10.12	00.	16.25	10.64	-34.00	16.31	10.75	00-
19950809	9.89	9.88	00.	16.32	10.35	50.00	16.37	10.44	00.
19950810	10.73	10.71	00.	16.33	10.61	50.00	16.42	10.43	00.
TIBUCKYI	67.11	11.28	00.	16.33	11.05	50.00	16.42	10.80	00.
10050012	71.41 71.41		00.	16.40	10.07	50.00	16.47	9,80	00.
19950814	00-01 66-01	20.01 CF 01	0.00	10.45	0 1 7 0 0	50.00	16.49	10.01	00.
19950815	10.26	35.01		10°41	~~~~		10.47	01.01	00-
19950816	10.53	10 52	200	14-91	10 N N N		57 - 01 - 01		00.
19950817	10.09	10 05		16.36			07-01		
19950818	9.87		00	16.37	20.6 07 0		16.44	10.01	484.00
19950819	10.14	10.15	00.	16.39	010		16 40	11,00	756 00
19950820	10.42	10.42	00	16.34	9.75	50.00	16.36	11.74	752 00
19950821	10.42	10.43	00.	16.33	9.91	50.00	16.31	54 11	744 00
19950822	10.14	10.14	00.	16.34	06.6	50.00	16.32	11.26	506.00
19950823	10.39	10.38	.00	16.26	9.72	50.00	16.41	9.83	00.
19950824	11.62	11.69	-2090.00	15.92	11.20	-769.00	16.36	11.45	00.
19950825	10.74	10.86	-3540.00	16.41	11.06	-1680.00	16.59	13.16	00.
19950826	10.33	10.42	-2880.00	16.60	10.80	-1470.00	16.73	12.61	00.
128052441	10.71	10.73	-1340.00	16.73	11.07	-610.00	16.84	11.34	00.
8780CAAT	11.78	11.77	00.	16.80	11.93	50.00	16.92	10.06	00.
10050000	27 - 15 20 - 05	81.11 50.01	00.	16.87	11.15	50.00	16.99	9.38	00.
1005001		10.84	00.	16.85	10.77	50.00	16.96	9.19	00.
10000001	TO.40	M 70.42	0.0	15.85 16 05		50.00	16.96	9.22	00.
19950902	:Σ	2 2	000	00'01'			00.71	א כ ייע ייע	0.0
19950903	;Σ	Ξ	00.	17.08	57.11 76 []	50.00	17 16	10 01	00.
19950904	Ξ	Ψ	00.	Σ	11.29	50.00	17 20	10.62	
19950905	Ø	W	00.	Ψ	10.84	50.00	17.28	10.10	00
19950906	Σ	Ψ	00.	W	10.75	50.00	17.33	10.34	00.
19950907	Σ	W	00.	W	10.27	50.00	17.38	10.27	00.
19950908	W	M	00.	W	10.16	50.00	17.40	10.09	00-
19950909	Σ	Σ	00.	W	9.81	50.00	17.44	9.02	00 '
U1200001	Ξ;	¥ :	00.	W	9.67	50.00	17.45	10.15	00.
11806881 C1001001	Σ;	Σ;	00.	X :	10.75	50.00	17.52	11.11	00.
19950913	Ξ×	2 2		22		-350.00	17.54	99.60 7	00.
19950914	: ≍	: >	200	3 2	0,			אר זיר אכ	
19950915	1 M	: 2	000	3 Σ	10.05	50,00	17.58	у./1 10.42	00

, 77 A V 12 . 10.14 E . . -μ 4 2 -Ę, TABLE F-1. Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from lake Ok

	(conti	inued).								
	S-2 (HW) 00432	S-2 (TW) 00345	S~2 (FLOW) 00426	S-3 (HW) 00532	S-3 (TW_) 0537	S-3 (FLOW) 00539	S · 352 (F (HW) 00311	HGS5X) S-352 (TW) 00315	S-352 (FLOW)	
DATE 19950916 19950917	ΨΨ	ΣΣ	00.	W Gu V	50.01	50.00	17.60		00 °	
19950918	: ¥ ¥	. 2 2	000		10.98	50.00	17.65	10.10	00,00	
W	W	00.	17.56	10.75 10.75	10.86	- / 5 . 00	17.60 10.85	174 DD	00 -	19950920
19950921 19950921	××	X	00.	17.50	10.61	50.00	17.53	11.21	440.00	
19950923	ŝΣ	εΣ		17.46	10.48	50,00 60,00	17.49	11.33	686.00	
19950924	W	: ¥		17.41	10.42	50.00	27.44 17.44	11.72	838.00 exe oo	
19950925	W	M	00.	17.40	10.46	50.00	17.40	11.72	834.00	
19950926 19950927	Σ×	M N	00.	17.31	96-6	50.00	17.34	12.02	808.00	
19950928	e N	ΣΣ	0.00	17.30	50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 5	50.00	17.32	12.24	790.00	
19950929	E	: 2	00.	17.33	10 16		אסייד וא דו	12.40	774.00	
19950930	Σ	¥	.00	17.33	10.32	50.00	17.32	01 01		
19951001	Σ	M	00.	17.31	10.29	22.00	17.30	12.27	784 00	
19951002 10051002	23	M :	00-	17.29	10.17	4.10	17.21	12.29	776,00	
19951004	ΞΣ	× ×	00.	17.13	10.88	4.90	17.19	12.03	794.00	
19951005	EΣ	ΞW	00.	17 04	10.99	4.00	17.07	11.91	796.00	
19951006	Σ	W	-961.00	FO 21	11.00	00 22	/T./T	79.11	798,00	
19951007	Ж	X	-274.00	17.35	0.29	7.60	55.7T	11.45 10.58	252.00	
19951008	Σ	Ψ	00.	17.40	9.80	50.00	17.36	12.30	786 00	
19951009	Σ	X	00.	17.35	10.49	21.00	17.37	12.16	798.00	
01014841	Σ;	Σ;	00.	17.42	10.00	26.00	17.41	12.22	796.00	
11010461	X X	Σ	00.	17.44	9.91	21.00	17.43	12.22	798.00	
19951013	5 ≥	Ξ¥	λ C # C	1.46	9.0 200	31.00	17.44	12.20	802.00	
19951014	E≥	ΞŴ	00.	747.7T	28-57 29-57	5.30	17.41	12.18	800.00	
19951015	Ξ	W	00	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	10 80	28.00	17.63	11.62	456.00	
19951016	W	W	-769.00	17.95	12.10	-349.00	17.69	11 40	00,	
19951017	Ψ	W	-2410.00	17.93	11.09	-1420.00	17.81	12.65		
19951018	Σ	Σ	-3200.00	18.11	10.95	-1310.00	18,14	13.87	00.	
21010721 00010001	Σ 2	×	-2490.00	18.28	12.14	-740.00	18.28	13.70	00	
19951001	e x	ΞX	-2380.00	18.44	11.23	- 851.00	18.47	13.54	00.	
19951022	Σ	ΞX	00-116-	10.01 10.01	11.00 17.01	-205.00	18.55	12.90	00.	
19951023	Σ	ΞΣ	00	10. 12. 12. 12.	10.01 0	54.UU 50	20. 20. 20.	11.71	00.	
19951024	Χ	Σ	00.	18.70	10.09	76.00	10.08 18 67 0	84.UI 90 0	00.	
19951025	X	W	00.	18.70	10.37	29.00	ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν ν	~ ~ ~ ~	00,	
19951026	Σ	Ŵ	00.	18.69	10.45	64.00	18.66.2		00.	
19951027	Σ	M	00.	18.59	10.33	-63.00	18.65 ?	60.6	00	
8201CV28	Ξ;	Σ	00-	18.61	10.35	-15.00	18.65 ?	8.95	00.	
19951030	εΣ	ΣΣ	× 00 ·	18.87 19 56	10.39	36.00	18.65 ?	60.6	00.	
	I	:	5	5		00.90	70.47	а. <del>8</del> 6	00.	
						•				

**TABLE F-1.** Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from lake Okeechobee to the Everglades Agricultural Subbasin (EAA)

**TABLE F-1.** Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from lake Okeechobee to the Everglades Agricultural Subbasin (EAA) (continued).

- 2 W) 432	S-2 (TW) 00345	S-2 (Flow) 00426	S-3 (HW) 00532	S-3 (TW ) 00537	S-3 (FLOW) 00539	S-352 (HC (HW) 00311	3S5X) S-352 (TW) 00315	S-352 (FLOW) 00313
	Σ	W	18,46	10.17	24.00	18.45	9.18	00.
	Σ	W	18.42	10.09	-72.00	18.45	10.51	00.
	Σ;	Σ	18.38	10.01	-56,00	18.40	10.25	00.
	23	м С	18.33	10.72	-73.00	18.38	9.76	00.
	Ξ×	0.0	18.40 10.20	LU. 04	43.00	18.36	9,83	00.
	2 2			- t - C - F	1/.00	18.24	10.83	.00
	5 ≥	00.	1 - C - C - T - C - T - C - C - C - C - C			79.24 10 01	90°T1	00.
	z >		10.1	50.0T	00.90-	12.81	01.11	00.000
	z		105			10.24	11.02	00.882
	Ξ	00	0 01 - 01 - 01 - 1		00.51	10.65	טרי. אייייע	438.00
	Σ	00		57.0T	00 131		CT-71	460.00
	Σ	00	18.24	10 63	20.41	F0.01	11.07	400.00
	Σ	573.00	18.06	10.63	24 00	17.92	11 23	100. 100. 100.
	Σ	847.00	18.07	10.54	- 17 - 17	00 at	11 51	00.000
	Σ	1130.00	18.01	10.66	00 262	19 01	11	513 00
	×	1250.00	17.85	11.38	343.00	17 75	11 71	602 00
	۲	1070.00	17.80	11.51	193.00	17.67	12.09	578.00
	Ы	831.00	17.68	11.52	194.00	17,62	12.30	566.00
	М	820.00	17.68	11.49	192.00	17.58	12.20	568.00
	×	801.00	17.59	11.50	192.00	17.53	11.84	584.00
	¥	785.00	17.54	11.50	186.00	17.50	11.94	738.00
	Σ	652.00	17.62	11.63	183.00	17.50	12.07	660.00
	Ξ;	434.00	17.54	11.61	187.00	17.39	11.49	424.00
	٤ ۵	1000 00		11.67	190.00	17.35	12.01	674.00
	5 3	00.0001	07'/'	/ Q - T T	101.181	77 - 72 70 - 27	12.13	800.00
	z≥	00.076	14.71	11 60	140.00	97.71	22.21	786.00
	≤ ≥	00.100	77-71	11 55	163 00		FT - 2 T	185.00
	Ξ	925.00	17 06	99.11 1.1.1	180.00	21.71	77.11 70 11	00.267
	Ξ	910.00	17.12	11.59	178.00	17 09	55 - L L	00 762
	Σ	1100.00	17.04	11.47	260.00	17.03	11.87	796.00
	Σ	1170.00	16.99	11.81	383.00	16.98	11,91	/88,00
	Σ	1140.00	16.94	11.89	366.00	16.92	11.87	786.00
	×	1130.00	16.92	11.92	281.00	16.89	12,04	770.00
	×	771.00	16.89	11.92	176.00	16.85	12.05	766.00
	Σ	604.00	16.84	11.65	173.00	16.82	12,12	758.00
	Σ	966.00	16.81	11.65	183.00	16.81	12.10	760.00
	Σ	1030.00	16.83	11.51	185.00	16.79	11,80	782.00
	¥	1220.00	16.76	11.37	153.00	16.78	11.84	778.00
	M	1210.00	17.11	11.44	159.00	16.83	11.74	790.00
	E	1200.00	17.07	11.55	162.00	16.75	11.81	778.00
	E	1160.00	16.80	11.46	172.00	16.64	11.96	758.00
	Σ	1150.00	16.69	11.57	195.00	16.62	12.11	744.00
	M	1290.00	16.63	11.80	80.00	16.59	11.95	754.00

324

eechoł

1940 - A. I.

**TABLE F-1.** Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from lake Okecchobee to the Everglades Agricultural Subbasin (EAA) (continued).

.

<b>S-</b> 352	(FLOW)	C1000	C T C D D		768.00	757 00		00.05/	744.00	500 00		00.400	618,00	598 NO		00.000	584.00	584.00			00.007	724.00	700 00	100	730.00	274 00
55X) S-352	( TW )	0.0315		4 0 -	2/.11	11 93	10.1	70-11	11.96	11 92		00.11	11.69	11.89		17 T	12.18	12.11	11 64	1	TC.11	11.97	11 80		77.84	11.62
S-352 (HC	(HM)	11100			00.01	16.55	15.5	4	16.49	16.52	16 73	4	16.55	16.45	16 54	4 . L . L . L	16.74	16.45	16 38	20 21	5 V · O T	16.26	16 23		10.14	16.19
s-3	(FLOW)	00539			4 / . 00	48.00	35 00		-6.20	-13.00	00 81	) ( ) )	09.7	-33.00	-20 00		00.05-	-44.00	-44.00	19	00.10	-48.00	-34.00		00. COI+	-75.00
8÷3	( TM )	00537		11 21	70.77	11.27	11.21		60.TT	11.17	11 15		17.71	11.43	11.58		CO.11	11.37	11.15	11 06		11.12	11.08	11 20	C L . Y T	11.72
8-3	(MH)	00532		16 EN	22.24	16.57	16.54		10.4/	16.38	16.62		70.07	16.56	16.77	16 64	# 0.1	16.53	16.39	16 20	) ( ) ( ) (	10.31	16.31	16 10		16.13
S-2	(FLOW)	00426		1470 00		1450.00	1430.00	00 0171	00-0151	1100.00	1190.00	1600 00		1470.00	1500.00			222.00	918.00	1190.00		1100.UU	1230.00	1270 00		490.00
S-2	( J.M. )	00345		×	:	Я	×	2	1.7	¥	Ξ	Σ	d :	Μ	W	M	::	Ξ	Ψ	×	: 2	E.	æ	×	;;	£
s-2	(MH)	00432		Σ		Σ	W	Σ	2 :	Σ	Я	Σ	5;	E.	W	Μ	: :	E.	¥	Σ	7	5	Σ	М	: 3	ε
			DATE	9951215		97779AA	9951217	9951218		ATZICAA	9951220	9951221		7777022	9951223	9951224	1000	2211220 2221022	97779A	9951227	9951338		67710AA	9951230	1001300	1097066

•

(This page intentionally left blank.)

-

### APPENDIX G

-

APPENDIX G

**TABLE G-1.** Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from the EAA through various canals to Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (WCA's)

S5A+S5AW (FLOW)	15031		200	00,	00.	8	6	00	00	00	00.	00	88	39	ġe	00	00	00	00	66 00 E	- 102 00	00.901-	-112 00	-64,00	-65 00	- 65,00	-69.00	00.79		00	00	00	000	0,0	88	00	8	00	8.0	00	3 00.	00.	8.	8.	30	00	941.00	00 -	00,	1310,UU 863.00
S5A+S5AW (TW)	06677 16 40	15 43 15 43	15.55	15.53	15.55	15 51 15 55	10.01 10.01	15 50	15.47	15.44	15 40	20.34 20.34	15.31	3 / 7 / 7 / 1	15.22	15 19	15 14	L5 22	15 28	15.29	4% c.1	15 20	15 27	15 27	15.26 E	15.23	15 20	3 11 21	15 08 5	15 10	15 16	15 27	- 15 - 15 - 15	4 4 4 4 7 7 7 4 7 7 7 4	15 39 E	15 37	15,35	57.04	101	15.50 8	15.46	15 46	15 39	15.42 E	2010	15 78	96 ST	15 94	15 99 1	16 15 16 15
S5A+S5AW (HM)	06676 8 60 7	10 00 0 10 00 0	10.93 8	10.88 E	10.38 E	10.01 E	10.24 E	10.14 E	10.61 E	10.82 E	10.85 E	10 96 E	10.93 E	10.63 1	10 37 E	J0 19 E	10 50 E	10.87 E	11.39 E	10.70 E		3 70 11	10.97 E	11.31 2	11 24 E	11 21 E	10.94 E	10.07 E	10 55 E	10 11 E	9.93 E	3 91 01	10,29 E	10 4 7 6	3 18 6	9.50 8	60 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	ы с 10 го 10 го 10 го 10 го			973E	9 27 E	8.99 E	9 29 E	10 45 E	11 17 E	10 90 E	11 07 E	11 44 E	10 05 E
S H (FLOW)	1504U	751 00	417 00	3 00 E	533 00	760 00 Eoc 00		3 00	00 E	00 E	99 00	136 00	147 00 5	3 GO	а 00 Е	00 E	00 E	00 2.6	216 00	65 00	43 00 4	144 00 5	81 00	3 00	3 00	3 00	300		124 00	00 E	00 E	н 00 н	126 00	522 00	00.165	249 00	- 3 00	3 00 F		446.00	151 00	.00 E	а 00 Е	128.00	1000.00 2260.00	2410 00	2710 00	2370.00	1720.00	788.00
8 S 8 日 ( 110 )	0009X	12 02	11.68 E	11.07	11 84	11 00 E	11 07	11.03	10 95	10 91	10.87	11 19	11.41 5	10 75 1	10 69	10 66	10 62	10 69	11 30	10 85			10.88	10 64	10 50 E	10.45	24 01	3 4 7 7 7 1 2 4 7 7 7 1 2 4 7 7 7 1	10.71	10 56	10 45	10 51	10 92 11 80	11.82 E	11 89 E	11.48	11.02		11 93	11.73 E	11 33	11 04	10 99		47 CT	13.79	13 98	13 80	13.4	12 34
S-8 (HW)	10 95	10.40 E	9 72 E	9.67	10.41	10.85 E	10.24	10.43	10.32	10.64	10.73	11.22	1 7 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 2	10.97	10.82	10.86	10.94	11.11	11,36	10 85		11.16	11.06	10 62	10 40 E	10.69		10.41	10.38	10.12	15 6	10 24	10.93 10.28	10 18 E	10.04 E	9.55 E	9 56 B	FO.04	10 17	9.63 E	9.45 E	9.39 E	9.47 8	10.53	14.14 15.14 15.15	9 - 4 - F	9.42	9,11	9,15 0,25	7.07 10.53
S-7 (FLQW)	12001 172 DD	494,00	271.00	3 00 E	371.00 554 00	50.400		3 00	.00 E	36.00	а 00. Э	а о 00	a 4 20	а 00 Е	3 00 E	. 00 E	9 00 E	а 00.	н I 80	ын 25	4 4 2 5 2	2 00 E	а 00	, 00 E	3 00 <sup>.</sup>	4 00 0	a 6 0.0	2 00 2 12 2 12 2 12 2 12 2 12 2 12 2 12	ы 00	.00 E	а <u>00</u> .	ы ю 00.	ы ы 90	ы 1 00 -	ы 00 E	ы 00 Е	а со 00-	3 00. 560	483.00	353.00	227.00	а 00 E		3 00.		1550.00	1680.00	1180.00	560.00	291.00
(MT) (MT)	00000 13.15	13.20 E	13.00	12 79	00.01	12.67	12,58	12,52	12.45	12.39	05.21	12.21	12 16 F	12.13	12.11	12.10	12.07	12.07	12.11	50.21	12 05	12.03	12 00	11.97	11 95 E	11.91	11 82 U	11.82 E	11.79	11.79	11.83	11.89	26.11 26.11	11.93 E	11.91 E	11.89	05.11	90 01	12.53	12.41 E	12.24	11.99	68.11	12 0 C	13 52	13.63	13.78	13.44	12.80	12.09
S-7 (MW) 25695	56°01	10,81	10.33	10,19	10 53	10.21	10.24	10.25	10.36	10.73	9/.07	C7.11	11.16 E	10.79	10.96	10 97	11.01	11,46	66.11	21.15	11.25	11.31	11.21	11.04	10.97 E	10.84	11 01 9	10 94 5	10.87	10.20	9.74	0/ 0/	10 67	10.98 E	10 50 E	9.95	90.01 20.01	86 01	10 93	10.45	10.06	9.81	20.0 20.0	10.50	10.24	10.32	10.34	10 12	10 59 17 71	10 40
S-6 (FLOW) 15014	526.00	452.00	373.00	00.00	00.205		00.	<b>З 00</b> .	<b>д</b> 00.	ы и 000	2 2 2 2	6.0	00.	00 E	3 00	3 OO	ω I 00	ы I 9	ы н 2 с	4 00 9 00	00	8	00	00.	8	000	4 E 00	а 00 г	3 00 00	00.	8.	200	21.00	.00 6	386.00	ŝ	3 00 242	488 00	623.00	339.00	297.00	200.00	3 00 act	00.024	1480.00	1740.00	1990.00	1570 00		753.00
S-6 (TW) D6685	15.57	15.59 E	15.61	20.01	15.00	10.00	15,57	15.56	15.53	15.49			15.34 E	15.30	15.27	15.22	15.18	87.01	15 JG	20.101	15.35	15.37	15.36	15.34	15.33 8	02.4T	15.21 E	15.18 E	15.15	15.18	15.21	12.61	15.04	15.43 E	15.46 E	15.43	15.45		15.63	15.59	15.57	15.54	10.42 10.42	10.01	15.76	15.85	16.00	15.97	15.44	15.93
S~6 (HW) 00356	10.45	10.45	10.08	50.07	10.02	10,01	10.14	10.01	10.02	10.68	77.04	11.28	11.06	10.53	10.61	10.74	10.73		0.11	11.04	11.24	11.26	11.06	10.90	10.89	0/ 0T	10.59	10.67	10.70	10.24	9.78	10.00	10.73	11.06	10.14	55'5 5	10.01	10.82	10.75	10.27	9,86	10.6	0/ · 0	10 12	9.23	9.36	9.28	- 10 - 10 - 10	07.V	9.68
	DATE 19950501	19950502	19950503		19950506	19950507	19950508	19950509	19950510	11000001	1100001	19950514	19950515	19950516	19950517	19950518	00000001	1000001	14450505	19950523	19950524	19950525	19950526	19950527	19950528 10050570	02200261	19950531	19950601	19950602	19950603	19950604	19950606	19950607	19950608	19950609	1000001	19950612	19950613	19950614	19950615	19950616	12250610	91000001	19950620	19950621	19950622	19950623	17730064	19950626	19950627

**TABLE G-1.** Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from the EAA through various canals to Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and3 (WCA's) (continued).

	S5A+S5AW (FLOW)	15031	00	00 01	00	00	00	000	8	00	0.0	38	80	8	00	1480 00	310 00 310 00	00	1490 00	920 00	00 /00	00	00	00	Ş	00 0722	2390 00	857 00	662 00	1720 00	141 00	1600.00	2470 00	2020.002	213 00	-216 00	- 221 00	00.001-	483.00	00	00	491.00	36	00.645	00	00	501 00	1090.00	2620.00	3910 00	3840 00 2890 00
	55A+ 55AW (TW)	06677	15 93	15 52 E	15.47 E	15.43 E	3 76.CT	15.39 E	15 40 E	15.36	15.33	15 24	19, 45 19, 45	15 46 E	15.53 E	L5 75	4 F 5 51	15.44 E	15.95 E	16 11	10.07 E	16.15	16 17	16.20	16 18 E	16.18 16.48 F	16.64 C	16.63 E	16.57	16.54 16.65	16.69	16.76	17.09	16 93	16.70	16 54	16 42	16 32	16 33	16 29	16 20	16.11	15.92	15.93	15.91	15 92	16.03	16.31	16.86	17 28	17 54 17 61
	S5A+S5AW (HW)	06676	10.37 E	10,13 E	10.50	10.30 E	1012	10.07 8	9.74 E	56.5	10 21	10 14 F	9.92	10.05 E	10.89 E		3	10.10 E	9.96 E		1	10.05	10.34	10.15	ы Б. Б. Б.	6 10 10 6 10 10	60.6	9.48 E	9.97	70.0 10.0	9.52	9.60	9.22	16.6	10.61	10.77	10.51	10.86	9.82	10 12	10.23	1/ 5	9.92	9.98	10.47	10.71	10.01	- CE - 6	9.42	10 07	9,00
	S-8 (FLOW)	15040	565 00 200 00	3 00.	93.00	611.00 642 00	1800.00	1660.00	879,00	544,00	332.UU 70 th	374.00	446.00	1410.00	1410.00	611 00	308.00	714.00	2530.00	200.00	2090 00	910.00	1210.00	1030.00	00.0011	2810.00	2830.00	2590.00	2160.00	2860 00	1880.00	1560.00	1120.00	772 00	00.0201	779.00	623.UU 627.00	1220.00	937.00	283.00	454.00	4 u 00.	19 00 11	3 00.E	3 OO,	. 00 E	345,00 457,00	00.661	2590.00	2900.00	2960.00 2960.00
	80 - N (AL) (200	06698	12.15	11.49	11.44	12 04	13.15	13.08	12 49	12,12	11 40	11 81	11.89	12 89	56.21	5.0	11.95	12.35	13.83	5 F - 5 T	13 62	12,69	12 87	12 71	14 51	14.08	14.15	14.05	13 77	14.24	13.61	13.40	70°51	12 69	12.78	12 61	12 45	12 90	12.76	12.16	12.25	11 76	12 12	11.70	11.64	11.63	27 71 21 21	12.58	19.51	14.15	14.30 14.30
	S - 8 ( <i>HW</i> )	/ £990	50'0 50'0	9.9 9.9	11.07	10.55	06.6	10.29	9,62	20 a 20 a 20 a	40 01	55.5	56.95	9.76	04. V	10.01 10.01	10.38	10.72	5.0	- 4 - 4 - 4	61.6	9.94	10.43	10.31	00.04 00.04	0.4	9.23	9.17	4.15 0.20	9.19	9.17	0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	19.6	12.01	10.66	10.29	10.39	10.11	9.52	9.40	9.74 19.1	10.28	9.58	9.42	9.65	1.0		9.22	9.21 121.0	21.0	- E. 6
	S-7 (FLOW)	1 5001	а 900- 1	305.00	408.00	351.00 406 00	8 00	ы 00.	ы 1 00 0	а 2 2 2 2 2 2	3 G 3 G	ш 00	.00 E	226.00	1040.000	389.00	3 00.	168.00	1330.00	1560.00	1390.00	1070.00	595,00		1020.00	1910.00	2190.00	1670.00	00 00771	1620.00	645.00	815.00 eff 00	540.00	3 00.	285.00	246.00	423.00	735.00	740.00	297.00	312 00	8 00	199,00	188.00	а 00. С	3 ND 545	321.00	755.00	2270,00	2450.00	2010.000
	S-7 (TW) 05606	06000	J1.25	11,68 E	11.95	3 46.11 3 38 21	11.53	11.38 E	11.30 E	00 TT	11.15 E	11.16	11.14	11.90 E	1 50 71 1 50 21	12.41 E	11.52 E	11.97 E	13.42 E	13.85 E	13.68	13.50	13.08	12.83	13,15	14.06 E	14.37	14.04 E	13 86	14.02	13.37 E	13.38	13.36	12.97 £	13.14	13.08 E	13.32	13.62	13.63	81.11	13.29 13.29	13.02	13.09	13.06 E	12.88	12 90	13.00 E	13.47 E	14.70	14.45	14.86
•	S-7 (HW) 06696	66000	10.73 10.68 E	10.86 E	10.93	10.80 E	11.10	10.94 E	10.59 E	107.0T	10.23 E	10.51 E	10.68	10.79 5	10.57	10.23 E	11.23 E	11.43 E	14.35 5	10.07 E	9.95	10.19	10.45	10.67 10.40 F	10.73	10.42 £	10.04	10.06 E	62.5	9.50	9.82 E	10.21	10.09	10.44 E	10.45	10 00 E	10.81	11,10	10,68	40.04	10.39	10.70	10.17	9.95	10.33	10.47	10.22 g	10.11 2	10,52	10.15	10.00
-	S-6 (FLOW) 15034		200°FT	464.00	526.00	487.00	551.00	487.00	100.419 7 7 7	4 80	00 E	00.655	446.00	171.00	995.00	553.00	564.00	691.00	1270 00	1570.00	1400°00	1600.00	1480.00	879 00	1130.00	2100.00	2140.00	1410 00	1550.00	1800.00	772.00	981 00 1520 00	1310.00	781.00	328.00	316.00	471.00	620.00	1400.00	764 00	343.00	345.00	306.00	297.00 20 -	ж н 00.	404.00	355.00	1424.72 E	2463.28 E	2403.15 E	2341.30 E
	S-6 (TW) 06685		15.52 E	15.53 E	15.53 P	15.48	15.49	15.48 P	14. AU	15.41	15.38	15.43	15.48	20.01 53 51	15.73	15.65	15.53		16.11	16.09	16.17	16.28	16.25 16 26	16.19	16.23	16.53	16.67	10.01	16.50	16.56	16.34	16.63 16.63	16.67	16.54	16.34 16.34	16.11	16.10	16.08	16 JI	16.04	15.88	15.87	15.89	14.93 14.93	10.72	16.01	16.05	16.36	10.86 17 06	17.22	17.25
	S-6 (HW) 00356		10.75	10.60	59.0T	10.48	10.48	10.39	10.78	10.41	10.32	10.23	10.23	67.0T	10.09	9.83	10.61	17.04	9.26	9.28	9.28	9.28	47. A	9.70	10.02	10.91	9.26	12.6	9.27	9.26	9.52	W C	9.22	9.53	M CO OF	6.87	10.36	× (	21.01	9.66	N	10.33	10.06	2 02 01 1	10.66	10.27	10.D9	¥ ;	e e	10.42	9.90
		DATE 10060570	19950629	19950630	10/02/21	19950703	19950704	19950705	19950708	19950708	1°950709	1,950710	19950711	21/06261	19950714	19950715	19950716	110050110	19950719	19950720	19950721	19950722 1995/7723	52/00261 19950703	19950725	19950726	19950727	19950728	19950730	19950731	19950801	19950802	19950804	19950805	19950806	10000001	19950809	19950810	19950811	19950813	19950814	19950815	19950816	19950817	19950819	19950820	19950821	19950822	19950823	19950825	19950826	1.9950827

**TABLE G-1.** Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from the EAA through various canals to Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and3 (WCA's) (continued).

SSA+SSAW (FLOW) 15033	2260 00 1600 00 1160.00	1320.00	1240.00	626.00 376.00	158.00	1220.00	192,00 348 00	2120.00	2110.00 1670 00	695.00	00 201	222.00	-247.00	-101.00	621.00	491.00	486.00	470.00	22.00	00.	00.	00	674.00	644.00	588.00	258.00	1340.00	1420.00	605.00	719.00	858.00	1440.00	2960.00 3880.00	4510.00	4760,00	4170.00	3170 00	2530.00	1350.00	1080.00	570,00
S5A+S5AW (TW) 06677	17.66 17.66 17.55	17 49 17.35 E	17.35 E	17.26 E 17 23 E	17 21 6 17 20 6	17.26 E	17 20 E	14 IS	L7 45 E 17.48 E	17.39 E	17.24 E	100 100 100 100 100	10.000 10.14	16.66 E	16 63 E	16 65 16 65	16 61	16.60 16.61	16.58	16.58 16.58	16 66 16 66	16 69 16 23	16.83	16 82	16.84 16.98	17 01	17 16	17 32	17 26	17 15	17 23	17.40	17.72 18 05	18 26	18 56	18.73	18.63	18 51	18.28	18 17	17.94
S5A+S5AW (HW) 06676	ჯ ჯ ფ ლ დ მი თ ლ ფ	9 9 9 10 10 1	10 74	10 01	10 25 10 11	15.5	9.17 10.01	ເຫັ ເພີ ເຫັດ 1	1 90 1 10 10 10 10	9.54	10 14 9 69	5.0	10 20	10.65	10 03	1 0 1 0 1 0	9.59	9.61 10.43	10.80	11.02	10 73	11 25	10 06	10 25	7 8 8 7 7 7 7 7	9 25	9.50	- 40 - 60 - 00	9 52	1 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	56 5	500	000 00 00 00	10 52	978 978	20.0 00.0	50.6		26 8 26 8	00 00 00 00 00 00	h 90 0 90 0 90
S-R (FLOW) 15040	1360 00 3010 00 2600 00	2360.00 2200 00	2840 00 3160.00	2730.00	2570.00	2170.00	1910 00 1470 00	2360 00	2980 00	2770.00	00.0111 00.0111	1250 00	1260 00	1020.00	966 00 901 00	765 00	777.00	661 00 722.00	603 00	574.00	655 00	654 00 775 00	1450 00	1320 00	876 00 2160 00	2230.00	1730 00	1900 00	1540.00	1040 00	1500 00	2210 00	3070.00	3080.00	00 062	2970,00	2620 00	2170.00	1530 00	1150 00	00 656
S-8 (17W) 06698	14.53 14.37 14.15	14.02 13.93	14.50	14.31	14.25	14.00	13.86 13.72	14.16	14.49 14.49	14.39	13.59	13.62	20.01 20.01	13 40	13.32	13.15	13.10	13.00	12.89	12.87	12.88	12.88	13.35	13.31	13.86	13.88	13.66	13.77	11.59	13.26	13.51	13.97	14.60	14.68	14.70	14.70	14.54	14.35	13.99	13.90	13.64 13.64
5-8 (HM) 06697	999.9 212.9 212.9	9.11	9.22	9.30	99 6 09 6	10.6	9.21	9.61	9.62	9.29	0 10,0	10.54		10.31	10.23	10.28	10.16	17.01 9.74	17.9	10 01	10.09	10.05	10.06	10.20	10.60	9.30	9.28	45.9	40.0 40.0	24. 74. 74.	9.64	9.56		9.26		19 19 19 19	18-6 1	9.15	10.11	10.22	10.24
S-7 (FLOW) 15037	2300.00 2040.00 1640.00	1530.00 1330.00	1570.00	298.00	960.00 750.00	610.00	219.00	1490.00	1730.00	1170.00	428.00	299.00	486.00	580.00	510.00 475 DD	265.00	3 00 E	3 00. 3 00.	9 00 S	243 00	ш 00	.00 E 258 00	305.00	348.00	1500.00	1230.00	825.00 835.00	468,00	293.00	318.00	311.00	1100.00	2250.00	1990.00	1540.00	1510.00	1470.00	1150.00 585 00	429.00	282.00	189.00
S-7 (TW) 06696	15.07 14.98 14.98 11.61 11.61 11.61	14.79 E	14.88 14.88	14.46	14.72 E 14.68	14.63	14.47	14.96 E	15.14	14.93	14.59	14.50	14.53	14.60	14.52	14.27	14.08	13.85	13.73	13.62	13.48	13 39 13 45	13.44	13.43	14.18	14.01	13.76	13.59	13.44	10.04	13-40	13.92	16.91	14.82	C0.01	14.62	14.65	14 47	14.40	14 35 14 43	14 36
S-7 (HW) 06695	10.30 E 10.01 E 10.27 E	10.00 E 10.03 E	10.21	10.98	10.47	10.63	10.58	10.75 E	10.15	10.01	10.79	10.69	10.64	10.78	10.62	10.33	10.70	10.26	10.28	10.30	10.94	11.04	10.47	10,54	11 02	10.01	10.01	6.6	10.30	10.36	10.65	10.83	10.04	9.94	7 U U	18.6	06.6	10.00	10.47	10.26 10.18	10.02
S-6 (FLOW) 15034	2360.41 2288.80 2234.47 2234.47 2234.47	1930.66 E 1726.80 E 1930 RK C	1380.76 E	1498.64	1/4///0 E 1550-53 E	1554 55 B	1382.15 E	2215.98 E 2213 89 E	2069.12 E	1534.02 E	1375.13 E	723.13 E	477.18 E	497.19 E	637.00 629.00	397.00	589.00	363.00	338.00	395.00	499.00	510.00	411.00	403.00 407.00	1380.00	1270.00	1150.00	920.00	668.00 428.00	413.00	996,00	1870.00 2200.00	2330.00	2380.00	2180.00	1910.00	1720.00	1040.00	1220 00	1030,00 938,00	449.00
S-6 (TW) 06685	17.30 17.31 12.31	17.19	17.15	16.98	10.95	16.94	16.88	17 12	17.16	17.10	58'97	16.74 16.61	16.52	16.56	16.61 16.62	16.64	16.66 16.65	16.64	16.62	16.67	16.73 16.73	16.80	16.82	16.83 16.84	16.99	17.05	17.19	17.22	17.25	17.21	17.28	17.45	17.82	17.88	26.71	17.91	17,88	17.69	17.64	17,55	17.32
S-6 (HW) 00356	10.16 9.57 9.33	9,27 M 27	9.33	9.25	9.26	W ar	9.26	9.32 9.33	9.25	ΣΣ	9.19	9.74	10.42	Σ:	2 2	10.09	10.03	W	N X	5 25	E	ΕX	x	x 3	×	¥ :	ĘΣ	×	× >	: ×	×	× ×	: ¥	××	5 X	Ξ	z	e ae	X	E E	×
	MIE 9950828 9950829 9950830	1060566	9950904 9950904	9950905 9950905	9950907	9950908	9150566	9950911 9950912	9950913	9950915	9160566	.9950917 9950918	9950919	9950920 0000001	9950922	9950923 2000023	4400474 4400474	9950926	9950927 9950927	9950929	9950930 9951001	9951002	9951003	9951004 9951005	9001566	9951007 8451009	9951009	9951010	1101266	£101366	9951014 8861015	2701628	9951017	9951018 9951019	9951020	9951021	9951022 9951023	9951024	9951025	951027 9951027	9951028

**TABLE G-1.** Mean Daily Outflows (cfs) from the EAA through various canals to Water Conservation Areas 1, 2, and 3 (WCA's) (continued).

S5A+S5AW (FLOW)	15031	315 00	-295.00	214 00	172.00	00.101	00.016-	148 00	00	749.00	974.00	601 00	00.	00 500	602 00	488 00	469.00	500.00	510 00	616 00	509.00	216 00	209 00	00.003	040.00	00 005	519.00	486 00	492.00	324.00	497.00	00.103		499.00	00	634 00	412 00		491.00	00	00	545.00	504.00	8	524 00	00 300			00	00	00	00°619.00
S5A+S5AW (TW)	06677	17.66	17.53	17.48	17.43	20- 21	12 07	16.97	16.89	16.95	16.99	16.95	16 38	15 82	16 83	16 87	16 82	16 83	16 86	16 84	16 88	16.87	16.88	10.01	16 83	16 84	16.83	16.87	16 88	16.86	58 91 1	10.01	16.96 16.96	16.88	16.79	16.78	18 91	16.77	16 76	16 74	16.75	1678	16 83	16,80	700	07.01 16.80	16 77	16.73	16.72	16.72	16.73	16.71 16.71
SSA+S5AW (HW)	000/0	8.86 P	9.30	10.28	76.9 7 2 2		10.92	11.17	11.20	10.71	10.59	9.74	77.07	10.01	9,88	9.79	9.79	9.82	10.02	9.88	9.93	9.74 14	97.75	0.000	200	9.87	9.79	9.69	9.68	10.00	17.91	2 4 2 7 7	1 m 2 0 1 0	94	10.50		0000	98.6	9.66	10.27	10.77	10.11	97.6	10.53		10 60	10.71	10.92	11.18	11.44	11.69 11.60	10 35
S-8 (FLOW)		955.00	945.00	827 00	00.125	606 00	547 00	514 00	361 00	346 00	337.00	а 00 00	3 0 0 0 0 0 0	4 DO	ы 00	3 00 E	а 00	3 OO	3 00 E	ы 00	а 00	ល 000	200	200	3 00 3 00	ы 00	а 00 В	00 E	а 00 Е	ы и 00	4 u 0 0 0 0	4 4 60 00	1 00 E	00 E	90 E	a 00	9 G	00 E	3 OO	. 3 00 00 E	900 E	3 OO	00 46		4 6	1 1 00	ы 00	3 00 00	а 8	3 00 00	3 2 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	3 00 20 E
S-8 (TW) 06600	0 6 6 6 1 6 4 5 6 1	13.52	13.46	13.38	13.43	13 18	13,12	13.06	12.94	12.92	12.87	12 72	29.21	12.59	12.55	12.51	12 46	12.41	12 36	12 32	22.28	57 71	12 16	11 11	12.07	12.03	11.99	11.95	11.94	27.7T	11 87		11.80	11.76	11.73	11 70	11 64	11.59	11 55	11.52	11 48	11 45	11.45	11 55	)		11.28	11.25	11.22	12.11	11.14	11.11
S-8 (HW) 06687	10.34	10.17	10.10	10.00	20.0T	10.47	10.39	10.43	10.51	10.30	10.20	10.17		10.62	10.53	10.60	11.33	11.49	11.50	11.49	19.11	11 54/	85 II	11.62	11.70	11.70	11.64	11.50	11.48	60.11 11 AD	11.71	11.82	11.88	06 TI	11.63	11 / 20	11.30	11.47	11.60	11,44	11 52	11.78	AC.11	11 20	11 02	11.07	11.12	11.26	11.39	C0.11	11 39	11.16
S-7 (FLOW) 15037	3 00 ·	255.00	313.00	271.00	291.00	E 00	ы 00	3 00.	50.00	3 00 E			3 6	а 00 00	3 00.	29.00	ы 00	3 00 E	а оо оо	а I 00	3	20	38	1 00 1	ы 00	Э 00 <sup>.</sup>	ы 00	H 00	ы н 00	4 00 00	a a 00	800	00 E	3 00 C	ы с 00	200	3 DO -	а <u>00</u> .	491 00	62.00	86.00	550.00	00.000	00.001	825.00	780.00	560.00	200.00	885.00	775 00	3 00 E	545,00
S-7 (ТМ) Оббаб	14.33	14.38	14.42	14.41	14.41	14.30	14.24	14.17	14.13	14.06	13.98	13.90	13.72	13.63	13.57	13.52	13.45	13.39	15.33	13-26		12.15	13.00	12 92	12.85	12.79	12.73	12.66	12.64	10,11	12.51	12.44	12.38	12.32	12.26	12.20	12.08	12.00	12.51	11.99	11.95	12.51	76.71	12 82	12, 92	12.90	12.68	12.77	12.97	14.00 12 47	11.93	12.52
S-7 (HW) 06695	10.56	10.50	10.25	87.0T	10.15	10.56	10.83	11.09	11.09	10.92	99.0T	10.38	10.55	10.78	11.28	11.21	11.54	11.77		24.11		11 55	11.19	11.34	11.64	11.61	11.42	11.25	09.TT	11 68	11.84	11.85	11.88	11.89	11.49	11 23	11,64	11.87	11,42	11.76	11.84	60-17-		11.17	11.03	10.82	10.69	11.21	65.0I	11.05	11.43	10,85
5-6 (Flow) 15034	J0.00	409.00	380.00	00.000	329.00	3 00 °C	а 00 00	14.00	26.00	473.00	00.91P	9 00 9 00	а 00 г	343 00	484.00	427.00	457 00	00.450		00 055	00.000	513.00	3 00 ·	461.00	520.00	505.00	524.00	485.00	00.111	523 42 E	552.62 E	587.00	497.00	552 00	3 00 11	518 00	504.00	537.00	527 00	528 00	00 679		551.00	503.00	482.00	658.00	338 00	488.00	538 00	543 00	a 00	477.00
S-6 (ТW) 06685	17.21	17.12	50.71		16.91	16.85	16.81	16.74	16.74	16.84	16.00	16.89	16.87	16.88	16.89	16.89	16.89	16.01	10.91	10.74	10.01	16.92	16.87	16.88	16.89	16.89	16.89		16.90	16.92	16.90	16.91	16.93	16.93	16.80	16.86	16.85	16.87	16.85	16.85	00.01	10 01	10.01	16.89	16.87	16.86	16.84	16 83	70.0T	190 190 191	16.78	16.80
S-6 (HW) 00356	я	N i	× >	< ×	×	¥	M	W	×	2	5 3	s x	Σ	æ	R I	¥ i	23	5 3	2 3	<b>* *</b>	: >	: ×	×	м	X	¥	Σ;	2:	< 2	×	м	W	W	x :	E 2	Ξ	ы	Σ	¥ :	× :	5 3	2 2	: >	×	X	M	z	E	EX	; ¥	E	¥
	DATE 19951029	19951030	19951031 1995101	19951102	E011566T	19951104	19951105	19951106	70112641	80110641	01115661	19951111	19951112	19951113	19951114	19951115	10051177	19951118	01112011	19951120	19951121	19951122	19951123	19951124	19951125	19951126	19951127	19961179	19951130	19951201	19951202	19951203	19951204	19951205	19951207	19951208	19951209	19951210	TTETEAST	21212661	CT716661	19951215	19951216	19951217	19951218	19951219	19951220	1221661	19951223	19951224	19951225	19951226

.

- A.		
	/	

•

### **APPENDIX H**

•

-

#### APPENDIX H

.

	WCA-1 STAGE 15810	WCA-2 STAGE 16016	WCA-3 STAGE 15943	LAKE-OKEE STAGE 15611
DATE 19950501 19950502	15.76 15.79	12.91 12.92	9.83 9.82	15.73 15.71
19950503	15.82	12.90	9.80	15.70
19950505	15.82	12.82	9.84	15.70
19950506	15.82	12.77	9.82	15.70
19950507	15.79 15.77	12.76	9.8C 9.78	15.70
19950509	15.72	12.65	9.76	15.68
19950510	15.69	12.60	9.74	15.64
19950511	15.69	12.54	9.72	15.74
19950513	15.63	12,49	9.66	15.64
19950514	15.60	12.39	9.63	15.62
19950515	15.57	12.35	9.60	15.58
19950517	15.54	12.31	9,56	15.55
19950518	15.47	12.24	9.54	15.53
19950519	15.43	12.21	9.49	15.53
19950521	15.58	12.21	9.51	15.48
19950522	15.60	12.24	9.60	15.44
19950523	15.56	12.21	9.58	15.44
19950525	15.57	12.20	9.54	15.43
19950526	15.57	12.18	9.58	15.39
19950527	· 15.55	12.17	9.57	15.38
19950529	15.51	12.14	9.53	15.30
19:50530	15.47	12.12	9.51	15.33
19950531	15.42	12.10	9.48	15.29
19950602	15.33	11.98	9.45	15.23
19950603	15.36	11,98	9.44	15.19
19950604	15.42 15.50	11.98	9.43	15.21
19950606	15.61	12.01	9.47	15.24
19950607	15.65	12.10	9.55	15.29
19950608	15.68	12.09	9.53	15.26
19950610	15.66	12.08	9.53	15.25
19950611	15.64	12.04	9.52	15.18
19950612	15.66	12.03	9.52	15.13
19950614	15.80	12.03 12.21	9.50	15.13
19950615	15.77	12.19	9.53	15.13
19950616	15.75	12.17	9.52	15.11
19950618	15.73	12.18	9.50	15.12
19950619	15.72	12.14	9.56	15.14
19950620	15.76	12.11	9.55	15.11
19950621	15.88	12.15 12 21	9.71	15,12
19950623	16.02	12.27	10.01	15.20
19950624	16.06	12.31	10.06	15.24
19950625	16.14 16.14	12.48	10.09	15.27
19950627	16.16	12.49	10.10	15.36
19950628	16.05	12.51	10.12	15.38
19950629	15,89 15 74	12.54	10.12	15.39
19950701	15.74	12.76	10.15	15.45
19950702	15.72	12,79	10.13	15.49

### TABLE H-1. Lake Okeechobee and Water Conservation Area Mean Daily Stages (ft)

	WCA-1 STAGE 15810	WCA-2 STAGE 16016	WCA-3 STAGE 15943	LAKE-OKEE STAGE 15611
DATE				
19950703	15.73	12.87	10.13	15.52
19950704	15 72	12 86	10.12	15 52
19950705	15 70	12,00	10.12	15 50
10050706	15 70	12.05	10.12	10.02
19950700	15.72	12.75	10.12	10.01
10050707	15.70	12.70	10.11	15.52
19950708	15.67	12.63	10.10	15.49
19950709	15.66	12.58	10.09	15.48
19950710	15.68	12.58	10,09	15.44
19950711	15.73	12.56	10.16	15.45
19950712	15.76	12.53	10.17	15.53
19950713	15.79	12.58	10.17	15.51
19950714	15.83	12.52	10.18	15.51
19950715	15.82	12.47	10.21	15.52
19950716	15.72	12.41	10.22	15.53
19950717	15.66	12.39	10.22	15.54
19950718	15.86	12,44	10.31	15.54
19950719	16.02	12.43	10.33	15.54
19950720	16.10	12.45	10.33	15.37
19950721	16.16	12.47	10.35	15.56
19950722	16.27	12.51	10.39	15.57
19950723	16.32	12.54	10.39	15.58
19950724	16.36	12,55	10.43	15.60
19950725	16.36	12.53	10.43	15.57
19950726	16.37	12.52	10.43	15.68
19950727	16.50	12.67	10.49	15 74
19950728	16.52	12.67	10.58	15 80
19950729	16 51	12 66	10 61	15 83
19950730	16.47	12 69	10 62	15 86
19950731	16.45	12 74	10.63	15 90
19951801	16 43	12 80	10.65	15.90
19950802	16 37	12.00	10.65	15.52
19950803	16 48	13 01	10.65	16 00
19950804	16 62	13.01	10.69	16 01
19950805	16.64	13 40	10.05	16.01
19950806	16 60	13 /3	10.75	16 12
19950807	16 55	13 /5	10.76	16 12
19950808	16 49	17 46	10.70	10.22
19950809	16 44	13.40	10.76	16.24
19950810	16 47	13.45	10.70	10.27
19950811	16 45	13 53	10,87	16.27
19950812	16.36	13 51	10.00	16.20
10050012	16.00	12 54	10.00	10.30
19950914	16 19	17 47	10.07	10.31
10050014	16.10	17 44	10.07	10.34
19950816	16.05	12 41	10.07	10.30
19950917	16,00	13.91	10.00	10.34
19950919	16 12	13.30	10.90	10.33
19950819	16 15	13.33	10.05	10.00
10060020	16 16	12.22	10.00	10.32
10050020	16.10	13.21	10.91	16.31
19950021	16.17	13.15	10.89	16.27
19950022	10.21	13.07	10.89	15.Zi
19950823	16.50	13.02	10.90	16.20
19950824	17.04	13.55	11.29	16.31
19950825	17.06	13.65	11.44	16.52
19950826	17.03	13.62	11.47	16.61
19950827	17.00	13.79	11.45	16.66
19950828	17.01	13.93	11.52	16.78
19950829	17.12	14.07	11.55	16.83
19950830	17.12	14.13	11.55	16.82
19950831	17.09	14.18	11.55	16.84
19950901	17.05	14.23	11.56	16.90
19950902	17.05	14.26	11.60	16.95
19950903	17.04	14.29	11.63	17.00
19950904	17.00	14.32	11.65	17.06
19950905	17.02	14.34	11.71	17.11
19950906	17.02	14.43	11.79	17.18

# **TABLE H-1.** Lake Okeechobee and Water Conservation Area Mean Daily Stages (ft)(continued).

•

# **TABLE H-1.** Lake Okeechobee and Water Conservation Area Mean Daily Stages (ft)(continued).

.

	WCA-1 STAGE 15810	WCA-2 STAGE 16016	WCA-3 STAGE 15943	LAKE-OKEE STAGE 15611
DATE	10010	10010	13343	1 2011
19950907	17 00	14 43	11 81	17 22
19950908	17.00	14.45	11 83	17.22
19950909	16.97	14.45	11 85	17 31
19950910	16 97	14 42	11 07	17.01
19950910	יס. די	14.42	11 07	17.55
19950912	17 03	14.54	11.95	17.50
19950913	17.03	14.51	11 99	17.41
19950914	16 97	14.52	11 99	17.50
19950915	16 93	14 51	12 00	17.50
19950916	16.88	14 48	12.00	17 52
19950917	16.85	14.45	12.01	17 53
19950918	16.83	14.41	12.02	17.55
19950919	16.75	14.37	12.03	17.53
19950920	16.71	14.38	12.08	17.54
19950921	16.70	14.36	12.08	17.49
19950922	16.72	14.27	12,10	17.46
19950923	16.76	14.19	12,10	17.43
19950924	16.77	14.04	12.09	17.42
19950925	16.78	13.98	12,07	17.38
19950926	16.78	13.88	12.06	17.37
19950927	16.78	13.78	12.05	17.33
19950928	16.80	13.68	12.05	17.30
19950929	16.84	13.61	12.07	17.27
19950930	16.88	13.52	12.08	17.26
19951001	16.96	13.46	12.10	17.26
19951002	17.00	13.41	12.10	17,25
19951003	17.00	13.34	12.10	17.22
19951004	16.99	13.29	12.08	17.20
19951005	16.99	13.24	12.05	17.19
19951006	17.10	13.32	12.25	17.26
19951007	17.10	13.27	12.27	17.30
19951008	17.21	13.20	12.35	17,34
19951009	17.23	13.20	12.33	17.37
19951010	17 30	13 31	12.32	17.55
19951012	17.32	13.26	12.31	17 43
19951013	17.34	13.21	12.25	17.43
19951014	17.40	13.16	12.33	17.50
19951015	17.51	13.21	12.33	17.55
19951016	17.60	13.23	12.35	17.65
19951017	17.74	13.28	12.42	17.74
19951018	17.84	13,34	12.47	18.03
19951019	17.84	13.53	12.56	18.17
19951020	17.84	13.75	12.56	18.34
19951021	17.81	13.96	12.56	18.41
19951022	17.78	14.09	12,55	18.45
19951023	17.74	14.19	12.53	18.54
19951024	17.71	14.26	12.52	18.59
19951025	17,68	14.33	12.51	18.63
19951026	17.64	14.37	12.51	18.64
10051027	17.01	14,41	12.51	18.03
19951028	17.50	14.42	12.51	10.09
19951020	17 42	14.43	12.50	10.00
19951031	17.36	14.43	12,45	18 48
19951101	17.35	14 41	12 47	18 45
19951102	17.29	14.40	12.46	18.41
19951103	17.23	14.36	12.45	18.37
19951104	17.17	14.33	12.46	18.32
19951105	17.12	14.24	12.42	18.28
19951106	17.07	14.21	12.41	18.21
19951107	17.02	14.17	12.39	18,20
19951108	17.01	14.10	12.37	18.15
19951109	17.03	14.02	12.36	18.12
19951110	17.03	13.92	12.33	18.07
19951111	17.04	13.83	12.30	18.02

# **TABLE H-1.** Lake Okeechobee and Water Conservation Area Mean Daily Stages (ft)(continued).

.

	WCA-1	WCA-2	WCA-3	LAKE-OKEE
	STAGE	STAGE	STAGE	STAGE
	15810	16016	15943	15611
DATE				
19951112	17.04	13.74	12.28	17.97
19951113	17.04	13.64	12.26	17,92
19951114	17.04	13.57	12.23	17.88
19951115	17.03	13.50	12,19	17.86
19951116	17.02	13.44	12.15	17.73
19951117	17.01	13.38	12.12	17.67
19951118	17.01	13.32	12.08	17.63
19951119	17.01	13.26	12.05	17.60
19951120	17.01	13.21	12.02	17.54
19951121	17.01	13.15	12.00	17,52
19951122	17.01	13.09	11.96	17.49
19951123	17.01	13.03	11.93	17.44
19951124	16.99	12.97	11.90	17.39
19951125	16.99	12.92	11,87	17.34
19951126	16.99	12.86	11.84	17.29
19951127	16,99	12.80	11.82	17.24
19951128	16.98	12.75	11.79	17.20
19951129	17.02	12.70	11.70	17.17
19951130	17.05	12.73	11.80	17.13
19951201	17.03	12.68	11.78	17.10
19951202	17.03	12.66	11.76	17.05
19951203	17.02	12.58	11.69	17.02
19951204	17.03	12.58	11.69	16,96
19951205	17.04	12.49	11.68	16.90
19951206	17.03	12.49	11.65	16.89
19951207	17.01	12.40	11.62	16.84
19951208	17.01	12.35	11.59	16.82
19951209	17.01	12.27	11.55	16.81
19951210	16.99	12.22	11.51	16.81
199.1211	16.99	12.21	11.49	16.80
199.4212	16.97	12.17	11.48	16.73
19951213	16.98	12.13	11.44	16.70
19951214	17.04	12.12	11.41	16.67
19951215	17.05	12.09	11.38	16.62
19951210	17.04	12.06	11.36	16.59
199051217	17.02	12.04	11.32	16.57
19951210	17.00	12.02	11.29	16.53
19951219	17.00	12.00	11.27	16.52
19951220	17.03	12.00	11,20	16.51
10051221	16 09	11.98	11.23	16.49
19951222	17 00	11.90	11.20	16.43
10051004	17.02	11.95	11.10	10.40
10051005	17.02	11.96	11,10	16.38
19951222	16 95	11 04	11 10	16.33
10051227	16 96	11 00	11 07	16.34
199512227	16 95	11 01	11 04	16 24
19951220	16 95	11 99	11 04	16 24
19951230	16 95	11 88	11.04	16.21
19951230	16 94	11 87	10 99	16 20
	10.24	+ + • • • •	10.77	TO'SO

2.e 2. E 5.a

-

(This page intentionally left blank.)

### APPENDIX I

.

#### APPENDIX I

.

# **TABLE I-1.**Mean Daily Inflows (cfs) to Everglades National Park (ENP) from Water Conservation<br/>Area 3 through the S-12 Structures

STATION	S12-A (FLOW)	S12-B (FLOW)	S12-C (FLOW)	S12-D (FLOW)	S12-TOTAL (FLOW)
DBKEY	01313	00610	00621	01310	15807
DATE	00 00	CE 00	200 00	227 00	040.00
19950502	99.00	5.00 51.00	280.00	337.00	548.JU 753.JO
19950503	72 00	87 00	273.00	352 00	733.00
19950504	53.00	103.00	287.00	386.00	830.00
19950505	55.00	144.00	296.00	385.00	835.00
19950506	56.00	142.00	295.00	377.00	850.00
19950507	57.00	136.00	296.00	373.00	846.00
19950508	57.00	145.00	297.00	360.00	839.00
19950509	56.00	139.00	291.00	367.00	839.00
19950510	55.00	126.00	283.00	359.00	812.00
19950511	261.00	108.00	278.00	340.00	868.00
19930312	285.00	112.00	257.00	351.00	878,00
19950514	190.00	120.00	233.00	342 00	900.JU 934 00
19950515	197.00	101.00	222.00	342.00	789 00
19950516	178.00	119.00	237.00	332,00	799.00
19950517	165.00	102.00	219.00	325.00	731.30
19950518	155.00	101.00	203.00	315.00	698.00
19950519	119.00	89.00	170.00	298.00	631.00
19950520	157.00	91.00	225.00	321.00	724.00
19950521	185.00	110.00	264.00	353.00	814.00
19950522	182.00	110.00	243.00	351.00	800.00
19950524	142 00	121 00	229.00	342.00	758.00
19950525	103.00	93.00	169.00	234.00	514 00
19950526	41.00	82.00	101.00	158.00	409.00
19950527	43.00	85.00	105.00	162.00	424.00
19950528	43.00	84.00	106.00	164.00	428.00
19950529	42.00	84.00	105.00	163.00	424.00
19950530	42.00	82.00	104.00	162.00	420.00
19950601	40 00	78.00	101.00	151.00	414.00
19950602	39.00	77.00	100.00	157.00	400.00
19950603	40.00	77.00	101.00	159.00	404.00
19950604	40.00	78.00	102.00	161.00	410.00
19950605	40.00	79.00	104.00	163.00	416.00
19950606	41.00	84.00	107.00	165.00	426.00
10050607	44.00	90.00	112.00	172.00	451.00
19950608	45.00	74.00 61.00	91.00	154.00	385.00
19950610	48.00	63.00	77 00	141.00	328,00
19950611	48.00	62.00	77.00	143.00	333.00
19950612	47.00	61.00	75.00	141.00	328.00
19950613	46.00	128.00	75.00	141.00	327.00
19950614	46.00	159.00	133.00	200.00	458.00
19950615	45.00	106.00	188.00	253.00	590.00
19950610	44.00	101.00	180.00	247.00	571.00
19950618	43.00	99.00	176.00	245.00	562.00
19950619	43.00	95.00	176.00	242.00	553.00
19950620	46.00	108,00	188.00	260.00	594.00
19950621	41.00	179.00	343.00	249.00	1009.00
19950622	19.00	241.00	522.00	154.00	1662.00
19950623	23.00	278.00	558.00	161.00	1808.00
19950624	22.00	271.00	554.00	158.00	1780.00
19950626	23.00	262.00	538.00	153.00	1/31.00
19950627	21.00	248.00	523.00	151 00	1670 00
19950628	153.00	172.00	472,00	300.00	1530.00
19950629	232.00	118.00	468.00	597.00	1452.00
19950630	239.00	122.00	480.00	613.00	1495.00
19950701	227.00	116.00	466.00	599.00	1450.00

# **TABLE I-1.**Mean Daily Inflows (cfs) to Everglades National Park (ENP) from Water Conservation<br/>Area 3 through the S-12 Structures (continued)

•

STATION	S12-A	S12-B	S12-C	S12-D	S12-TOTAL
	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)	(FLOW)
DBKEY	01313	00610	00621	01310	15807
100E0700	214 00	111 00	453 00	505 00	1400 00
19950702	214.00	108 00	455.00	585.00	1403.00
19950704	201.00	105.00	433 00	559 00	1371.00
19950705	202 00	103.00	424 00	553 00	1300 00
19950706	210.00	108.00	417.00	548.00	1265 00
19950707	218.00	115.00	413.00	547.00	1251 00
19950708	226.00	123.00	408.00	533.00	1226.00
19950709	231.00	130.00	399.00	524.00	1208.00
19950710	246,00	147.00	408.00	524.00	1216.00
19950711	268.00	166.00	420.00	547.00	1257.00
19950712	282.00	181.00	424.00	555.00	1272.00
19950713	293.00	194.00	422.00	552.00	1266.00
19950714	303.00	204.00	419.00	552.00	1364.00
19950715	305.00	209.00	426.00	560.00	1496.00
10050717	307.00	209.00	428.JU	568.00	1505.00
19950717	307 00	209.00	429.00	571.00	1513.00
19950719	310 00	205.00	421.00	595.00	1574.00
19950720	311 00	205.00	419 00	612 00	1610 00
19950721	311.00	205.00	426.00	629 00	1638 00
19950722	316.00	210.00	436.00	649.00	1676 00
19950723	318.00	214.00	441.00	659.00	1696.00
19950724	322.00	214.00	442.00	662.00	1710.00
19950725	321.00	213.00	439.00	653.00	1698.00
19950726	320.00	216.00	437.00	658.00	1762.00
19950727	322.00	205.00	417.00	593.00	1990.00
19950728	324.00	208.00	405.00	481.00	2123.00
19950729	220.00	219.00	382.00	484.00	2159.00
100:0701	214.00	223.00	382.00	492.00	2167.00
199: 3731	216.00	229.00	385.00	499.00	2185.00
19950801	203 00	230.00	377 00	481 00	22.1.00
19950803	205.00	233.00	389 00	492 00	2120.00
19950804	217.00	249.00	429.00	542.00	2231.00
19950805	230,00	256.00	455.00	566.00	2277.00
19950806	234.00	254.00	469.00	572.00	2256.00
19950807	234.00	251.00	483.00	580.00	2237.00
19950808	233.00	248.00	499.00	588.00	2220.00
19950809	230.00	246.00	519.00	602.00	2208.00
19950810	238.00	248.00	551.00	637.00	2260.00
19950811	248.00	253.00	578.00	657.00	2285.00
19950812	256.00	257.00	607.00	679.00	2314.00
19950813	262 00	250.00	625.00 656 AD	710 00	2311.00
19950815	269 00	263 00	680.00	719.00	2333,00
19950816	269.00	260.00	697.00	751.00	2167 00
19950817	274.00	261.00	705.00	762.00	2021.00
19950818	285.00	266.00	711.00	765.00	2045.00
19950819	292.00	270.00	721.00	773.00	2063.00
19950820	304.00	276.00	735.00	799.00	2102.00
19950821	316.00	284.00	737.00	798.00	2143.00
19950822	324.00	285.00	738.00	799.00	2154.00
19950823	337.00	292.00	755.00	835.00	2231.00
19950824	456.00	331.00	822.00	1010.00	2761.00
19950025	534.00	360.00	858.00	1030.00	3043.00
19950827	545.00	300.00	885 00	902.UU 1000 00	3100.00
19950828	540.00	376.00	896 AN	1010.00	3332 00
19950829	552.00	380.00	901.00	1010 00	3239 00
19950830	555.00	382.00	906.00	1020.00	3263.00
19950831	559.00	384.00	913.00	1030.00	3286,00
19950901	569.00	395.00	936.00	1070.00	3009.00
19950902	589.00	415.00	978.00	1120.00	2932.00
19950903	606.00	429.00	1010.00	1150.00	3017.00
19950904	617.00	438.00	1020.00	1160.00	3065 00

# **TABLE I-1.**Mean Daily Inflows (cfs) to Everglades National Park (ENP) from Water<br/>Conservation Area 3 through the S-12 Structures (continued)

•

STATION	S12-A	S12-8 (FLOW)	S12-C	S12-D	S12-TOTAL
DBKEY	01313	00610	00621	01310	15807
10050005	622 00	469 00	1040 00	1000 00	2217 00
19950905	660.00	572 00	1040.00	1200.00	3217.00
19950907	654 00	565 00	1060.00	1200.00	3537 00
19950909	658 00	568 00	1060.00	1290.00	3546 00
19950909	665 00	576 00	1000.00	1230.00	2500 00
19950910	682 00	590.00	1100.00	1250.00	3599.00
19950910	701 00	603 00	1130.00	1400.00	2796 00
19950912	703 00	608.00	1140.00	1400.00	3933 00
19950913	709 00	616 00	1150.00	1450.00	3878 00
19950914	716.00	624.00	1160.00	1460 00	3913 00
19950915	720.00	630.00	1170 00	1470 00	3865 00
19950916	725.00	635.00	1180.00	1490.00	3831.00
19950917	725.00	634.00	1170.00	1490.00	3839.00
19950918	725.00	635.00	1170.00	1500.00	3846.00
19950919	731.00	644.00	1180.00	1540.00	3914.00
19950920	738.00	651.00	1190.00	1560.00	3966.00
19950921	744.00	656.00	1190.00	1570,00	3997.00
19950922	754,00	670.00	1210.00	1630.00	4094.00
19950923	757.00	669.00	1210.00	1630.00	4096.00
19950924	760.00	666.00	1200.00	1640.00	4094.00
19950925	759.00	665.00	1200.00	1630.00	4090.00
19950926	755.00	662.00	1180.00	1620.00	4172.00
19950927	759.00	665.00	1180.00	1620.00	4285.00
19950928	851.00 ?	696.00	1210.00	1670.00 ?	4399.00
19950929	985.00 ?	732.00	1240.00	1710.00 ?	4568.00
19950930	1010.00 ?	763.00	1270.00	1640.00	4687,00
19951001	997.00 ?	755.00	1260.00	1640.00	4660.00
19951002	998.00 ?	758.00	1260.00	1660.00 ?	4694.00
19951003	994.00 ?	748.00	1250.00	1640.00	4644.00
19951004	965.00 ?	722.00	1210.00	1570.00	4476.00
19751005	982.00 ?	756.00	1220.00	1590.00	4610.00
19951000	1070.00 ?	917.00	1290.00	1700.00 ?	5380.00
19951007	1000.00 ?	925.00	1300.00	1700.00 ?	5415.00
19951000	1090.00 7	930.00	1320.00	1710.00 ?	5448.00
19951010	1100 00 2	930.00	1220.00	1750.00 ?	5502.00
19951010	1100.00 7	937.00	1320.00	1730.00 ?	5544.00
19951012	1100.00 2	927.00	1310 00	1700.00 2	5300.00
19951012	1090 00 2	919 00	1290 00	1670 00 2	5391 00
19951014	1100.00 2	929.00	1310.00	1700 00 2	5442 00
19951015	1100.00 ?	940.00	1340.00	1770 00 2	5568 00
19951016	1160.00 ?	983.00	1400.00 ?	1880.00 2	5637.00
19951017	1190.00 ?	1000.00	1440.00 ?	1930.00 ?	5546.00
19951018	1200.00 ?	1010.00	1470.00 ?	2040.00 ?	5682.00
19951019	1220.00 ?	1020.00	1490.00 ?	2050.00 ?	5724.00
19951020	1240.00 ?	1030.00	1490.00 ?	2060.00 ?	5749.00
19951021	1250.00 ?	1030.00	1500.00 ?	2060.00 ?	5754.00
19951022	1260.00 ?	1020.00	1500.00 ?	2050.00 ?	5731.00
19951023	1270.00 ?	1010.00	1500.00 ?	2040.00 ?	5707.30
19951024	1270.00 ?	1000.00	1500.00 ?	2030.00 ?	5693.00
19951025	1270.00 ?	991.00	1500.00 ?	2010.00 ?	5650.00
19951026	1260.00 ?	978.00	1490.00 ?	2000.00 ?	5586.00
19951027	1250.00 ?	962.00	1480.00 ?	1960.00 ?	5497.00
19951028	1250.00 ?	950.00	1470.00 ?	1950.00 ?	5432.00
19951029	1260.00 ?	951.00	1470.00 ?	1960.00 ?	5449.00
19951030	1260.00 ?	939.00	1460.00 ?	1930.00 ?	5385.00
19951031	1250.00 ?	927.00	1450.00 ?	1900.00 ?	5303.00
19951101	1250.00 ?	921.00	1450.00 ?	1900.00 ?	5410.00
19951102	1220.00 ?	915.00	1440.00 ?	1900.00 ?	5506.00
10021104	1230.00 ?	910.00	1430.00 ?	1900.00 ?	5488.00
10051104	1240.00 /	909.00	1440.00 ?	1910.00 ?	5506.00
10051102	1330 00 2	903,00	1410 00 0	1900.00 2	5485.00
19951100	1210.00 ?	877 00	1300 00 C	1020 00 2	5421,00 5225 00
19951108	1190.00 ?	868.00	1370,00 2	1810 00 2	5276 00

# **TABLE I-1.** Mean Daily Inflows (cfs) to Everglades National Park (ENP) from WaterConservation Area 3 through the S-12 Structures (continued)

STATION	S12-A (FLOW)	S12-B (FLOW)	S12-C (FLOW)	S12-D (FLOW)	S12-TOTAL (FLOW)
DBKEY DATE	01313	00610	00621	01310	15807
19951109	1210.00 ?	873.00	1380.00 2	1830 00 2	5328 00
19951110	1190.00 ?	858.00	1350.00	1780 00 2	5235 00
19951111	1170.00 ?	845.00	1340 00	1740 00 2	5154 00
19951112	1180.00 2	848.00	1340 00	1760 00 2	5183 00
19951113	1170.00 ?	839 00	1330 00	1750 00 2	5157 00
19951114	1150.00 ?	832.00	1320.00	1730 00 2	5106 00
19951115	1150.00 ?	821.00	1300.00	1710.00 2	5056 00
19951116	1140.00 ?	809.00	1280.00	1670 00 2	4979 00
19951117	1130.00 ?	801.00	1270.00	1640.00	4923 00
19951118	1120.00 ?	788.00	1250.00	1610.00	4858.00
19951119	1120.00 ?	782.00	1230.00	1580,00	4814.00
19951120	1100.00 ?	772.00	1210.00	1560.00	4697.00
19951121	1080.00 ?	764.00	1210.00	1560.00	4604.00
19951122	1060.00 ?	756.00	1210.00	1550.00	4565.00
19951123	1040.00 ?	742.00	1190.00	1530.00	4475.00
19951124	1020.00 ?	728.00	1170.00	1510.00	4390.00
19951125	1000.00 ?	724.00	1170.00	1520.00	4363.00
19951126	978.00 ?	709.00	1160.00	1500.00	4294.00
19951127	953.00 ?	695.00	1140.00	1460.00	4189.00
19951128	933.00 ?	681.00	1120.00	1440.00	4108.00
19951129	908.00 ?	671.00	1110.00	1430.00	4048.00
19951130	894.00 ?	670.00	1120.00	1470.00	4061.00
19951201	877.00 ?	661.00	1110.00	1470.00	4075.00
19951202	865.00 ?	654.00	1100.00	1470.00	4079.00
19951203	858.00 ?	646.00	1090.00	1450.00	4020.00
19951204	830.00 2	642.00	1080.00	1430.00	3969.00
19951205	827 00	636.00	1050.00	1420.00	3916.00
19951200	816 00	618 00	1040 00	1270 00	3861.00
19951208	803.00	611 00	1040.00	1350.00	3700.00
19951209	793.00	603 00	1010 00	1330.00	3665 00
19951210	787.00	598.00	1000.00	1320 00	3632 00
19951211	783.00	596.00	1000.00	1310.00	3615 00
19951212	766.00	582.00	974.00	1270.00	3504.00
19951213	748.00	574.00	958.00	1240.00	3423 00
19951214	739.00	563.00	940.00	1220.00	3399.00
19951215	731.00	553.00	923.OC	1200.00	3402.00
19951216	721.00	543.00	904.00	1180.00	3334.00
19951217	712.00	533.00	893.00	1160.00	3270.00
19951218	702.00	524.00	874.00	1140.00	3191.00
19951219	690.00	516.00	865.00	1120.00	3141.00
19951220	683.00	513.00	860.00	1130.00	3127.00
19951221	681.00	505.00	848.00	1110.00	3077.00
19951222	668.00	494.00	835.00	1080.00	3000.00
19951223	676.00	501.00	846.00	1110.00	3039.00
19951224	666.00	491.00	833.00	1090.00	2977.00
19951225	652.00	478.00	815.00	1060.00	2903.00
19951226 19951997	040.VV	468.00	796.00	1040.00	2836.00
10051000	637.00	456.00	782.00	1010.00	2761.00
19951000	632.00	450.00	//5.00	997.00	2719.00
19951222	623 00	444.UU 135 00	707.00	989.00	2688.00
19951231	619 00	428 00	738 00	908.00 026 00	2010.00
		100.00	100.00	220.00	2000.00

(This page intentionally left blank.)

-

## APPENDIX J

#### APPENDIX J

#### TABLE J-1. Florida Bay, Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows (cfs)

	S-18C	S-18C	S-18C	S-197	S-197	S-197
	(HW) 05776	(TW) 05787	(FLOW) 00718	(HW) 13093	(TW) 13094	(FLOW)
DATE	03.10	00100	00110	20000	13034	1002
19950501	2.15	2 11	425 00	2 11	87	0.0
19950502	2 10 5	2 02	349 00	2 04	.0,	.00
19950503	2 01	1 98	318.00	1 98	. 75	00.
19950504	2.03	1 98	342 00	1 98	. / 5	.00
19950505	2.43	2 18	546 00	2 19	. 01	.00
19950506	2.48	2.22	549.00	2 22	78	.00
19950507	2.45	2 27	659 00	2 28	86	.00
19950508	2.42	2 38	765 00	2.20	1 01	.00
19950509	2 28	2.20	483 00	2.20	1.01	.00
19950510	2.21 E	2.21	419 00	2 20	97	00
19950511	2.16	2.16	401.00	2.20		.00
19950512	2.11	2.10	323.00	2 11	.04	.00
19950513	2.06	2.04	327.00	2.07	1 02	. 00
19950514	2.05	2.04	335.00	2 06	1.05	00
19950515	2.02 E	2.02 E	284.00	2.04	32	00
19950516	1.98	1.98	267.00	2.02	. 92	.00
19950517	1.97	1.96	271.00	1.98	1.03	.00
19950518	2.01	1.90	205.00	1.91	.90	. 00
19950519	2.12	1.79	101.00	1.82	.76	.00
19950520	2.19	1,77	91.00	1.80	. 63	.00
19950521	2.36	1.77	61,00	1.81	. 91	.00
19950522	2.52	1.80	20.00	1.84	. 90	.00
19950523	2.50	1.79	35.00	1.81	. 96	.00
19950524	2.47 E	1.78	102.00	1.78	.96	.00
19950525	2.43	1.76	66.00	1.77	1.00	.00
19950526	2.40 E	1.74 E	5.80	1.75	. 87	.00
19950527	2.41	1,72	50.00	1.73	. 91	.00
19950528	2.40 E	1.71 E	91.00	1.71	. 94	.00
19250529	2.36	1.69	94.00	1.69	. 94	.00
19950530	2.33	1.67	74.00	1.67	.86	.00
19950531	2.28	1.65	78.00	1.65	.86	. 00
19950601	2.22 E	1.63 E	.00	1.63	.90	. 00
19950602	2.23	1.68	. 00	1.67	.93	.00
19950603	2.39	1.73	.00	1,72	.93	.00
19950604	2.44	1.75	.00	1.75	.81	.00
19950605	2.44	1.77	М	1.79	. 42	.00
19950606	2.41	1.94	М	1,96	. 27	.00
19950607	2.32	2.21	М	2,23	.48	.00
19950608	2.45 E	2.32	651.00	2.33	.60	.00
19950609	2.46 E	2.41 E	727.00	2.42	.65	.00
19950610	2.36	2.33	505.00	2.34	.72	.00
19950611	2.28	2.27	394.00	2.27	.76	.00
19950612	2.24	2.23	378.00	2.24	. 66	.00
19950613	2.24	2.23	356.00	2.24	. 56	.00
19950614	2.23	2.22	330.00	2.23	. 74	.00
19950615	2.21 E	2.20 E	292.00	2.21	. 80	.00
10050610	2.26	2.24	397.00	2.25	.84	.00
19950617	2.42	2.39	599.00	2.39	.86	.00
19950010	2,30	2.29	370.00	2.30	.91	.00
19950619	2.45	2.25	523.00	2.20	. 84	.00
19950621	2.40	2.30	1420.00	2.35	.88	.00
19950621	2.23	2.10	1050 00	2.04	1,24	105.09
19950622	2.10	2.37 2.17	1960 00	2.01	1.13	2505.81
19950623	2.20	2.1/	1010 00	1.70	. 95	2522.35
19950624	2.3/	1.99 0 10	1540.00	1.00	. 94	2383.82
19950626	2.37	2.13	1140 00	1.90	. / /	15/2./6
19950627	2.74	2.00	1050 00	2.00	. 53	.00
19950629	2.70	2.03	1010.00	2.07	. 60	.00
19950629	2.79	2.71	923 00	2.71 2.71	. /2	.00
19950630	2.73	2.65	965.00	2.71	96 . 01	.VU 642 12
				0.00		336,16

	S-18C	S-18C	S-18C	S-197	S-197	S-197
	(HW) 05776	(TW) 05787	(FLOW) 00718	(HW) 13093	(TW) 13094	(FLOW) 13092
DATE		•				
19950701	2.59	2.51	968.00	2.45	.86	750.72
19950702	2.55	2.48	858.00	2.46	.81	445.76
19950703	2.40	2.40	269.00	2.4/	.80	.00
19950705	2.49	2.49	406.00	2.40	.62	.00
19950706	2.46	2.46	371.00	2.46		. 50
19950707	2.40	2.39	270.00	2.40	.77	. 30
19950708	2.35	2.34	278.00	2.35	.76	. 30
19950709	2.32	2.32	285.00	2,34	.74	. 00
19950710	2.39	2.33	320.00	2.35	.82	.00
19950711	2.54	2.40	402.00	2.41	.95	.00
19950712	2.51	2.40	349.00	2.41	1.02	. 00
19950713	2.53	2.43	459.00	2.42	1.16	.00
19950715	2.00	2.50	722.00	2.57		. 00
19950716	2.64	2.61	722.00	2.55	20 1 - 2	.00
19950717	2.52	2.50	416.00	2.50	1.33	
19950718	2.40	2.38	261.00	2.39	.86	
19950719	2.36	2.35	267.00	2.37	. 60	. 00
19950720	2.35	2.33	271.00	2.35	.56	. 00
19950721	2.35	2.35	331.00	2.36	. 57	. 00
19950722	2.40	2.40	404.00	2.40	. 60	. 00
19950723	2.40	2.39	392.00	2.38	. 56	. 00
19950724	2.34	2,34	326.00	2.33	.55	. 00
19950726	2,32	2.32	324 00	2.32	.49	.00
19950727	2.61	2.57	719 00	2.33	. 57	.00
19950728	2.77	2.70	1010.00	2.56	.05	205 35
19950729	2.63	2.54	1040.00	2.44	1.02	707.96
19950730	2.57	2.49	945.00	2.42	1.13	674,21
19950731	2.52	2.39	1080.00	2.24	1.41	1102.36
19950801	2.25	2.07 E	1290.00	1.87	1,57	1618.98
19950802	2.21 E	2.07 E	716.00	1.99	.98	828.34
19950803	2.53	2.45	520.00	2.43	.76	.00
19950805	2.75	2.70	1130 00	2.04	.92	403.62
19950806	2.68	2.59	1050.00	2.55	1.04	731.02
19950807	2.57	2.49	882.00	2.42	1 04	696 51
19950808	2.54	2.51	743.00	2.48	.97	303.05
19950809	2.60	2.58	591.00	2.58	. 97	.00
19950810	2.59	2.58	545.00	2.58	1.02	.00
19950811	2.62	2.61	547.00	2.60	1.01	. 00
19950812	2.68	2.65	593.00	2.65	1.13	.00
19950814	2.03	2.63	492.00	2.63	1.20	.00
19950815	2.65	2.64	487 00	2.04	1 17	. 00
19950816	2.66	2.64	487.00	2.64	1 19	.00
19950817	2.61	2.60	446.00	2,60	1.09	.00
19950818	2.56 E	2.56	369.00	2,57	1.01	.00
19950819	2.55	2.55	361.00	2.58	1.14	.00
19950820	2.56	2.56	395.00	2.57	1.19	. 00
19950821	2.56	2.56	388.00	2.57	1.31	.00
10050022	2.57 E	2.57	335.00	2.58	1.47	. 00
19950823	2.63 E 2.92	2.62 E	410.00	2.62	1.36	.00
19950825	2.02	2.15	969.00	2.70	1.10	496.55
19950826	2.73	2.64	1020 00	2.02 0 E0	1.07	740.18
19950827	2.63	2.56	911.00	2.50 2.50	8.02	742.93
19950828	2.62 E	2.59 E	764.00	2.57	.00	100.03
19950829	2.68 E	2.68	637.00	2.70	. 68	020.00 00
19950830	2.68 E	2.68 E	571.00	2.70	.76	.00 17
19950831	2.66 E	2.64 E	527.00	2.70	.88	.00 F
19950901	2.65	2.65	513.00	2.69	. 92	.00 E
19950902	2.66	2.66	504.00	2.70	.89	.00
13320303	2.67	2.67	482.00	2.70	1.21	.00

### TABLE J-1. Florida Bay, Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows (cfs) (continued).

	S-18C	S-18C	S-18C	S-197 <sup>*</sup>	s-197	S-197
	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)
	05776	05787	00718	13093	13094	13092
DATE 1995/1907	2 69	2 69	440.00	2 71	1 21	0.0
19950905	2,00	2.00	440.00	2.71	1.31	.00
19950906	2.75	2.75	447 00	2.74	1 43	.00
19950907	2.75	2.74	494.00	2.76	1.50	.00
19950908	2.73	2,73	515.00	2.75	1.59	.00
19950909	2.76	2.76	581.00	2.78	1.61	.00
19950910	2.77	2.74	585.00	2.76	1.55	.00
19950911	2.78	2.77	648.00	2.79	1.45	.00
19950912	2.75	2.71	706.00	2.69	1.41	346.40
19950913	2.64	2.59	798.00	2.55	1.46	620.55
19950914	2.60	2.55	763.00	2.52	1.48	603.51
19950915	2.53	2.49	712.00	2.46	1,42	603.05
19950917	2.30	2.47	423 00	2.40	1.57	503.42
19950918	2.59	2.59	345.00	2.61	1 43	.00
19950919	2.56	2.55	333.00	2.58	1.46	.00
19950920	2.56	2.56	337.00	2.59	1.38	,00
19950921	2.60	2.60	450.00	2.62	1.49	.00
19950922	2.64	2.64	457.00	2.68	1.60	.00 E
19950923	2.68	2.67	477.00	2.69	1.54	.00 E
19950924	2.66	2.64	422.00	2.66	1.52	.00 E
19950925	2.64	2.63	385.00	2.53	1.51	.00 E
19950920	2.55	2.50	354 00	2.37	1.51	.00 E
19950928	2.73	2.70	690.00	2 71	1.97	100 71 E
19950929	2.79	2.71	981.00	2.68	1.81	551.14
19950930	2.72	2,66	887.00	2.63	1.74	559.53
19951001	2.66	2.64	719.00	2.64	1.65	315.47
19951002	2.72	2.71	590.00	2.73	1.73	.00
19951003	2.75	2.73	534.00	2.72	1.76	.00
19951004	2.69	2.68	421.00	2.67	1.56	. 00
19951005	2.65	2.64	386.00	2.65	1.28	.00
19951000	2.70	2.09	447.00	2,14	1.25	.00
19951008	2.73	2 72	468 00	2.74	1 22	.00
19951009	2.76	2.75	548.00	2.77	1.11	.00
19951010	2.75	2.72	648.00	2.69	1.12	325.76
19951011	2.58	2.53	728.00	2.49	1.08	704.38
19951012	2.46	2.43	624.00	2.39	1.16	660.38
19951013	2.44	2,42	600.00	2.40	1.38	596.47
19951014	2.57	2.54	114.00	2.49	1.40	616.32 796 46
19951015	2.75	2.70	973 00	2.04	. 89	731 55
19951017	2.92	2.83	1160.00	2.00	1.47	677 45
19951018	3.09	2.88	1540.00	2.75	1.67	1266.88
19951019	2.95	2.75	1440.00	2.59	1.63	1509.36
19951020	2.86	2.69	1360.00	2.55	1.70	1418.75
19951021	2.77	2.64	1210.00	2.51	1.69	1389.31
19951022	2.85	2.73	1160.00	2.63	2.02	1189.34
19951023	2.97	2.83	1260.00	2.72	2.20	1105.93
19951024	2.95	2.80	1240.00	2.70	2.11	11/1.36
19951025	2.77	2.63	1200 00	2.02	1.72	1378 59
19951027	2.62	2.51	1160.00	2.39	1.57	1390.28
19951028	2.56	2,47	973.00	2.42	1.31	987.06
19951029	2.61	2.55	803.00	2.52	1.29	670.09
19951030	2.56	2.51	679.00	2.48	1.49	600.79
19951031	2.50	2.46	634.00	2.41	1.39	612.76
19951101	2.51	2.49	535.00	2.48	1.15	248.33
19951102	2.59	2,58	397.00	2.59	. 99	.00
10021104	∠.58 Э.∈0	2.56	375.00	2.58	. 88	.00
19951104	2.00 2.58	2.57	350.00	2.57 2 FO	.89	.00
19951106	2.59	2,56	347.00	2.58	1 16	.00
19951107	2.58	2.55	367.00	2.57	1.07	.00

#### TABLE J-1. Florida Bay, Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows (cfs) (continued).

	S-18C	S-18C	S-18C	S-197	S-197	S-197
	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)	(HW)	(TW)	(FLOW)
	05776	05787	00718	13093	13094	13092
DATE						
19951108	2.54	2.52	311.00	2.55	. 93	. 00
19951109	2.52	2.49	253.00	2.52	1.36	. 00
19951110	2.50	2.48	252.00	2.49	1.28	.00
19951111	2.48	2.46	289.00	2.48	1.07	. 00
19951112	2.46	2.45	249.00	2.48	95	.00
19951113	2.45	2.43	245.00	2.46	1.i4	. 00
19951114	2.42	2.41	233.00	2.45	1.16	. 00
19951115	2.41	2.39	218.00	2.42	1.30	.00
19951116	2.39	2.37	209.00	2.40	1,15	. 00
19951117	2.38	2.36	205.00	2.38	1.11	. 00
19951118	2.38	2.35	203.00	2.37	1.30	.00
19951119	2.36	2.34	203.00	2.36	1.23	. 00
19951120	2.35	2.33	196.00	2.35	1.22	. 00
19951121	2.35	2.32	202.00	2.35	1.24	. 00
19951122	2.32	2.30	187.00	2.34	1.42	.00
19951123	2.31	2.29	184.00	2.31	1.40	. 90
19951124	2.31	2.24	111.00	2.26	1.32	
19951125	2.33	2.18	91.00	2.23	1.34	. 00
19951126	2.31	2.17	88.00	2.20	1.24	. 00
19951127	2.32	2.14	97.00	2.16	1.09	.00
19951128	2.46	2.05	8.10	2.06	1.04	.00
19951129	2,55	2.02	32.00	2.05	. 80	. 00
19951130	2.48	2.11	138.00	2.15	.66	. 00
19951201	2.40	2.12	137.00	2.16	.66	.00
19931202	2.43	2.12	133.00	2.15	. 55	.00
19951203	2.41	2.12	140.00	2.15	.61	.00
19951204	2.41	2.11	139.00	2.15	.69	.00
19951205	2.40	2.11	121.00	2.14	.78	.00
19951200	2.40	2.11	124.00	2.13	.76	.00
10053000	2,35	2.05	191.00	2.13	. / /	.00
199:1200	2.37	2.00	161 00	2,14	.83	.00
19951210	2.30	2.00	132.00	2.12	.82	.00
19951210	2.30	2.07	122.00	2.12	.84	.00
19951212	2.35	1 94	~7.00	2.05	1.1.5	.00
19951213	2.50	1.92	-13 00	1 94	1.32	.00
19951214	2.51	1 89	-2 80	1,24	1 07	.00
19951215	2.51	1.86	-3.20	1 89	1.07	.00
19951216	2.52	1.84	6.10	1 87	91	.00
19951217	2.51	1.82	18.00	1.85	1 10	.00
19951218	2.51	1,82	11.00	1.83	$\frac{1}{1}$ 17	.00
19951219	2.52	1.80	12.00	1.83	95	.00
19951220	2.56	1.78	4.80	1.84	81	.00
19951221	2.55	1.77	-9.40	1.81	1 05	00
19951222	2.54	1.76	-14,00	1.81	1.20	00
19951223	2.56	1.75	-17.00	1.81	1.41	.00
19951224	2.54	1.75	-7.60	1.80	1.42	.00
19951225	2.52	1.73	12.00	1.78	1.24	.00
19951226	2.51	1.72	27.00	1.76	1,12	.00
19951227	2.50	1.72	34.00	1.75	1,11	. 00
19951228	2.51	1.72	47.00	1.75	1,07	.00
19951229	2.54	1.73	13.00	1.75	.97	.00
19951230	2,53	1.73	26.00	1.74	1.05	. 00
19951231	2.53	1.73	16.00	1.74	.88	.00

### TABLE J-1. Florida Bay, Mean Daily Stages (ft) and Flows (cfs) (continued).
λ+ **2**Λ3

•

(This page intentionally left blank.)

# APPENDIX K

•

# APPENDIX K WATER CONTROL STRUCTURE OPERATION DURING STORMS IN JUNE AND OCTOBER 1995

# Storm Event Of June 20

## <u> Iune 19</u>

8:00 The District weather report stated, "Wet through the coming week with episodes of heavy rain, particularly June 20 and 21."

Canal stages in the District were normal. Pumping station S-9 started to pump. Monitored water condition closely.

### <u>June 20</u>

8:00 The District weather report stated, "A major rainfall event is developing over the District with rainfall amount of 6 inches over some areas between June 20 and 22."

Pumping stations S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9, S-135, S-140 and S-331 started to pump to lower canal stages.

- 13:30 Scheduled night shifts at pumping station S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9 and S-331 to pump through the night in anticipation of heavy rainfall.
- 14:20 Heavy rainfall began and canal stages started to increase.
  Lowered water level at S-29 to receive more water in the basin.
  Closed gates at S-333 to stop releases from WCA 3A into L-29. L-29 was too high.
  Closed gates at S-13A to prevent releases from C-11 western basin into eastern basin. S-9 should be used to control canal level in western C-11. S-13A is designed as basin divide structure.
- 15:30 More canal stages rose due to the rainfall. Opened all gates to 8 feet at S-22, S-25B, S-26, S-27, S-28, S-29, and S-123 to make high releases into the tide.
- 16:40 Opened all gates to 8 feet at S-20F and S-21A to make high releases into the tide.
- 17:00 Opened gates full at S-25 to make maximum releases into the tide.
- 19:00 L-31N/L-31W/C-111 rose above their critical levels.
   Opened gates full at S-194 and S-196 to make maximum releases.
   Opened gates full at S-175 to make maximum releases.
   Opened gates full at S-177 to make maximum releases.
- 20:00 Secured pumping at S-331 due to high downstream stage. Discharged water by gravity only through S-173/S-331.

June 21

7:20 Opened gates at S-148 full to increase releases from L-31N through S-338. Pumps at S-332 were repaired. Added more pumps in operation at S-332. (June 21, continued)

- 8:00 The District weather report stated "Heavy rains averaging two inches will be developing southeast today."
- 8:20 Started pumping at S-13. Scheduled night shift pumping at S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9, S-13 and S-140.
- 9:30 Lowered operating level of computer control at S-99 to facilitate secondary drainage.
- 10:00 The Corps of Engineers increased releases from S-10, S-11, and S-12. WCA 1, and 2A were above their schedules and rising.
- 12:10 Dispatched crew to open three gates at S-197.
- 12:30Increased releases from S-21A and S-20F to maximum. Took those twosites offcomputer control to avoid gate yo-yo during high tide.Opened all gates at ridge structures S-165, S-166, S-167 and S-179 full to draininteriorreaches.Increased releasesIncreased releasesIncreased releasesIncreased releases
- 15:20 Lowered operating level of computer control at G-54, G-56, S-36, S-37A, and S-37B to facilitate secondary drainage in Ft. Lauderdale area.
- 15:50 Dispatched crew to open seven gates at S-197 according to operational guidelines. Opened gates at G-124 full to provide additional drainage for C-51 western basin.
- 17:10 S-18C headwater rose above 2.8 feet. Seven gates at S-197 were opened. Requested field crew to stand by until water level started to decline.
- 17:50 High canal stages in Miami area would limit salinity intrusion under high tide condition. Opened all gates at S-21, S-22, S-25B, S-26, S-27, S-28, S-29, and S-123 to maximum and locked open regardless of tide. Based on past experience, S-22, S-28, and S-29 had problems when gates opened to maximum. Dispatched field person to open gates at those sites. Gates at rest of sites were opened by telemetry.
- 21:00 Raised operating level of computer control at S-36 and S-37A to prevent over draining. Inflows started to decline.
- 22:40 Dispatched crew to open all thirteen gates at S-197 according to operational guidelines. Started pumping at S-4.

#### <u>June 22</u>

- 1:10 Twelve gates opened at S-197. Number 3 gate was out of service.
- 7:00 Stopped gravity discharge at S-173/S-331. Downstream stage was too high.
- 8:00 The District weather report stated, "Moderate to locally heavy rains will focus east of Lake Okeechobee this afternoon. The main branch of deep tropical moisture and energy has weakened and shifted east of Florida."

(June 22, continued)

- 8:10 Opened gates full at S-47D to facilitate secondary drainage by lowering canal level.
- 8:20 Increased releases at S-124 to facilitate secondary drainage.
- 8:40 Returned S-37A, S-37B, G-54, and G-56 to normal computer control operating levels. Canal stages were too low.
   Increased releases at G-155 to maximum. Canal stages in L-1/L-2/L-3 were high.
- 9:00 Closed all gates at S-151. WCA 3B was high. Stopped releases from WCA 3A into 3B. Opened all gates at G-211 full. Tailwater was higher than headwater at G-211.
- 10:30 Scheduled night shift pumping at S-4, S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9, S-13, and S-140.
- 10:40 The Corps of Engineers increased releases at S-10 and S-11. WCA 1 and 2A were above their schedules and rising.
- 14:20 Opened gates at S-47B full to facilitate secondary drainage by lowering canal level.

# Storm Event of October 17

#### October 15

- 0:00 S-6, S-8, and S-140 were pumping through the night.
- 1:00 Stages in C-11 were high and rising fast. Called S-9 to start pump as soon as possible. Took automatic control off at S-25. During high tide and high flow, gate will yo-yo. Opened gates at S-25 full.
- 3:00 S-9 started pumping.
- 6:00 S-25 returned to automatic control.
- 9:40 Called S-13 to pump. Canal stage was high. Took off computer control at S-25B, S-26, S-27, and S-29. Opened all gates to 8 feet to maximize flood releases. Number 4 gate at S-29 could not be opened by telemetry. Requested field person to open. Closed all gates at S-5AE. C-51 western end was high. C-51 did not have capacity to receive water from L-8.
- 10:00 The District weather report stated, "Moderate to heavy rains south through the 16th."
- 10:30 S-13 started to pump.
- Scheduled night shift pumping at S-4, S-5A, S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9, S-13, S-127, S-133, S-135, and S-140. Pumping at S-129 and S-131 was secured at 16:00.
   Secured pumping at S-331. Tailwater was too high.
- 11:45 Opened gate at S-173.

#### October 16

- 5:00 Stage at Lake Ida was rising. Heavy rainfall occurred in the area. Lowered computer operating levels at S-40 and S-41 to increase releases.
- 7:00 S-28 gate 1 could not be opened by computer. Requested field person to open.
- 8:00 Started pumping at S-129 and S-131. Requested all pump stations to operate at their maximum capacity. The District weather report stated, "Moderate to heavy rains south today."
- 8:00 Increased releases from L-8 into L-12 through S-5AW to be pumped by S-5A into WCA 1. S-5A had excess pumping capacity.
- 9:30 Lowered computer operating level at S-36 to increase releases.
   Increased regulatory releases from Lake Kissimmee through S-65.
   The Corps of Engineers began to make releases from WCA 1 into WCA 2A through S-10.
   Stopped regulatory releases from WCA 2A into C-14 through S-38. C-14 was high.

#### October 16, continued

- 10:00 Lake Worth Drainage District reported their structure operating status.
- Scheduled night shift pumping at S-4, S-5A, S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9, S-13, S-127, S-135, and S-140.
   Increased regulatory releases from Lake Tohopekaliga through S-61.
   Lowered computer control operating level at G-56 to increase releases.
- 14:00 The District weather report stated, "Rains becoming heavy east overnight."
- 14:30 Lake Worth Drainage District reported that high releases were discharging into C-15 and C-16. Lowered computer control operating levels at S-37A, S-40, and S-41 to increase releases.
- 15:00 Stopped regulatory releases from WCA 3A into the North New River through S-34 and S-142. Stage in the North New River was high.
- 16:40 Started pumping at S-2 and S-3. Canal stages rose to 13 feet.
- 19:10 Increased regulatory releases from Lake Istokpoga through S-68.
- 21:00 Notified Belle Glade Water Plant of pumping at S-2 and S-3. The plant may need to adjust their treatment of water from Lake Okeechobee.

#### October 17

- 2:30 Heavy rainfall occurred in the West Palm Beach area. Canals in the area rose. Lake Worth Drainage District opened all their structures to maximum.
- 3:00 West end of C-51 was high. Increased releases from C-51 through S-155 to the tide.
- 3:45 Increased releases from C-15 and C-16 to the tide. Canal stages were high.

(October 17, continued)

- 4:00 Requested Lake Worth Drainage District to divert inflows of C-15 and C-16 to Hillsboro canal. Hillsboro canal still had excess capacity.
- 4:15 Gave instructions that when weeds at S-5A were removed, operate S-5A at full capacity. Opened S-5AW to divert water from L-8 to L-12 to be pumped out by S-5A.
- 4:30 Increased releases to maximum from C-15, C-16, and C-51 through S-40, S-41, and S-155.
- 5:00 Increased releases to maximum gradually from C-18 through S-46 into the tide.
- 5:45 City of WPB requested to make additional water releases into C-51. Asked the city to hold off. C-51 was too high.
- 5:50 ACME reported that they were pumping and road was flooding in their area.
- 6:00 Opened S-5AE to release water from C-51 into L-12 to be pumped out by S-5A.
- 6:30 Opened G-92 to allow releases from west branch of the Loxahatchee River into C-18 to be released to the tide.
- 8:00 Closed gates at S-235. Needed to lower C-20 to facilitate drainage of S-169 basin. The District weather report stated, "Heavy to excessive rains to 5" are likely east."
- 8:40 Opened gates at S-97 to its maximum allowable according to design.
- 9:00 Took off computer control at S-169 and locked gate full open.
- 9:30 Increased regulatory releases from Lake Kissimmee. The Corps of Engineers increased releases from WCA 1 into WCA 2A through S-10A, S-10C and S-10D to maximum.
- 10:30 Opened gates at S-41 to maximum.
- 11:20 L-10/L-12 rose. S-5A did not have excess capacity. Stopped diverting water from C-51 and L-8 into L-12 by closing gates at S-5AE and S-5AW.
- 11:25 Increased pumping at S-2 to three pumps.
- 12:45 Opened gates at S-149 full.
- 13:20 C-23 continued to rise. Opened S-97 to 4.5 feet which was above its design limitation.
- 13:50 Scheduled night shift pumping at S-2, S-3, S-4, S-5A, S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9 S-13, S-127, S-129, S-131, S-133, S-135, and S-140.
  Operated all four pumps at S-2 according to operational guidelines. The District weather report stated, "Excessive rains to 12" northeast."
- 14:30 Took computer control off at S-49 and opened gates to 8 feet. Took computer control off at S-99 and opened gates to 6 feet.

(October 17, continued)

- 16:15 Removed all boards at G-78 and G-79 to divert water from C-23 to C-24. C-23 rose to danger level. C-24 had excess capacity.
- 1800 The District weather report stated, "excessive rains to 20" northeast by midnight."
- 18:30 C-23 continued to rise. Opened gates at S-97 to 5 feet.
- 18:40 Lake Istokpoga was near its schedule. Increased regulatory releases through S-68. Adjust downstream structures accordingly.
- 19:50 Stage at S-18C was high. Notified Homestead F.S. of preparation to open S-197 tomorrow morning.
- 20:30 Okeechobee F.S. started to cut bypass channel at G-78 to divert water from C-23 to C-24.
- 22:00 Canal stages continued to rise. Opened gates at S-49 and S-99 to their maximum due to emergency condition.

#### October 18

- 00:20 Started to cut bypass channel at G-79 to divert water from C-23 to C-24.
- 2:00 Gave message to increase number of opened gates at S-197 from 3 to 7 in the morning. Gave message to latch top and bottom gate together at S-153 in the morning. L-65 was high. The latched gate has larger discharge capacity.
- 3:25 Okeechobee F.S. completed cut of bypass channel at G-79 to divert water from C-23 to C-24.
- 8:00 Opened gates at S-5AS to release water from L-8 into WCA 1. The District weather report stated, "Moderate rains north and interior south."
- 9:00 Increased regulatory releases from Lake Kissimmee.
- 11:20 Scheduled night shift pumping at S-2, S-3, S-4, S-5A S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9, S-13, S-127, S-129, S-131, S-133, S-135, and S-140.
- 10:55 The Corps of Engineers opened Culvert 16 to release water from the EAA into Lake Okeechobee. Because the lake was over 18 feet, COE monitored the conditions to prevent water from the lake flowing back into the land.
- 14:30 Closed gates at S-343A, S-343B, and S-344 to stop release water from WCA 3A into Big Cypress National Preserve.
- 15:30 Adjusted limit switches at S-49 and S-99 to increase gate opening.
- 18:15 Increased releases from L-8 into WCA 1 through S-5AS.
- 21:00 Returned to computer control at S-40 to prevent stages dropping too low.
- 23:00 Returned to computer control at S-41 to prevent stages dropping too low.

October 19

- 8:00 The District weather report stated, "Rains focusing north today, increasing north through east tomorrow."
- 8:40 Closed gates at S-76. L-8 was too high between S-76 and Lake Okeechobee.
- 8:50 Lake Worth Drainage District reduced releases in the southern part of Palm Beach County.
- 11:20 Lake Worth Drainage District reduced releases into C-51.
- 13:20 Returned to computer control at S-155 to prevent stages dropping too low.
   Increased releases from L-8 into WCA 1. L-8 was very high.
   Scheduled night shift pumping at S-2, S-3, S-4, S-5A S-6, S-7, S-8, S-9, S-13, S-127, S-129, S-131, S-133, S-135, and S-140.
- 15:30 The Corps of Engineers opened Culvert 11, 14, and 16 to release water from the EAA into Lake Okeechobee. Due to the high lake stage, COE monitored conditions closely.

. .